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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERHE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Beijing
Capital Land Ltd. (“BCL" or the “Company”; together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to present the Group's
interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2015.

The first half of 2015 was characterized by a slow global
economic recovery. The U.S. economy grew smoothly as the
long-term restructuring of its supply side resulted in improved
productivity, while the Eurozone gradually recovered under low
oil prices, subdued interest rates and favorable exchange rate
environment, despite the overhanging Greece debt issue which
might drag down economic recovery in the region. Emerging
markets were pressured by the slower economic growth and
capital outflows. China entered into a crucial phase of industrial
restructuring and transformation of economic growth drivers
in the first half of 2015. Though China’s macro economy faced
certain downward pressure, it started to demonstrate a trend of
recovery toward the end of the second quarter, with the overall
national economy showing signs of stability.

During the first half of 2015, under the guidelines of “stabilize
growth, adjust structure, and promote consumption”, the
central bank implemented consecutive reserve requirement
ratio (RRR) cuts and lowered interest rates, maintaining a policy
of monetary easing. Specifically for the property sector, local
governments also rolled out favorable policies according to local
conditions to boost the property market. On top of these policy
supports, Chinese authorities also relaxed mortgage rules and
lowered downpayment requirement for second home buyers on
30 March. As a result of these measures, inventory pressure in
the real estate sector has been partially relieved, with property
market in first-tier and core second-tier cities has begun picking
up. However, the effects have yet to trickle down to third-
and fourth-tier cities, which still suffer from excess inventory
pressure, and are still continuing to focus on increasing property
sales volume through lowering prices.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERESE

Strategically, the Group focused on core cities and actively
acted on market trends in the first half. We also established
comprehensive marketing channels to further expand our
overseas business to rapidly increase sales performance. During
the period under review, the total contracted sales of the
Group's projects amounted to approximately RMB12.12 billion,
an increase of 78.9% year-on-year. For the first six months,
overseas projects became an important part of the Company’s
business as the Group joined hands with renowned Australian
property developer Dyldam to invest into three new residential
projects in Sydney. All of the apartments in the newly released
projects were sold out during the period, with total contracted
sales reaching RMB1.83 billion, accounting for 15% of the
Company'’s total contracted sales.

In the first half of the year, the Group witnessed rapid growth in
its outlets business line, which introduced over 80 new brands.
The officially launched outlets projects in Beijing Fangshan,
Wanning and Huzhou generated total sales of RMB1.04 billion,
an increase of nearly 80% year-on-year. Beijing Capital Juda
in July acquired a commercial land plot for an outlets project
in Nanchang, which will become a new milestone for our
outlets business. Beijing Capital Juda also successfully issued
RMB1.3 billion of 3-year guaranteed notes in Hong Kong in
July, solidifying its position as the Company’s overseas listing
platform with strong fund raising capabilities.

Leveraging on the opportunities brought by the integration of
Beijing, Tianjin and Hebei, the Company continued to focus on
utilizing its advantages in land investment in core cities. A total
of nine projects in Beijing, Tianjin, Chengdu and other core cities
were acquired in the first half, adding a" total construction area
of 1.89 million square meters. Notably, the Company leveraged
its synergy with Beijing Capital Group to successfully acquire
two core land plots, F1 and B2 at Yongfeng Industrial Base,
Haidian District, with total GFA of nearly 500,000 square meters.
A new type of industrial property development will be built on
the newly-added land plots, which will lay the foundation for
building new and differentiated core competitiveness.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERESE

Product competitiveness and internal management capabilities
were important areas of focus for the Company in the first
half. The Company initiated all-rounded measures to build up
its own sales team, and made comprehensive improvements to
its marketing channels to drive rapid sales growth. The product
standardization application platform further developed and
the number of centralized procurement partners increased to
over 30 companies, covering over 70% of project procurement.
The roadmap of cost management and cost control was also
completed and implemented. The co-investment program
was further optimized and expanded to all projects to ensure
participation of all core team members and fully motivate the
teams.

During the first half, the Company fully utilized its capital
strength and achieved a number of breakthroughs. In January,
the Company’s first red-chip listing platform Beijing Capital
Juda completed the acquisition of Xi‘an project and issued
convertible preference shares. Beijing Capital Juda will be
developed into the Company’s commercial property platform
in the future, and will be a solid foundation for the Company
to expand its commercial property business and provide equity
financing support. In May, the Company also seized favorable
opportunities in the domestic market to successfully issue 5-year
RMB3 billion domestic bond at a coupon rate of 4.58%, which
made several records among bonds issued by domestic property
companies and significantly reduced the Company’s financing
costs.

Looking into the second half of 2015, the Group will continue
to follow and build on its five-year strategy, strengthen its ability
to acquire high quality resources in core cities, and expand
overseas investments. The Company will accelerate its efforts
to integrate property development with internet platforms, as
well as broaden its comprehensive sales and marketing channels.
The Company will also continue to build a standardized and
centralized procurement platform in order to stringently control
costs and improve operational efficiency. We will also team
up with leading industry player Vanke and its “Rui Butler”
service to improve our property management and product
competitiveness.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our gratitude
to BCL's clients, business partners and shareholders for their
continued support over the past year. We will continue to forge
ahead, accelerate our transformation and innovation, enhance
our unique competitive edge, and devote ourselves to becoming
the most valuable integrated property developer in China.

Liu Xiaoguang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 10 August 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN WM D

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

During the first half of 2015, the Group’s revenue amounted
to RMB5,447,244,000 (first half of 2014: RMB4,519,333,000),
up 21% from the same period last year. Operating profit rose
5% year-on-year to RMB1,376,953,000. Profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company decreased 24% year-on-year
to RMB503,293,000 (first half of 2014: RMB661,130,000).
Earnings per share were RMB25 cents (first half of 2014: RMB33
cents), representing a decrease of 24% compared to the first
half of 2014. The Board resolved not to declare any interim
dividend in respect of the six months ended 30 June 2015.

PROPERTY SALES PERFORMANCE

During the first half of 2015, the total contracted sales area
of the Group’s projects amounted to approximately 1,199,000
sg.m., up 64.1% from the same period last year. Total
contracted sales amounted to RMB12.12 billion, up 78.9%
from the same period last year. Five core cities accounted for
approximately 70% of total contracted sales, of which Beijing
and Tianjin accounted for 53% and remained the principal
contributor to sales. Meanwhile, sales generated from overseas
projects increased to 15% of total contracted sales and became
a major contributor to the Company’s sales performance.

In the first half of the year, the Company built up its own sales
team and expanded diversified marketing channels to over
300, a combination which helped optimize all-round marketing
strategies to strongly support sales performance. In the second
half of the year, the Company will continue to promote
homebuyer oriented products and products for homebuyers
looking for upgrades, take advantage of the market recovery
by accelerating product supply, further enhance comprehensive
marketing channels, and strive to achieve a full year sales target
of RMB35 billion.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E R M DA

Contracted Contracted
Contracted Average Sales
Sales Area Selling Price Revenue
Project HE AB =48 %548 #=4
SHEESE HEHYE HESH
(sgq.m.) (RMB/sg.m.) ('000 RMB)
(ARE
Q) FHAR) (ARBFT
5 Core Cities BERZOHE S 822,004 10,216 8,397,877
Ealing, Beijing bR RAARED 47,646 18,533 883,039
Beijing Xanadu 1t R E Im &P 768 102,687 78,830
Beijing Novotown bR FT B 1,131 17,602 19,912
Beijing Lanyinshan 1t 5B E L 16,832 18,560 312,390
Enjoyable City 1t A% &R 1,126 9,500 10,695
Enjoyable River 1t R A% b 23,808 3,731 88,827
Beijing Zhaoquanying Project  dt 2 & IEH 123,553 11,135 1,375,771
Beijing Nobles Mansion ERERAE 1,950 22,065 43,018
Tianjin First City RO BRI, 2,992 7,353 22,000
Tianjin Noble City R RERD 855 8,201 7,011
Tianjin Fortune Class KEEAE L 17,167 15,891 272,796
Tianjin International Peninsula K 3ZEIEF & 164,614 8,340 1,372,927
Tianjin Capital City REEEIW 102,984 8,380 862,981
Tianjin Cambridge County KEFBED 42,976 9,375 402,890
Tianjin Xuan Community R 37,627 9,998 376,184
Tianjin Grand Canal Milestone KZEA AR E 16,899 18,415 311,193
Shanghai Time Flowing In Villa /8811 27,605 22,799 629,346
Chongging Hong'en EEARBBREER
International Living District 39,814 10,367 412,763
Chonggqing Eco Village BEE LA, 58,037 5,291 307,067
Chongging Capital City EHE G AW 35,629 5,935 211,452
Chengdu First City i 0 B0 % 45k 690 8,311 5,736
Chengdu Wanjuanshan K E&ES I 9,639 5,159 49,731
Chengdu Eco Village P EB S RO 47,661 7,161 341,319
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEE w2

Contracted Contracted
Contracted Average Sales
Sales Area Selling Price Revenue
Project HEER #HH #H =N
SHEER HEHYE HESH
(sgq.m.) (RMB/sg.m.) ('000 RMB)
(AR¥
(FF7K) TR (AR®FT)
Other Regions Higih B 357,722 10,232 3,660,358
Shenyang First City v (5 B AR 5k 5,221 7,063 36,871
Shenyang Qipan Hills First Villa &G AR 1158 3,399 6,547 22,254
Shenyang Eco Village S5 MK 23,821 4,948 117,857
Wuxi Gentle House EHEAIERN 2,338 6,522 15,249
Wuxi Joyous House £ 5 T 10,952 8,055 88,217
Jiangyin Auspicious House TN E 8,632 5,893 50,868
Xi'an First City 75 %2 BRI 47,895 5,831 279,251
Zhenjiang Joyous House ST T 20,854 3,693 77,006
Hainan Integrated Outlets BEREBRIGEE
Project 12,070 8,981 108,407
Qingdao Central Park No. 1 == VNERE 9,825 7,330 72,014
Qingdao Xiangmi Lake EESBEM 8,344 6,402 53,420
Yantai Sunny Chief Yard HEEXER 42,001 6,113 256,744
Qingdao Airport International & & 2B BEE AL
Center 7,640 8,358 63,858
Huzhou Joyous House BN T 9,814 6,685 65,604
Kunshan Integrated Outlets B RAHRETARE
Project 42,023 6,702 281,636
Kunshan Eastern Mystery IS e R FHE 21,493 11,336 243,630
Project North Rocks, Australia  J®j/lINorth RocksI& B 40,000 18,120 724,800
Project Merrylands, Australia ~ ®jliMerrylandsZZ B 14,618 27,805 406,460
Project Mega, Australia SBiMMegad B 26,782 25,996 696,212
Car Parking Space B 19,643 3,037 59,656
Total a&t 1,199,369 10,104 12,117,890
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEB WM DA

Geographical distribution of property sales performance in 1H of 2015 and 1H of 2014
TR R L¥FNCE-MFLEFHENEESEEE S M

8% /
5% /

1H of 2015 1H of 2014
=t B —F-mEL¥E
M Beijing 4t R M Tianjin X)& Chongging EEF 1 Chengdu X #B

B Others HAty Shanghai /&

M Sydney F&/E

COMMERCIAL PROPERTY

The first half of 2015 the Company saw robust performance in
commercial property business. Essentially, three outlet projects
located in Fangshan, Wanning and Huzhou introduced over 80
new brands, and recorded total retail sales of RMB1.04 billion,
up 78.9% from the same period last year. Also, the Company’s
Kunshan Outlet Project is expected to launch within the year.

During the period under review, Beijing Capital Juda, the
Company’s red-chip listing platform which aims to develop
commercial property, completed acquisition of Xi‘an project. In
July, Beijing Capital Juda successfully acquired an outlet project
in Nanchang, marking a significant step in the outlets business.
In the same month, Beijing Capital Juda successfully issued
3-year guaranteed notes in a principal amount of RMB1.3 billion
with a coupon rate of 5.25%, and was rated BBB grade by Fitch.
Beijing Capital Juda successfully exhibited its function as an
overseas listing perform. In the future, riding on the advantages
of a well-positioned platform with flexible capital operations,
Beijing Capital Juda’s outlets business will continue to ramp up
and expand into more targeted cities across the country.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEE w2

HOTEL OPERATIONS

During the first half of 2015, the Company’s Holiday Inn Central
Plaza achieved stable operating performance as a result of
improved service quality and expanded client base. As of 30 June
2015, the Company recorded accumulated revenue from hotel
operations of RMB42,225,000 and an average occupancy rate of

73%.

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

In the first half of 2015, the Company, together with its joint
ventures and associated companies, completed construction
of projects with an aggregate GFA of approximately 824,000

e
—E-RAL¥E - ARMTFRERA
ETRORA RS RE - HARE - E8E

BEBRBRERY - B —T—RFX
A=1tH ARBEEXBRFERZ?

WA ANR#42,225,0000T © FHYAFE R
73% °
BRYIE

—E-NFLHF RRIKAEERA]
BENRERKRTIEA ML EKERER
E82.4BF K o

sg.m..
Approximate
Completed Attributable
GFA Interest
Project Type BAE R HAEE
HE AW MEER HMELER PEAL Rz
(sq.m.)
(%)
Tianjin Cambridge County Phase 1 Residential 36,636 100%
RRERIEE—HA =
Tianjin Capital City Phase 1 Residential 49,610 100%
REEEI—H TF=x
Qingdao Sunny Xiangmi Lake Phase 2 Residential 89,782 100%
EEGHREEN_H F=
Kunshan Eastern Mystery Phase 1 & 2 Residential 52,666 51%
BLUBSHRFWE— —H F=
Chongqing Eco Village Phase 1 Residential 260,937 28.24%
BE M —H =
Beijing Novotown Phase 2 Residential 88,207 100%
bR L 28 — 5 F=
Kunshan Integrated Outlets Project — Residential Residential 195,834 100%
Phase 2 and Phase 4 F=
BILRFRITGABET 8 O
Kunshan Integrated Outlets Project - Commercial ~ Commercial 50,703 100%
BILRSHATGABERE [GES
Total A &f 824,375
9
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEB WM DA

LAND BANK

Tibf#E

Geographical distribution of total GFA of land bank are as follows:

tiREREERRES D it

2.5% 0.3%

10.0%

1.3% 23.6%

0.3%
7.0%

0.4%
5.7% ~

5.5%

\ 1.5%

11.9%

~ 2.5%
N 9.2% =X 10.8%
1H of 2015 1H of 2014
—E-HELEE —E-mEEEE
M Beijing it R M Tianjin A& M Qingdao 55 Yantai & & Shenyang j&F5 M Chengdu B #B

B Chongging EF M Xi'an A% Shanghai F/& B Wuxi #85 B Huzhou J5M M Zhenjiang $8,T
Jiangyin JI[& M Kunshan &1 M Wanning &% Sydney &E

In the first half of 2015, domestically, the Company took
advantage of the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei integration initiative to
increase land investments in Beijing and Tianjin, underpinning
the Company’s leading position in the two regions. In the
meantime, the Company also actively expanded into overseas
markets. During the period under review, the Company
successfully acquired total GFA of 1.89 million sq.m. of supreme
land plots in core cities including Beijing, Tianjin and Chengdu,
with corresponding land investment reaching RMB14.3 billion.
Notably, riding on the synergies with its parent company Beijing
Capital Group, the Company acquired the F1 and B2 projects
in the Yongfeng High and New Technology Industrial Base in
Haidian District, Beijing, with a total GFA of approximately
500,000 sg.m.. With those two projects in the pipeline, the
Company will strive for more growth potential by adopting
an innovative development model of industrial real estate,
and building competitive advantages that differentiate the
Company from its peers. In addition, the Group has deepened
cooperation with renowned Australian developer Dyldam and
invested 3 more residential projects in Sydney with a total GFA
. of, E30,000 sg.m..
il =2
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEB WM DA

As at 30 June 2015, the Company possessed a land bank with an
aggregate GFA of 11.81 million sq.m., and a total above ground
GFA of 9.18 million sq.m.. The aggregate GFA attributable to
the Company’s equity interests was 8.93 million sq.m., and the
ground GFA attributable to the Company’s equity interests was
7.01 million sg.m.. Of the total land bank, approximately 91%
is for property development, 8% is for investment properties,
and 1% is for hotel. The existing land bank is considered to
be sufficient for the Group's development in the coming three
years.

Hotel Properties

BE_T-—OFNA=1TH " QRFILHRH
WHEEME 181 BT K - L2
EE918&E F 1K B REEMmIE893
B oK it FREMATOIEFT
Ko L EHEZERET - 91%RER
M 8% RIREME 1% HBEEYME -
BELHREERAMEARRKIFLA
MBRFE - RRES -

B JE W) 3%

Total
Total Saleable
Attributable GFA of GFA of

No.  Project Location Type Interest  Land Bank  Land Bank

Fe  EEEE HENE ES b BibEE AEREE AEHLER

(sq.m) (sq.m)

(F5%)  (BRK)

1 Holiday Inn Central Plaza Xicheng District, Beijing Hotel 100% 50,712 38,140
TRRAERE IRTERE il'3

2 InterContinental Financial Street Beijing Xicheng District, Beijing Hotel 34% 58,161 42,900
SRENRER FrhERE il'3

1
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEB WM DA

Investment Properties

Total
Total Saleable
Attributable GFA of GFA of
No.  Project Location Type Interest  Land Bank  Land Bank
e BAER WENE EL i EfEs RELEED FEBLER
(sq.m) (sq.m)
(F5%) (5K
3 Beijing Capital Outlets Chaoyang District, Beijing Commercial 100% 170,651 130,751
T RERHRS IRmEhE [
4 Huzhou Capital Outlets Taihu Lake Resort, Huzhou, Commercial 100% 185,146 175,400
MBS Jiangsu Province [
TEEMMT
KRR R
5 Hainan Capital Outlets Liji Town, Wanning District, Commercial 55% 103,180 100,879
it Hainan Province Y
BEEEEMELE
6 Kunshan Capital Outlets The East New Town, Kunshan, Commercial 100% 101,300 101,300
FILESRES Jiangsu Province [
TEE TR
7 Xi'an Capital Outlets Economic & Technological Commercial 92.56% 50,000 50,000
&g Development Zone, Xi‘an, S
Shaanxi Province
REAEZTEERMFHER
8 Sunshine Building Xicheng District, Beijing Commercial/ 35% 52,095 34,163
IRBEAAR IETREE Office
B%/57E
9 Lize Financial Business District Project Fengtai District, Beijing Commercial/ 253,990 188,000
EECHELR IRHEAR Office
B%/878
il - A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEB WM DA

Property Development BEYE
Total
Total Saleable
Attributable GFA of GFA of
No.  Project Project Name Location Type Interest  Land Bank  Land Bank
Fo  EEEE BRER BENE NEER EitE: AELEE AEHLER
(sq.m) (sq.m)
(FAax)  (¥5K)
10 Beijing Yuyuantan Project The Reflections ~ Haidian District, Beijing Residential 100% 12,331 12,048
FRENERR BEE TR i3
11 Beijing Hujialou Project Xanadu Chaoyang District, Beijing Residential/ 100% 31,134 22,938
TR REER ERH IRmHBE Commercial
/5%
12 Beijing Huang Xin Zhuang Project Ealing Fangshan District, Beijing Residential 95% 168,283 143,853
FREFHER i i IRMELE [z
13 Beijing Miyun Zhuang Yun Project Beijing Landscape ~ Miyun District, Beijing Residential 100% 127,865 116,408
IREZRHERR Villa IR EER frz
B
14 Beijing Changyang Town Project Ballet Town Fangshan District, Beijing Residential 100% 6,127 5,393
trRGEER BER FrmRUE %
15 Beijing Changyang Land Novotown Fangshan District, Beijing Residential/ 100% 6,230 3,799
No. 4 Project i HRTELE Commercial
TRER4RER LE/B%
16 Bejing Daxing SunVillage Project Enjoyable City Daxing District, Beijing Residential/ 100% 52,998 49,016
N HAE IRTARR Apartment/
Commercial
fz/ 28/
Bx
17" Beijing Pinggu Daxingzhuang Project Enjoyable River Pingqu District, Beijing Residential/ 10% 11,128 6,640
FRTARRIER HnE TRHTAR Commercial
Et/B%
18 Beijing Zhaoguanying F1-01 Project Passion World Shunyi District, Beijing Apartment/ 100% 35,640 26,960
TR#2ER-01EE B TRESR Commercial
RE/E%
19 Beijing Zhaoquanying F02 Project Enjoyable Bay Shunyi District, Beijing Residential/ 100% 110,601 66,009
S RBELER0ER b IETEER Apartment/
Commercial
Fx/08/
Bx
20 Bejjing Zhaoquanying FO4 Project Enjoyable Trees  Shunyi District, Beijing Residential/ 100% 135,762 68,514
JRBREM4EE B IRmEZE Apartment
E2/05
21 Lize Financial Business District Project Fengtai District, Beijing Commercial/ 179,786 168,000
EERABEAR bk =1 Office
RB/B7E
22 Beijing Fangshan Gaojiao Park Project ~ Nobles Mansion ~ Fangshan District, Beijing Residential/ 100% 169,234 154,106
IRELEHEER £hia IRmELE Apartment/
Commercial
LE/08/
[
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEB WM DA

Total

Total Saleable

Attributable GFA of GFA of

No.  Project Project Name Location Type Interest  Land Bank  Land Bank
FS EEAR ERER BENE NERY EitEs AELEE AEHLER
(sg.m. (sg.m.)

(F5%)  (F5X)

23 Bejjing Haidian Taipingzhuang Project Haidian District, Beijing Residential/ 25% 22,041 16,136
FREEATHER IRmEER Apartment
/08
24 Shunyi New Town Block No. 17 Shunyi District, Beijing Residential/ 100% 159,612 127,584
BZH51748 IRMEZE Commercial
e/B%
25 Shunyi Renhe Town Project Shunyi District, Beijing Apartment/ 14.55% 148,307 109,807
[EE i IRTEEE Commercial
0B/B%
26 Beijing Zhaoquanying FO2-01 Project Shunyi District, Beijing Apartment/ 100% 48,155 34,555
JBZ 2 EF2-018E IRMEZE Commercial
RE/B%
27 Shunyi Nan Fa Xin Project Shunyi District, Beijing Apartment/ 12.5% 297 467 206,707
(Block No. 26 in tRTIEER Commercial
Shunyi New Town) IN-Y4
IR R (2661 )
28 Haidian Yongfeng Industrial Haidian District, Beijing Residential/ 100% 286,377 208,702
Base Project Plot F1 RmEER Apartment/
BEXEEF IR Commerciall
Office
fE/28/
Bg/
578
29 Haidian Yongfeng Industrial Haidian District, Beijing Apartment/ 50% 191,500 149376
Base Project Plot B2 HRTEERE Commerciall
R EEFENB) Office
2B/
B7E/
B
30 Tianjin Banshan Project Tianjin First City ~ Tanggu District, Tianjin Residential/ 100% 25,598 5,789
REFILER REREERE  REDRAR Commercial
LE/B%
31 Tianjin Huaming Project Noble City Dongli District, Tianjin Residential/ 40% 69,945 69,945
REZRER FRE RETRER Apartment/
Commercial
fx/ 28/
Bx
32 Tianjin Xiging Project Landing House Xiqing District, Tianjin Residential/ 40% 17,100 17,100
REBBER L RETEER Office
fz/E7E
33 Tianjin Shuangang 121 Project Fortune Class Jinnan District, Tianjin Residential/ 55% 92,230 92,230
REEE121EE BRI AETEBRE Apartment/
Commercial/
Office
| fx/28/
B Bz/
57
il -A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEB WM DA

Total

Total Saleable

Attributable GFA of GFA of

No.  Project Project Name Location Type Interest  Land Bank  Land Bank
FS EEAR ERER BENE nERY EitEs AELEE AELLER
(sg.m. (sq.m.)

(FaK)  (F7K)

34 Tianjin Shuangang122 Project Tianjin - A-Z Town  Jinnan District, Tianjin Residential 55% 20,101 19,207
REEH12288 REAITown  KEDEZEE frz
35 Tianjin Wuging Project International Wuging District, Tianjin Residential/ 100% 306,39 306,3%
REREER Peninsula REMBER Commercial/
BR+S Office/Hotel
tz/m%/
g7R/
il
36 Tianjin Eco-city Project Cambridge County ~ Binhai New District, Tianjin Residential 100% 9,894 9,894
REARNER REH REMEEHE %
37 Tianjin Hongni River Project Tianjin Capital City ~ Jinnan District, Tianjin Residential/ 100% 345,813 235,813
RELRTER KRR REmEER Commercial
ft/m%
38 Tianjin Lishuang Road Project Xuan Community  Jinnan District, Tianjin Residential 100% 157,678 113,968
RERERER Bl REMEER frz
39 Tianjin Beiyunhe Project Grand Canal Hebei District, Tianjin Residential/ 100% 282,308 189,551
REJLETEE Milestone RETAIR Apartment/
FIRE Commercial
k%/28/
Bx
40 Tianjin Zhongshanlu Project Metropolis Hebei District, Tianjin Residential/ 100% 175,000 124,000
REHILAER @ RETALE Commerciall
Office
fz/m%/
57
41 Shenyang Shenying Road Project Shenyang First City  Hunnan New District, Shenyang, ~ Residential/ 30% 88,083 49,826
EGLe%AR R Bl Liaoning Province Apartment/
RELRETERNE Office
Ez/08/
42 Shenyang Yinhe Bay Project Qipan Hills Qi Pan Shan District, Shenyang, Residential/ 50% 404,278 375,925
EBRTEERE First Villa Liaoning Province Commercial
BERIN% RELERMHELE Lx/B%
43 Shenyang Shenzhong Street Project Shenyang Eco Hunnan New District, Shenyang, ~ Residential/ 100% 595,941 516,566
Ay RNGEE Village Liaoning Province Commercial
B EELERTEmIT fz/E%
44 Chengdu Shengli Village Project Chengdu First City -~ Chenghua District, Chengdu, Residential/ 100% 14,85 9,835
HAEFINER PR Sichuan Province Commercial
mI &R ATRER Et/B%
45 Chengdu Beiquan Road Project Citta Villa Longquanyi District, Chengdu, Residential/ 55% 49,981 0
ED EEYLE RABT Sichuan Province Commercial
Ml &R AR B LE/B%
46 Chengdu SCE Project Wanjuanshan Longquanyi District, Chengdu, Residential/ 55% 103,882 33,404
el v Lol Sichuan Province Commercial/
mIERAmERER Office
fz/E8/
278
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEB WM DA

Total
Total Saleable
Attributable GFA of GFA of
No.  Project Project Name Location Type Interest  Land Bank  Land Bank
F¥  BEEH RRER BELE nEER EibER AESBE AEHLEE
(sg.m. (sg.m.)
(F5%)  (FAK)
47 Chengdu Qinglongchang Project Chengdu Eco Chenghua District, Chengdu, Residential/ 100% 22,11 167,999
EEEL Village Sichuan Province Commercial
R mI R BTRER Ez/m%
48 Chengdu Huaxin Village Project Galaxy No.1 Jinjiang District, Chengdu, Residential/ 21.78% 271,084 191,540
HAEHER BTI% Sichuan Province Commercial
mIERBHHIE LE/B%
49 Chengdu P.0. Box 68 Project The Place No.68 ~ Chenghua District, Chengdu, Residential/ 27.78% 314,433 228,759
HA68ERER FiE68H Sichuan Province Commercial
mIERBTRER Fz/d%
50 Xi'an Feng-cheng Road Project Xi'an First City Xi'an Economic and Technology ~ Residential/ 92.56% 590,621 378,707
ERESRER [ Development Zone, Commercial/
Shaanxi Province Office/Hotel
RELRLTAERNRER Ex/Bmg/
B¥E/BE
51 Chongging Hong'ensi Project Hong'en Jiangbei District, Chongging Residential/ 100% 167,939 52,806
ERBRTEE Intemational ~ BEETILE Commercial
Living District Ex/B%
BRERLER
52 Chongging Xiyong Project Chongging Eco Shapingba District, Chongging Residential/ 28.24% 228,704 121,673
ERENEE Village ERFTYITER Apartment/
EL il Commercial
fE/08/
Bx
53 Chongging Jialingchang Project Chongaing Capital  Shapingba District, Chongging Residential/ 21.78% 801,561 609,260
ERERAER City EETTER Commercial
EEREI Ez/m%
54 Shanghai Songjiang Project Time Flowing In Villa Songjiang District, Shanghai Residential/ 100% 107,072 85,324
LEIIER i LATRIE Commercial
FE/B%
55 Shanghai Jiading Project Jiading District, Shanghai Residential/ 60% 298,279 232,806
LBETER LETEER Commercial
LE/B%
5 Shanghai Yingpu Street Community Project Qingpu District, Shanghai Residential/ 100% 168,661 120,716
LEERRELEER LETERR Commercial
Fz/d%
57 Yongfeng Street Community Project Songjiang District, Shanghai Residential 28% 93,488 64,282
FERTASEERR LEmiNIE =
58 Wuxi Dongting Town Project Gentle House Xishan District, Wuxi, Residential/ 100% 26,712 13,819
BHRSHER BEIER Jiangsu Province Commercial
e EGMHILE FE/B%
59 Wuxi Jichang Road Project Joyous House Wuxi New District, Residential/ 100% 23,992 5,029
ERKEREE EREEIR Jiangsu Province Commercial
L EGMHE LE/B%




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEB WM DA

Total
Total Saleable
Attributable GFA of GFA of

No.  Project Project Name Location Type Interest  Land Bank  Land Bank
FY BEEH RRER BEME EL EibE: AESBE AEHLEE
(sg.m. (sq.m.)
(FAk)  (FFK)
60 Zhejiang Huzhou Taihu Project Huzhou Integrated ~ Taihu National Tourism Residential/ 100% 600,127 553,987
ATHMAHER Outlets Project ~~ Vacation Zone, Commercial/
M RARE Huzhou, Jiangsu Province Hotel
Gk TEE MM fx/mg/
PN i A il
61 Huzhou Renhuangshan Project Joyous House Renhuangshan District, Residential/ 55% 41,385 33,117
MR B EE A Huzhou, Jiangsu Province Commercial
THEEANTCRUE FE/ %
62 Zhenjiang National University Science  Joyous House Zhenjiang Technological Residential/ 100% 31,211 31217
Park Project BETEER Development Zone, Commercial
ETHAFASHRERER Jiangsu Province fiz/Ee
THERITRIALR
63 Jiangsu Jiangyin Yuyue Project Auspicious House  Yushan Bay, Jiangyin, Residential/ 100% 150,916 132,409
THIETHER EEmRE Jiangsu Province Commercial
TE8IRMHILE ffx/B%
64 Kunshan Jinxi Project Kunshan Eastern~ Jinxi Town, Kunshan City, Residential/ 51% 305,088 294,148
EREEE Mystery Jiangsu Province Commercial/
SRR IHRERUTREE Hotel
tz/d%/
ils3
65 Kunshan Capital Outlets Kunshan Integrated  The East New Town, Kunshan, Residential/ 100% 773,667 559,725
BILRBRIAER Outlets Project ~ Jiangsu Province Apartment/
RILERHRE IHERUTRPIA Commercial
Fak fkz/08/
Bx
66 Hainan Wanning Project Hainan Integrated  Liji Town, Wanning, Residential/ 195,552 195,552
AHEEER Outlets Project ~~ Hainan Province Apartment/
BERRRE BHEEETRLE Commercial
Fak tx/28/
67 Qingdao Central Park No. 1 Project Qingdao Central ~ Chengyang District, Qingdao, Residential/ 100% 23,926 16,336
EBLNR15ER Park No. 1 Shandong Province Commercial/
NEIL LREEETHER Apartment
Ez/08/
Bx
68 Qingdao Qiangianshu Project Sunny Xiangmi Licang District, Qingdao, Residential/ 100% 8,402 8,716
EETTH Lake Shandong Province Commercial
GRAEEH LREERMZAR fix/m%
69 Qingdao Yangbuzhai Project Qingdao Central ~ Chengyang District, Qingdao, Residential/ 100% 25,922 25922
BERERER Park No.1 » Shandong Province Commercial
East Park LREEETHER fz/%%
RE1FRE
70 Yantai Sunny Chief Yard Project Sunny Chief Yard ~ Fushan District, Yantai, Residential/ 100% 171,822 177,984
feBrehEs BraEk Shandong Province Commercial
LREMATELE LE/B%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEB WM DN

Total
Total Saleable
Attributable GFA of GFA of
No.  Project Project Name Location Type Interest  Land Bank  Land Bank
F¥  BEEH ERER BENE NERY EitEs AELEE AELLER
(sg.m. (sq.m.)
(FAx)  (¥5K)
71 Qingdao Chengyang Project Airport Qingdao, Shandong Province Commercial/ 100% 110,984 112,522
EEHEER Intemational ~ WWREEER Office
Centre E2/B7E
FRERRL
72 Project Mega, Australia Sydney, Australia Residential 34,699 34,699
HfiMegaE B BAHERER s
Total 11805922 9,182,648
At
EMPLOYEES BT

At 30 June 2015, the Group employed 1,916 professional staff
with an average age of 32.8. In terms of educational level,
70% of employees hold a bachelor degree or above and 14%
of employees hold a master degree or above. Employees with
intermediate or senior professional titles accounted for 20%.

In the first half of 2015, the Group reinforced its role as a
strategic headquarters, proactively adapted to industry and
market changes, undertook organizational restructuring,
improved organizational efficiency, accelerated growth and
increased scale. The company also defined and adopted a new
corporate culture in order to fuel business development. At the
same time, the Company continued to optimize its performance-
based incentive scheme, and also improved the co-investment
program which motivates project teams to align their interests
with the company. Furthermore, the Company enhanced its
talent acquisition process, implemented a leadership training
program, and launched a training camp for special talent, all
those measures helped upgrade talent structure and fortify the
Company’s existing teams, paving the way for its development
into a world-class organization.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEB WM DA

ANALYSIS OF THE BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT
Overview of China’s Property Market

During the first half of 2015, facing downward pressure, China’s
economy slowed. During the period, thanks to a number of
policies rolled out by the government to stabilize economic
development, China maintained steady macroeconomic growth
and started to show positive signs of stabilization and recovery
in the second quarter. During the first half of 2015, China’s GDP
grew 7% year-on-year.

In the first half, the property sector was positively influenced by
a series of favorable policies. In March, the Chinese government
made it clear in its annual work report that it would take
measures to stabilize housing consumption as well as support
demand for home buyer oriented products and products for
home buyers looking for upgrade. In line with this, to stimulate
demand in the property market, a new property policy was
rolled out on 30 March which relaxed regulations on tax,
credit and loans. The multiple cuts in interest rate and reserve
requirement ratio (RRR) also helped enhance market liquidity,
lowering financing costs and providing more funding sources
for property companies. As the household registration reform,
new urbanization program, and regional co-development have
been put on the government's agenda, steady progress has
been made. As of the end of June, the downward trend of the
property sector since last year has ended, as overall transaction
volume and price recorded stabilization and recovery.

According to the National Bureau of Statistics (NBS), during the
first half of 2015, investment in China property development
increased by 4.6% year-on-year in nominal terms (5.7 %
after adjusting for inflation) to RMB4,395.5 billion. Of this,
investment in residential property was up 2.8% to RMB2,950.6
billion, accounting for 67.1% of total investment in property
development. In the first six month GFA under construction of all
property developers was 6,375.63 million sq.m., a year-on-year
increase of 4.3%. Of the total GFA, 674.79 million sg.m. was for
new property developments, down 15.8% year-on-year. Of the
total GFA, 329.41 million sq.m. was completed, down 13.8%
year-on-year. In the first half, property developers purchased
land totaling 98 million sq.m., down 33.8% year-on-year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEB WM DN

During the first half of 2015, the total transaction volume of
commodity housing was 502.64 million sg.m., an increase of
3.9% year-on-year. Of this, the GFA of residential property
sales rose by 4.5%, the GFA of office property sales declined
by 2.4%, and the GFA of retail commercial sales rose by 3.5%.
Sales of commodity housing totaled RMB3,425.9 billion, rising
by 10% year-on-year with an increased growth rate of 6.9
percentage points. Of this, sales of residential properties rose by
12.9%, sales of office properties fell by 1.8%, and sales of retail
commercial properties decreased by 1.2%.

Regional differences in the property industry continued to
intensify due to the impact of supply and demand. First-tier
cities were more sensitive to favorable policies, and as a result
their property markets recovered more than second- and third-
tier cities. In terms of transaction volume, all cities recorded a
significant increase year-on-year, with first-tier cities showing
the biggest improvement. In terms of housing prices, first-tier
cities experienced a major upward trend, and second- and third-
tier cities continued to dip while third-tier cities continued to see
an expanded year-on-year decline.

In terms of products, the 2015 government work report stated
that the government would encourage demand for home buyer
oriented products and products for home buyers looking for
upgrade to promote the steady and healthy development of the
property market. Homebuyer oriented products proved to be a
major part of our sales. Being an essential part of consumption
housing, demand for products for home buyers looking for
upgrade recorded a rapid increase and became an important
driver for the industry rebound in the first half of 2015, as the
market was stimulated by the relaxed reserve and credit policies.

Looking ahead to the second half of 2015, the industry is
expected to pick up with a gradually improved supply and
demand ratio, moving towards sustained steady growth.
However, this upward macro trend is still vulnerable. Relaxation
of both economic and industrial policies will continue as the
development of long-term mechanism will be pushed forward.
The marketization of the whole industry will be strengthened
to further promote market demand. Concurrently, positive
effects from new urbanization and the regional co-development
strategy will continue simulating the property market. As a
result, property companies rooted in such regions are expected
to benefit more from favorable policies and access to integrated
resources. The local property market will embrace an important
development opportunity.

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. INTERIM REPORT 2015 20

HEFm —EXNAG AREHEHER
50,2648 F Kk AHEK39% o
Hep FEHEMBEERAISY - BAE
HEEBETI24%  BEEXEREHE
HELEK3.5% ° & /5 #H S 834,259
BT - #E10.0% @ EFIEZT69EE D
Bho Hep - FEHETEIER12.9%  #AD
BIHETETR1.8%  mMELEXEREHE
BETIE1.2% ©

EBiETE - SESKAEREE - TXARD
{ERE B HEEINE - — AR TH B1T N 4F IR
RERVBFROGERNE - TELANEH
BB =T o KRXESNE - SR
MISABHIRAILL MTT - — AT E i
lREA o BIRTTHE » — 4T EIRESEH
B CERETEREE TR &M
[l LL Bk R A B TR K

EmiH —T-hAFBNLERSHE
REXHEREBANNEZUEEEER R
EEWETSFRERER -HFERE
HERATEBRINUE - HEUFRE
miERERBBMHEFNAEXE S » £%
WwREE REEBRROHEEORIET
MISFRKPREE N - KA LEFFE[BTE
CENESZNE -

RETHF @ ITEBEBIFEDEK - #
LR ENE - R PIRERED - RE
A ETEBIDAERE - EEBRETTRI
REHERR RO ZRESHEE
TTEMISCIZEEE R - 5T RE—
SRR - R - BRI N R I8 15 [R] 3%
RBES A B RERIR - ERAMITLER
BNELCAERSELCRREBLERE
RMEAES  EHETHEXRERERR
7 -

~EE

K

A



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEB WM DA

Pan Bohai Rim Region Property Market Overview

During the first quarter of 2015, the property market of the
Pan Bohai Rim Region, centering around Beijing and Tianjin,
continued a downward trend similar to that of last year. It
was particularly sensitive to the favorable policies rolled out
on 30 March, and rebounded in the second quarter for three
consecutive monthly as of the midyear. We expect that the
property market around Beijing and Tianjin will continue to pick
up in the second half and will be on track for stable growth.

In April, the “Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei integration initiative” was
approved and an investment target of RMB42 trillion within
six years was set to support the region’s long-term economic
development. We believe the property industry in this region will
continue to present more opportunities. Firstly, the integration
of Beijing, Tianjin and Hebei will complement each other in
resources, enhance synergies, release greater potential for
economic development, and improve regional consumption.
Secondly, the integration will boost all-round development in
regional transportation, infrastructure, cultural and commercial
facilities, thus driving housing demand and prices in areas
surrounding Beijing and Tianjin. In addition, industrial properties
and other type of property models will play an important role
in fostering regional synergy and new urbanization, bringing
new development opportunities for property companies. The
Company has a large high quality land bank and primary land
development business in Beijing and Tianjin and is on track to
become one of the biggest beneficiaries of the “Beijing-Tianjin-
Hebei integration initiative.”
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEB WM DN

YANGTZE RIVER DELTA REGION PROPERTY
MARKET OVERVIEW

The Yangtze River Delta region is centered on Shanghai, with
cities including Nanjing and Hangzhou as sub-centers. Being
highly sensitive to the favorable property policies, the property
sector in the region bottomed out in the first half of 2015 and
continued to pick up momentum. Housing prices in Shanghai
have risen for six consecutive months, and the trend of price
drops in Nanjing, Hangzhou and other regions came to an end
during the period, followed by a quarter-on-quarter increase.

The continued integration of the Yangtze River Delta region
fueled industry demand. In April, the Commercial Departments
of Shanghai, Jiangsu, Zhejiang, Anhui and Jiangxi provinces
jointly held a meeting on “Promoting Regional Market
Integration and Development in the Yangtze River Delta Region
in 2015" where they planned the outline for the integration and
development of the Yangtze River Delta region in order to help
further deepen regional coordination. In the near future, the
standardization of logistics and the transportation of agricultural
products will be the new highlights of this regional integration.
Meanwhile, urbanization in the region recorded major progress
in the first half of the year as Anhui province and Jiangsu
province, together with several cities and towns, were chosen as
pilot regions for new urbanization initiatives. This is expected to
have a strong spillover effect on neighboring regions, which will
benefit the property industry.

MID-SOUTH WESTERN REGIONS PROPERTY
MARKET OVERVIEW

In comparison with the Pan Bohai Region and the Yangtze River
Delta Region that are led by top-tier cities, second-tier cities in
the west such as Chengdu and Chongging did not see a similar
recovery in property prices. Housing prices in Chengdu had seen
subsequent increases for three consecutive months while the
prices in Chongging remained in a phase of volatile adjustment.
However, in terms of transaction volume, the Chengdu and
Chongging region as a whole has shown a strong momentum of
recovery.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEB WM DA

In addition to the improvement of transportation networks and
the strengthening of economic and cultural integration, the
Chengdu and Chongqging regions received a boost via another
catalyst. In March, the National Development and Reform
Commission, the Ministry of Foreign Affairs and the Ministry
of Commerce jointly published “Vision and proposed actions
outlined on jointly building Silk Road Economic Belt and 21st-
Century Maritime Silk Road” (“One Belt One Road”). Under the
planning of “One Belt One Road,” Chengdu and Chongging
will be prioritized in both social and economic development as
the most important cities in the west. As a result, we expect
that the property industry will also see much bigger space for
development in these two regions going forward.

AUSTRALIA PROPERTY MARKET OVERVIEW

Australia’s economy has been in a transformational phase during
the last several years. The economic growth driver has shifted
from the production, investment and exportation of raw material
such as iron ore, to other industries. Australia’s economic
growth rate is roughly in line with historical trends, which
indicates the effectiveness of the Reserve Bank of Australia
(RBA)'s interest rate cuts. RBA once again reduced the interest
rate in the first half of this year, and the current base rate is at its
lowest point in history, which significantly relieves the pressure
on households and helps increase their disposable incomes. The
low rate also boosts retail sales, property prices as well as the
property development sector.

Thanks to its stable economy, advanced education and
advantageous natural and social environment, Australia has
always been a popular choice for property investment. Australia
has been easing its immigration control for the last few years
in order to fuel economic growth. The Australian government
announced the first “AUD5 Million Investment Immigration
Program” in May, 2012, which has been attracting more and
more people to purchase property in the country. The Australian
property market has been an incredibly hot sector in 2015, with
significant upward momentum stretching from 2014. All the
provincial capital cities in the eastern coastal area saw rapid
rises in property prices. In the first quarter of 2015, led by cities
such as Sydney and Melbourne, property prices in Australia
were 0.89% higher compared to the last quarter. Notably,
housing prices in Sydney rose by over 7% accumulatively in three
months. With ongoing population growth, increased demand
for education in Australia from overseas, and rising immigration,
alongside housing being in short supply, the property market in
Sydney is expected to keep rising in the short-to-mid term.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEB WM DN

PROSPECTS

In the second half of 2015, it is expected that China’s
continuous macroeconomic easing and further relaxation
of industry regulation will help boost economic growth.
The strategy of new urbanization and regional coordinated
development will also be further implemented. The construction
of a long-term mechanism is on steady track with reform
benefits emerging. With market demand stimulating and the
upward momentum of the industry resuming, the Group expects
a breakthrough in business scale and a promising opportunity
for a greater leap in development.

The Group will implement the following development strategies
in the second half of 2015:

1. Strengthen land bank investment in core cities and
strategic overseas regions to guarantee ample high-quality
supply for the year. The Group will consistently push
forward the optimization and upgrade of its all-round
marketing channels. With the self-owned sales team in full
operation, the Group will enhance its management and
maintains healthy competition among channels. The Group
will also keep optimizing projects’ internal incentive and
punishment mechanisms by implementing an incentive
scheme on a quarterly basis in an effort to guarantee sales
performance, and to achieve its annual sales target of
RMB35 billion.

2. Focus on investment in core cities and increase the ratio of
products supply for homebuyers looking for upgrade. The
Group will continuously enhance resource coordination
with its parent company Beijing Capital Group so as to
acquire core strategic land resources in the primary and
secondary land development projects in Beijing's CBD
area, projects along the subway stations in Beijing, and
the second phase of the Wuging project in Tianjin. The
Group will enlarge the scale of outlets business with
more aggressive project development and acquisitions.
Additionally, the Group will continue to deepen projects
development in Australia and enhance the synergies
between domestic and overseas markets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEE W MDA

Promote the construction and application of product
standardization system. The Group will unwaveringly
enhance product competitiveness in marketing, design and
cost reduction. Also, the Group will promote the “Lehui
Home"” community 020 platform and upgrade value-
added services for customers in a strategic manner. By
jointly establishing the property services company with
Vanke to leverage its “Rui Butler” service model, the
Group aims to strengthen property management skills
and sharpen product competitiveness. The Group will
unrelentingly exercise strict cost controls and focus its
strategy on the full operation of the strategic centralized
procurement platform, and also implement a mechanism of
transparent cost management.

Leverage on the prime opportunity of monetary policy
easing and direct financing, the Group will actively
promote domestic bond financing and continue to raise
ample and long-term funding at lower cost. The Group
will strive for breakthroughs in equity financing, including
seeking domestic funding and asset injection opportunities
from the parent company and upgrading the overseas
financing function of Beijing Capital Juda, the red-chip
platform. The Group also intends to bring in major financial
institutions to explore new financing channels such as
asset securitization and real estate funds. By adopting such
capital market innovations, the Group aims to make good
use of its inventory assets.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

1.

Revenue and Operating Results

In the first half of 2015, revenue of the Group
was approximately RMB5,447,244,000 (2014 1H:
RMB4,519,333,000), representing an increase of 21%
from the first half of 2014. The increase in revenue was
mainly attributable to the increase in projects completed
and occupied during the period.

In the first half of 2015, the Group achieved a gross
profit margin after business tax of approximately 14%,
representing a decrease of 9 percentage point as compared
to 23% in the first half of 2014, mainly attributable to a
decrease in proportion of revenue with higher gross profit
margin from Beijing region as compared to the first half of
2014.
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In the first half of 2015, operating profit of the Group
was approximately RMB1,376,953,000 (2014 1H:
RMB1,307,827,000), representing an increase of
approximately 5% as compared to the first half of 2014.

Financial Resources, Liquidity and Liability
Position

During the period of review, the Group maintained a
healthy liquidity position and a reasonable appropriation
of financial resources. As at 30 June 2015, the
Group'’s total assets were RMB91,621,623,000 (31
December 2014: RMB78,679,556,000) and non-
current assets were RMB15,143,663,000 (31
December 2014: RMB11,335,190,000); and total
liabilities were RMB70,115,487,000 (31 December
2014: 57,266,030,000) of which, current liabilities
were RMB38,553,456,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB33,814,386,000) and non-current liabilities
were RMB31,562,031,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB23,451,644,000), and owners’ equity reached
RMB21,506,136,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB21,413,526,000).

The Group has sound liquidity and solvency. Current ratio
of the Group as at 30 June 2015 was 1.98 (31 December
2014: 1.99).

As at 30 June 2015, the Group’s cash and bank deposit
amounted to RMB12,659,422,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB13,897,026,000), which represented sufficient cash
flow for operations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Bank borrowings and debentures of the Group as
at 30 June 2015 amounted to RMB46,060,598,000
(31 December 2014: RMB32,528,152,000), of
which the long-term loan and debentures amounted
to RMB29,658,328,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB20,948,474,000), which were mainly used to
satisfy the capital requirements of the Group’s property
development projects.

As at 30 June 2015, the Group’s net gearing ratio was
approximately 155% (31 December 2014: 87%). The net
gearing ratio of the Group is calculated by the borrowing
net of cash and bank balances divided by total owners’
equity.

Changes in major subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates

Shanghai Shoupu Real Estate Co., Ltd. (L/BEHEZAR
‘A \)), a subsidiary of the Group, was established in January
2015, and 100% of its equity interest was held by the
Group.

Shanghai Shouging Real Estate Co., Ltd. (/BB T E ¥
BBR27]), a subsidiary of the Group, was established in
January 2015, and 100% of its equity interest was held by
the Group.

Beijing Jinyifeng Real Estate Co., Ltd. Jt R EELEXER
2 A]), a subsidiary of the Group, was established in March
2015, and 100% of its equity interest was held by the
Group.

Beijing Tianzhiying Real Estate Co., Ltd. At R AEHE ¥
BRRA7]), a subsidiary of the Group, was established in
March 2015, and 100% of its equity interest was held by
the Group.

Tianjin Xingtai Jisheng Real Estate Co., Ltd. (KZEIEEEE
BEXABMRRA7R), asubsidiary of the Group, was established
in March 2015, and 100% of its equity interest was held by
the Group.

Beijing Xujia Real Estate Co., Ltd. Gt REZE X B R A F)),

a subsidiary of the Group, was established in May 2015,
and 100% of its equity interest was held by the Group.
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During the period, Beijing Capital Juda Limited (“Capital
Juda"), a subsidiary of the Group, issued convertible
preference shares to the Group for acquiring 100% equity
interest of Xi‘an Capital Xinkai Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. (AL EHBIFHABEEAR A A, “Xi'an Xinkai”), a
subsidiary of the Group. Upon the completion, the equity
interests of Capital Juda and Xi'an Xinkai were held as to
92.56% by the Group.

During the period, Tongchuang Jinlong Real Estate Co.,
Ltd. JERE&IEEBEBR2AF], "Tongchuang Jinlong”)
was held as to 20% of its equity interest by the Group. In
the same period, the Group acquired 5% of equity interest
in Tongchuang Jinlong. Unon the completion, Tongchuang
Jinlong was held as to 25% by the Group.

During the period, the Group acquired 50% of equity
interest in Beijing Zhongguancun IC Park Development Co.,
Ltd. QERPEANERERKXABEEREGRAET AR, "ZGC
IC Park”), upon the completion, ZGC IC Park became a
joint venture of the Group.

During the period, the Group acquired 28% equity interest
in Shanghai Songming Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(LB EEMEER AR, “Shanghai Songming”).
Upon the completion of acquisition, Shanghai Songming
became a joint venture of the Group.

During the period, the Group acquired 28% equity interest
in Shanghai Henggu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (&
FEEREMERZEAR AR, “Shanghai Henggu”). Upon
the completion of acquisition, Shanghai Henggu became a
joint venture of the Group.

During the period, the Group subscribed 22.50% of the
intermediate fund units of Zhuhai Henggin Ruiyuan Weihua
Equity Investment Centre (Limited Partner) (38 EZImT
FERMEIRE PR L, “ZHWF"). According to the partnership
agreement, the Group and other shareholders jointly
control the investment and operation strategy of ZHWF, and
therefore ZHWF has been classified as a joint venture.

During the period, the Group disposed 40% equity interest
in Shanghai Shoujia Real Estate Co., Ltd. (L/BE=ZE%
BRR2A7], “Shanghai Shoujia”). Upon the completion of
disposal, the Group held as to 60% of equity interest in
Shanghai Shoujia, and could exercise significant decision-
making of Shanghai Shoujia jointly with other shareholder.
Hence, Shanghai Shoujia became a joint venture of the
Group.
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During the period, the Group reached an agreement
with the other shareholder of Beijing Capital Qinglv Real
Estate (Kunshan) Co., Ltd. (HEISIKEZ(E L) AR AT
“Capital Qinglv"”) to exercise significant decision-making
jointly. Upon the completion of amending the article of
association, Capital Qinglv became a joint venture of the
Group.

Entrusted Deposits and Overdue Time Deposits

As at 30 June 2015, the Group did not have any deposits
under trusts in financial institutions in the PRC. All of
the Group’s cash was held in commercial banks in PRC
in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. The
Group has no bank deposits which are not recoverable
upon maturity.

Borrowings

As at 30 June 2015, bank borrowings of RMB1,000,000,000
(31 December 2014: Nil) were pledged by equity interests.

As at 30 June 2015, bank borrowings of RMB4,683,400,000
(31 December 2014: RMB2,953,702,000) were secured by
certain properties under development.

As at 30 June 2015, bank borrowings of RMB840,000,000
(31 December 2014: RMB570,000,000) were secured by
the land use rights and buildings of investment properties.

As at 30 June 2015, bank borrowings of RMB400,000,000
(31 December 2014: RMB400,000,000) were pledged
by equity interests and secured by land use rights and
buildings.

As at 30 June 2015, bank borrowings of RMB400,000,000
(31 December 2014: RMB497,900,000) were secured by
fixed assets and land use rights.
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As at 30 June 2015, bank borrowings of RMB4,786,000,000
(31 December 2014: RMB1,050,000,000) were pledged by
the equity interests of subsidiaries held and the guaranteed
provided by the Group.

As at 30 June 2015, bank borrowings of RMB3,018,970,000
(31 December 2014: RMB2,029,500,000) were secured by
the guarantee provided by the Group for its subsidiaries.

As at 30 June 2015, bank borrowings of RMB8,942,810,000
(31 December 2014: RMB7,309,960,000) were secured by
the guarantee provided by the Group for its subsidiaries,
and secured by certain properties under development of the
subsidiaries.

As at 30 June 2015, bank borrowings of RMB1,500,000,000
(31 December 2014: RMB900,000,000) were secured by
the guarantee provided by the Group for its subsidiaries
and secured by the land use rights of the land under
development of the subsidiaries of the Group and pledged
by equity interests.

As at 30 June 2015, bank borrowings of RMB1,880,919,000
(31 December 2014: RMB2,311,105,000) were pledged by
bank deposits of the Group.

As at 30 June 2015, bank borrowings of RMB65,000,000
(31 December 2014: RMB72,500,000) were pledged by
the entire equity interests of and the income arising from
primary land development of the Group.

As at 30 June 2015, bank borrowings of RMB2,803,604,000
(31 December 2014: RMB809,070,000) were credit loans
obtained by the Group.
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As at 30 June 2015, bank borrowings of RMB160,000,000
(31 December 2014: RMB540,000,000) were secured by
the guarantee provided by the Group for its subsidiaries,
pledged by the income rights of buildings under
development of the Group and secured by land use rights
and buildings of the Group.

As at 30 June 2015, bank borrowings of RMB400,000,000
(31 December 2014: Nil) were pledged by the income
rights of buildings under development of the Group and
secured by land use rights and buildings of the Group.

As at 30 June 2015, bank borrowings of RMB770,000,000
(31 December 2014: RMB780,000,000) were secured by
the guarantee provided by Capital Group and the Group
for its subsidiaries.

As at 30 June 2015, bank borrowings of RMB1,220,000,000
(31 December 2014: RMB1,220,000,000) were secured by
the guarantee provided by Capital Group for the Group and
secured by land use rights of properties under development
of the Group.

As at 30 June 2015, bank borrowings of RMB5,000,000,000
(31 December 2014: RMB5,000,000,000) were secured by
the guarantee provided by Capital Group for the Group.

Corporate Bonds

In November 2012, Central Plaza Development Ltd.
("Central Plaza"”) issued 3-years RMB bonds in a principal
amount of RMB2,000,000,000 with a coupon rate of 7.6%
per annum, which were guaranteed by certain subsidiaries
of the Group including International Financial Center
Property Ltd. (“IFC").

In May 2015, the Group issued 5-years RMB bonds in a
principal amount of RMB3,000,000,000 with a coupon rate
of 4.58%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEB WM DN

Medium Term Note

In February 2014, Central Plaza established a Guaranteed
Medium Term Note and Perpetual Securities Programme
(the "Programme”), guaranteed by IFC or, as the case may
be, the Company, for securities to be issued thereunder.
Under the Programme, Central Plaza may offer and issue
securities of principal amount of up to USD1,000,000,000.

In February 2014, Central Plaza made a drawdown under
the Programme to offer and issue 3-year notes in total
principle amount of RMB2,000,000,000 at a coupon rate
of 5.75% per annum and 5-year notes of RMB250,000,000
at a coupon rate of 6.875% per annum.

In April 2014, Central Plaza made a drawdown under the
Programme to offer and issue 3-year notes in total principle
amount of RMB1,000,000,000 at a coupon rate of 5.75%
per annum to be consolidated and form a single series with
the 3-year notes of RMB2,000,000,000 with a coupon rate
of 5.75% per annum issued in February 2014.

Equity Instrument

As of 30 June 2015, Central Plaza issued a total amount of
USD850,000,000 senior perpetual securities. The securities
were guaranteed by certain subsidiaries of the Group
including IFC. Such securities have no maturity date and
are redeemable at the option of Central Plaza as the issuer.
Central Plaza as the issuer may elect to defer distribution
with no times limits only if Central Plaza or the Company
announce or pay dividend. The securities are classified as
equity instrument, where:

In April 2013, Central Plaza issued USD400,000,000
senior Perpetual Capital Securities at a distribution rate
of 8.375% per annum. In November 2014, Central Plaza
issued USD450,000,000 perpetual securities under the
Medium Term Note and Perpetual Securities Programme at
a distribution rate of 7.125% per annum.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEB WM DA

In December 2013, Minsheng Royal established a Specific
Assets Management Plan and raised a total amount of
RMB2,200,000,000. Since the Specific Assets Management
Plan is set up by its subsidiary as a special purpose entity
for financing needs, it is consolidated into the Group.
In addition to the subordinated units subscribed for
by the Company, the capital raised amounting to RMB
2,010,000,000 was recognised as minority interest in
consolidation. In March 2015, the Group declared to
redeem the principal of the Specific Assets Management
Plan on 20 December 2015 pursuant to the Investment
Agreement. Since the timing and responsibility of
redemption has been confirmed by the Group, the Specific
Assets Management Plan was classified as liabilities.

In June 2014, Minsheng Royal raised a total amount of
RMB1,500,000,000. According to the terms of Investment
Agreement, the amount of minority interests recognized
amounted to RMB1,335,000,000 after deducting the
inevitable dividend payable in the foreseeable future.

In December 2014, Minsheng Royal raised a total amount
of RMB650,000,000. According to the terms of Investment
Agreement, the amount of minority interests recognized
amounted to RMB580,125,000 after deducting the
inevitable dividend payable in the foreseeable future.

In January 2015, Minsheng Royal raised a total amount of
RMB1,080,000,000. According to the terms of Investment
Agreement, the amount of minority interests recognized
amounted to RMB963,900,000 after deducting the
inevitable dividend payable in the foreseeable future.

In January 2015, Tiandi Fangzhong raised a total amount of
RMB1,200,000,000. According to the terms of Investment
Agreement, the amount of minority interests recognized
amounted to RMB1,076,400,000 after deducting the
inevitable dividend payable in the foreseeable future.
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BIEE R AN DA

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had arranged bank facilities for certain
purchasers of its properties and provided guarantees to
secure the repayment obligations of such purchasers.
The outstanding balances of guarantees amounted to
RMB7,028,149,000 as at 30 June 2015 (31 December
2014: RMB6,482,465,000).

Such guarantees will terminate upon (i) the issuance of
the real estate ownership certificate which will generally
be available within six months to two years after the
Group transfers the ownership of the relevant property
to its purchasers; (ii) the completion of the mortgage
registration; and (iii) the issuance of the real estate
miscellaneous right certificate relating to the relevant

property.

As at 30 June 2015, the Group provided guarantees for
its subsidiaries’ borrowing of RMB17,817,780,000 (31
December 2014: RMB14,058,600,000).

As at 30 June 2015, IFC, a subsidiary of the Group,
provided guarantees for the corporate bonds of
RMB5,250,000,000 and the Senior Perpetual Capital
Securities of USD850,000,000 issued by Central Plaza, a
subsidiary of the Group.

As at 30 June 2015, the Group provided guarantee
for Minsheng Royal Capital Management Plan of
RMB6,440,000,000.

Save as the above, the Group had no other material
external guarantee.
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LATEST INFORMATION OF SHARE CAPITAL
B AT IR AN B R A £ B KR

SHARE CAPITAL

As of 30 June 2015, there was a total issued share capital of
2,027,960,000 shares of the Company (the “Shares”) which
include:

AND MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS

PR
ARRAR-ZE—AFANA=THNHBEET
B £2,027,960,00088 B3 15 + £ oG4 :

Approximate
Number of percentages of
Shares share capital

ROBE BREMOEHL

Domestic Shares A& I 649,205,700 32.01%
Non-H Foreign Shares JEHINE B 357,998,300 17.65%
H Shares HH& 1,020,756,000 50.34%

2,027,960,000 100%

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
IN SHARES

So far as is known to any directors of the Company, as of 30
June 2015, the following parties (other than the directors or
chief executives of the Company) had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

FERRFRIBER

ARBR-F—RFANA=1TH  BLEMQ
EFEAA - TIAL(LIARBZES
ZEREEAE)RA QBB AR
A ARIEEF L AEGRIIXVEE2
NMIFNHE AN RR 2 ERBRR

Approximate percentages Approximate percentages
in relevant class of shares (%) in total issued share capital (%)
EEBRERRG ZBHNE D L(%) E2MEBTRAZBOE (%)
Number of
Shares directly
Name of and Direct Indirect Aggregate Direct Indirect Aggregate
shareholders indirectly held Class of Shares interests interests interests interests interests interests
HERBE
RRER KEZRBEE R A3 48 5 HigEs MR A HiEER RS EEA
Beijing Capital Group Co., 649,205,700  Non-listed Shares 64.46 - 64.46 32.01 - 32.01
Ltd (“Capital Group”) JELETRRD (long (long
TREHEZEEERAA position) position)
(THaI%=]) (#7) (H#7)
Beijing Rongtong 275,236,200 Non-listed Shares - 27.33 27.33 - 13.57 13.57
Zhenghe Investment Eil ) (long (long
Management Co., Ltd. position) position)
(“Rongtong Zhenghe”) (472) (472)
I RRBENREER
BRAR([RBER])
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LATEST INFORMATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AND MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS

RMRABERMNEEZRR

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS

IN SHARES (Continued)

Approximate percentages
in relevant class of shares (%)

FERRIFRIER &)

Approximate percentages
in total issued share capital (%)

EEEERIRG OB 2 (%) H2BEBTRAZBOE (%)
Number of
Shares directly
Name of and Direct Indirect Aggregate Direct Indirect Aggregate
shareholders indirectly held Class of Shares interests interests interests interests interests interests
BEEREE
RRER BEZRBEE 4335l EEER gL ERAY EEER BEEs BB
Guoda Limited 275,236,200%  Non-listed Shares - 27.33 27.33 - 13.57 13.57
FLEMRH (long (long
position) position)
(#7) (#&)
China Resource 275,236,200 Non-listed Shares 27.33 - 27.33 13.57 - 13.57
Products Limited JEETAR (long (long
(“Chiha Resource™) position) position)
FHEMEFR AR (##R) (478)
(ThEmE])
Yieldwell International 82,762,100 Non-listed Shares 8.22 - 8.22 4.08 - 4.08
Enterprise Limited JFEMRRA (long (long
BEBRBRCEERAA position) position)
(#FR) (478)
Fexi Holdings Limited 82,762,1004  Non-listed Shares - 8.22 8.22 - 4.08 4.08
LR (long (long
position) position)
(478) (472)
Brocade City Holdings 82,762,100  Non-listed Shares - 8.22 8.22 - 4.08 4.08
Limited JE ETRAD (long (long
SRR AR A PR A7) position) position)
(#7) (H#7)
Ngai Shu Susanna 82,762,100  Non-listed Shares - 8.22 8.22 - 4.08 4.08
AT I EmRS (long (long
position) position)
(#7) (H#R)
Reco Pearl Private Limited 165,070,000 H Shares 16.17 - 16.17 8.14 - 8.14
HiR (long (long
position) position)
(#R) (472)
Recosia China Pte Ltd. 165,070,0007  H Shares - 16.17 16.17 - 8.14 8.14
HiR
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LATEST INFORMATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AND MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS

IN SHARES (Continued)

Approximate percentages
in relevant class of shares (%)

FTERRIFRIER &)

Approximate percentages
in total issued share capital (%)

HERERRG ZBHE D E(%) HEBEBRTREZBMOBE D (%)
Number of
Shares directly
Name of and Direct Indirect Aggregate Direct Indirect Aggregate
shareholders indirectly held Class of Shares interests interests interests interests interests interests
HERBE
RRER BEZRBEE R A3 48 5 HigER MR EEAH HiEHER RS EEA
Recosia Pte Ltd. 165,070,000®  H Shares - 16.17 16.17 - 8.14 8.14
HER (long (long
position) position)
(H#7) (#&)
Government of Singapore 165,070,000  H Shares - 16.17 16.17 - 8.14 8.14
Investment Corporation HiR (long (long
(Realty) Pte Ltd. position) position)
(H#7) (F&)
Templeton Asset 95,522,900 H Shares 9.36 - 9.36 4.71 - 4.71
Management Limited HAR (long (long
position) position)
(A7) (47%)
Notes: BiEE

649,205,700 Shares are directly held by Capital Group. As at 30 June 2015,
China Resources is also held as to 31.53% by Beijing Sunshine Real Estate
Comprehensive Development Company* (dt RBE HEHELREFI A A]), which
in turn is wholly-owned by Capital Group. Accordingly, Capital Group no longer
owns deemed corporate interest of 275,236,200 Shares through China Resource
under the SFO.

275,236,200 Shares are deemed corporate interests under the SFO indirectly held
through Guoda Limited and China Resource.
275,236,200 Shares are deemed corporate interests under the SFO indirectly held

through China Resource.

82,762,100 Shares are deemed corporate interests under the SFO indirectly held
through Yieldwell International Enterprise Limited.

82,762,100 Shares are deemed corporate interests under the SFO indirectly held

through Yieldwell International Enterprise Limited and Fexi Holdings Limited.

82,762,100 Shares are deemed corporate interests under the SFO indirectly held
through Yieldwell International Enterprise Limited, Fexi Holdings Limited and
Brocade City Holdings Limited.
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7. 165,070,000 Shares are deemed corporate interests under the SFO indirectly held
through Reco Pearl Private Limited.

8. 165,070,000 Shares are deemed corporate interests under the SFO indirectly held
through Reco Pearl Private Limited and Recosia China Pte Ltd.

9. 165,070,000 Shares are deemed corporate interests under the SFO indirectly held
through Reco Pearl Private Limited, Recosia China Pte Ltd. and Recosia Pte Ltd.

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Directors, as of 30 June 2015, none
of the parties (other than the directors or chief executives of the Company) had any
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO.
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OTHER INFORMATION
Hib & ¥

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

As at 30 June 2015, none of the directors, supervisors and chief
executives of the Company had any interest or short position in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company or
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers. None of the directors,
supervisors and chief executives of the Company or their spouses
or children under 18 years of age had any rights to subscribe for
equity or debt securities of the Company or had exercised any
such rights during the period.

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION OF
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B (1) of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
changes in information of directors of the Company subsequent
to the 2014 Annual Report is set out below:

Mr. Liu Xiaoguang, a non-executive Director of the Company,
has ceased to act as chairman of Capital Group on 21 May 2015.

Mr. Wang Hao, executive Director and the chairman of the
Board of the Company, has been appointed as chairman of
Capital Group with effect from 21 May 2015.

Mr. Li Wang, an independent non-executive director of the
Company, has been appointed as an external supervisor of
Agricultural Bank of China Limited (Stock Code: 1288) with
effect from 29 June 2015.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed auditing, internal control and financial report matters,
including the review of the unaudited interim report for the six
months ended 30 June 2015.
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OTHER INFORMATION
HitbEH

Purchase, Sales or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

During the six months ended 30 June 2015, the Company had
not redeemed any of its shares. Neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities during the period.

Long Term Incentive Fund Scheme

On 27 September 2007, the Company had adopted the
long term incentive fund scheme (the “Scheme”) which was
subsequently amended on 25 September 2009 and 14 March
2014 respectively. The Scheme is proposed to encourage
the directors, supervisors, senior management and core staff
members of the Company for closer ties of their personal
interests with the interests of the Company and of the
shareholders, as well as for alignment of their personal goals
with the common goal of the Company.

For the six months ended 30 June 2015, the Scheme had not
purchased any Share through the trustee.

Corporate Governance

During the period from 1 January 2015 to 30 June 2015, the
Company has complied with all the code provisions of the
“Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report” as set out in Appendix 14 to the “Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited” (the “Listing Rules”).

Compliance with the Code for Securities
Transactions

The Company has adopted a code which is on terms no less
exacting than the required standard set out in the “Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (the
“Model Code”) in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

All directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the
Company that they have complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code and the company code throughout
the period.
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY BALANCE SHEETS
SHRLAGEEEER

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-AFANA=TE(BREREHAN  2BREMRARETT)

Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014
*EFH Azt REEH LEo

—E-IE —E-mE ZE-1% —E-E
~A=tH TZA=1+-H A~A=tH +ZA=t+-H

Notes Consolidated  Consolidated Company Company
[tem EH Wizt i =i AF e
Current assets RBEE
Cash at bank and on hand EREs 5(1) 12,659,422 13,897,026 2,525,004 2,512,139
Financial assets at fair value WARBEdE
through profit or loss BEZEHAEH
BaRNeREE 5(2) 291,927 162,863 - -
Notes receivable AES = 4,113 = =
Accounts receivable JEUBR T 5(3)a) 704,011 946,333 160 160
Advances to suppliers OB 5(4) 263,271 230,710 70,823 28,830
Interest receivable YT 8 1,520 3,564 = -
Dividends receivable FEMR R A 5(5) 26,813 9,825 - -
Other receivables i fElsr 53)(b);
15(1) 3,318,314 1,295,407 32,744,968 24,894 317
Inventories FE 5(6) 57,045,915 48,768,112 44,133 44,076
Assets classified as held forsale  E|pAEBEENEE 5(7) 9,921 202,664 = -
Other current assets HimEEE 5(8) 2,156,846 1,823,749 = -
Total current assets REBEEA 76,477,960 67,344,366 35,385,088 27,479,522
Non-current assets FRBEE
Available-for-sale financial assets A HESREE 5(9) 91,828 63,420 91,828 63,420
Long-term receivables KRR 5(15) 1,777,033 562,024 316,085 308,227
Long-term equity investments R EIRIERE 5(10); 15(2) 3,353,755 2,451,235 3,942,635 3,876,495
Investment properties REUEME 5(12) 8,712,682 7,225,258 1,958 1,958
Fixed assets ATEE 5(13) 466,513 439,465 58,121 59,951
Intangible assets BREE 5(14) 39,038 39,561 = -
Goodwill HE 5(16) 172,137 172,137 - =
Long-term prepaid expenses RAGEER 94,267 79,236 - =
Deferred tax assets BRAEHAE 531(0) 404,775 302,854 76,999 42,755
Other non-current assets At EnBEE 2,450 - - _
Financial derivative assets iTEeREE 5(17) 29,185 - - -
Total non-current assets ERHEES 15,143,663 11,335,190 4,487,626 4,352,806
TOTAL ASSETS BEAG 91,621,623 78,679,556 39,872,714 31,832,328
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY BALANCE SHEETS
BHRAFDEERER

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

HEZZT-AFAA=THRERIZFRIN - @BSELAARETIT)
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014
RESES &S K& &t
—E-1f —T-ME —E-1f “E-mE
~A=tH TZA=1+-H ~A=tH +ZA=t+-H
Notes Consolidated  Consolidated Company Company
ltem EH iz B =i NG A
Current liabilities RBEE
Short-term borrowings RHEER 5(19) 7,013,943 5,660,075 2,672,600 600,000
Notes payable ERNZE 33,389 43,845 - -
Accounts payable FERT RN 5(20) 4,409,671 4,049,518 13,771 17,371
Advances from customers BlzE 5(21) 13,814,818 11,619,971 807 807
Employee benefits payable ERBTEHEM 5(22) 64,317 209,795 33,077 129,154
Taxes payable ERXHE 5(23); 15(3) 1,781,395 2,482,591 1,268 2,010
Interest payable FE(I718 254,411 170,041 97,586 23,491
Dividends payable JE{S R A 5(24) 283,027 1,055,671 = -
Other payables E bR 5(25) 1,510,158 2,554,107 21,640,648 20,432,695
Current portion of non-current — —E R Z|EI4
liabilities ERBAE 5(26) 9,388,327 5,919,603 1,000,000 -
Liahilities classified as R ARERENAE
held for sale 5(27) - 49,169 - -
Total current liabilities RBEEAH 38,553,456 33,814,386 25,459,757 21,205,528
Non-current liabilities #muiﬁ)ﬁﬁ
Long-term borrowings REED 5(28) 23,462,460 17,731,362 7,360,000 5,910,000
Debentures payable FEHFE% 5(29) 6,195,868 3,217,112 2,972,558 =
Long-term payables RAEEAR 5(30) 660,250 1,530,000 - -
Deferred tax iabilities BLEmEHAR 5(31)(c) 1,243,453 969,718 = -
Financial derivative liabilities TE2BeE 5(17) - 3,452 = -
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEAT 31,562,031 23,451,644 10,332,558 5,910,000
Total liabilities BEAH 70,115,487 57,266,030 35,792,315 27,115,528
Owners’ equity REER
Paid-in capital [ 5(32) 2,027,960 2,027,960 2,027,960 2,027,960
Capital surplus BARE 5(33) 580,758 706,109 1,279,308 1,279,308
Other comprehensive income Hivfz Al 5(47) 589,805 581,134 12,124 5,819
Surplus reserve BHLNE 5(34) 360,628 360,628 360,628 360,628
Undistributed profits AW iNE 5(35) 5,440,604 5,444,301 400,379 1,043,085
Total equity attributable to GENEAARRER
equity holders of S
the Company 8,999,755 9,120,132 4,080,399 4,716,800
Non-controlling interest DRSS 12,506,381 12,293,394 - =
Total owners’ equity RRERA 21,506,136 21,413,526 4,080,399 4,716,800
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND BERRRER AT
OWNERS' EQUITY 91,621,623 78,679,556 39,872,714 31,832,328

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.

Legal representative:

TEAERA:

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. INTERIM REPORT 2015
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Person in charge of accounting:

TEEAIFREA:
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY INCOME STATEMENTS
SHRARMME |

BE_F-RFNAZTELENEASREGREREAN  SBREMRARETT)

Unaudited Unaudited
RSE:t REE
Six months Six months Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended

30June 2015  30June2014  30June2015 30 June 2014
BE-Z-1f HZ-T-NF HE-E-1f HE-TMF

~NAZTH NA=TH AA=TH NA=TH
EREASE  EAEASE EAERHE L AEASE

Notes Consolidated ~ Consolidated Company Company
Item ER HizE &t it D7 NG
Revenue CETON 5(36): 15(4) 5,447,284 4,519,333 12,927 48,423
Less: Cost of sales A EERA 536); 154)  (4,389,373)  (3,224,685) - -
Taxes and surcharges EEHSRKM 5(37) (402,804) (304,076) (6,891) (5,763)
Selling and distribution HEER
expenses 5(38) (291,948) (201,726) - -
General and ERER
administrative expenses 5(38) (179,858) (192,731) (53,968) (60,084)
Financial expenses-net HBEBR-F8 5(39) 57,581 131,869 (239,601) (78,463)
Asset impairment losses BERERE 5(40) (93,443) (48,004) = =
Add: Gains/(losses)arising from — j7: A i BEE
changes in fair value Wiss /(1B%) 5(43) 1,081,321 (75,496) = =
Investment income KA 5(44); 15(5) 148,233 703,343 80,537 252,758
Including: Share of profit of b HE R XA
joint ventures and BELZNR
associates Bl 15(5) 69,208 89,691 66,140 12,758
Operating profit CES) 1,376,953 1,307,827 (206,996) 156,871
Add: Non-operating income W EENIA 5(41) 78,724 2,883 2,59 -
Including: Gains on disposal of ~ E& : ERBHEE
non-current assets REFG 176 = = =
Less: Non-operating expenses  J§ - 5% 5(42) (29,099) (32,686) = =
Including: Losses on disposal of ~ H1 : JEREEE
non-current assets REEX - - - -
Total profit bbbk 1,426,578 1,278,024 (204,402) 156,871
Less: Income tax expenses B EHER 5(45) (415,512) (270,235) 68,686 (40,985)
Net profit/(losses) F58/(BR) 1,011,066 1,007,789 (135,716) 115,886
Attributable to equity holders ~ REBREARREH
of the Company 358/ (BE) 503,293 661,130 (135,716) 115,886
Attributable to non-controling ~ DEREER
interest 507,773 346,659 N/ARE A N/ARE
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY INCOME STATEMENTS
BHRATRNER

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_FT-AFAA=THLEANEADRBGENZAN  cEELRARETT)

Unaudited Unaudited
KRG K&
Six months Six months Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended
30June 2015  30June 2014  30June 2015 30 June 2014
BE-%-1F HE-T-NF BE-E-IF HE-TOA
~A=1H ~NAZTH ~A=1H ~NA=TA
EAEAME LNEASE LAEAME LEASE
Notes Consolidated ~ Consolidated Company Company
Item BR iz aft aft AL N
Other comprehensive income B4 WEMHH %
for the period, net of tax FE 8,671 (676,187) 6,305 (19,408)
Items that may be reclassified NEBENREERN
to profit or loss Efbir el 8,671 (676,187) 6,305 (19,408)
- Changes in fair value -IHHESREE
of available-for-sale MrEEED
financial assets 6,306 (19,210) 6,305 (19,408)
- Increase in fair value due -AFEEARAN
to transfer from inventory EELALEE
to investment property =0 - - - -
~ Recycling of changes in -t ARt iR A
fair value of investment Wat Bt E
properties previously ENLBEED
recognized in other e
comprehensive income - (657,714) - -
- Currency translation HNERBRENE
differences =8 (9,877) 737 = =
- Effective cash flow hedges RenEERER
HERED) 12,242 - - _
- Others -Hith - - - _
Total comprehensive income A KEAE
for the period 1,019,737 331,602 (129,411) 96,478
Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
- Equity holders of the o NS
Company malinas 511,964 (15,057) N/ATER N/ATEF
- Non-controlling interests -BRRDHRE
Al 507,773 346,659 N/ATER NATER
Earnings per share for profit ~ SRUH (EREE
attributable to the equity REAREER
holders of the Company BRREGFFE) 5(46)
~ Basic earnings per share - ARG
(RMB Yuan) (ARETT) 0.25 0.33 N/ARE /AT
- Diluted earnings per share -RETRKE
(RMB Yuan) (ARET) 0.25 0.33 N/ARER /AR

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.

Legal representative:
EEBEA:

Person in charge of accounting:
TEGHIEATA

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. INTERIM REPORT 2015
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
EHRAFARERER

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

HEZZT-RFNA=THIEE R BE (BREFRIERN - @BEMAARETT)
Unaudited Unaudited
RSE:t REE
Six months Six months Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended
30June 2015  30June2014  30June 2015  30June 2014
BZ-%-1fF HZ_T-M% BE-T-IF HE_T-M%
~NA=1H ~NAZTH ~NA=tH ~A=1H
EAERSE  EAEABEE EAERHE A EASE
Note Consolidated ~ Consolidated Company Company
Item &R Mgk aft aft D7 NG
Cash flows from operating ReTHELNEERE
activities
Cash received from sales of HERm - RIHEBH
goods or rendering of WENHEE
services 7,976,345 4,820,559 12,927 48,423
Cash received relating to other I3 H  ERAR &2 5
operating activities EENE S 210,450 1,985,922 4,978,134 6,611,904
Sub-total of cash inflows RETHRHSRADG 8,186,795 6,806,481 4,991,061 6,660,327
Cash paid for goods and BEED BX8H
Services YAEES (13,914,945) (11,713,587) (6,957) (45)
Cash paid toand on behalf of ~ SRABINRART
employees TRMES (336,645) (206,962) (46,433) (46,433)
Payments of taxes and X fHEERE
surcharges (1,737,850) (1,138,323) (11,300) (50,105)
Cash paid relating to other IRA AL EEE
operating activities BBENRE (822,811) (1,744,725)  (11,832,661) (6,382,890)
Sub-total of cash outflows RETHRSHH (16,812,251)  (14,803,597)  (11,897,351) (6,479,473)
Net cash flows from ReTHELHEL
operating activities RERE 5(48) (8,625,456) (7,997,116) (6,906,290) 180,854
Cash flows from investing RETHELNBERE
activities
Cash received from retunson VSR B Yezs A4
investments Be 2,390 12,400 14,397 24,308
Net cash received from disposal ~ BREEFEE « EVA
of fixed assets, intangible ENEMRAEE
assets and other long-term IEEop
assets 745 4,898 - 14
Cash received from disposal of ~ BEFARMEINES
subsidiaries e 4,133 333,269 = 240,000
Cash received relating to other 5| E A B3R B 25
investing activities BBENES - 2,065,394 1,143,273 427,570
Sub-total of cash inflows REZBEEFA NG 7,268 2,415,961 1,157,670 691,952
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
Aﬁ?&/—\__liﬁﬁl}ll:%%

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_FT-AFAA=THLEANEADRBGENZAN  cEELRARETT)

Unaudited Unaudited
RSEzt REEET
Six months Six months Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended

30June2015  30June2014  30June2015 30 June 2014
BE-Z-1f HZ-T-NF HE-E-1f HE-TMF

~NAZTH NA=TH AAZTH ~NAZTHE
EREAHE  EAEASE EAERHE L AEASE

Note Consolidated ~ Consolidated Company Company
Item BR iz aft aft AL N
Cash paid to acquire fixed BRETEE BVE
assets, intangible assets and EMEMRBEES
other long-term assets LR (253,464) (397,664) (31) (693)
Cash paid to acquire REZRNFRE
investments (469,682) (81,000) (20,000) (10,000)
Net cash paid for disposal of BRETRRIRIH
subsidiaries ReFE 5(48)(d) (166,256) - - -
Cash paid relating to other XTEMEREEHE
investing activities BHE S (1,937,545) (172,388) (449,391) -
Sub-total of cash outflows ~ REZHREF L3 (2,826,947) (651,052) (469,422) (10,693)
Net cash flows from RETBELNBELR
investing activities EFE (2,819,679) 1,764,909 688,248 681,259
Cash flows from financing EBTHELN
activities BeRE
Cash received from capital YR EREINES
contributions 2,280,000 1,500,000 - -
Including: Cash received from  E - FRFRKEZE
specific capital management BEEIRENEM
olan Bé 40) 2,280,000 1,500,000 - -
Cash received from borrowings ~ BUSfE M EIRR 2 16,285,961 7,910,501 5,572,600 200,000
Proceeds from disposal of REFARDERE
shares of subsidiaries and Ex Hﬁ(@]ﬁ’]fﬁ%
minority shareholders - 1,049,087 - -
Cash received from issuing BIBERUEINR S
bonds 2,972,100 - 2,972,100 -
Cash received from other KE AR EEE
financing activities EENE S 10,250 650,000 - -
Sub-total of cash inflows BEEBRERANT 21,548,311 11,109,588 8,544,700 200,000
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
EHRARRERER
For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_F-AFAA=ZTHLEANEADRBGENZAN  cEELRARETT)

Unaudited Unaudited
RSE:t REE
Six months Six months Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended

30June 2015  30June2014  30June2015 30 June 2014
BE-Z-1f HZ-T-NF HE-E-1f HE-TMF

~NAZTH NA=TH AA=TH NA=TH
EREASE  EAEASE EAERHE L AEASE

Note Consolidated ~ Consolidated Company Company
Item EH iz & aft 27 AF)
Cash repayments of BEEEZANRSE
borrowings (6,360,426) (4,528,179) (1,050,000) -
Cash payments for interest HERF - FERER
expenses and distribution of FIEZFERE
dividends or profits (3,230,286) (1,344,096) (803,881) (434,300
Cash paid for other finandng ~ XNEMEEEEHE
activities Lk (789,645) - (456,000) -
Sub-total of cash outflows ~ BEFHRESHML /N (10,380,357) (5,872,275  (2,309,881) (434,300)
Net cash flows from BSTHELNES
financing activities REFE 11,167,954 5,237,313 6,234,819 (234,300)
Effect of foreign exchange ~ ERBHUBLHTE
rate changes on cash 14,786 1,179 (3,912) (5,210)
Net increase in cash BeEmeE 5(48)(b) (262,395) (993,715) 12,865 622,603
Add- Cash at beginning 0 BOREHE
of period 5(48)(b) 10,759,150 10,487,655 2,512,139 800,899
Cash at end of period HAREHE 5(48)(b) 10,496,755 9,493,940 2,525,004 1,423,502
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial & Bff Bf 7% 5 3% Mt 33 & B 75 3 38 &9 48 A% &0
statements. 5 o
Legal representative: Person in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
TEEEA FEGHIEAEA BAHBREA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN OWNERS" EQUITY
AGRRRERHE

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_FT-RFNAZTEENEASREGRERERN  SREMRARETT)

Unaudited
~EET
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
BRRBLARRFRSR
Other Non- Total
Paid-in Capital  comprehensive  Surplus  Undistributed  controlling owners'
Note capital surplus income(loss)  reserves profits interest equity
Bhid 1R HHRR L i
Item B iR Bs  ERLE b BBNE i} & aif
Balanceat 1 January 2014 ZE-ME-A-AEILE 200790 B0 1285990 M6 40T TS07M 1622848
Movement for the sixmonths ~ §Z=F-REXA=tAL
ended 30 June 2014 ~ERRELHEEE
Total comprehensive income GANGEE
Net prfit i - - - S GL130 3669 1,007,789
Other comprehensive losses HEAER - - (676,187) = - - (676,187)
Total comprehensive il
Income - - (676,187) - 661,130 346,659 331,602
Capital contrbution and REEAMR AR
withdrawal by owners, Hi
including:
Capttal contribution by RRRAEK
owners - - - - - 994 311 994 311
Senior perpetual bonds FRTETRR
ssued by subsidiaries ¢ toil 4012 - - - - - - -
Investment absorbed TAREREREE:
from specic capitl HnnE
management plan
issued by subsidiaries 42)2) - - - - - 1,335,000 1,335,000
Others i - 54776 - - - - 54,776
Profit distribution to equity HhRNAR
owners 5(35) = = - - (446,151) (397,305} (843,456)
Balance at 30 June 2014 “%-MERAZTA
LS 2,027,960 887,226 609,804 341,768 4,434,550 9799409 18,100,717
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN OWNERS" EQUITY

&GRSR

RS

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_F-AFAA=ZTHLEANEADRBGENZAN  cEELRARETT)

Unaudited
*EET
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
FRRSNARTEE
Other Non- Total
Paid-in Capital  comprehensive  Surplus  Undistributed  controlling owners'
Note capital surplus income(loss) reserves profits interest equity
B FE SHBR  BRER
Item %R Mt Rx  ExiE b BHLE i} & aif
Balance at 1 January 2015 “E-BE-R-REIME 2,027,960 106,109 581134 360,628 5444301 12203394 21,413,526
Movement for the six months ~ EZ=F-FEXA=TAL
ended 30 June 2015 MERRESREEE
Total comprehensive income GelagE
Net profit FHE - - - - 503,293 507,713 1,011,066
Other comprehensive Hrals
income - - 8,671 - - - 8,671
Total comprehensive Ait
(losses)/income - - 8,671 - 503,293 507,173 1,019,737
Capital contrbution and RRRARRL AL
withdrawal by owners, Eh
including:
Transaction with non- HOURRRS
controling interest 4(4) - (1253%) - - - (2089517)  (2.214.868)
Investment from specifc SPGEGEY T
capital management ERRERE
plan - - - - - 2,040,300 2,040,300
Profit distibution to equity HhRNAR
owners - - - - (506,990) (245,569) (752,559)
Balance at 30 June 2015 ZE-TERAZTR
Brag 2,027,960 580,758 589805 360,628 5440604 12,506,381 21,506,136

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.

Legal representative:

TEAEAEA:

Person in charge of accounting:

TEEHIEERA:
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN OWNERS' EQUITY
AFRREREDE

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_FT-RFNAZTEENEASREGRERERN  SREMRARETT)

Unaudited
REET
Other Total
Paid-in Capital  comprehensive Surplus ~ Undistributed owners'
Note (apital surplus — income/(loss) reserves profits equity
i ‘ Rfga R ﬁ%&?
Item i iF: B ERDR UE/(BR) BHIE il aif
Balance at 1 January 2014 ZE-ME-A-A
BERE 2,027,960 1,219,308 43530 341,768 131949 5,012,062
Movement for the six months ~ HZ=E-MEAR=TRL
ended ~ERSMERAEE
30 June 2014
Comprehensive income e Gtk
Net profit R - - - - 115,886 115,886
Other comprefensive losses AEAER S S (19,408) - - (19,408)
Total comprehensive (loses)/ aif
income - - (19,408 - 115,886 9,478
Withdrawing surplus reserves — REUBHATE = = = - - -
Profit distribution to YR
equity owners 5(35) - - - - (446,151) (446,151)
Balance at 30 June 2014 ZE-REREZTR
BFeE 2,027,960 1,219,308 U120 341,768 989,231 4,662,389
Balance at 1 January 2015 “§-1%-3-A
BERE 2,027,960 1,279,308 5819 360,628 1,043,085 4,716,800
Movement for the sixmonths ~ EZ=F-TERA=TAL
ended 30 June 2015 ~ERREERRDE
Comprehensive income GRkGES
Net profi il = = = = (135,716) (135,716)
Other comprehensive Hrals
Income - - 6,305 - - 6,305
Total comprehensive fif
(losses)/income - - 6,305 - (135,716) (129411)
Profit distrbution to equity HREMAR
owners - - - - (506,990) (506,990)
Balance at 30 June 2015 “E-RERAZTA
EhE 2,027,960 1219308 1,14 360,628 400379 4,080,399
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial & B B 7 ¥ 3% Bt 5% /2 B 75 3 3% &9 748 Ak &6
statements. 7 °

Legal representative:

EERARA:
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Person in charge of accounting:
TER:
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TTHEREA:

Head of accounting department:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 2% B

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEANE RERERN  2BEMRARETT)

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Beijing Capital Land Ltd. (hereinafter “the Company”)
was established by seven companies (hereinafter “the
promoters”) on 23 July 2002, namely Beijing Capital Group
Ltd. (hereinafter “Capital Group”), Beijing Sunshine Real
Estate Comprehensive Development Company (hereinafter
“Sunshine Comprehensive”), Beijing Capital Sunshine
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (hereinafter “Capital
Sunshine”), Beijing Capital Technology Investment Co.,
Ltd. (hereinafter “Capital Technology"”), Beijing Capital
Hangyu Economic Development Co., Ltd. (renamed
“Beijing Capital Development Co., Ltd.” afterwards,
hereinafter “Capital Development”), China Resource
Products Limited (hereinafter “China Resource”) and
Yieldwell International Enterprise Limited (hereinafter
“Yieldwell International”) (hereinafter “the promoters”).
The company’s place of registry is the People’s Republic of
China and is headquartered in Beijing, China.

The Company was registered on 5 December 2002 in
Beijing with total share capital of RMB1,100,000,000
at RMB1 per share. The Company issued 513,300,000
shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“H-shares”) in June 2003. And 51,330,000
state-owned shares and state-owned entities shares were
transferred to public by some of the promoters.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% AR B o

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RFANA=TBELENEAMSE (BRI -

ERBEL/ARETIT)

GENERAL INFORMATION (Continued)

On 27 January 2005 and 26 October 2006, the Company
placed 456,126,000 H-shares (RMB1 per share) in
total, of which, 414,660,000 shares were newly issued
and 41,466,000 state-owned shares and state-owned
entities shares were transferred to public by some of the
promoters.

The parent company and the ultimate parent company of
the Company is Capital Group, a state owned enterprise
corporates in Beijing.

The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter “the
Group”) are principally engaged in the real estate
development and investment, commercial real estate
operation, hotel operation, property consulting services
and investment holding.

These consolidated financial statements were approved
by the Board of Directors on 10 August 2015. The interim
financial statements were unaudited.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(1). Basis of preparation

The financial statements were prepared in
accordance with the Basic Standard and specific
standards of the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises issued by the Ministry of Finance on
15 February 2006, and the Application Guidance
for Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises,
Interpretations of Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises and other relevant regulations issued
thereafter (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises” or
“CAS").

The financial statements were prepared in basis of
going concern.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING =. FEEstHEMEH{4t
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES ()
(Continued)

(2). BRELFEERNEH

(2). Statement of compliance with the Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises

The financial statements of the Company for the six RKRARIHE_ZE—HF A

months ended 30 June 2015 are in compliance with =+ H 1758 A HRE A B 7% R
the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises,
and truly and completely present the financial
position of the Consolidated and the Company as of
30 June 2015 and of their financial performance, cash
flows and other information for the six months then
ended.

. Accounting year

The accounting year starts on 1 January and ends on
31 December.

. Functional currency

The functional currency of the Company’s and most
of its subsidiaries is Renminbi (RMB), while the
functional currency of subsidiaries incorporated in
France, is Euro (EUR).

%ﬁ/m\ﬁigﬂ‘;&ﬁ'm’h@ci
BEE  TEMRBETARQ
Z—hHF A= ‘T‘EHH']/\@‘T&
RABBERRAUARBE=ZF
—HAFANA=THIEAREAS
MG O kDRI E R
EREFHEBEER -

BEHEE

CHFEEARAE—A—BRERE
+=—A=+—H8lt-

. REERAU S

ARARABH T AT RIRA
(M B ARS - 5% E
BT 2 i BT B R B
8 -

(5). Business combinations (5). ESH

(a) Business combinations involving enterprises () E—EZEHTHEESH
under common control

ABFTENOAHHER
MG ) F A A AR B
B - AHHTDBNF

The consideration paid and net assets obtained
by the acquirer in a business combination
are measured at the carrying amount. The

difference between the carrying amount of the EEREEAENH
net assets obtained and the carrying amount /\Tﬁ HEREEBEEMNE
of the combination is recognized in the capital C AEBEARRQTE (AR
surplus (share premium). If the capital surplus Z%THE) P BARNE (R
(share premium) is not sufficient to absorb the B)NEBLAHREE - 7%
difference, the remaining balance is recognized Bz -

in retained earnings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% AR B o

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RFANA=TBELENEAMSE (BRI -

ERBEL/ARETIT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(5). Business combinations (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Business combinations involving enterprises
under common control (Continued)

Costs directly attributable to the combination
shall be recognized in profit or loss for the
period when occurred.

Transaction costs in the issue of equity
securities and debt securities attributable to the
combination shall be recognized initial amount
of equity securities and debt securities.

Business combinations involving enterprises
not under common control

The consideration paid and identifiable net
assets obtained by the acquirer in a business
combination are measured at fair value on
the acquisition date. Where the cost of the
combination exceeds the acquirer’s interest in
the fair value of the acquirer’s identifiable net
assets, the difference is recognized as goodwill;
where the cost of combination is lower than
the acquirer’s interest in the fair value of the
acquirer’s identifiable net assets, the difference
is recognized in profit or loss for the current
period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING =. FEE:BEMEHLET
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (1% )
(Continued)
(5). Business combinations (Continued) (5). XSGt (E)
(b) Business combinations involving enterprises (b) EER—EHTHEESH
not under common control (Continued) (&

In a business combination involving entities not
under common control achieved in stages. In
the individual financial statement, the initial
cost shall be the summation of the book value
of the previously held equity interest in the
acquirer before the acquisition date and the
additional investment cost on the acquisition
date. In the consolidated financial statements,
the previously held equity interest in the
acquirer is premeasured to fair value on the
acquisition date and the difference between the
fair value and the net book value is recognized
as investment income for the period. If other
comprehensive income was recognized
regarding the equity Interest previously held
in the acquirer before the acquisition date,
the relevant other comprehensive income is
transferred to investment income in the period
in which the acquisition occurs. Difference
between the considerations paid by the Group
as the acquirer, including equity interest of
the acquirer held before the acquisition date,
and the Group's interest in the fair value of
the identifiable net assets of the acquire, is
recognized as goodwill if it is an excess.

Costs directly attributable to the combination

are recognized in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

55

BBEZARX DL ERE
FER—HEFI TEEAG
EERNFABRERT - AB
BERZAFFHREBETH
B ENREEEER
B EMIERERAZM -
ERREMNMNBREK
Ko ERHMBHRERT -
BB E B 2 BTH B B
BEIHBRE  ZRZK
BREBEANAABEE
TEMHE  AREERE
HEmEARNZRAAE
HigE WS BERZA
FrAEEE gy
REMEE WS - BE
HENEMFEREaE R
BEBRMBEHRAER
& o BB AR B A
BETBRENRABER
%EE&N%EW@%

B2zM  ZRENTA

ﬂ%%%ﬁ&%%%ﬁ%
NARBEMNEERE -

RETEREHFRENE
EEEEARBELERA
B -

BRIBEROGAERAT T —HFFHRE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% AR B o

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RAFAA=TELENEAME REREAN  SBEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING =. FEEstHEMEH{4st

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (1% )

(Continued)

(6). Preparation of consolidated financial (6). B IERMRNWEES %
statements
The consolidated financial statements comprise the BRAEHTEHRERE - S0tE

financial statements of the Company and all of its
subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
the Group obtains control and are de-consolidated
from the date that such control ceases. For a
subsidiary that is acquired in a business combination
involving enterprises under common control, it is
included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date when it, together with the Company,
comes under common control of the ultimate
controlling party. The portion of the net profits
realized before the combination date is presented
separately in the consolidated income statement.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
where the accounting policies and the accounting
periods are inconsistent between the Company and
subsidiaries, the financial statements of subsidiaries
are adjusted in accordance with the accounting
policies and accounting period of the Company. For
subsidiaries acquired from a business combination
involving enterprises not under common control, the
individual financial statements of the subsidiaries are
adjusted based on the fair value of the identifiable net
assets on the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING =. FEEstHEMEH{4t
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (&)
(Continued)

(6). Preparation of consolidated financial

(6). B BHRRNERS X

statements (Continued)

All significant inter-group balances, transactions and
unrealized profits are eliminated in the consolidated
financial statements. The portion of a subsidiary’s
equity, the portion of a subsidiary’s net profits and
losses and comprehensive income for the period
not attributable to the Company are recognized as
non-controlling interests and comprehensive income
attributed to minority shareholders, as presented
separately in the consolidated financial statements
within equity and net profits and comprehensive
income respectively. Unrealized inter profit or loss
in transactions where the Company sells assets to
its subsidiaries are fully eliminated to the net profits
attributable to equity holders of the Company.
Unrealized inter profit or loss in transactions where a
subsidiary sells assets to the Company are eliminated
between the net profits attributable to equity holders
of the Company and the profit or loss of the non-
controlling interest in proportion to the Company’s
allocation to the subsidiary. Unrealized inter profit or
loss in transactions between subsidiaries selling assets
are eliminated between the net profits attributable
to equity holders of the Company and the profit or
loss of non-controlling interest in proportion to the
Company'’s allocation to the selling side.

A transaction will be adjusted from the perspective of
the Group in condition that assertions are different
when accounting entities are the Group and the
Company or its subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% AR B o

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RAFAA=TELENEAME REREAN  SBEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING =. FE&sxtBERMEsHhst

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (%)

(Continued)

(7). Cash (7). B€
Cash comprise cash on hand and deposits that can be BERIEBEFRS UK AR
readily drawn on demand. AR TSR ©

(8). Foreign currency translation (8). HEEITE
(a) Foreign currency transactions (a) HERZH

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
RMB using the spot exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions.

At the balance sheet date, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into RMB using the spot exchange rates on the
balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising
from these translations are recognized in profit
or loss for the current period, except for those
attributable to foreign currency borrowings
that have been taken out specifically for the
acquisition or construction of qualifying assets,
which are capitalized as part of the cost of
those assets. Nonmonetary items denominated
in foreign currencies that are measured at
historical costs are translated at the balance

SNERZXZRXZEERAN
ENEAME R HNE S BRI E
RAREN

REERBXRA  INEE
KUHEHEBXAEERER
HOAHIERFTESAR
%o RBRNEERER
BRI BEEMEA
B SME HPIE TRE L RO [E
AEBEENMCBAEAT
NEARL « &L ZER
HERFASEHED - UE
ERAFTERINEIFTE
HIHA REERERXRA
REX %% 4 A m R HE

RITE - EREHURS

sheet date using the spot exchange rates at the M EEEReRERT
date of the transactions. The effect of exchange BIFFR o

rate changes on cash is presented separately in
the cash flow statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING =. FEEstHEMEH{4t
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES ()
(Continued)

(8). Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(8). SMMEITE ()

(b) Translation of foreign currency financial (b) SEBKEH/RPITE
statements

The asset and liability items in the balance sheets
for overseas operations are translated at the
spot exchange rates on the balance sheet date.
Among the owners’ equity items, the items
other than “undistributed profits” are translated
at the spot exchange rates on the transaction
dates. The income and expense items in the
income statements of overseas operations are
translated at the spot exchange rates on the
transaction dates. The differences arising from
the above translation are presented separately in
the owners’ equity. The cash flows of overseas
operations are translated at the spot exchange
rates on the dates of the cash flows. The effect
of exchange rate changes on cash is presented
separately in the cash flow statement.
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(9). Financial instruments (9). T A
(a) Financial assets (a) &WEE
(i) Classification of financial assets (i) ERMEESE
Financial assets are classified into the TREERVIBER
following categories at initial recognition: BROEA: UARE
financial assets at fair value through B2 BEZHat
profit or loss, receivables, available-for- AEHHEZNERE
sale financial assets and held-to-maturity = FElRGRIE - A

investments. The classification of financial
assets depends on the Group’s intention
and ability to hold the financial assets. The
financial assets of the Group are mainly
comprised of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥R R B 5

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RAFAA=TELENEAME REREAN  SBEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(9). Financial instruments (Continued)

(a) Financial assets (Continued)

()

Classification of financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss include financial assets held for the
purpose of selling in the short term.

Receivables

Receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market,
including accounts receivable and other
receivables (note 5(3)).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivative financial assets that are either
designated in this category or not classified
in any of the other categories at initial
recognition. Available-for-sale financial
assets are included in other current assets
on the balance sheet if management
intends to dispose of them within 12
months of the balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING =—. FE&:HENME 5T

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES ()

(Continued)

(9). Financial instruments (Continued) (9). EMIE(#E)

(a) Financial assets (Continued) (a) SWMEEE)
(ii) Recognition and measurement (ii) WRMFE

Financial assets are recognized at fair TREERANEBK
value on the balance sheet when the BemIESRM—
Group becomes a party to the contractual HRE AR BERE
provisions of the financial instrument, BEEBBERANER
and the transaction costs related to ES R 2 A R R
acquisition are recognized in profit or loss % ;%? )ﬂ FAEHE
for the current period. Transaction costs B rEWFRIERM
that are attributable to the acquisition T{?Etl:‘, SR EER
of the receivables and available-for-sale BANEBARSE R

financial assets are included in their initial
recognition amounts.

Fair values are used to determine the
subsequent measurements of available-for-
sale financial assets. However, for equity
investments that neither have quoted price
available in an active market nor fair values
can be reliably measured, cost method
should be used in measuring. Receivables
are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.

Change of fair value of financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or
loss are recognized as fair value gain or
loss into gain or loss for the current period;
Interests or cash dividends gained during
the holding period of asset, and disposal
gain or loss are recognized into gain or loss
for the current period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥R R B 5

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

—RFENAZTHBENEAMSE RERIFEHAN -

BE_F

ERBEL/ARETIT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(9). Financial instruments (Continued)

(a) Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Recognition and measurement
(Continued)

Gain or loss arising from change in fair
value of available-for-sale financial assets
is recognized directly in equity, except
for impairment losses and exchange
gain or loss arising from translation of
foreign monetary financial assets. When
such financial assets are derecognized,
the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized directly into equity is recycled
into profit or loss for the current period.
Interests of available-for-sale debt
instrument investments, which are
calculated by actual rate during holding
period, and cash dividends related to
available-for-sale equity instrument
investments announced by investee
companies are recognized as investment
income in profit or loss for the current
period.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses the carrying amounts
of financial assets other than those at fair
value through profit or loss at each balance
sheet date. If there is objective evidence
that a financial asset is impaired, the Group
shall make a provision for impairment.

Objective evidence indicating impairment
of financial assets refers to the matter that
actually occurs after the initial recognition
of financial assets, it will affect estimated
future cash flows of financial assets, and
its impact can be reliably measured by the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING =. FEEstHEMEH{4t
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES ()
(Continued)

(9). €W I A (#)
(a) =WMEEAE)
(i) EMEEREE)

(9). Financial instruments (Continued)
(a) Financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Impairment of financial assets

(Continued)

Objective evidence of impairment on
available-for-sale equity investments
includes the significant or prolonged
decline of the fair value of those equity
instruments. The Group assesses the
carrying amounts of available-for-sale
equity instruments separately at each
balance sheet date. If the fair value of
the equity instrument declines for more
than 50% (included) compared with the
initial investment cost or the decline lasts
for more than one year (included), the
impairment occurs; if the fair value of the
equity instrument declines for more than
20% (included) but not beyond 50%, the
Group will take other relevant factors, such
as price fluctuations into consideration
to judge whether the impairment occurs.
The Group applies weighted-average
method to estimate the initial investment
of the available-for-sale equity instrument
investment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥R R B 5

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RFANA=TBELENEAMSE (BRI -

ERBEL/ARETIT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(9). Financial instruments (Continued)

(a) Financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Impairment of financial assets

(Continued)

When an impairment loss on a financial
asset carried at amortized cost has
occurred, the amount of loss is measured
at the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
its estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been
incurred). If there is objective evidence that
the value of the financial asset recovered
and the recovery is related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment
was recognized, the previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed and the amount
of reversal is recognized in profit or loss.

In the case of a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of an available-
for-sale financial asset, the cumulative loss
arising from the decline in fair value that
had been recognized directly in equity is
removed from equity and recognized in
impairment loss. For an investment in an
equity instrument classified as available-
for-sale on which impairment losses have
been recognized, the increase in its fair
value in a subsequent period is recognized
in equity directly.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING =. FEestHEME et
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (#&)
(Continued)
(9). Financial instruments (Continued) 9). €T H
(a) Financial assets (Continued) (a) SWMEEE)
(iii) Impairment of financial assets (iii) SMEEREE)
(Continued)
In the case of decline in the cost model of VARK N5t = /9 A] 4
an available-for-sale financial asset, the EemEEZERE
difference between its book value and the B SHEmEEH
present value of the cash flow from the Hzﬁ’n’*ﬁﬂﬂévﬂéf?”“
similar financial asset under present market e T 35 U 2 3R R 2K
yields shall be recognized in profit or loss. W& E IR E 8

Occurred impairment will not be reversed
in future period.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognized when
any of the below criteria is met: (i) the
contractual rights to receive the cash flows
from the financial asset expire; (ii) the
financial asset has been transferred and the
Group transfers substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset to the transferee; or (iii) the financial
asset has been transferred and the Group
has not retained control of the financial
asset, although the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial
asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RAFAA=TELENEAME REREAN  SBEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(9). Financial instruments (Continued)
(a) Financial assets (Continued)

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets

(Continued)

The changes of fair value of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss
are recognized as fair value profit or loss
in profit or loss for the current period;
Interests, cash dividends and disposal profit
or loss during the holding period of the
asset are recognized in profit or loss for the

current period.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received
along with the cumulative changes in fair
value that had been recognized directly
in equity, is recognized in profit or loss.
Interests calculated at actual rate during
the holding period of the available-for-
sale liability instrument investments, and
cash dividends related to available-for-sale
equity instrument investments announced
by Investee Company are recognized as
investment income in profit or loss for the

current period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(9). Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
and other financial liabilities. The Group’s
financial liabilities are majorly financial derivative
liabilities and other financial liabilities (including
payables, borrowings and debentures payable).

Forward foreign exchange contract recognized
by cash flow hedging instruments is accounted
by financial derivative liabilities. The changes of
other forward foreign exchange contracts are
recognized in profit or loss at fair value.

Payables include accounts payable and other
payables which are initially recognized at
fair value and recorded at amortized cost
using effective interest rate in subsequent
measurement.

Borrowings and debentures payable are initially
recognized at fair value less trading expenses
and recorded at amortized cost using effective
interest rate in subsequent measurement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% AR B o

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RAFAA=TELENEAME REREAN  SBEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(9). Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities with repayment period
within 1 year (including 1 year) are stated as
current liabilities; other financial liabilities with
repayment period over 1 year but repayment
date within 1 year from balance sheet date
are stated as current portion of non-current
liabilities; others are stated as non-current

liabilities.

A financial liability is derecognized or partly
already derecognized when the current
obligation is discharged or partly discharged.
The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability or the derecognized part of
the financial liability and the consideration paid

is recognized in profit or loss.

(c) Determination of fair value of financial

instrument

The fair value of a financial instrument that is
traded in an active market is determined at the
quoted price in the active market. The fair value
of a financial instrument that is not traded in an
active market is determined by using a valuation
technique. The Group uses the valuation
technique when it is applicable under current
conditions and there are enough available
data and other information to support and the
technique should maximize the use of relevant
observable. Unobservable inputs are used under
the circumstance that the relevant observable
inputs cannot be obtained or not feasible. Those
inputs should be consistent with the inputs a
market participant would use when pricing the

asset or liability.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING =—.

TR

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (#)

(Continued)

(9). Financial instruments (Continued)

(d) Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities (d)

Financial assets and liabilities should be
presented separately in balance sheet without
offsetting. A financial asset and a financial N
liability should be offset when, and only when,

(9). €W I A (#)
THEENSRAENE
HiKsE
TREENCRABERE
EEERBRAD R
NEHEEE - B
= - FEmE TS

both of the following conditions are satisfied: B BENUHEEEEEDN

(i) The Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognized amounts and the
legally enforceable right is now executable; (ii)
The Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realize the financial asset and settle the

financial liability simultaneously.

(10).Hedging activities

The Group sets forward foreign exchange contract as
hedging instrument to avoid foreign exchange risks.
Changes in cash flow of the hedging instrument are
expected to offset the changes in cash flow of hedged
items. The Group accounts the hedging by using cash

flow hedge.

Fair value of the hedging derivatives would be
classified as non-current asset or liability when the
maturity of the hedged item is more than 12 months.

The Group also documents its assessment, both at
hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether
the derivatives used in hedging transactions are
highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of
hedged items (whether the offset results are between
80% and 125%). The Group adopts ratio analysis to
assess subsequent effectiveness of cash flow hedge.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RAFAA=TELENEAME REREAN  SBEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(10).Hedging activities (Continued)

Gain or loss on the cash flow hedging instrument
relating to the effective portion is recognized in other
comprehensive income and presented separately.
Amount of the effective portion is the lower of the
absolute value of the two items below:

(1) Accumulated gain or loss on the hedging
instrument from hedging date;

(2) Accumulated changes in present value
of expected future cash flow of hedged
transactions from hedging date.

Gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognized in profit and loss of the current period.

When a transaction that is hedged influences the
income statement, the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument recognized in other comprehensive
income is transferred out and recognized in profit and
loss. However, when the forecast transaction that is
hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial
asset, the gain or loss previously recognized in equity
is transferred out from equity and included in the
initial cost of the non-financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING =. FEE:BEMEHLET
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (1% )
(Continued)
(10).Hedging activities (Continued) (10).EHARE (&)
When a hedging instrument is sold or expires, EEATEERE  wHEE -
when the contract terminate, or when a hedge no AREKIEHBITERSE S

longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the
Group will discontinue using hedge accounting,
any cumulative gains or losses existing in equity at
that time remains in equity and will be recognized
in profit and loss when the forecast transaction
ultimately occurs. When a forecast transaction is no
longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss
that was recognized in equity will be immediately
transferred out to profit and loss.

.Receivables

Receivables comprise accounts receivable and other
receivables. Accounts receivable arising from sale of
goods or rendering of services are initially recognized
at fair value of the contractual payments from the
buyers or service recipients.

Receivables that are individually significant are
subject to separate impairment assessment. If there
is objective evidence that the group will not be able
to collect the full amount under the original terms,
a provision for impairment of that receivable is
recognized at the difference between the carrying
amount of that receivable and the present value of its
estimated future cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RFANA=TBELENEAMSE (BRI -

ERBEL/ARETIT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(11).Receivables (Continued)

Receivables with amounts that are not individually
significant along with those receivables that have
been individually assessed for impairment and have
not been found impaired are classified into certain
groupings based on their credit risk characteristics.
The provision for doubtful debts is determined based
on the historical actual loss ratio for the groupings
of receivables with similar credit risk characteristics,
taking the current circumstances into consideration.

(12).Inventories

(a)

(b)

Classification

Inventories include properties under
development, properties held for sale, work
in progress, finished goods and low-cost
consumables, and are measured at the lower of
cost and net realizable value.

Measurement of inventories

Inventories are initially recognized at the
actual costs. The costs of properties under
development and properties held for sale
comprise land cost, construction cost,
capitalized borrowing costs, and other
direct and indirect fees incurred during the
development period. On completion, the
properties are transferred to completed
properties held for sale at the actual costs.
For land use rights that are developed for
subsequent sales, the cost paid for land use
rights are classified and accounted for as part of
the costs of properties.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING =. FE&stBEMEsHLs
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (#&)
(Continued)
(12).Inventories (Continued) (12).F& (&)
(b) Measurement of inventories (Continued) (b) FEEWERLZEE)

Public ancillary facilities comprise government-
approved public ancillary projects, i.e. roads.
The relevant costs are recognized under the
properties under development, and are recorded
by each cost items, the cost paid for land use
rights are classified and accounted for as part of
properties under development.

Measurement of net realizable value and
provisions of inventories

Provisions are determined at the excess amount
of the carrying value of the inventories over
their net realizable value. Net realizable value
is determined based on the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs to completion and estimated
selling expenses and related taxes.

The Group adopts the perpetual inventory
system

Low-cost consumables are amortized using
the one-off amortization method
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% AR B o

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

—RFENAZTHBENEAMSE RERIFEHAN -

BE_F

ERBEL/ARETIT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(13).Long-term equity investments

Long-term equity investments comprise the
Company’s long-term equity investments in
its subsidiaries, the Group's long-term equity
investments in its joint ventures and associates.

Subsidiaries are the investees over which the
Company is able to exercise control. Joint ventures are
joint arrangements of which the net asset is attribute
to the Group based on the legal forms, terms of
contract and other facts and the investees over which
the Group is able to exercise joint control together
with other ventures. Associates are the investees that
the Group has significant influence on their financial
and operating policies.

Investments in subsidiaries are presented in the
Company’s financial statements using the cost
method, and are adjusted for preparing the
consolidated financial statements using the equity
method. Investments in joint ventures and associates
are accounted for using the equity method.

When the accounting policies and the accounting
periods are inconsistent between the Company
and investees, the financial statements of investees
are adjusted in accordance with the accounting
policies and accounting periods of the Company and
recognize the investment income accordingly.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING =. FEEstHEMEH{4t
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES ()
(Continued)

(13).REKRERE (#)

(a) Measurement of investment cost (a) RERAEE

(13).Long-term equity investments (Continued)

For long-term equity investments acquired
through a business combination: for long-
term equity investments acquired though
business combination involving enterprises
under common control, the investment cost
shall be the acquirer’s share of the carrying
amount of owners’ equity of the acquiree on
the combination date; for long-term equity
investment acquired through a business
combination involving enterprises not under
common control, the investment cost shall be
the combination cost.

For long-term equity investments acquired
not through a business combination: for long-
term equity investment acquired by payment
in cash, the initial investment cost shall be the
purchase price actually paid; for long-term
equity investments acquired by issuing equity
instruments, the initial investment cost shall be
the fair value of the equity instruments issued.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RAFAA=TELENEAME REREAN  SBEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(13).Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(b) Subsequent measurement and recognition

of investment income and loss

For long-term equity investments accounted for
using the cost method, they are measured at
the initial investment costs, and cash dividends
or profit distribution declared by the investees
are recognized as investment income in profit or
loss.

For long-term equity investments accounted
for using the equity method, where the
initial investment cost of a long-term equity
investment exceeds the Group’s share of the
fair value of the investee’s identifiable net
assets on the acquisition date, the long-term
equity investment is measured at the initial
investment cost; where the initial investment
cost is less than the Group’s share of the fair
value of the investee’s identifiable net assets on
the acquisition date, the difference is included
in profit or loss and the cost of the long-
term equity investment is adjusted upwards
accordingly.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING =. FEEstHEMEH{4t
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES ()
(Continued)

13).RERERE (#)
(b) Subsequent measurement and recognition (b) BEFERBRBERAZE

(13).Long-term equity investments (Continued)

of investment income and loss (Continued)

For long-term equity investments accounted for
using the equity method, the Group recognizes
the investment income or losses according to its
share of net profit or loss of the investee. The
Group discontinues recognizing its share of net
losses of an investee after the carrying amount
of the long-term equity investment together
with any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the investor’s net investment in
the investee are reduced to zero. However, if
the Group has obligations for additional losses
and the criteria with respect to recognition of
provisions under the accounting standards on
contingencies are satisfied, the Group continues
recognizing the investment losses and the losses
are recognized as estimate debts. For changes
in owners’ equity of the investee other than
those arising from its net profit or loss, other
comprehensive income and profit distribution,
the Group adjusts the carrying amount of
long-term equity investments and records
its proportionate share directly into capital
surplus. The carrying amount of the investment
is reduced by the Group’s share of the profit
distribution or cash dividends declared by the
investee. The unrealized profits or losses arising
from the intra-group transactions amongst
the Group and its investees are eliminated in
proportion to the Group’s equity interest in
the investees, and then based on which the
investment gains or losses are recognized. For
the loss on the intra-group transaction amongst
the Group and its investees attributable to
asset impairment, any unrealized loss is not
eliminated.

77

(uﬁrﬂ

AR EZENRBAR
BIEE AEEKEZA
HEDEREIRE BN
FIERMBERERSHRE
Bam o  BRAEKREEME
ERFEE - ARERE
KEMBRE B E AR EAM
BB LBAERIRE BN
/?Txéfﬂ’]ﬁﬁﬂ%\ /Uéuﬂi
TR - BEXREEE B X
EEIMEEAEBAERFEH
BEEEAMBAENTET
BERRKHR - BERE
FIL/\TX/%}E;EI{/E%%EE-I—E\
BEZE - WIREBGRF
B - BEfbiRa WA
EOBRNAIMNERERE
ey FERARER
ﬁmﬁﬁ{ﬁlﬁké$

NIE o IR E B DI
ﬂﬂ%ﬁ@kﬂ#*i“
Ik R 122 BR 7N 2 (B JE 9 15 Y
o - BER D KA
KEMKREER - ~X&5E
BHFIGE BN 2 HARER
B AR Z B IR R TR
LA EREBR RS EH
B8 - TLAMKEE - E
MERRRERRD - A&
BRI E B EERNA
HZX5EK ERBRE
EREBEANES - HE
HARBIRBRS T -

BRIBEROGAERAT T —HFFHRE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% AR B o

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RAFAA=TELENEAME REREAN  SBEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(13).Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Definitions of control, joint control and
significant influence

Control is the power over the investee when
the investor is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee
companies, and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee
companies.

Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the Group
and other parties sharing control.

Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of
the investee, but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

Impairment of long-term equity investment

The carrying amounts of long-term equity
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates are reduced to the recoverable
amounts when the recoverable amounts are
below their carrying amounts (Note 2 (20)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE-T-HEAASTAILABASE REJEHN BB AARSTL)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING =. FE&stBEMEsHLs
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (4&)
(Continued)
(14).Joint operations (14). HF &=
Joint operations are operations with a contractual HE®&E  RREAEEEEM

arrangement, whereby the Group and other parties
jointly enjoy related assets and are responsible to

BENTEEZLHREER
IR L BEA ﬁ%féﬁa M B %%

related liabilities. Under joint operations, the assets BEo EHRIKLZET - {JEAK%
and liabilities which belong to joint operations and Ry EPi“lJﬁnf LR S
are related to profit shares should be recognized EENBE FEEEER =X
separately or shared by proportion; Revenues were BEZTERNMHDREEDR  ER

recognized from selling the Group’s share in joint EEZAEMNARKEELHEE
operations or selling products of joint operations; FﬁFEE’]H&]\ o i B () BB R

expenses were recognized separately or shared by RERGCERNEELTEE

proportion in the joint operations. A ﬁ@w%ﬁﬁﬁ?‘iﬁﬁ%
FH L/{&ﬁ'(/ﬁ;fﬁﬁgﬁﬁwu /\[ji«<
EREMNER -

(15).BEMEHE

(15).Investment properties

Investment properties, including land use rights that
have already been leased out, buildings that are
held for the purpose of leasing and buildings that
is being constructed or developed for the purpose
of leasing in future, are measured initially at cost.
Subsequent expenditures incurred in relation to an
investment property is included in the cost of the
investment property when it is probable that the
associated economic benefits will flow to the Group
and their cost can be reliably measured; otherwise,

HEGEEHERSFE HEN LT
HEREMALEASB MR E
EY AR EERESFAERBE
P REARHAEREEY - A
RANEITHIIART 2 © BT E
EHEEBEMNEBES L - £
B R AOE M 2R R AT BE R AN &
BIEERAER ] ENT=
B sPARBHEEHMERA :
BRI - RESAERFT AE Bfi8%S o

the expenditures are recognized in profit or loss in the
year in which they are incurred.

The Group adopts the fair value model for subsequent REBRABAABEEREER

measurement of investment properties. Investment BUERMEEITREE - &

properties are measured at fair value model when the BAan ﬁfﬁﬁ‘ti&fﬂé E:t 2

following conditions are met: MNIREHEME  QETHEE
BHKER

(a) There is an active property market where the (a) WREMEEMEMEMETE

BREHER ST o

investment property locates.

(b) The Group can obtain the market price and the (b) ANEBEGEBEREWERS

relevant information regarding the same type of HiE FEREREXREURE

or similar property market, so as to reasonably It &Y miﬁ{ & N E A A

estimate the fair value of the investment BERS - MEKREME

property. iﬁz%ﬂ’]’&ﬁ{ﬁfﬁﬁfﬁéﬁ
HfEET ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% AR B o

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

—RFENAZTELENEAMSE RERIEAN  SREMASARKETT)

BE—

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(15).Investment properties (Continued)

Depreciation or amortization will no longer be
provided for investment properties measured at fair
value. Investment properties will be valued as at the
balance sheet date and its carrying amount will be
adjusted accordingly. The difference between the
fair value and the carrying amount will be charged in
profit or loss for the current period.

When objective evidence indicates that the purpose of
the real estate has changed and the Group converts
investment property to owner-occupied property or
real estate inventory, the property’s carrying amount
is stated at the fair value on the conversion date. The
difference between the fair value and the original
carrying amount is recognized in profit or loss for the
current period. When any owner-occupied property
or real estate inventory is converted to investment
properties to be measured through the fair value
model, the fair value on the conversion date is
recognized as the carrying amount of the investment
property. When the fair value on the conversion date
is less than its carrying amount, the difference will be
charged in profit or loss for the current period. When
the fair value on the conversion date is more than its
carrying amount, the difference will be charged to
other comprehensive income.

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. INTERIM REPORT 2015 80

zz = n-l_ I—E&( *D

( &)

S

(15). REMFEHE (&)

AEENEREMFE R
FrEETHEE EEEAE
i%EIL‘MQiéTI‘E%im?E’J@ﬁ
{E%ﬁﬁ’%ﬂm,\ﬁ%ﬁ{ﬁﬁ
,\{EEEJ?EEEETEZFWJ%
%EEH\%‘SEIHTEJ%T& 2

AEBEEREZBRRABME
REBLENE  BRELEFE
EBERRBREHERTFE
B AEEBREANAAEE
tFEREREEXFENRE
BE 2AnrEBEREREEEE
MERITAEHIEDE - BRE
WESFTEBRRRABAAE
EEAFENRELEEHE
o AEBBEANRAEEE
RREMEHWENKREER -
BWHREANAABEDRRE
HEEN  EERAAEHE
7 BREANAABEAR
FREEEEEN  HEERB| AR
fl kR & Wiak ©



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING =. FEEstHEMEH{4t
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (&)
(Continued)

(15). REMFEHE (&)

(15).Investment properties (Continued)

Where fair value of investment properties under
construction is not reliably measurable but is expected
to be reliably obtained after the construction is
completed (including those investment properties
under construction acquired initially by the Group),
the property is measured at cost until the earlier of
the date construction is completed or the date at
which fair value becomes reliably measurable.

For investment properties under construction
measured at cost, land use rights are amortized by
using the estimated useful life and net residual rate.
The amortization is capitalized.

An investment property is derecognized on disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposal. The net amount of
proceeds from sale, transfer, scrapping or damage of
an investment property subtract its carrying amount
and related taxes and expenses is recognized in profit
or loss for the current period.

The carrying amount of an investment property
under construction measured at cost is reduced to
the recoverable amount if the recoverable amount is
below the carrying amount (Note 2 (20)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RFANA=TBELENEAMSE (BRI -

ERBEL/ARETIT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(16).Fixed assets

(a)

(b)

Recognition and initial measurement

Fixed assets comprise buildings, machinery
and equipment, motor vehicles and office
equipment. Fixed assets are recognized when
it is probable that the associated economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the
related cost can be reliably measured. Fixed
assets purchased or constructed by the Group
are initially measured at cost at the time of
acquisition.

Subsequent expenditures incurred for a fixed
asset are included in the cost of the fixed asset
when it is probable that the associated economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the related
cost can be reliably measured. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognized.
All the other subsequent expenditures are
recognized in profit or loss for the current
period.

Depreciation methods of fixed assets

Fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-
line method to allocate the cost of the assets
to their estimated residual values over their
estimated useful lives. For the fixed assets that
have been provided for impairment loss, the
related depreciation charge is prospectively
determined based upon the adjusted carrying
amounts over their remaining useful lives.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(16).Fixed assets (Continued)

(b) Depreciation methods of fixed assets

= ERETBRMEEAE
(#)

(16).BIE & E (#)
(b) BIEREEMINELE(E)

(Continued)
The estimated useful lives, the estimated rate of TEEMBEFFERE
residual value and the annual depreciation rate o ERERERNFITER
are as follows: FIREAT -
Estimated Annual
Estimated rate of depreciation
useful lives residual value rate
EitERSH Bt FREE FFER
Buildings FEREEY 10-40 yearF 0% toE10% 2.3% t0%£10.0%
Machinery and equipment #2238 /& 5-20 yearfF 0% t0£10% 4.5% t0%20.0%
Motor vehicles EHIA 5-10 year®F 0% t0£10% 9.0% t0£20.0%
Office equipment YN 3-10 yearf 0% t02£10% 9.0% to£33.3%

The estimated useful lives, the estimated
residual value of a fixed asset and the
depreciation method applied to the asset are
reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate at least
each year end.

(c) When recoverable amount of fixed asset is lower
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
should be written down to the recoverable
amount (Note 2(20)).

(d) Disposal of fixed assets

A fixed asset is derecognized on disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. The amount of proceeds
from disposal on sale, transfer, scrapping or
damage of a fixed asset substract its carrying
amount and related taxes and expenses is
recognized in profit or loss for the current
period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% AR B o

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RAFAA=TELENEAME REREAN  SBEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING —.
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

ERETBRME AR
(#)

(17).Borrowing costs (17).EREH

The borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition and construction of investment
properties or real estate projects that need a
substantially long period of time for its intended
use commence to be capitalized and recognized as
part of the cost of the asset when expenditures for
the asset and borrowing costs have been incurred,
and the activities relating to the acquisition and
construction that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use have commenced. The
capitalization of borrowing costs ceases, when
the investment properties under acquisition or
construction becomes ready for its intended use, the
properties under development become ready for sale
(generally after Completion Certification granted), the
borrowing costs incurred thereafter are recognized
in profit or loss for the current period. Capitalization
of borrowing costs is suspended during periods in
which the acquisition or construction of the asset
is interrupted abnormally and the interruption lasts
for more than 3 months, until the acquisition or
construction is resumed.

For borrowings that specified for acquisition and
construction of investment properties and real
estate projects and qualified for capitalization, the
capitalization amount is measured as current actual
interests of the specified borrowings subtract interest
revenue earned from unused borrowings deposited
at bank or investment income earned from temporary
investment activities with unused borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING =—.

TR

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (#)

(Continued)

(17).Borrowing costs (Continued)

For general borrowings that occupied by the
acquisition and for construction of investment
properties and real estate projects qualified for
capitalization, the capitalization amount should be
the weighted average exceeds of accumulated capital
expenditures for capitalization over the amount of
specialized borrowings multiplied by the weighted
average effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate is the rate used to discount the estimated
future or the applicable shorter period cash flows
of the borrowings to the initial measurement of the

borrowings.

(18).Intangible assets

Intangible assets are land use rights and are measured
at cost. The cost of land use rights obtained for
construction of real estate projects and investment
properties is recognized in inventory development

costs.

(a) Land use rights

Land use rights are amortized over the useful
life of 50 years. If the purchase costs of land use
rights and the buildings located thereon cannot
be reliably allocated between the land use rights
and the buildings, all of the purchase costs are

recognized as fixed assets.

(b) Periodical review of useful life and

amortization method

For an intangible asset with a finite useful life,
review and adjustment on its useful life and
amortization method are performed at each year

end.

(c) Impairment of intangible assets

When the recoverable amount of an intangible
asset is less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount should be written down to the

recoverable amount (Note 2 (20)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RAFAA=TELENEAME REREAN  SBEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING =. T E@itlEME Lt
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (4&)
(Continued)
(19).Long-term prepaid expenses (19).RESHER

Long-term prepaid expenses include expenditures
that have been incurred but should be recognized
as expenses over more than one year in the current
and subsequent periods. Long-term prepaid expenses
are amortized on the straight-line basis over the
expected beneficial period and are presented at actual
expenditure subtract accumulated amortization.

(20).Impairment of long-term assets

Fixed assets, intangible assets with finite useful lives,
investment properties measured using the cost model
and long-term equity investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates are tested for impairment
if there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired at the balance sheet date. If the result of
the impairment test indicates that the recoverable
amount of the asset is less than its carrying amount,
a provision for impairment and an impairment loss
are recognized for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and the present value of the
future cash flows expected to be derived from the
asset. Provision for asset impairment is determined
and recognized on the individual asset basis. If it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the recoverable amount of a group of
assets to which the asset belongs to is determined. A
group of assets is the smallest group of assets that is
able to generate cash inflows independently.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE-T-HEAASTAILABASE REJEHN BB AARSTL)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING =. FEE:HHHBEMEHLEt
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (#&)
(Continued)
(20).Impairment of long-term assets (Continued) (20). RHEERE (&)

Goodwill that is separately presented in the financial
statements is tested at least annually for impairment,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that
it may be impaired. In conducting the test, the
carrying value of goodwill is allocated to the related
asset groups or groups of asset groups which are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the business
combination. If the result of the test indicates that
the recoverable amount of an asset group or a set
of assets group, including the allocated goodwill, is
lower than its carrying amount, the corresponding
impairment loss is recognized. The impairment loss is
first deducted from the carrying amount of goodwill
that is allocated to the asset group or a set of assets
group, and then deducted from the carrying amounts
of other assets within the asset groups or a set of
assets group in proportion to the carrying amounts of
assets other than goodwill.

Once the above asset impairment loss is recognized,
it will not be reversed for the value recovered in the
subsequent periods.

(21).Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of considerations
given in exchange for services rendered by employees
or compensation paid in order to terminate the
employment relationship. Employee benefits mainly
include short-term employee benefits, demission
benefits, termination benefits and other long-term
employee benefits, etc.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RFANA=TBELENEAMSE (BRI -

ERBEL/ARETIT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(21).Employee benefits (Continued)

(a)

(b)

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. INTERIM REPORT 2015

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits mainly include
wages or salaries, bonuses, allowances
and subsidies, staff welfare, social security
contributions, housing funds, labor union
funds and employee education funds. When
an employee has rendered service to the Group
during an accounting period, the Group shall
recognize short-term employee benefits as
liabilities and charge to the cost of an asset or
as an expense at the same time. Non-monetary
benefits are measured at fair value.

Demission benefits

Demission benefits are classified as defined
contribution plan and defined benefit plans.
Defined contribution is demission benefits plan
in which the Group is not obliged to make
further payment after paying a certain amount
to individual funds. Defined benefit plans is
other demission benefits plan except for defined
contribution plan. During the period, demission
benefits mainly include basic social pension
security and unemployed insurance, both of
which are defined contribution plan.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING =. FEE:BEMEHLET
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (1% )
(Continued)
(21).Employee benefits (Continued) (21). BT &M (&)
(b) Demission benefits (Continued) (b) BBZBEF(E)

Basic social pension security

Employees of the Group participate in the basic
social pension plan set up and administered
by the government authorities. Basic pensions
are provided monthly according to stipulated
proportions and basis, which are paid to local
labor and social security institutions. After
retirement of employees, local labor and social
security institutions will pay related pensions
to employees accordingly. When an employee
has rendered service to the Group during an
accounting period, the Group shall compute
and recognize liabilities according to the above
stipulation and charge to the cost of an asset or
as an expense at the same time.

The Group provides a pension scheme, which
is established under the rules and regulations
of the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance (“MPF Scheme"”), for all employees
in Hong Kong. The statutory contribution
requirements to the MPF Scheme are minimum
5% of eligible employees’ relevant aggregate
income and maximum of HKD 1,500 monthly.
The assets of this pension scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

—RFENAZTHBENEAMSE RERIFEHAN -

BE—

ERBEL/ARETIT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(21).Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Demission benefits (Continued)
Supplementary pension security plan

Qualified employees of the Group can
voluntarily join the supplementary pension
security plan. Supplementary pensions are
provided monthly based on employees’ social
security basis published in April and proportions
of 5% from the Group and 5% from employee,
which are paid to trustee. After retirement of
employees, trustee will pay related pensions
to employees accordingly. When an employee
has rendered service to the Group during an
accounting period, the Group shall compute
and recognize liabilities according to the above
stipulation and charge to the cost of an asset or
as an expense at the same time.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payables when
employment is terminated by the Group
before the employment contract expire, or
compensation provided as an offer to encourage
employees to accept voluntary redundancy.
The Group recognizes termination benefits
as liabilities and charges to profit or losses at
the earlier of the following dates: (i) when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of termination plan; or (ii) when the Group
recognizes costs for restructuring which
involving the payment of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING =. FEE:HHHBEMEHLEt
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES ()
(Continued)
(22).Equity instruments (22).#%=T A

Financial instruments issued by the Group are
classified as equity instruments when both of the
following conditions are satisfied:

(a) The financial instruments have no contractual
obligation to pay in cash or other financial assets
to other parties nor to exchange financial assets
or financial liabilities under potential adverse
condition with other parties;

(b) The financial instruments should and can be
settled via equity instruments of the Group.
For non-derivative instruments, the instruments
have no contractual obligation to be settled by
delivering fixed number of equity instruments of
the Group. For derivative instruments, they can
only be settled through the exchange of fixed
number of the Group’s equity instruments with
fixed amount of cash or other financial assets.
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R B 2 TR RIE R T2
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SEESEa T AETHE
BH o MARFITETE
ZEMTARETEER
MBI EBENARER R
ST EETHENS
RER: MAITETIA -
B T E R BEim B AR
EHEENASEB SR

TEXBEFEENRE
HEMEREELETS

The amounts issued by the subsidiaries and classified EhARRE 2 FRAE)ZEITEI
as equity instruments in the consolidated financial - EAEEASFIHEREKRT
statements of the Group are presented as “Non- DIEAERTENTD  £4
controlling interest”. HE I mERPIER VBRI E
IR o
(23). Distribution of dividends (23). & ®l 2 B
The amount of dividends is recognized as a liability in INERFARERSH ENE
the current period in which it is approved by general B RAEE -

meeting of shareholders.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RAFAA=TELENEAME REREAN  SBEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(24).

(25).

Provisions

Provisions for product warranties, pending litigations
etc. are recognized when the Group has a present
obligation, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation,
and the amount of the obligation can be measured
reliably.

A provision is initially measured at the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
related present obligation. Factors surrounding a
contingency, such as the risks, uncertainties and
the time value of money, are taken into account
as a whole in reaching the best estimate of a
provision. Where the effect of the time value of
money is material, the best estimate is determined
by discounting the related future cash outflows. The
increase in the discounted amount of the provision
arising from passage of time is recognized as interest
expense.

The carrying amount of provisions is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate.

Revenue recognition

The amount of revenue is determined in accordance
with the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable from the sales of goods and the rendering
of services in the ordinary course of the Group's
business activities. Revenue is shown net off rebates,
discounts and returns.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING =. FEE:BEMEHLET
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (4&)
(Continued)
(25).Revenue recognition (Continued) (25). W ATBFR (&)
Revenue is recognized when the economic benefits B2 58 E%E’Jﬁéé’é“ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ'ﬂﬁ

associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group, the related revenue can be reliably measured,
and the specific revenue recognition criteria have
been met for each type of the Group's business
activities as described below:

(a) Sales of goods

(i) Revenue of sales of development
properties is recognized when all the
following conditions have been satisfied:

o properties are completed and
accepted after check;

e a legally binding sales contract has
been signed,

o all the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of the development
properties have been transferred to
the buyer;

o the Company does not retain the
management rights, which is normally
associated with owner, on the
development properties sold and
has no control over the development
properties sold. The Company does
not meet the other criteria required
when recognizing revenue mentioned
above.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RFANA=TBELENEAMSE (BRI -

ERBEL/ARETIT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(25). Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Sales of goods (Continued)

(i)  The Group produces chemical products and
sells to distributors around the country. The
Group transports the chemical products to
the agreed delivery place according to the
contract. With the distributor’s receiving
confirmation, the Group recognizes
revenue. Distributors have the right to sell
chemical products on their own and take
the risk of price fluctuation or damage of
the chemical products.

Rendering of services

The Group provides service to external parties.
The related revenue is recognized using the
percentage of completion method, with the
stage of completion being determined based
on proportion of costs incurred to date to the
estimated total costs.

Transfer of asset use rights

Interest income is recognized on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

Income from an operating lease is recognized on
a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE-T-HEAASTAILABASE REJEHN BB AARSTL)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING =. FEEstHEMEH{4t
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES ()
(Continued)

(26). BUT % BY

(26). Government grants

Government grants are the gratuitous monetary
assets or non-monetary assets that the Group receives
from the government, including tax returns and
financial subsidies.

Government grants are recognized when there
is reasonable assurance that the grants will be
received and the Group is able to comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Monetary assets of
the government grants are measured as the amount
received or receivable. Non-monetary assets of the
government grants are measured as fair value or
notional value if the fair value cannot be obtained
reliably.

A government grant related to an asset is the
government grants acquired by the Group that
specified for acquisition and construction or in other
ways to form long-term assets. For government grants
related to income are government grants other than
government grants related to assets.

Government grants related to assets are recognized as
deferred revenue and will be amortized on a straight-
line basis in profit or loss over the useful life of the
related assets. Government grants recognized at
notional value are directly recognized in the income
statement.

Government grants related to income which are used
to compensate expenses or losses in subsequent
periods, are recognized as deferred revenue and
realized in profit or loss for the period such expenses
or losses occurred; the ones which are to compensate
expenses or losses occurred in previous periods are
directly recognized in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RAFAA=TELENEAME REREAN  SBEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING =. FEEstHEMEH{4st
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES ()
(Continued)

(27).EEFR B E ENIELFT

(27). Deferred tax assets and deferred tax

liabilities

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
calculated and recognized based on the differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts (temporary differences).
Deferred tax asset is recognized for the deductible
losses that can be carried forward to subsequent years
for deduction of the taxable profit in accordance with
the tax laws. No deferred tax liability is recognized
for a temporary difference arising from the initial
recognition of goodwill. No deferred tax asset or
deferred tax liability is recognized for the temporary
differences resulting from the initial recognition
of assets or liabilities due to a transaction other
than a business combination, which affects neither
accounting profit nor taxable profit (or deductible
loss). At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the year when the
asset is realized or the liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable income will
be available to offset the deductible temporary
differences, deductible losses, and deductible tax
amounts.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates, except where the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference, and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not be reversed in
the foreseeable future. When it is probable that
the temporary differences arising from investments
in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates will
be reversed in the foreseeable future and that
the taxable profit will be available in the future to
offset the deductible temporary differences, the
corresponding deferred tax assets are recognized.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEANE RERERN  2BEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(27).

(28).

(29).

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if all the
following conditions are met:

o they related to income taxes levied by the same
tax authority; and

o that tax payer within the Group has a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
current tax liabilities.

Leases

A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an asset. An operating lease is a lease other than a
finance lease.

The Group does not have finance leases. Lease
payments under an operating lease are recognized
in the asset cost or in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the year of the lease.

Maintenance and quality guarantee funds

Maintenance fund is collected from property buyers
according to related regulations on behalf of housing
administration bureau, by certain percentage of
selling price of property, the fund will be delivered to
housing administration bureau upon registration of
property ownership. Maintenance fund is recognized
in “other payables” when received and is specially
for the repair and update for the common parts and
equipment and public facilities of the real estate.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RFANA=TBELENEAMSE (BRI -

ERBEL/ARETIT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(29).

(30).

Maintenance and quality guarantee funds
(Continued)

Quality guarantee fund is reserved by certain
percentage of the project payment and when
the properties are completed it will be repaid to
constructor, in condition that there’s no quality issue
in agreed warranty period. Reserved quality guarantee
fund is recognized in “payables” and is paid after the
agreed warranty period.

Held for sale and discontinuing operations

A non-current asset or a component of the group
satisfying the following conditions is classified as held
for sale: (1) the non-current asset or the component in
current conditions can be sold immediately according
to usual trading terms; (2) the Group has made a
resolution and has been approved for disposal of
the non-current asset or the component; (3) an
irrevocable contract with the transferee has been
signed and; (4) the transfer will be completed within
one year.

Non-current assets, except for financial assets and
deferred tax assets, which meet the recognition
criteria for held for sale are measured at the lower
of the fair value less costs to sell and the carrying
amount. Any excess of the original carrying amount
over the fair value less costs to sell is recognized as an
asset impairment loss.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale, the
assets and liabilities in the disposal groups are
classified as current assets and current liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BEZZ-AFANA=TREANEASE CRERIERS - SREMSARETIT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING =. FEEstHEMEH{4t
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES ()
(Continued)

(30). Held for sale and discontinuing operations
(Continued)

Bo).FHEFERKILEE (H)

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group that either has been disposed of or is classified
as held for sale, and can be distinguished from other
components within the Group in business operation
and in preparation of financial statements: (1) the
component represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations; (2) is
part of a single coordinated plan to disposal of a
separate major line of business or geographical area
of operations; (3) is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
for the purpose of resale.

(31). Segment information

The Group identifies operating segments based on
the internal organization, management requirements
and internal reporting system and the reportable
segments is determined and segment information is
disclosed based on the operating segments.

An operating segment is a component of the Group
that satisfies all of the following conditions: (1)
the component is able to earn revenues and incur
expenses from its operation activities; (2) whose
operating results are regularly reviewed by the
Group’'s management to make decisions about
resources to be allocated to the segment and
to assess its performance, and (3) for which the
information on financial position, operating results
and cash flows is available to the Group. If two or
more operating segments have similar economic
characteristics and satisfy certain conditions, they
could be aggregated into one single operating
segment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-AFANA=TREANEAYE CRERIERS - SREMSARETIT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING =. FEEstHEMEH{4st
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES ()
(Continued)

(32).Purchase shares in subsidiaries from

(32).BEFAALBRRER

non-controlling shareholders and partial
disposal of interest in a subsidiary
without loss of control

The transaction with non-controlling interest to
partially or wholly acquire interests in a subsidiary
after obtaining the control rights over the subsidiary,
the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary are
measured consistently following their value at the
acquisition or merger date in the consolidated
financial statements. The difference between
additions in long-term investment due to the interest
purchase and additions of shared net assets of
the subsidiary calculated by the additional share
proportion should be recorded in capital surplus
(share premium). In case share premium is not
sufficient to offset the difference, retained earnings
should be adjusted.

The transaction with non-controlling interest to
dispose long-term equity investment in a subsidiary
without losing control rights over the subsidiary, the
difference between the proceeds from disposal of
interests and the decrease of the shared net assets
of the subsidiary is adjusted to capital surplus (share
premium). In case share premium is not sufficient
to offset the difference, retained earnings will be
adjusted.

(33). Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The Group continually evaluates the critical
accounting estimates and key judgments applied
based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING =. FE&:HEBEME &5t
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (#&)
(Continued)
(33). Critical accounting estimates and judgments (33).EEEcH A MA B (&
(Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and key
assumptions

The critical accounting estimates and key
assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are as following:

(i) Property development cost

Critical estimates and judgments on
budget cost and development progress
are required in determining property
development cost. The budget cost and
development progress of the project is
reviewed by the Group on a regular basis
and adjusted as appropriate. Should the
actual cost differs from the budget cost,
such difference will impact the relevant
property development cost.

(ii) Taxes

The Group is subject to various taxes for
the business of property development.
There are many transactions and events
for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. Significant judgment is required
in determining the provision for land
appreciation tax (“LAT"). Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the
tax provisions in the year in which such
determination is made.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥R R B 5

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RFANA=TBELENEAMSE (BRI -

ERBEL/ARETIT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(33). Critical accounting estimates and judgments
(Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and key
assumptions (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. INTERIM REPORT 2015

Impairment of assets

The Group tests annually whether
assets have suffered any impairment in
accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 2(20), If there is objective
evidence that the carrying amount of
assets is in excess of its recoverable
amount, a provision for impairment and
an impairment loss are recognized for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

Provisions for doubtful debts of
receivables

The Group tests annually whether
receivables suffer any impairment in
accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 2(11). If there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect the full amount under the original
terms, a provision for impairment of that
receivable is made.

Deferred tax assets

Judgment for whether deductible
temporary differences and deductible
losses can be reversed in the future period
is required from the Group in recognizing
deferred tax assets. For deductible
temporary losses, the Group recognizes
deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will
be available in the future to offset the
deductible losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING =. FEE:BEMEHLET
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (&)
(Continued)
(33). Critical accounting estimates and judgments (33).EEEcH A MA B (&
(Continued)
(a) Critical accounting estimates and key (a) EEEFEATREBER
assumptions (Continued) & (E
(vi) Fair value of investment properties (vi) REMEHEQAAE
=]
The Group adopts fair value model for REERARAAEE

subsequent measurement of investment
properties and obtains independent
valuations for its investment properties
at least annually from an independent
professional valuer as a third party. The fair
value is determined in accordance with the
methods below:

Current prices (open market quotations)
in an active market for the same or similar
investment properties;

When such information above is not
available, then use recent trading prices
in an active market of the same or similar
investment property, and take the factors
of situations, dates and locations of
transactions, etc. into consideration;

Calculation based on the discounted of
future estimated rental income and other
related cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥R R B 5

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RAFAA=TELENEAME REREAN  SBEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(33). Critical accounting estimates and judgments
(Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and key
assumptions (Continued)

(vii) Provision for the decline in value of

inventories

The Group measures the inventories at the
lower of cost and net realizable value at
the balance sheet date. The calculation of
net realizable value needs assumptions and
estimates. If the management changes the
estimated selling price and the estimated
costs and expenses to completion, the
estimated net realizable value would be
affected; such difference will impact the
provisions of inventories which have been
recognized.

(viii) Accounting estimates on impairment of

goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill
has suffered any impairment. These
calculations require accounting estimation.
The group’s goodwill is mainly generated
from an acquisition for a Hong Kong
stock exchange listed company. The group
applies the market value of shares of the
listed company at balance sheet date to
evaluate the recoverable amount of the
asset groups and groups of asset groups.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING =—. FE&:HENME 5T
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (#&)
(Continued)
(33). Critical accounting estimates and judgments (33).EEEcH A MA B (&
(Continued)
(a) Critical accounting estimates and key (a) EEEFEATREBER
assumptions (Continued) & (E
(ix) Deferred income tax liabilities (ix) EEFTBHRARE
The Group needs to estimate the possibility REBEERIDRE
of the dividend distribution or share FFr 15 758 & A0 754 8 e 1
transfer of the non-resident enterprises, =RITIRBEEMS/H

when recognizing deferred income tax
liabilities for taxable temporary differences
of withholding income tax.

(b) Critical judgments on application of
accounting policy — revenue recognition

According to the accounting policy stated
in note 2(25), the assessment of when an
entity has transferred the significant risks and
rewards of ownership to buyers requires the
judgment according to the circumstances of the
transaction. In most cases, the transfer point
of risks and rewards of ownership coincides
with the date when the buyer check and accept
the property or when the buyer is regarded as
checking and accepting the property.

As disclosed in note 10, the Group provided
guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities
granted by certain banks relating to the
mortgage loans arranged for certain purchasers
of the Group's properties. These guarantees will
be relieved when relevant property ownership
certificates are mortgaged to banks by the
purchasers. The Group believes that significant
risks and rewards associated to the ownership
of the properties have been transferred to the
purchasers when the buyer check and accept
the property or when the buyer is regarded as
checking and accepting the property.

105

BER - BFELHIEE
ReFBBERF DR
S EEETAER
X EB D AT B 1

ZERMABEIEETH
Iﬁ o
RASTERRNEAREH
B — AR

RBMEZQS) IS
AR ARBEYNFHE
EmfEELNERER
MM B ERE BB
HoBERERXZNEL
B A - £ 8T
T P R R B A R A
BENER EREEER
Wi Bk 4% [R) B Ui B By B AR —
B o

AR EE AT - REE Y
BOBEENRITREE
REBER - EBEED
BT A EEERGRT
B - RIERASRARRR - &
SEFHERBRABED
EXAREGMEREES
B U AR Al B U B B AR o

% o

BRIBEROGAERAT T —HFFHRE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% AR B o

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=TELENEAME REREAN  2BEMRARETT)

3. TAXATION =. WIE
The types and rates of taxes applicable to the Group are set AREEFANFTEHE N EF X7
out below: RIATR
Type Tax rate Taxable base
BE BE BE
Enterprise income tax 25%  Taxable income of subsidiaries located in
the PRC
BEMEH B B3E A F A R R AL P 1S 2R
5%-10% Income from taxable dividends of non-
resident enterprises and investments
disposal in mainland China
FEERBEMEHR R YA K
ERBAEREEREHRA
16.5% Taxable income of subsidiaries
located in Hong Kong
BB TR ARV A
Business tax 5% Taxable turnover amount
EEB eI & R EE
LAT 30%-60% Taxable value added amount through
sales of properties
T IBET R P E PR ES Y R AN T S5 (B 5R
Value added tax (“VAT") 6% Taxable value added amount
REW FE TG EEE
City maintenance and construction tax 5%-7% Amount of VAT, business tax payable
) JEME X - BEMNR
Education surcharge 3% Amount of VAT, business tax payable
A BN JEME RN - REDRE
Property tax 1.2% Taxable residual value of properties
FEM FERBSRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-RFAA=TRIENEASE CRERIFERS - SRBLA/ARBETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT

(1). Significant subsidiaries

1.

M. BEREHREOIHRE

(1). EZEFRARFR

Subsidiaries incorporated by promoters at 1. ZRNATEBRIFZEE
establishment of the Company ABABNFAT
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
ZREx KRARERELA KATRARLE
30 June 2015 31 December 2014 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
—%-3f —3-mE —§-1f —E-pmE
Place of  Place of main Principal 30June 31 December ~EZHR +ZA=+-8 ~BZtR TZA=1+-A
Name registration operation activities 2015 2014 Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct ~ Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct
EBRER —§-if  —F-mF
FARER it TEEEY HEER A=A TZA=+-8 -t B E# 53 ER B B i3
% % % % % % % %
(1) Central Plaza Real Estate ~ Beijing, Beijing, Property USDET USDET 75 25 75 25 75 25 75 25
Development Co., Ltd. the PRC the PRC Development 11,258,000 11,258,000
(“Central Company”) and Investment
FRAREEERARA  SHRT b7y EHERERRE
(TR IHFRAA)
(2)  Beijing Rongjin Real Estate Beijing, Beijing, Property USDETT USDET 10 495 10 495 10 495 10 495
Development Co., Ltd. the PRC the PRC Development 6,360,000 6,360,000
(“Rongjin Company") and Investment
FRBEEHERE R R FHERERRE
ARAAATR
[HeRdl)
(3)  Beijing Sunshine Jindu ~ Beijing, Beijing, Property RMBARH RMBAK 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Properties Co., Ltd. the PRC the PRC Development 370,000,000 370,000,000
("Jindu Company") and sales
tRExEBEE SR SR EHERERHE
ARAR(ATHE
[Bx2#))
(4 Central Plaza Development B.V.I Hong Kong  Investment Holding USDET USDETT 100 - 100 = 100 - 100 =
Ltd. ("Central Plaza") {i 1 1
Central Plaza Development £E#BR &% REER
Ltd. (AT B8
[Central Plaza))(i)
(5)  International Financial BVI Hong Kong  Investment Holding USDET USDETT 100 - 100 = 100 - 100 =
Center Property., Ltd. 1 1
("IFC")
International Financial ~~ EB#ER  EB REER
Center Property Ltd. BE
(TR TIFC))
(i) As at 30 June 2015, Central Plaza, a (i) MRZZ—RF~A=T

subsidiary of the Group, has issued
cooperate bonds and mid-term notes
amounted to RMB5,250,000,000 (as at 31
December 2014: RMB5,250,000,000) (note
5(29)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥R R B 5

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-—RFAA=TRIEANEASE RERIFERS - RBLAARBETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (Continued)

(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continued)

2. Subsidiaries obtained from business

. BRSO RS BHRE

(&)

(1). EEFRARR(E)
BBIER—EE TS

2.

A —
combinations involving enterprises not BHEUSHF AR
under common control
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
HRER KRARERELH KAFRAELA
30 June 2015 31 December 2014 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
Place of —8-1f —“E-MEF —8-1f —E-pE
Placeof ~ main Principal 30June 31 December YR t-A=1-A ~BZtR TZA=1+-A
Name registration operation activities 2015 2014  Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct ~ Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct
EBRER “§-1f -I-mF
FARER it TELES RLEEE ABEtA tZA=+-H B 63 B iz E# B B i
% % % % % % % %
(1) S.C.Real Estate Beijing, Beijing, Property RMBAR®  RVMBARH 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Development Co., Ltd. the PRC the PRC Development 640,000,000 640,000,000
("S.C.") and sales
BERRHERE SR SR EHERZRHE
ARATUATE
[B815 )
(2)  Beijing HYHL Real Estate ~ Beijing, Beijing, Property USDET USDETT - 100 = 100 - 100 = 100
Development Co., Ltd. the PRC the PRC Development 10,000,000 10,000,000
and sales
tRERERRE ER® ER® FHERERHE
ARAA
(3)  Beijing Anhua Shiji Real  Beijing, Beijing, Property USDET USDETT 55 45 55 45 60 40 60 40
Estate Development the PRC the PRC Development 30,000,000 30,000,000
Co., Ltd. ("Anhua and sales
Shiji")
FRREHEENE R R EHEREREE
REERAR
(AR [REHE])
() Tianjin Banshan Renjia ~~ Tianjin, Tianjin, Property USDETT USDET - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate Co., Ltd. the PRC the PRC Development 74,000,000 74,000,000
(“Tianjin Banshan”) and sales
RERUARER REM R EHERERHE
ARATUATE
[R2HW])
(5) Beijing Sunshine City Real  Beijing, Beijing, Property USDET USDETT 50 50 50 50 60 40 60 40
Estate Development the PRC the PRC Development 20,000,000 20,000,000
Co., Ltd. (“Sunshine and sales
City")
IRBRERELE R R FHERERHE
ARAAATE
[BHsl)
(6)  Chongging Xinshi Real  Chongging, ~ Chongging,  Property USDETT USDET - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Estate Development the PRC the PRC Development 95,000,000 95,000,000
Co., Ltd. and sales
EFEENRER 4 ERm ERERERHE
ARATA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-RFAA=TRIENEASE CRERIFERS - SRBLA/ARBETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (Continued)

(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continued)

2.

Subsidiaries obtained from business
combinations involving enterprises not

under common control (Continued)

M. BEREHREOIHRE

(&)

(1). EZEFRABER#E)

2. BEBFE-ZEITHEX
BHMEHTFLR(AE)

Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
HRER KATHERELH KATRARLS
30 June 2015 31 December 2014 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
Place of “E-1% “E2-mE Z2-1% “E2-mE
Place of main Principal 30June 31 December ~AZTH +ZA=1-H ~AZtA TZA=1+-H
Name registration operation  activities 2015 2014 Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct
FRHER —g-1% “E-mE
FRRER it TEEEY HEER AB=tE tZA=t-H 4 B B 53 E# 53 E# 4
% % % % % % % %
(7)  Beijing Xinbocheng Real  Beijing, Beijing, Property RMBARM RMBAR® - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Estate Development the PRC the PRC Development 89,000,000 89,000,000
Co., Ltd and sales
FRAERERERE  ART ERW FHERSREE
ARAA
(8)  Qingdao Yangguang Qingdao, Qingdao, Property RMBARM RMBAR - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Binhai Properties the PRC the PRC Development 50,000,000 50,000,000
Co, Ltd. and sales
FBRLEEER =l G0l FHERSREE
ARAA
(99 Qingdao Qiangianshu Qingdao, Qingdao, Property RMBARH RMBAR® - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Investment Properties the PRC the PRC Development 20,000,000 20,000,000
Co, Ltd. and sales
FETTHERARAR FBA Gl FRERSREE
(10)  Yantai Yangguang Yantai, Yantai, Property RMBAR®  RVMBARH - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Lidu Real Estate the PRC the PRC Development 50,000,000 50,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. and sales
REGIBHEHERE EEG EEDH BHERERHE
ARAA
(1) Yantai Yangguang Yantai, Yantai, Property RMBAR®  RVMBARH - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Lizhen Real Estate the PRC the PRC Development 75,000,000 75,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. and sales
REGIBEEMERE EEG EED EHERERHE
ARAA
(12)  Yantai Yangguang Yantai, Yantai, Property RMBAR®  RVMBAR® - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Xinye Real Estate the PRC the PRC Development 75,000,000 75,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. and sales
REGANAEHERE BEH EEhH BHERZRHE
ARAA
(13)  Zhejiang Huisheng Real ~ Huzhou, Huzhou, Property USDETT USDET - 100 = 100 - 100 = 100
Estate Co., Ltd the PRC the PRC Development 20,000,000 20,000,000
and sales
MIEEEXERAT  MN® il EHERERHE
(14)  Zhejiang Outlets Property  Huzhou, Huzhou, Property USDETT USDET - 100 - 100 - 100 = 100
Real Estate Co,, Ltd the PRC the PRC Development 40,000,000 40,000,000
and sales
MIRBRAER A il EHERSRHE
ARAR
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-—RFAA=TRIEANEASE RERIFERS - RBLAARBETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (Continued)

(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continued)

2. Subsidiaries obtained from business

combinations involving enterprises not

under common control (Continued)

. BRSO RS BHRE

(&)

(1). EZEFRABERE)

2. BBFE-ZEITHEX
BHMEHTFLR(E)

Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
Hhax ARARERELS ARRRAELH
30 June 2015 31 December 2014 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
Place of “E-1% “E2-mE —%-E% ki3
Place of main Principal 30June 31 December ~AZTH +ZA=1+-H ~AZtA TZAZ1+-A
Name registration operation activities 2015 2014 Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct
EBRER “¥-1Ff CF-QF
FRRER i TE@EEY HEER AB=tE tZA=1-H 4 B E# 53 E& 63 E# 4
% % % % % % % %
(15)  Tianjin Shengtai Cheng ~ Tianjin, Tianjin, Property RMBA R RMBAR™ - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Jiaming Ronghe the PRC the PRC Development 60,000,000 60,000,000
Development Co., Ltd and sales
RELEHZERA KA RET FHERERHE
ATREERAR
(16)  Beijing Capital Juda Cayman Hong Kong  Investment Holding HKD# % HKD/E% - 65.1 - 65.1 - 65.1 - 65.1
Limited. (“Beijing Islands 2,000,000 2,000,000
Capital Juda”) (i)
BRIEARRAR Reke  FE RAZK
(T [EEIEX )
(17)  Nice world chemical Xiamen, Xiamen, Manufacture and USDE R USDETT - - - 65.1 - - - 65.1
industry (Xiamen) Co., ~ the PRC the PRC sale of chemicals 8,000,000 8,000,000
Ltd. ("NWCI") (i)
tECI(EFERRT BT EMm HEREELER
(AT [T
(18)  Xi'an Capital Xinkai Xi'an, Xi‘an, Property USDET USDETT - 65.1 = 100 - 65.1 = 100
Real Estate Co., Ltd. the PRC the PRC Development 165,000,000 165,000,000
("Xi'an Xinkai") (i and sales
BREAFFER AZH BE FHERRRHE
ARAR(ATE
[ERHH 1))
(19)  Huzhou Capital Huzhou, Huzhou, Property RMBA R RMBAR™ - 55 - 55 - 55 - 55
Rongcheng Real Estate  the PRC the PRC Development 60,000,000 60,000,000
Co., Ltd. (“Huzhou and sales
Rongcheng”)
WNERIRAESR m il FHERERHE
ARAF(ATHE
[HMES])
(20)  Beijing Xingtai Jicheng  Beijing, Beijing, Property RMBA R RMBARE - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate Co., Ltd. the PRC the PRC Development 45,000,000 45,000,000
("Xingtai Jicheng") and sales
FREFERER b7y SR FHERRRHE
ARAR(ATE
[BRER])
(21)  Beijing Yongyuan Beijing, Beijing, Investment RMBARM  RVBARM 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Jintai Investment the PRC the PRC management 5,000,000 5,000,000
Management Co., Ltd Holding
("Yongyuan Jintai")
FRATERREER  SRH SR REER
ARAF(ATHE
[kTe%])
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (Continued)

(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continued)

2.

Subsidiaries obtained from business
combinations involving enterprises not
under common control (Continued)

(i)

Beijing Capital Juda (known as Juda
International Holdings Limited before 26
March 2015) is listed on the main board
of Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(stock code: 1329) with common stock
amounted to 200,000,000 shares, the
Group holds 65.1% of the total shares,
and in January 2015, Beijing Capital Juda
privately offered Convertible Preferred
Shares (“CPS") amounted to 738,130,482
shares to a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Group, after taking account of CPS,
the Group holds 92.56% of the net
assets in Beijing Capital Juda. NWCI, an
original significant subsidiary of Beijing
Capital Juda, is disposed in current period
(Note 4(3)).In 30 June 2015, a significant
subsidiary of Beijing Capital Juda is Xi‘an
Xinkai (Note 4(4)), through Beijing Capital
Juda, the Group holds 92.56% of the net
assets in Xi'an Xinkai.

M. BRSO RETTHHRE

(&)

(1). EZEFRABER#E)

BBEE-EEITHEE
SHMEHF LR (E

2.

(i)

BRAIERA(RZE
—RHE=ZA -+~
B A8 A& 8 K B R
ERERAR)AS
BEERZAER L
mAaa (KR :
1329) & T E AR
fi% 2% /& 200,000,000
fg + B A& B
B% L ] & 65.1% -
SN RZTB—FRE
—ABEAISERAAR
Al—2&FRATE
M) 38 2% 0] 82 48 %
A% 738,130,482 A% -
= B A IR E kR
% AEEREAENE
BlSE KR FEEMRE
£92.56% ° & AlfE
AEFEEXETFA
A AMEWLRET B
RAHEE (7D
(Z)) - R=ZZ—F
FXA=+H " #HA
EABENEZTFA
CIb-Titk-& il A4 Ok
M) » AEER
BEASEARFEENA
THRFEENTER
92.56% °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% AR B o

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of

units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-—RFAA=TRIEANEASE RERIFERS - RBLAARBETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (Continued)

(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continued)

3. Subsidiaries obtained through

. BRSO RS BHRE

(&)

(1). EEFRARR(E)
3. BEBHENHMEAEWE

incorporation or by other means NG
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
ZREx KRARERELH KATRARLE
30 June 2015 31 December 2014 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
Place of —2-1f —T-Mm% —%-%% —T-mE
Place of ~ main Principal 30June 31 December ~AZHR +ZA=+-8 ~BZ1R TZA=1+-A
Name registration operation activities 2015 2014 Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct ~ Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct
EBRER —§-if  -F-pF
FARER i TEEEY HEER ABEtB tZA=1-H h-t:4 B E# iz ER B B 3
% % % % % % % %
(1) Beijing Capital Xinzi Real ~ Beijing, Beijing, Property RMBA R RMBAR 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Estate Ltd. (“Befjing the PRC the PRC Development 496,590,000 496,590,000
Xinz") and sales
FRESFAER b7y R EHERERHE
ARAAATR
[R#E])
) Beijing Shangboya Beijing, Beijing, Investment RMBAKY  RMBARH 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Investment Consultant the PRC the PRC Holding 30,000,000 30,000,000
Co., Ltd. (“Shangboya")
S REERREER SR SR REER
ARAF(ATE
(R
(3)  Beijing Shangbodi Beijing, Beijing, Investment RMBA R RMBAR™ 51 - 51 - 51 - 51 -
Investment Consultant ~ the PRC the PRC Holding 30,000,000 30,000,000
Co., Ltd. (“Shangbodi")
FREEERERR ERW R REEE
ARAR(ATE
(W)
(4 Tianjin Xinchuang Tianjin, Tianjin, Property USDETT USDET = 100 - 100 - 100 = 100
Land Ltd. ("Tianjin the PRC the PRC Development 25,000,000 25,000,000
Xinchuang”) and sales
RETHUEXARLA  REH REd EHERERHE
(5)  Chengdu Capital Chengdu,  Chengdu, Property USDET USDET - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Xinzi Real Estate the PRC the PRC Development 30,000,000 30,000,000
Development Ltd and sales

("Chengdu Xinzi")
ABEHEER 24:0il % FHERERHE
ARAAATRE

[R#E))
(6)  Jiangsu Capital Real Estate Wuxi, Wuxi, Property
Development Ltd. the PRC the PRC Development
(“Jiangsu Capital") and sales
IHERBRERAA BT BB EHERERHE
(TR II&ES)
(7)  Beijing Capital Land Chengdu, Chengdu,  Property
Chengdu Co., Ltd the PRC the PRC Development
("Capital Chengdu”) and sales
BEEERBERAR  AHT gl EHERERHE
(O 2%

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. INTERIM REPORT 2015

USDE 7T USDET 60 40 60 40 60 40 60 40
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51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-RFAA=TRIENEASE CRERIFERS - SRBLA/ARBETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND M. tEESHREHUHEHREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ()
STATEMENT (Continued)

. . T . INT N =
(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continued) (). EEFLQRERGE)
T . . 3 7 b u /8
3. Subsidiaries obtained through 3. BRUENMHEML RS
. - 3 NS (42
incorporation or by other means R NSNE
(Continued)
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
ERER KRARERELA EINGERS 4]
30 June 2015 31 December 2014 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
Place of ZE-1% —E3-mE —2-1% —3-mE
Place of ~ main Principal 30June 31 December ~E=Z1R +ZA=t+-A8 ~BZtR TZA=1+-A
Name registration operation activities 2015 2014 Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct ~ Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct

EBHER —%-5fF mE
FARER it TEEEY HEER ABEtA TZA=t-8 J-t:4 B E# 53 ER B B 3
% % % % % % % %
(8)  Chengdu Capital YiduReal Chengdu, ~ Chengdu,  Property USDETT USDET - 55 = 55 - 60 = 60
Estate Development the PRC the PRC Development 100,000,000 100,000,000
Co., Ltd. (“Chengdu and sales
Yidu")
RAEEBSER g 50 EHERZRHE
ARAR(ATHE
[a28))
(9)  Tianjin Capital Tianjin, Tianjin, Property USDET USDETT - 55 = 55 - 60 = 60
Xinyuan Real Estate the PRC the PRC Development 95,000,000 95,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. and sales

("Tianjin Xinyuan")

REEHHEER RED RET EHERSR#E

ARAAATHR
[X2HE])
(10)  Tianjin Capital Tianjin, Tianjin, Property USDETT USDET = 55 = 55 - 60 = 60
Xingang Real Estate the PRC the PRC Development 95,000,000 95,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. and sales

("Tianjin Xingang")

REEHFEER KA RET FHERERHE
ARAR(ATE
[REHE])

(1) Wuxi Xindong Real Estate ~ Wuxi, Wuxi, Property RMBARM RMBARE 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Development Co., Ltd. the PRC the PRC Development 100,000,000 100,000,000
("Wuxi Xindong") and sales
EREENRER &5 25 FHERERHE
ARAAATR
[EHHR))

(12)  Central Plaza Xinrong Beijing, Beijing, Hotel services and USDETE USDET 75 25 75 25 75 25 75 25
Hotel Management Co.,  the PRC the PRC Management 6,062,000 6,062,000
Ltd. ("Central Plaza
Xinrong”)
IRPREREEEE  SRD ERW BEgEaEE
ARAR(ATE
[HIRER])

(13)  Beijing Chuangxin Jianye ~ Beijing, Beijing, Investment Holding ~~ RMBARY™ ~ RMBAR™ 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Real Estate Investment ~ the PRC the PRC 50,000,000 50,000,000
Ltd. ("Chuangxin
Jianye")
LRETRENERE AR
ARAR(ATHE
[Ef2z])

b9z0 RAEE

sof
=t
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥R R B 5

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-—RFAA=TRIEANEASE RERIFERS - RBLAARBETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (Continued)

(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continued)

3. Subsidiaries obtained through

. BRSO RS BHRE

(&)

(1). EEFRARR(E)
3. BEBHENHMEAEWE

=] =3
incorporation or by other means AT
(Continued)
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
ZRER KRARERELA KATRARLE
30 June 2015 31 December 2014 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
Place of ZE-1% —2-MmE —%-1% —E3-mE
Place of ~ main Principal 30June 31 December ~AZHR +ZA=t+-A ~BZtR TZA=1+-A
Name registration operation activities 2015 2014 Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct ~ Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct
EBRER Z§-1f  CF-mF
FARER it TEEEY HEER AB=tB tZA=1-H i3 B E# iz & B B i3
% % % % % % % %
(14)  Jingjin Tongcheng (Tianjin) Tianjin, Tianjin, Property RMBA R RMBAR™ - 90 - 90 - 920 - 90
Investment Co., Ltd. the PRC the PRC Development 250,000,000 250,000,000
(“Jingjin Tongcheng") and sales
REER(RR)RE R R RHERE
ARAAATE
[RERR))
(15)  Outlets Property Beijing, Beijing, Property USDETT USDET = 100 = 100 - 100 = 100
Investment Fang Shan the PRC the PRC Development 127,000,000 127,000,000
Ltd and sales
FRESRERAEL  SHRG SR EHERERHE
EXERAT
(16)  Beijing Capital Beijing, Beijing, Property RMBAKY  RMBAR® - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Zhongbei Real Estate the PRC the PRC Development 100,000,000 100,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. and sales
FRESPLERRE  SRD SR EHERERHE
REBRAR
(17)  BECLInvestment Holding  HongKong ~ Hong Kong  Investment Holding USDETT USDET 100 - 100 = 100 - 100 =
Ltd. (“BECL") 9,900,000 9,900,000
BERERBERAR  BE Eh REER
(ATRIEERE])
(18)  Beijing Anshunyuan Real  Beijing, Beijing, Property RMBARM  RVBARH - 95 = 9% - 95 = 95
Estate Development the PRC the PRC Development 50,000,000 50,000,000
Co., Ltd. and sales
FRZREFHERE ARG R EHERERHE
ARAT
(19)  Zhengjiang Xianji Real ~ Zhenjiang,  Zhenjiang,  Property USDET USDETE = 100 - 100 - 100 = 100
Estate Development the PRC the PRC Development 40,000,000 40,000,000
Co., Ltd. and sales
RILEERERAR  BIT BIM EHERERHE
(20)  Zhejiang Shouxin Real Huzhou, Huzhou, Property USDET USDETT - 100 = 100 - 100 = 100
Estate Development the PRC the PRC Development 24,500,000 24,500,000
Co,, Ltd. and sales
WIEEEEERAA  WM® il FREREREE
(21)  Zhejiang Hualong Real ~ Huzhou, Huzhou, Property USDETT USDET - 100 = 100 - 100 = 100
Estate Development the PRC the PRC Development 67,000,000 67,000,000
Co., Ltd. and sales
MIZREXERAR  WNG A EHERERHE
(22)  Beijing Ruiyuanfengji Beijing, Beijing, Property RMBARM  RVBARH 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Real Estate the PRC the PRC Development 10,000,000 10,000,000
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Ruiyuanfengji”)
tRATEEEE SR SR FHERE
ARAF(ATHE
[Rre%])
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-RFAA=TRIENEASE CRERIFERS - SRBLA/ARBETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND M. tEESHREHUHEHREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ()
STATEMENT (Continued)

. . T . INT N =
(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continued) (). EEFLQRERGE)
T . . 3 7 b u /8
3. Subsidiaries obtained through 3. BRUENMHEML RS
. - 3 NS (42
incorporation or by other means R NSNE
(Continued)
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
ERER KRARERELA EINGERS 4]
30 June 2015 31 December 2014 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
Place of ZE-1% —E3-mE —2-1% —3-mE
Place of ~ main Principal 30June 31 December ~E=Z1R +ZA=t+-A8 ~BZtR TZA=1+-A
Name registration operation activities 2015 2014 Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct ~ Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct

EBHER —2-1% IS
FARER it TEEEY HEER ABEtA TZA=t-8 J-t:4 B E# 53 ER B B 3
% % % % % % % %
(23)  Capital Tianshun Real Beijing, Beijing, Property RMBAR%  RMBARK - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Estate Development the PRC the PRC Development 100,000,000 100,000,000
Co., Ltd.
BERBARRERE LR R FHERE
ARAR
(24)  Nanjing Ningchun Real ~ Nanjing, Nanjing, Infrastructure N/A RMBAR N/A N/A - 100 N/A N/A - 100
Estate Development the PRC the PRC Investment @@ 100000000 FER  TEA TER TER
Co., Ltd.(“Nanjing
Ningchun”) (i)
BREZARRNRE @AM FRM ERRORE
ARAR(ATHE
[BREE )
(25)  Hainan Outlets Real Estate  Wanning, Wanning, Property USDET USDETT - 55 - 55 - 55 - 55
Development Co., Ltd. the PRC the PRC Development 14,000,000 14,000,000
BRAREREREHERE B%0 EED FHERE
ARAA
(26)  Jiangyin Yuyue Real Estate ~Jiangyin, Jiangyin, Property USDETT USDET - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Development Co., Ltd. the PRC the PRC Development 49,000,000 49,000,000

IEBHERERAR  IRF IRH FHERS

(27)  Qingdao Xinli Weiye Real ~ Qingdao, Qingdao, Property RMBARH RMBAR - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Estate Development the PRC the PRC Development 90,000,000 90,000,000
Co, Ltd. and sales
FBRUBEFHERE 7B Gl FRERSREE
ARAA
(28)  Capital Guoxin Asset Beijing, Beijing, Asset Management ~ RMBAR RMBAR 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Management Co., Ltd the PRC the PRC 100,000,000 100,000,000

("Capital Guoxin")
HEIRREEER R ERW BEER

ARAR(ATE
[B8IER])
(29)  Capital Qinglv Real Estate  Kunshan, ~ Kunshan, ~ Property RMBAR%  RMBARE N/A N/A - 51 N/A N/A - 51
(Kunshan) Co., Ltd. the PRC the PRC Development 300,000,000 300,000,000 7FER FER TER TER
(“Capital Qinglv") (i) and sales
EEERER(RL) Bl Bl EHERSRHE
ARAAATR
[BRIBHR i)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥R R B 5

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-—RFAA=TRIEANEASE RERIFERS - RBLAARBETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (Continued)

(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continued)

3. Subsidiaries obtained through

. BRSO RS BHRE

(&)

(1). EEFRARR(E)
3. BEBHENHMEAEWE

= /4
incorporation or by other means AT
(Continued)

Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
ZRER KRARERELA KATRARLE
30 June 2015 31 December 2014 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
Place of —g-1f —2-MmE —%-1% —E3-mE
Place of ~ main Principal 30June 31 December ~AZHR +ZA=t+-A ~BZtR TZA=1+-A
Name registration operation activities 2015 2014 Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct ~ Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct
EBHER Z§-1f  CF-mF
FARER it TEEEY HEER AB=tB tZA=1-H i3 B E# iz & B B i3
% % % % % % % %
(30)  Hainan Outlets Tourism ~ Wanning, ~ Wanning, Development, USDETT USDET = 55 = 5% = 55 = 55
Development Co., the PRC the PRC construction 9,000,000 9,000,000
Ltd. ("Hainan Outlets and property
Tourism”) management
BRRERERERE %0 EED HRRRHENY
ARAF(ATHE E43
[BERRER])
(31)  Capital Outlets Kunshan, Kunshan, ~ Property RMBA R RMBAR - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
(Kunshan) Real Estate the PRC the PRC Development 300,000,000 300,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. and sales
HERR(RL)ER B Bl FREREREE
ARAA
(32)  Shenyang Capital Xinyun ~ Shenyang, ~ Shenyang,  Property RMBA R RMBAR - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate Co., Ltd. the PRC the PRC Development 20,000,000 20,000,000
and sales
BHRAINEEE #hm il FREREREE
ARAA
(33)  Datang Weiye Holdings ~ France France Real Estate EUREITE EURBATC - 100 = 100 - 100 = 100
(France) Co., Ltd. Business 25,000,000 25,000,000
EEAREERE ] %8 HWEEHRER
ARAA
(34)  Hainan Capital Outlets ~ Wanning, ~ Wanning, ~ Property RMBAKY  RMBARH - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate Co., Ltd. the PRC the PRC Development 20,000,000 20,000,000
and sales
BHEAIRRER EEfm EED EHERERHE
ARAA
(35)  Beijing Jinrui Wealth Beijing, Beijing, Investment RMBAKY  RMBARH - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Investment the PRC the PRC Holding 50,000,000 50,000,000
Management Co., Ltd
FREGHEREER  SRH SR REER
ARAA
(36)  Capital Dongxing Kunshan, ~ Kunshan, ~Property RMBAKY  RMBARH - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
(Kunshan) Real Estate the PRC the PRC Development 300,000,000 300,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. and sales
EERR(BL)ERE B Bl EHERERHE
REERAR
(37)  Tianjin Tongcheng Real  Tianjin, Tianjin, Property RMBAKY  RMBAR® - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Estate Co., Ltd. the PRC the PRC Development 50,000,000 50,000,000
and sales
REFHEZERAR  REH REH EHERERHE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-RFAA=TRIENEASE CRERIFERS - SRBLA/ARBETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND M. tEESHREHUHEHREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ()
STATEMENT (Continued)

. . T . INT N =
(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continued) (). EEFLQRERGE)
T . . 3 7 b u /8
3. Subsidiaries obtained through 3. BRUENMHEML RS
. - 3 NS (42
incorporation or by other means R NSNE
(Continued)
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
ERER KRARERELA EINGERS 4]
30 June 2015 31 December 2014 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
Place of ZE-1% —E3-mE —2-1% —3-mE
Place of ~ main Principal 30June 31 December ~E=Z1R +ZA=t+-A8 ~BZtR TZA=1+-A
Name registration operation activities 2015 2014 Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct ~ Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct

EHRER —%-5fF mE
FARER it TEEEY HEER ABEtB tZA=1-H J-t:4 B E# 53 ER B B 3
% % % % % % % %
(38)  Bejing Zhongzhi Beijing, Beijing, Investment RMBARY  RVBARH 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Dingfu Real Estate the PRC the PRC Holding 100,000,000 100,000,000
Co., Ltd. (“Beijing
Zhongzhidingfu”)
FRRERERUE SR SR REER
RRERAF(ATE
[tRRESRE])
(39)  Beijing Tiancheng Yongtai  Beijing, Beijing, Property RMBARH RMBAR - 68.5 - 685 - 60 - 60
Real Estate Co., Ltd. the PRC the PRC Development 2,246,290,000  2,246,290,000
("Tiancheng Yongtai") and sales
FRREKFER R ERW FRERSREE
ARAFATE
[RIA%])
(40)  Beijing Tiancheng Beijing, Beijing, Property RVBARY  RVMBARH - 50 = 50 - 60 = 60
Yongyuan Real Estate the PRC the PRC Development 1,997,109,000 1,997,109,000
Co., Ltd. (“Tiancheng and sales
Yongyuan")

IFRBATREER  ART R FHERSRHE
ARAT(ATE

[Rfik])
(41)  Tianjin Xingtai Jixing Real ~ Tianjin, Tianjin, Property RMBARH RMBAR - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Estate Co,, Ltd. the PRC the PRC Development 50,000,000 50,000,000
RERRERER REM REM FHERE
ARAA
(42)  Qingdao Guoxin Yicheng  Qingdao, Qingdao, Investment Holding ~ RMBAR™ RMBAK - 100 = 100 - 100 = 100
Investment Co., Ltd the PRC the PRC 10,000,000 10,000,000
(*Qingdao Guoxin
Yicheng”)
FBAGZARE il Gl REER
AT
[EEERSM])
(43)  Beijing Chuangrui Xiangan  Beijing, Beijing, Property RVBARY  RVMBARH - 100 - 100 - 100 = 100
Real Estate Co., Ltd. the PRC the PRC Development 30,000,000 30,000,000
and sales
FREGRZER R R EHERERHE
ARAR
(44)  Shanghai Songchaung ~ Shanghai, ~ Shanghai,  Property RMBAR®  RMBARE - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate Co., Ltd. (iv)  the PRC the PRC Development 50,000,000 50,000,000

LERAEXARAR  LEM Ligm FHERS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥R R B 5

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-—RFAA=TRIEANEASE RERIFERS - RBLAARBETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (Continued)

(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continued)

3. Subsidiaries obtained through

. BRSO RS BHRE

(&)

(1). EEFRARR(E)
3. BEBHENHMEAEWE

incorporation or by other means R NSNE
(Continued)
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
ZRER KRARERELA KATRARLE
30 June 2015 31 December 2014 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
Place of —g-1f —2-MmE —%-1% —E3-mE
Place of ~ main Principal 30June 31 December ~AZHR +ZA=+-8 ~BZtR TZA=1+-A
Name registration operation activities 2015 2014 Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct ~ Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct
EBHER —g-1% —E3-mE
FARER it TEEEY HEER AB=tB tZA=1-H i3 B E# iz & B B i3
% % % % % % % %
(45) Specific Assets Beijing, Beijing, Investment Holding ~~ RMBARM  RMBAR™ 9 - 9 - TER - ER =
Management Plan the PRC the PRC 2,200,000,000  2,200,000,000
for Capital Lize
Project Beijing of
Minsheng Royal Asset
Management Co., Ltd
(the "Specific Asset
Management Plan”) (iv)
REMBEERAEE  dRD R REEE
EEEVA -3 hE |
(TR [2REE
s ))w)
(46)  Beijing Yikaiyou Real Beijing, Beijing, Property RMBAKY  RMBAR® - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Estate Co., Ltd. the PRC the PRC Development 20,000,000 20,000,000
IRENEEXARLAA  SHRT R FHERE
(47)  Shanghai Capital Shanghai, ~ Shanghai, Property RMBA R RMBAR 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Zhengheng Real Estate  the PRC the PRC Development 10,000,000 10,000,000
Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai
Zhengheng")
LEESIERER L L FHERE
ARAAATRILE
Ef))
(48)  Beijing Guijamao Real Beijing, Beijing, Property RMBAKY  RMBARH - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Estate Co., Ltd. the PRC the PRC Development 50,000,000 30,000,000
FREEKEXARLA SHRT R FHERE
(49)  Tianjin Xingtai Jihong Real ~ Tianjin, Tianjin, Property RMBA R RMBAR - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Estate Co., Ltd. the PRC the PRC Development 30,000,000 30,000,000
RERZERER REM REM FHERE
ARAA
(50)  Beijing Lianchuang Beijing, Beijing, Property RMBAKY  RMBARH - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Shengye Real Estate the PRC the PRC Development 10,000,000 10,000,000
Development Co.,
Ltd. ("Lianchuang
Shengye”)
FRBERRRNE R R FHERE
FRERLAUATR
[Bgls%))
(51)  Chengdu Capital Chengdu,  Chengdu,  Property RMBAKY  RMBARH - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Zhenghua Real Estate the PRC the PRC Development 30,000,000 30,000,000
Co., Ltd. and sales
("Chengdu Zhenghua")
EEL e g RET FREREREE
ARAR(ATE
[RBEZ])
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-RFAA=TRIENEASE CRERIFERS - SRBLA/ARBETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (Continued)

(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continued)

3. Subsidiaries obtained through

M. BEREHREOIHRE

(&)

(1). EEFRARR(E)
3. BEBHENHMLAEWE

incorporation or by other means AT
(Continued)
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
ERER KRARERELA EINGERS 4]
30 June 2015 31 December 2014 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
Place of —2-1f —2-MmE —%-1% —3-mE
Place of ~ main Principal 30June 31 December ~E=Z1R TZA=+-8 ~BZtA TZA=1+-A
Name registration operation activities 2015 2014 Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct ~ Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct
EBHER —2-1% IS
FARER it TEEEY HEER ABEtB tZA=1-H J-t:4 B E# 53 ER B B 3
% % % % % % % %
(52)  Shanghai Capital Shoujia ~ Shanghai, ~ Shanghai, Property RMBAR®  RMBARE  N/A N/A - 100 N/A N/A - 100
Real Estate Co., Ltd. the PRC the PRC Development 100,000,000 50000000 FER FEA T#ER FER
(“Shanghai Shoujia”) (i) and sales
LEERBRERAR L&D L EHERERHE
(ITHR [ L&) i)
(53)  Beijing Chuangrui Hua'an  Beijing, Beijing, Property RMBARY  RVMBARH - 100 - 100 - 100 = 100
Real Estate Co., Ltd. the PRC the PRC Development 30,000,000 30,000,000
IREGEZER R R FRERSREE
ARAA
(54)  Lehui Shenghuo (Beijing) ~ Beijing, Beijing, Client Service RMBARH RMBAR 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Technology Service the PRC the PRC and property 5,000,000 5,000,000
Co., Ltd. ("Lehui management
Shenghuo”)
SREE(LROMRERR  SRT R FFRBRE
ARAAATR 3
[#E5E])
(55)  Beijing Xujia Real Estate  Beijing, Beijing, Property RMBAE® N/A - 100 N/A N/A - 100 N/A N/A
Development Co., the PRC the PRC Development 50,000,000 TR TER  TER TEE  TER
Ltd. (v) and sales
FREREZERAR () SHRT SR EHERERHE
(56)  Tianjin Xingtai Tianjin, Tianjin, Property RMBAR% /A - 100 NA NA - 100 /A NA
Jisheng Real Estate the PRC the PRC Development 50,000,000 TER @R TER TER  TER
Development Co., and sales
Ltd. (v)
RERREHES REM REM EHERZRHE
ARRT W)
(57)  Tianjin Hongtai Weiye Real Tianjin, Tianjin, Property RMBAEM N/A - 100 N/A N/A - 100 N/A N/A
Estate Development the PRC the PRC Development 30,000,000 TaR TER  TER TEE  TER
Co., Ltd. (v) and sales
RELREERUE REM REM EHERERHE
FRERLA ()
(58)  Shanghai Shouging Real  Shanghai, ~ Shanghai, ~Property RMBARH N/A = 100 N/A N/A = 100 N/A N/A
Estate Development the PRC the PRC Development 50,000,000 Byl TER  TER TEE  TER
Co., Ltd. (v) and sales
LEEEERXERAAY LW L EHERZRHE
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-—RFAA=TRIENEARE RERIFERSN -

ERBEL/ARETIT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (Continued)

(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continued)

. BRSO RS BHRE

(&)

(1). EZEFRABERE)

PORT . . 358 7 > v =]
3. Subsidiaries obtained through 3. BBHENEMLIAME
. : NS (&
incorporation or by other means KT 2= (&
(Continued)
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
ZRER KRARERELA KRARAELA
30 June 2015 31 December 2014 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
Place of —B-%f —2-MmE —B-E%§ k- S
Place of main Principal 30June 31 December ~A=TA T=A=1-H ~AZTA TZA=1+-A
Name registration operation activities 2015 2014 Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct ~ Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct
EBHER Z§-1f  CF-mF
FARER it TEEEY HEER ABEtA tZA=t-B EE B E# iz & B B i3
% % % % % % % %
(59)  Shanghai Shoupu Real Shanghai, ~ Shanghai, Property RMBA R N/A - 100 N/A NA - 100 N/A N/A
Estate Development the PRC the PRC Development 50,000,000 TR @R TER TER  Em
Co., Ltd. (v) and sales
LEERERERAAY) LET L EHERERHE
(60)  Beijing Tianzhiying Real  Beijing, Beijing, Property RMBA K N/A - 100 N/A N/A - 100 N/A N/A
Estate Development the PRC the PRC Development 50,000,000 TR TR TER TER  NER
Co., Ltd. (v) and sales
FRRBREYE ERW SR FREREREE
ARAR)
(61)  Beijing Jinyifeng Real Estate ~ Beijing, Beijing, Property RMBA R N/A - 100 N/A N/A - 100 N/A N/A
Development Co,, Ltd. (i) the PRC the PRC Development 50,000,000 TR TER @R TER  NER
and sales
IREEEELARD () HRT SR FREREREE
(i)  Nanjing Ningchun cancelled registration () EREEZLRIEITH
after the approval of State Administration EIB R EEL -
for Industry and Commerce of the People’s
Republic of China.
(i) The Group held 51% equity interest of (i) ZAEBRSEEAISIK

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. INTERIM REPORT 2015

Capital Qinglv, and originally a subsidiary
of the Group. During the period, the Group
reached an agreement with the other
shareholder of Capital Qinglv to exercise
significant decision-making jointly. Upon
the completion of amending the article of
association, Capital Qinglv became a joint
venture of the Group (Note 4(3)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RFANA=TBEENEAMSE BRERIFEHAD -

ERBEN/ARETIT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (Continued)

(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continued)

3.

Subsidiaries obtained through
incorporation or by other means
(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

As at 30 June 2015, a third party company
was introduced into Shanghai Shoujia
through capital increase and share
expansion. After the completion of capital
increase and share expansion, the Group
holds 60% equity interest of Shanghai
Shoujia. According to the Articles of
company, Shanghai Shoujia is controlled
by the Group together with the third party,
therefore it is no longer consolidated (Note
4(3)).

The Group holds 9% equity interest in
the Specific Asset Management Plan as
the secondary priority investor. Based on
the Agreement of the Plan, the Group
shares or undertakes the majority of
income or risk of the plan, therefore the
Group has control over the Specific Asset
Management Plan. The Group doesn’t have
the obligation and intention to provide
financial support to this Specific Asset
Management Plan.

These companies were newly set up by the
Group in this period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % SRk MY 5E
For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-—RFAA=TRIEANEASE RERIFERS - RBLAARBETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND . XSGR E I BHRE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (4&)
STATEMENT (Continued)
(2). Subsidiaries with significant minority (2). EE%EQ\%B&iEﬁMﬁE@
interests FAFH
1. Non-controlling interests from common 1. %E&Bﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁi
equity interests ROBBRESNTAF
Dividends
Non- to Non-
controlling  controlling Accumulative
interest for  interest for Non-
Non- the six months the six months  controlling
controlling ended ended interest as at
shareholding 30 June 2015 30 June 2015 30 June 2015
Bz 8z

—E-1& —B-RE
AA=THLE KA=tHLE CZE-IF
~MEAHE  AEAHE  <SA=tH
SERER HBERLE  BOEHERE E-5 08
ERoLs  RERNEZ  SENRA RERER

Tianjin Xinyuan REFE 45% (2,473) - 336,312
Tianjin Xingang REHH 45% (6,498) - 201,798
Chengdu Yidu X EREE 2D 45% (5,237) = 496,820
Tiancheng Yongtai KoK ZE 31.5% 13,441 = 849,743
Tiancheng Yongyuan RKTT 50% 263,332 - 1,257,227
Total aar 262,565 - 3,141,900
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND M. £EEHRE I BHRE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (&)
STATEMENT (Continued)
(2). Subsidiaries with significant minority Q). FEERIBRRERN
interests (Continued) FRE(4E)
1. Non-controlling interests from common 1. %EH&H&*EEE{%T?EE
equity interests (Continued) %ﬁ%}ﬁﬂﬂﬁi*&f&ﬂ’ﬂ%'&ﬁ
V=4
a. The financial information of a. LtHFAREHTE
subsidiaries above in this period MBER

Financial information as at 30 June 2015
ZE-RENBSTREEMRR
Current  Non-current Total Current  Non-current Total
assets assets assets liabilities liabilities liabilities

REEE FADEE  EESH  RERE FABRE  AfReH

Tianjin Xinyuan REHE 929,235 2,051 931,286 183,926 - 183,92
Tianjin Xingang R 1,543,503 118 1543621 1,095,182 - 1,095,182
Chengdu Yidu KA 1,360,388 3939 1364327 260,282 - 260,282
Tiancheng Yongtai KBk 2,841,370 579,891 3,421,261 12698 1,014,437 1,141,423
Tiancheng Yongyuan KT 17790 2906566 292435 234200 175703 409,903

Financial information as at 31 December 2014
“E-MET-AZ+-BEBRR
Current ~ Non-current Total Current  Non-current Total
assets assets assets liabilities liabilities liabilities
RHEE FRBEE  EESE  NBAE  HiBAE  AREA:

TanjnXinyuan ~ REHE 91,870 01 9T 189216 - 189206
TanjnXingang ~ Ri2iA 2,706,029 15 2706174 2103294 140000 2,439
Chengdu Yidu HBES 1,560,277 90 1,560,367 444 685 - 444,685
Tiancheng Yongtai Kk 1,919,800 481,512 2,401,312 164,143 - 164,143
Tiancheng Yongyuan K3k 6,892 2088565  2,095457 107,667 - 107,667
The financial information above is amounts LlifE 8 R EEE
before inter-group elimination. NERZXZHIE S °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% AR B o

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-—RFAA=TRIEANEASE RERIFERS - RBLAARBETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND M. XS0 RE I BRE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (i&)
STATEMENT (Continued)
(2). Subsidiaries with significant minority Q). FEERIBRRERN
interests (Continued) TR (4E)
1.  Non-controlling interests from common 1. %}EH&B&EE@{?@EE
equity interests (Continued) %ﬁg%ﬂﬁi%ﬁﬂ@%ﬂﬁ
=
a. The financial information of a. t?ﬁ?ﬁﬂfﬁﬂi?
subsidiaries above in this period PSR ()
(Continued)

Operating results for the six months ended 30 June 2015
BECE-IEAA-TRALAERHEEENS

Total Cash flow

Total Net comprehensive from operating

Revenue (loss)/profit (loss)/profit  (loss)/income activities

(E8)/ BB/ GE(EE)/ ey

EXUA Gt Gl WEREEH ReRE

Tianjin Xinyuan REE - (7.328) (5,49) (5,49) 2,200
Tianjin Xingang ~ Kizik 673,768 (14,441) (14,481) (14,481) 87,944
Chengdu Yidu &S 126,139 (15,515) (11,637) (11,637) (9.932)
Tiancheng Yongtai KA - 56,892 42,669 42,669 (42,254)
Tiancheng Yongyuan  RIKTT - 702,217 526,663 526,663 10,822

Operating results for the six months ended 30 June 2014
BE-E-MERA-HALAERSRALNS

Total Cash flows
Total Net  comprehensive  from operating
Revenue profit/(loss) profitf(loss) ~ income/(loss) activities

fE/ e/ sakE/ T
RN (BR)ER (B8) (BR)&% Reng

Tamjn Xinyuan K258 6,46 13,829 10,119 10,19 (135.987)
TaninXingang K24 393,157 (13.239) (9,926) (9,928) (671,286)
Chengdu Yidu A 991,985 115,253 86,440 86,440 (13,233)
Tiancheng Yongtai KA - (532) (399) (399) (43.273)
Tiancheng Yongyuan KA = (2,359) (1,769) (1,769) (37,660)
The financial information above is amounts LilifE B R EEE
before inter-group elimination. NEZZ S BN S RE ©

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. INTERIM REPORT 2015 124
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND . &ES0RE I BRE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (1&)
STATEMENT (Continued)
(2). Subsidiaries with significant minority Q). FEERIBRRERN
interests (Continued) FRE(4E)
1. Non-controlling interests from common 1. @%EH&H&EE@%@EE
equity interests (Continued) %ﬁ%}ﬁﬂﬂﬁi%f&ﬂ’ﬂ%ﬁﬁ
=
b. The cash flow information of b. LHFAREHEE
subsidiaries above in this period RERBER

Cash Flow for the six months ended 30 June 2015
BEE-RENA=TRLAERSREEHE

Cash and cash
Cash flows Cash flows from Cash flows  equivalentsat  Cash and cash
from operating investment  from financing  beginning of  equivalents at
activities activities activities the period end of the period

L ) R&ZED 8E%D  BOReR  HARER
ki RERE RERE RESENHE RESENHE

Tianjin Xinyuan KEH 2,270 (97) 11,025 16,665 29,863
Tamjn Xingang ~ Ri2ih 87,94 - (1648180) 1613337 53,101
ChengduYidu  FiEH (9.932) - - 77,959 68,07
Tiancheng Yongtai  KHik%E (42,254) @ 53,316 4,125 15,785
Tiancheng Yongyuan  RIKTT 10,822 (18) 38 6,708 17,550

Cash Flow for the six months ended 30 June 2014
HE_S-WEXA=THIEANERSRR RS

Cash and cash
Cash flows Cash flows Cash flows ~ equivalentsat ~ Cash and cash
from operating ~ from investment ~ from financing beginning of  equivalents at
activities activities activities the period end of the period

fRek  HRRER
2y R&ED 8879  Na3EM 0 ReSEY

Reing Reig Reig ] it

Tianjin Xinyuan RENE (135,987) - - 144,063 8,076
Tianjin Xingang R (671,286) - (3,788,199) 4911,788 452,303
Chengdu Yidu AEES (13.233) - (42,861) 102,147 46,053
Tiancheng Yongtai Kk (43273) (64) - 50,646 7309
Tiancheng Yongyuan KKt (37,660) - - 44,834 7174
The financial information above is amounts s B A EEE
before inter-group elimination. WX S HINEEE °
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=TELENEAME REREAN  2BEMRARETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION A
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (Continued)

ND

(2). Subsidiaries with significant minority

interests (Continued)

2. Issued equity instruments of the Group

. BRSO RS BHRE

(&)

(2). FEEELHRRERN

FRF (&)
2. AEERTHERZRIA
Attributed
to Non-
controlling Dividends
interest for distributed for

the six months
ended 30 June

the six months
ended 30 June

Non-controlling
interest as at

2015 2015 30 June 2015
Bz Bz
—E-1F —E-1F
AA=tHLE RA=FHLE
M8 A HE ~ME A HE “E-1%¥
BERVY mLERR AAZt+A
BRRHOES ARORA  SHRRER
Senior perpetual securities FREETRR
issued by subsidiary (a) KXEEH Q) 120,586 170,455 4,962,843
Minsheng Jiayin Assets REMREE
Management Plan (b) BEREIb) 42,573 42,573 2,879,025
Tiandi Fangzhong Assets Rt AR EEE
Management Plan (c) EHE (o] - = 1,076,400
Total &t 163,159 213,028 8,918,268
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B AR R

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (Continued)

(2). Subsidiaries with significant minority
interests (Continued)

2. Issued equity instruments of the Group
(Continued)

(a)

As of 30 June 2015, Central Plaza
accumulately issued Senior Perpetual
Securities amounted to USD850,000,000.
The securities were guaranteed by certain
subsidiaries of the Group including
IFC. Pursuant to the terms of Perpetual
Securities, the Group has no contractual
obligation to repay its principal or to pay
any distribution so that the Perpetual
Securities do not meet the definition of
financial liabilities and are classified as
non-controlling interests of the Group
in the consolidated level. The dividends
declared will be treated as profit
distribution to equity owners.

Central Plaza as the issuer may elect to
defer distribution without any frequency
[imitation, the investments can be
recognized as dividends to equity owners
only if Central Plaza or the Company
announce or pay dividend. Including:
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=TELENEAME REREAN  2BEMRARETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND . XSGR E I BHRE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (&)
STATEMENT (Continued)
(2). Subsidiaries with significant minority (2). FEEZLBRRERN
interests (Continued) FRFE (&)
2. Issued equity instruments of the Group 2. FAEERTHEZIA
(Continued) (&)
(@) (Continued) (@ (#&)
In April 2013, Central Plaza issued R-E—=FMA -
USD400,000,000 (equivalent to Central Plaza % 17T
RMB2,506,000,000) Senior Perpetual {& 18 /2 400,000,000
Securities at a distribution rate of 8.375% XL AEARE
per annum. According to the terms 2,506,000,000 7T Y
of Perpetual Securities, the amount of BROKBEES - F
non-controlling interests amounted to M &/ 8375%
RMB2,333,945,000 was recognized after MERAEEMA R
deducting the inevitable dividend payable 8RR KA Al i R
in the foreseeable future. BDAE R
HRAERARE
2,333,945,0007T
In November 2014, Central Plaza RZT—MHF+—
issued USD450,000,000 (equivalent to H + Central Plaza
RMB2,759,625,000) Perpetual Securities R IR P H R iR KoK
under the Medium Term Note and BREFTE - B
Perpetual Securities Programme at a 7 450,000,000 &
distribution rate of 7.125% per annum. T BEARE
After deducting the issuance costs, the 2,759,625,000 JT #J
Group received RMB2,728,222,000 and mABOKBEES - F
recognized non-controlling interests M & 7.125% - 1
amounted to RMB2,628,898,000 net of BREBEERRKRKD
the inevitable dividend payable in the EeMEARE
foreseeable future. 2,728,222,000 JT -
HFR AT T8 R AR KA AT
RN DLIE - R
LERRERARE

2,628,898,0007T °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B AR R

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (Continued)

(2). Subsidiaries with significant minority
interests (Continued)

2. Issued equity instruments of the Group
(Continued)

(b)

As of 30 June 2015, Minsheng Jiayin Royal
Asset Management Co.,Ltd (hereinafter
“Minsheng Jiayin")established Specific
Assets Management Plans which raised
a total amount of RMB 3,230,000,000.
According to the terms of Investment
Agreements, the raised funds are subject
to no fixed repayment terms. Unless
the Company or its assigned subsidiary
announces dividend, the Group may elect
to defer the distribution without any
frequency limitations.

According to the terms of Investment
Agreement, the Group has no contracted
obligation to pay the principal or interests
to other investors under the Specific
Assets Management Plans, therefore
the investment from the specific capital
management plan complied with the
definition of equity instrument and
were recognized as non-controlling
interest in the consolidated level. The
dividends declared will be treated as profit
distribution to equity owners, including:
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=TELENEAME REREAN  2BEMRARETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (Continued)

(2). Subsidiaries with significant minority
interests (Continued)

2. Issued equity instruments of the Group
(Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

In June 2014, Minsheng Jiayin Fortune
Project raised a total amount of
RMB1,500,000,000. According to the
terms of Investment Agreement, non-
controlling interests amounted to
RMB1,335,000,000 was recognized after
deducting the inevitable dividend payable
in the foreseeable future.

In December 2014, Minsheng Jiayin
Chengdu Project raised a total amount of
RMB650,000,000. According to the terms
of Investment Agreement, non-controlling
interests amounted to RMB580,125,000
was recognized after deducting the
inevitable dividend payable in the
foreseeable future.

In January 2015, Minsheng Jiayin
Tianjin Project raised a total amount
of RMB1,080,000,000. According to
the terms of Investment Agreement,
non-controlling interests amounted to
RMB963,900,000 was recognized after
deducting the inevitable dividend payable
in the foreseeable future.
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B AR R

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (Continued)

(2). Subsidiaries with significant minority
interests (Continued)

2. Issued equity instruments of the Group
(Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

In December 2013, Minsheng Jiayin
established a Specific Assets Management
Plan and raised a total amount of RMB
2,200,000,000. Since the Specific Assets
Management Plan is set up by its subsidiary
as a special entity for financing needs, it
is consolidated into the Group. In addition
to the subordinated units subscribed
for by the Company, the capital raised
amounting to RMB 2,010,000,000 was
recognized as non-controlling interest in
consolidation. In March 2015, the Group
issued a prepayment announcement to
redeem the principal of the Specific Assets
Management Plan on 20 December 2015,
since the Group had inevitable payment
obligations pursuant to the Investment
Agreement, it did not meet the definition
of equity instrument any more, the Specific
Assets Management Plan was classified as
current portion of non-current liabilities
(Note 5(26)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥R R B 5

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=TELENEAME REREAN  2BEMRARETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (Continued)

(2). Subsidiaries with significant minority
interests (Continued)

2. Issued equity instruments of the Group
(Continued)

(©

As of 30 June 2015, Beijing Tiandi
Fangzhong Asset Management Co.,
Ltd. (hereinafter “Tiandi Fangzhong”)
established Specific Assets Management
Plans which raised a total amount of
RMB1,200,000,000. According to the
terms of Investment Agreements, the
raised funds are subject to no fixed
repayment terms. Unless the Company
or its assigned subsidiary announces
dividend, the Group may elect to defer
the distribution without any frequency
limitations.

According to the terms of Investment
Agreement, the Group has no contracted
obligation to pay the principal or interests
to other investors under the Specific
Assets Management Plans, therefore
the investment from the specific capital
management plan complied with the
definition of equity instrument and
were recognized as non-controlling
interest in the consolidated level. The
dividends declared will be treated as profit
distribution to equity owners.

In January 2015, Tiandi Fangzhong
Fangshan Project raised a total amount
of RMB1,200,000,000. According to
the terms of Investment Agreement,
non-controlling interests amounted to
RMB1,076,400,000 was recognized after
deducting the inevitable dividend payable
in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B AR R

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND

M. BRSO RETTHHRE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (#&)
STATEMENT (Continued)
(3). Loss of control caused by disposal of (3). HEREE BTG Kk 5 4I#
equity interests in subsidiaries ML F 25
1. Nwd 1. iEERT
The Group originally held 100% equity interests RNEEREB S A K
in NWCI through Beijing Capital Juda, which BEHAHELITI100% K
was incorporated in Xiamen, the PRC, and the W HEIERR P E
principal activities are chemicals production and ARKFMBEEMN™T =2
sales. In January 2015, the Group disposed of its ¥ AT RRENH
entire equity interests in NWCI to a third party. E-R-_ZT—HF—H -
AEE#FAENEELET
NERREERGE=
NS
() The proceeds and cash flows from the () EEEREESARS
disposal are as follows: BRI
Amount
8
Proceeds from disposal BEER 143,574
Less: Cash received in JB - ARTFEE KBRS
previous years (143,574)
Cash received from disposal REWEINIR® =
Less: Cash held by NWCI B HEEIRHAENR MRS
ZEY (61,051)
Net cash received from disposal & EWHIRIR & F58 (61,051)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-—RFAA=TRIEANEASE RERIFERS - RBLAARBETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND . XS0t RESEIEIRE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (#)
STATEMENT (Continued)
(3). Loss of control caused by disposal of (3). HERREEFE LT HI#E
equity interests in subsidiaries (Continued) M2 F 28] (4F)
1. NWCI (Continued) 1. tERIEE)
(i)  Net assets of NWCI disposed are as follows: (i) BEMECTAFEE

EHIRIE

31 December

Disposal date 2014

—E-NE

EEH +=A=+-—H

Current assets MENEE 119,646 119,646
Non-current assets IERBNEE 73,097 73,097
Current liabilities mEEE (46,088) (46,088)
Non-current liabilities IEREHEE (3,081) (3,081)
Net assets EEE 143,574 143,574
(i) The revenue, expense and loss of NWClI Giiy tEEIR=-ZF—F
for the period from 1 January 2015 to the F—H—HZRER
disposal date are as follows: BUA - BRMES

R

Amount

S8

Revenue A -
Less: Cost and Expenses - AFE A =
Total loss E5 18 A RE -
Less: Income tax expenses B FTiSTE B =
Net loss FEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (Continued)

(3). Loss of control caused by disposal of

equity interests in subsidiaries (Continued)

NWCI (Continued)

(iv) Loss on disposal is calculated as follows:

M. BRSO RETTHHRE

(3). HEREE T KZH
MR F Q7 ()

HECT (&
(iv) BREBEZAENT :

Amount
+8
Proceeds from disposal BREEE 143,574
Less: Net assets of NWCl at the &/ - tHE(L T REE B FEEE
disposal date (143,574)
Investment income generated BEEANKRERZ
from disposal =
Shanghai Capital Shoujia Real Estate Co., EEEE
Ltd. (Shanghai Shoujia)
Shanghai Shoujia was originally a wholly owned FEERERARAEEE

subsidiary held by the Group, in May 2015, the
Group and Cifi Group (China)(hereinafter “Cifi")
entered a cooperative development agreement
to increase capital in Shanghai Shoujia, and
the capital increased by the Group amounted
to RMB10,000,000. After the transaction, the
Group and Cifi hold 60% and 40% equity
interests in Shanghai Shoujia respectively.
According to the new incorporate articles, major
business decisions of Shanghai Shoujia require
an unanimous agreement on both sides of the
board. Therefore the Group has no control over
Shanghai Shoujia and it is classified as a joint
venture of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% AR B o

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-—RFAA=TRIEANEASE RERIFERS - RBLAARBETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND M. XS0 RE I BRE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (#&)
STATEMENT (Continued)
(3). Loss of control caused by disposal of (3). HERREEFE LT HI#E
equity interests in subsidiaries (Continued) M2 F 28] (4F)
2. Shanghai Shoujia (Continued) 2. LtBERGA)
()  The proceeds and cash flows from the () REEWREASRE
disposal are as follows: BRI :
Amount
]
Proceeds from disposal R BB 19,840
Cash received from disposal BREWRIMNIR S =
Less: Cash held by B EEERFANREN
Shanghai Shoujia REEEY (15,707)
Net cash received from disposal & U E|8IIH & F5E 4,133
(i) Net assets of Shanghai Shoujia disposed (il BEELBERHFE
are as follows: BRI ¢

31 December

Disposal date 2014
—E—mF
BEEH +=ZH=+-—H
Current assets REEE 1,468,067 1,395,762
Non-current assets SEREEE 43 30
Current liabilities mEBE (528,302) (465,789)
Non-current liabilities EREBBEE (880,000) (880,000)
Net assets HEE 59,808 50,003
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-RFAA=TRIENEASE CRERIFERS - SRBLA/ARBETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND M. XSRS HIERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (#&)
STATEMENT (Continued)
(3). Loss of control caused by disposal of (3). HERREEFE LiEHI#E
equity interests in subsidiaries (Continued) i F 28] (4F)
2. Shanghai Shoujia (Continued) 2. LBEER(E)
(i) The revenue, cost and loss of Shanghai iy EEEE-"Z—H
Shoujia for the period from 1 January 2015 F—H—HZEEHR
to the disposal date are as follows: WA - BERMNEE
LU
Amount
|
Revenue WA -
Less: Cost and Expenses JB - KAAFIE (195)
Total Loss [gicEek (195)
Less: Income tax expenses & TS E A -
Net Loss FEE (195)
(iv) Gains on disposal is calculated as follows: (iv) BREEDmTENT :
Amount
Xt
Cash received from disposal EEWIRIRE 19,840
Fair value of net assets at RERAFEENAAEE
the disposal date (note 5(10)) (F¥sEF(10)) 60,635
Less: Book value of equity B REARENREEEB
interest on disposal day (59,808)

Investment income generated REEEMNKE RS
from disposal 20,667
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% AR B o

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-—RFAA=TRIEANEASE RERIFERS - RBLAARBETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (Continued)

(3). Loss of control caused by disposal of
equity interests in subsidiaries (Continued)

3.

Capital Qinglv

The Group originally held 51% equity interest of
Capital Qinglv. In June 2015, the Group reached
an agreement with the other shareholder of
Capital Qinglv to exercise significant decision-
making jointly. After the completion of
amending the article of association, major
business decisions of Capital Qinglv require
a unanimous agreement on both sides of the
board. Therefore the Group has no control
over Capital Qinglv and it is classified as a joint
venture of the Group.

(i) The proceeds and cash flows from the
disposal are as follows:

. BRSO RS BHRE

(3). HEREE T KZH

s F 28 (&)

&)

BHAIE K

BEIBIRR AAEBERK
51% M F R 7 o A&
—hFANA - AEEHEEG
ERER W - HERE
BRIBIRMEAREK - &
BE8EE BRFIKZE
AEEEARAETFERE — I
BB ANEBETHEHE
BRIBIREMEIES - HEl
BRKAREB 2EER
ﬁ} °

(i) REEWREHAZRE
FITREAR

Amount
&5
Proceeds from disposal REEK -
Cash received from disposal & & W HIHE & -

Less: Cash held by B BEIBIRBAENE S
Capital Qinglv MBS ZEY (105,205)

Net cash received from EERVHIES F5

disposal (105,205)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-RFAA=TRIENEASE CRERIFERS - SRBLA/ARBETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND M. eESHREHTFRK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (#)
STATEMENT (Continued)
(3). Loss of control caused by disposal of (3). HERREE T LITHIRE
equity interests in subsidiaries (Continued) i F 28] (4F)
3. Capital Qinglv (Continued) 3. BHRIBEKRGE)
(i) Net assets of Capital Qinglv disposed are as iy REHBIFTKRANFE
follows: EHIRIT ¢

31 December

Disposal date 2014

—E-mEF

BREH +=-H=+-—H

Current assets MENEE 998,346 1,007,252
Non-current assets ERENEE 79 113
Current liabilities mENAE (644,104) (546,374)
Non-current liabilities ERHEE = (120,000)

Net assets HEE 354,321 340,991
(iliy The revenue, expense and loss of Capital (i) BAFKKE=_Z2—H
Qinglv for the period from 1 January 2015 F—H—HZEER
to the disposal date are as follows: BIUA - B R AF]

wmR

Amount

&5

Revenue WA 286,623
Less: Cost and Expenses - BRATNE A (234,183)
Total Loss bRk 52,440
Less: Income tax expenses & © FTi5Fi & A (13,110)
Net Loss el pE! 39,330
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=TELENEAME REREAN  2BEMRARETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (Continued)

(3). Loss of control caused by disposal of

M. EXEHREHFTBRE
(#)

(3). HERES TR AEFME

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. INTERIM REPORT 2015

equity interests in subsidiaries (Continued)
3. Capital Qinglv (Continued)

(iv) Gain on disposal is calculated as follows:

MmE2>F 28 (&)
3. BRIBER(E)
(iv) BREBZEWOT :

Amount
X
Fair value at the disposal day BB H51% HEIBRKFEEN AR EBE 232,946
Less: Book value of 51% J - BEE RS %REREEE
equity interest at the
disposal day (180,704)
Investment income generated R E E AR E IS
from disposal 52,242

(4). Transaction with non-controlling (4). RFRRAIBRREZN
shareholders RZ
Xi‘an Xinkai [kl
In 2014, the Group has signed the equity transfer R_T—MF - %’iléﬁiﬁéﬂ
agreement with Beijing Capital Juda, to whom the ERRFREERT = - HE

100% share of Xi‘an Xinkai will be transferred. The
collection method of share transfer consideration
is to subscribe 738,130,482 new share of CPS of
Beijing Capital Juda by one of the Group’s wholly
owned subsidiaries for the price of HKD2.66 per
share. The precedent conditions of both the equity
transferred agreement of Xi‘an Xinkai and the CPS
agreement of Beijing Capital Juda subscribing by the
Company has been reached in January 2015. The
Group has completed the disposal agreement and
CPS subscribing.

After the transaction, the fair value of the net
assets of Beijing Capital Juda increased by
RMB1,774,549,000, the equity interests held by
the Group increased from 65.1% to 92.56%. The
recalculated non-controlling interests increased by
RMB93,689,000 and the capital surplus decreased
by the same amount. In addition, expenses directly
related to the transaction write down capital surplus
by RMB31,662,000.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1). Cash at bank and on hand

f. ST B HmKRIEAE M

(1). EWES

30 June 31 December

2015 2014

—E—HF —F—pF

ANA=+H +=-A=+—H

Cash on hand EFES 957 1,490
Bank deposits RITER 12,610,467 13,761,295
Other cash balances HinEEE S 47,998 134,241
Total &t 12,659,422 13,897,026

As at 30 June 2015, bank deposits includes supervised
advance from customers, security deposits for certain
mortgage loans to customers, certain loan and
bond interests amounted to RMB2,114,669,000 (31
December 2014: RMB3,064,686,000). The Group
has reclassified the above amount to restricted
bank deposits. Including: as at 30 June 2015,
the carrying amount of supervised advance from
customers was RMB514,467,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB478,360,000). According to the requirements
of some local authorities (such as Beijing, Tianjin
etc.) in the PRC, real estate developers need to open
supervised bank account when applying for pre-
sale permit for new commercial property. All the
advances received from property customers should
be transferred to such account. Which are supervised
by regulator and all cash payment from such account
should coincide with the construction progress in
order to ensure the cash being used for property
construction on a priority basis. As at 30 June 2015,
the carrying amount of security deposits for bond
interests was RMB79,367,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB154,934,000). As at 30 June 2015, the secreted
deposits for loan is amounted to RMB1,460,283,000
(31 December 2014: RMB2,375,663,000).

141

R—ZZE—RF~A=+H"
BT ERFBEARE
2,114,669,000 ot ( — & — [T
F+-_A=+—H: AR¥
3,064,686,000 7T ) Hy 8 & B5
EEe FTFEBERRSE
t EXERRESRESF
ERES2  AEEBEDLE
EXRES - HpP  r-RZE
—HRESNA=+H "  x&£H
FEEEEEEEES AR
¥ 514,467,000 7T ( =& — Y
F+-_A=+—H: AR¥
478,360,000 7T ) 1R & K BE
HouE (it = - KiEEH)
HHEERBEEMNEEESS
EETIENRTE - MARE S
EHRFEEEFIBERARLE
EEcEERF  BREEE
EsrH T A \EREEEES
EEEAKRF  MEZERE
TREEHRFEAXEETE
¢ EEESBAELARART
BER -RN_ZT—HFENA
=+H AEBEEREBEEA
R #79,367,000C ( —Z & — I
F+_A=Z+—H: AR¥
154,934,000 7t ) A & % F &
MNREBEETER RZTE—RHF
ANAE=Z1+H - A&EEEREHEE
AR #1,460,283,000c( ==&
—mFE+-_A=+—8: AR
#2,375,663,0007T ) A E ZUK
BRES o

BRIBEROGAERAT T —HFFHRE
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=TELENEAME REREAN  2BEMRARETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED f.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(1). Cash at bank and on hand (Continued)

As at 30 June 2015, other cash balances amounted
to RMB47,998,000 are deposit for bank acceptance
bill (31 December 2014: RMB134,241,000). The
Group has classified such amount to restricted bank
deposits.

(2). Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

&Pt E TS Rk 18 B MY EE ()

(1).

(2).

ERES(#)

R-ZZE—RFAAA=+H H
fth & ¥ & & AR ¥ 47,998,000
T(ZE—WmMF+=-_A=+—
H: AR#¥134,241,0007T) &
RITEAALEZREBFESER ' A

SEREDBEERRES -

UAREEFTEBEEESH
SFABHIESENEREE

30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—E-HE —E-HF
~NA=tH +=-A=+—H

Beijing Urban Construction b G ER 3R EE KD
Design & Development BRAF(ATE

Group Co., Ltd. bR ERET 1))
("BUCDD") (a)
— Listed company in — & ETMAF
Hong Kong 291,927 162,863
Total =X 291,927 162,863

(@ As at 30 June 2015, the carrying value of
investment held by the Group in BUCDD
was RMB 291,927,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB162,863,000), the Group held 56,222,000
shares of BUCDD, accounting for 3.59% of the
total issued common stock.

The trading equity instruments are securities listed on
HKEx and the fair value is determined by the closing
price on the last trading day.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-RFAA=TRIENEASE CRERIFERS - SRBLA/ARBETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(3). Accounts receivable and other receivables

(a) Accounts receivable

F. SOt SRR IE B MR #)

(3). FE U BR R e H i FE WL K
(a) FEWHR

30 June 31 December

2015 2014

—F-1fF —F—MF

ANA=+H +=-A=+—H

Accounts receivable JFE W BR K 711,011 953,333
Less: provision for JB - SEBREE

doubtful debts (7,000) (7,000)

Accounts receivable — net  E%xE 704,011 946,333

Most sales of the Group are in the form of cash
or advanced payment. Other sales are collected
subject to the agreed terms on sales contract.

The aging of accounts receivable is analyzed as

ZRER R ER D $5 E IA X
Be - Al E T
17 EBRHERESH
HITE B BRI AT R AR o

Ji& U R 3R B B i 0 AT a0

follows: T
30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—Z2-HF —T-mEF
ANA=+H +=-A=+—H
Within 1 year —FE AR 110,014 671,505
1 to 2 years —B| =4 592,729 273,438
2 to 3 years —B=F 251 129
Over 3 years =FE 8,017 8,261
Total At 711,011 953,333
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-—RFAA=TRIEANEASE RERIFERS - RBLAARBETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F. OB ERIRIE B ek (#)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(3). Accounts receivable and other receivables
(Continued)

(a) Accounts receivable (Continued)

As at 30 June 2015, accounts receivable
amounted to RMB 591,615,000 (31 December
2014: RMB261,621,000) is overdue but not
impaired. Accounts receivable amounted to
RMB7,000,000 (31 December 2014: RMB
7,000,000) is overdue and fully impaired at the
amount of RMB 7,000,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB 7,000,000).

The accounts receivable classified by their
categories are analyzed as follows:

(3). BUWARFR R H B R (48)

(a) EWERR(F)

RZE—HAFENA=T
B @®EEXRZELERE
BAXWNEBEARAARK
591,615,0007T ( =& — Y
F+-_A=+—H: AR
#261,621,0007T) * #H
BB B AR EE K EU
FXIE A R % 7,000,000 7T
—E-UFE+—A=+—
H : A K ¥ 7,000,000
T0)  HEREBLXEEAS
AR #7,000,000T (==
—mF+=-—A=+—H":
AR#7,000,0007T) °

JE Y B 3K #2587l 93 A 40
B

30 June 2015 31 December 2014

ZE-1ERAZTH “E-mETZA=1-H

Provision Provision
% of total for Doubtful % of the for Doubtful % of the
Amount  balance Debts provision  Amount % of total Debts ~ provision
o (REEEE  RREE  HREA SF (bl SREE AR
% % % %
Significant individual amount  EZESEEK 636,859 90 - - 733,004 77 - -
Others i 74,152 10 (7,000) 9 220329 3 (7,000) 3
Total At m,om 100 (7,000) 1 95333 100 (7,000) 1
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HEZ

5.

T-RFNA=THIENEADRRE (REHIERN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED f.

ERBEN/ARETIT)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(3). Accounts receivable and other receivables

SOt AR R E B M5 @)

(3). EWERR R HMERR (&

(Continued)
(a) Accounts receivable (Continued) (a) FEURBRFR (&)
The accounts receivable classified by their JE U BR SRR 3R Rl o AT 1A
categories are analyzed as follows: N
30 June 31 December
2015 2014
s —TmF
Client category ZEER ~NA=+H +=-A=+—H
Primary land development (i) 35255 E () 636,859 733,004
Property sales BHEHEREEF 22,526 192,470
Others Hph 51,626 27,859
Total a5t 711,011 953,333
(i)  The amount is due from Land Reserve (i) &K f&}%ﬁq\&%ﬁm
Centers of Tianjin arising from primary land ii"ﬂ IEEF"L\ =
RASEEXET T

development cooperated by the Group and
Land Reserve Centers of Tianjin in Wuging

HEEIR R A 1
RIS B — IR R

District. !
—RRAEEEESE -
(b) Other receivables (b) HEWRK
30 June 31 December
2015 2014
i —F—mH
ANA=+H +=-A=+—H
Receivables due from Joint fEULE & A RIE R
ventures (note 8(5)(d)) (B aE\(5)(d)) 552,591 23,999
Receivables due from JFE LA Bt i X B 1 PR K
Associates (note 8(5)(d)) (MFEEA(G)(d)) 37,438 84,827
Land deposit and other THRIRREB R KR
guarantee deposits HiirES 1,394,525 528,473
Receivables from primary ﬁﬂ&*i&if@?ﬂ?ﬁﬂ\()
land development (i) 355,921 9,752
Consideration receivables ¥/ A& e sE s =%
from disposal of
subsidiaries 21,298 21,298
Consideration receivable JE Wi B 5 N B
from disposal of an Hyﬁé EEN
Associate 17,511 17,511
Other Hi 980,821 651,338
Total aat 3,360,105 1,337,198
Less: Provisions for B EERYEME
doubtful debts (41,791) (41,791)
Other receivables — net R 3,318,314 1,295,407
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE-Z-AFAASHALAEANN (B3R - SEERBARETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(3). Accounts receivable and other receivables

f. SOtEB®wKRIAR M)

(3). BUWARFR R H B R (48)

(Continued)
(b) Other receivables (Continued) (b) HutpEWzk(#&)

() The receivables from primary land (y FEU— A% £ 3 B
development are receivables from Land KA £ B e UL
Reserve Centers of Beijing amounted to ez R S
RMB355,921,000 (31 December 2014: L ERIE AR B
RMB9,752,000). 355,921,000 7t ( —

T-—mWE+=H
=+—H8: ARK
9,752,0007T) °
Analysis of other receivables and related H b Uk 2k K 4B FE R SR BR
provisions for doubtful debts are as follows: REFESTWT -
30 June 2015 31 December 2014
“E-15~A=1R Z3-RETZA=T-H
Provision
% of total for Doubtful % of the % of total % of the
Amount  halance Debts provision  Amount  balance  Provision  provision
S8 (AL BERE  GREA SF (FAEHG  SREE RS
% % % %
Within 1 year —ER 2,779,521 83 - - 796,936 60 - -
1102 years —5=F 405,380 12 - - 365,842 27 - -
2 t0 3 years Zi=F 96,986 3 - - 41,374 3 - -
Over 3 years =FENE 78,218 2 (41,791) 53 133,046 10 (41,791) 31
Totl At 3360105 100 (41,791) 11337,19% 100 (@41791) 3
Analysis of other receivables categories are as H & W SRR 28 Rl 93 A 4n
follows: 5 ¢
30 June 2015 31 December 2014
“E-REXNBZTH “F-M5+-A=1-H
Provision

% of total for Doubtful % of the % of total % of the
Amount  balance Debts provision ~ Amount  halance  Provision  provision
SF Enh  RERE  REH ©F (RAENh  SREE AR
% % % %

Significant individual EBLEEA
amount 2,450,680 73 - - 778910 58 - -
Others Hig 909,425 27 (41,791) 5 558288 42 (41,791) 7
Total Ait 3360005 100 (41,791) 1133718 100 (41,791 3
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-RFAA=TRIENEASE CRERIFERS - SRBLA/ARBETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED h. Aot RakE B Mt @)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(4). Advances to suppliers (4). ERRIE
The advances to suppliers are analyzed as follows: RZE—RFAA=+H"#&
NFIBEINAOT :
30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—E—FE —E—E
AA=tH +Z-A=+—H
Prepaid sales commissions ~ TEfTt4EM S 134,564 101,692
Advances to suppliers for FERT R - TR
land, construction costs PEEIEEN
and project costs 128,707 129,018
Total CEl 263,271 230,710
The aging analysis of the advances to suppliers is as TANBRFIRERE DT T -
follows:

As at 30 June 2015 As at 31 December 2014
“E-FEEXNAZtE —E-ME+-A=+—H

% of total % of total

Amount balance Amount balance

8  HAELA &8 HEERL

% %

Within 1 year —F A 210,447 80 205,545 89

Over 1 year —FAE 52,824 20 25,165 11

Total A 263,271 100 230,710 100

(5). Dividends receivable (5). FEYARFI

31 December 30 June

2014 Additions  Reductions 2015

e bifa3 “E-EF

+-A ~A

=t+—-H REEM  AERES =tH

BUCDD bR R E - 3,728 - 3,728

Capital Qinglv R - 13,260 - 13,260
Tianjin Xinming Real Estate Co., KEHEIFHEEERAF

Ltd. ( “Tianjin Xinming" ) (AT R [ X239 ) 9,825 — - 9,825

Total aer 9,825 16,988 - 26,813
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE-Z-AFAASHALAEANN (B3R - SEERBARETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED I. &0tB B ERRIE B Mt )
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(6). Inventories (6). ®E
(@) Inventories are classified as follows: (@) TFEEMT :
As at 30 June 2015 As at 31 December 2014
“E-1FRAZ1A ZE-mE+ZR=1-A
Book  Provision Book Book Provisions Book
balance for inventory value balance ~ for inventory value

REGE FRKEEG RERE @ FESS GREEER  RERE

Properties under REKE

development 50,484,440 (39,239) 50,445,201 42,376,968 (258,855) 42,118,113
Properties held for sale  EIRER 6,458,929 (193,730) 6,265,199 6,481,797 (49,539) 6,432,258
Land under development FZm 13 326,432 - 326,432 211,392 - 211,392
Low value consumables  EESHER 9,083 - 9,083 6,349 - 6,349
Total e 57,278,884 (232,969) 57,045,915 49,076,506 (308,394) 48,768,112

(b) The movement of inventories is as follows: (b) HFEFRMHBRBEANHEED
M
31 December 30 June
2014 Additions  Reductions 2015
—T-F —E-hF
+=A ~A
=+—-H ARHRSE A KERAD =+H
Cost A
Properties under FEA
development 42,376,968 14,946,395 (6,838,923) 50,484,440

Properties held for sale FEEm 6,481,797 4,495,697  (4,518,565) 6,458,929

Land under development A 1 211,392 115,040 - 326,432

Low value consumables EES#Em 6,349 2,734 = 9,083
Total At 49,076,506 19,559,866 (11,357,488) 57,278,884
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(6). Inventories (Continued)

() Analysis of provisions of inventories is as

F. SOt SRR IE B MR #)

(6). FE (&

(0 HFEREEFEITIOT :

follows:
31 December 30 June
2014 Additions  Reductions 2015
—E-mF “E-1f%
+=A NA
=t—-A REEM  AHES =18
Properties under development %A% 258,855 38,475  (258,091) 39,239
Properties held for sale FEEm 49,539 313,059  (168,868) 193,730
Total Bt 308,394 351,534 (426,959) 232,969

For the six months ended 30 June 2015, the
properties held for sale with the carrying amount of
RMB4,349,697,000 (for the six months ended 30 June
2014: RMB3,092,808,000) has been recognized as
cost of sales.

As at 30 June 2015, the financed costs capitalized
in the properties under development amounted
to RMB3,300,904,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB3,013,171,000). For the six months ended 30
June 2015, the capitalization rate is 7.6% (for the six
months ended 30 June 2014: 7.5%).

As at 30 June 2015, certain land use rights and
buildings in properties under development of the
Group with a carrying amount of RMB653,888,000
(31 December 2014: RMB473,270,000) have been
mortgaged as security for short-term borrowings
of RMB400,000,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB497,900,000) (note 5(19)(c)).
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E-E—RFNA=THIE
NEAHRE  AEBER AR
AR #4,349,697,000 T (B &
—E—FENRA=FHIENE
A - AR%3,092,808,000
TT) °

RZZE—RFANA=+HHH
BAT -  BEEREBRAER
b & % AR % 3,300,904,000
T(ZE—HmE+=—_A=+—
H: AR ¥ 3,013,171,000
T) BHE-_ZT—RFNA
=+ 81N EABEEAREE
B716%(BHE-_ZT—MNF/A
=+HIENERAEME :7.5%) °

R-ZE—RAFNA=+H K
SERBERATEERmMER
A A R ¥ 653,888,000 7T ( =
T-—ME+-_/F=+—8 :
473,270,000 7t ) Hy £ i {F
EMNEERZEMELKT -
BSEHRITERERARE
400,000,000 7t ( = & — U &
+=HA=+—H8 :497,900,000
70) (BIEF(19)()) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=TELENEAME REREAN  2BEMRARETT)

5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(6). Inventories (Continued)

As at 30 June 2015, certain land use rights in
properties and buildings in properties under
development of the Group with a carrying amount
of RMB863,130,000 (31 December 2014: Nil) have
been mortgaged as security for short-term trust
mortgage of RMB400,000,000 (31 December 2014:
Nil) and pledged by the Group’s usufruct of property
development (note 5(19)(f)).

As at 30 June 2015, certain land use rights in
properties under development of the Group
with a carrying amount of RMB850,000,000 (31
December 2014: RMB850,000,000) have been
mortgaged as security for short-term borrowings
of RMB400,000,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB400,000,000) and pledged by security deposits
amounted to RMB200,000,000 (note 5(19)(f)).

As at 30 June 2015, certain land use rights in
properties under development of the Group with
a carrying amount of RMB2,226,239,000 (31
December 2014: RMB2,001,237,000) have been
mortgaged as security for short-term borrowings
of RMB900,000,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB900,000,000) and pledged by equity interest of
the Group and guaranteed by the Company (note
5(19)(g)).
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F. SOt SRR IE B M #)

(6). #E (&)

RZE—HFNA=+H &
SERBERNATERMERS
A R #863,130,0007T ( = &
—mWE+-—A=1+—H: #)K
THFEREMNEEEREWIES
| AEEREMEREIEAES
WamEER  EEHRITE
& 3 A KR ¥ 400,000,000 7T
(ZE—WFE+—_A=+—8:
) (MFsER(19)(F)) °

R-ZE—FHFA=+H" K
SERERATBERAERBAR
A R # 850,000,000 7T ( = &
—mE+—A=+—8: AR
#850,000,0007T ) #) 1 (& A
EEEEEEYEAER - A
K # 200,000,000 T 1R & & 1E
AER DB EHRTERA
R #400,000,0007T( =ZZ— M
F+_A=Z+—HH: AR
400,000,000 7T ) (K &= (19)
(f)) °

R-_ZE—RAFESNA=Z+H ' K
SERBEXNATERMERS
A R #2,226,239,000 7T ( =
T—NFE+_A=+—8: A
R ¥ 2,001,237,000 7t ) &) +
H{E ARERER  ANEBRK
BEAGH  ARQAIRHEER
BMEBEHEFETEFEERAR
¥ 900,000,000t (=& — @M
F+-_RF=+—H: AR%
900,000,000 7t ) ( B 5= F (19)
(g) °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_F

5.

—BFENASHEIEAEASE (BRENEPBN  SEEHAARETT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(6). Inventories (Continued)

As at 30 June 2015, certain buildings in properties
held for sale of the Group with a carrying
amount of RMB623,935,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB968,902,000) have been mortgaged as security
for long-term borrowings of RMB385,000,000 (31
December 2014: RMB521,900,000) (note 5(28)(c)).

As at 30 June 2015, certain land use rights in
properties under development of the Group with
a carrying amount of RMB8,820,184,000 (31
December 2014: RMB3,835,991,000) have been
mortgaged as security for long-term borrowings
of RMB3,148,200,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB968,300,000) (note 5(28)(c)).

As at 30 June 2015, certain land use right and
buildings in properties under development with
a carrying amount of RMB2,227,430,000 (31
December 2014: RMB1,264,801,000) have been
mortgaged as security for long-term borrowings
of RMB1,150,200,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB1,463,502,000) (note 5(28)(c)).
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BRIEXROGEMRAT —

h. SOtEB®mKRIAR M)

(6). FE (&

R-E—HFNA=+H K&
CSERBERTEFAEES
A R # 623,935,000 ¢ ( = &
—mE+_A=+—8: AR
#968,902,00070 ) = E E £
PR BL RTINS RBPERA
R #385,000 00071(_ — g
F+-_A=+—H: AR%
521,900,000 7T ) ( B 5 7 (28)
(Q) °

R-ZE—HFA=+H" K
SERERATBERAERBR
AR #8,820,184,000T (==&
—mE+_A=Z+—8: AR
#3,835,991,000 7T ) B + Hb (&
AR MG IRITIE REE R
AR #3,148,200,000T ( =&
—mHE+-_A=+—8: AR
#968,300,0007T ) (B 5F 7 (28)
() °

R—ZE—FRFA~AA=FA8H"
AEBREXRKATFEREE
B A& AR ¥ 2227,430,000
T(ZE—NmF+=-_A=+—
H : 1,264,801,000 7t ) ¥y £
HERAEREEZEYEMN
KIBTHBRBERARK
1,150,200,000 7Tt ( — & — M
F+-_A=Z+—8: AR¥
1,463,502,0007T ) (B 5 F(28)
(Q) °

—RERHHRE
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=TELENEAME REREAN  2BEMRARETT)

5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(6). Inventories (Continued)

As at 30 June 2015, certain land use rights in
properties under development with a carrying
amount of RMB4,753,555,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB4,247,508,000) have been mortgaged as security
for long-term borrowings of RMB2,923,310,000 (31
December 2014: RMB2,167,860,000) and guaranteed
by the Company (note 5(28)(d)).

As at 30 June 2015, certain buildings in properties
under development with a carrying amount
of RMB947,623,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB756,513,000) have been mortgaged as security
for long-term borrowings of RMB437,000,000 (31
December 2014: RMB457,000,000) and guaranteed
by the Company (note 5(28)(d)).

As at 30 June 2015, certain land use rights and
buildings in properties under development with
a carrying amount of RMB4,955,973,000 (31
December 2014: RMB3,717,374,000) have been
mortgaged as security for long-term borrowings
of RMB4,130,500,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB3,182,100,000) and guaranteed by the
Group(note 5(28)(d)).
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F. SOt SRR IE B M #)

(6). FE (&

RZE—HFNA=+H &
SERBERNATERMERS
AR #4,753,555,0007C (=&
—mHE+_A=+—8: AR
#4,247,508,0007T ) #Y + i (F
AEERAERITIYBAARRA
FARREERINEG KRG
AR #2 923,310,000t ( =&
—mE+_A=+—8: AR
#2,167,860,000 7T ) (Fff 5 &
(28)(d)) °

RZE—RAFNA=Z+H &
SERENATEERAERBS
A R #947,623,000 7T (= &
—mE+_A=+—8: AR
#756,513,0007T ) K= E 2 £
YRR GIRITE R AR A AT
NAREERRERBERA
R #437,000,0007T( =& — M
F+_A=Z+—H: AR
457,000,000 7t ) ( M &% F (28)
(d)) °

R-_ZE—RAFSNA=Z+H XK
SERBEXNATERMEES
A R # 4,955,973,000 7T ( —
E-ME+-_A=+—0: A
R #3,717,374,000 7t ) &9 +
HERAEEREEZEEY RS
HKIBTETARARAAE TR
REERIMESRBERARE
4,130,500,000 7t ( = ZF — I
F+-_RF=+—H: AR¥
3,182,100,0007z ) (B 5E F(28)
(d)) °
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(6). Inventories (Continued)

As at 30 June 2015, certain land use rights in
properties under development with a carrying
amount of RMB289,905,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB328,555,000) have been mortgaged as security
for long-term borrowings of RMB88,000,000 (31
December 2014: RMB98,000,000) and guaranteed by
the Company (note 5(28)(d)).

As at 30 June 2015, certain land use rights and
buildings in properties under development with
a carrying amount of RMB272,814,000 (31
December 2014: RMB272,814,000) have been
mortgaged as security for long-term borrowings
of RMB260,000,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB310,000,000) and guaranteed by the Group
(note 5(28)(d)).

As at 30 June 2015, certain land use rights in
properties under development with a carrying
amount of RMB1,056,357,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB1,056,357,000) have been mortgaged as security
for long-term borrowings of RMB1,220,000,000 (31
December 2014: RMB1,220,000,000) and guaranteed
by Capital Group (note 5(28)(d)).

153

h. SOtEB®mKRIAR M)

(6). FE (&

W-ZE—RFESNA=1+H K
SERBEXNATEFERERS
A R # 289,905,000 7T ( = &
—mE+=-/A=+—H8: AR
¥ 328,555,000 7T ) Hy + #b {F
AEEKBEETIRAEE
AFARREERINGRBARE
A K #88,000,000T (=&
—MmE+=—A=+—H8: AR
# 98,000,000 7T ) ( M 5 F(28)
(d)) °

R-_ZE—RAFNA=Z+H K
SERBERATEEREEER
B AR 272,814,000 7T (=
Z—NMFE+_-_A=+—H:
AR #272,814,0007T ) &9 +
ERAEEREEZEEY RS
KIBTTHRAEEAARRQ A
REERDIESRPBERIAR
¥ 260,000,000 T (=& — @M
F+-_RF=+—H: AR%
310,000,000 7T ) ( M 5F F (28)
(d)) °

R-E—RFENA=F+H K
SERENATERAEBES
AR #1,056,357,000T (==
—mHE+—_A=+—8: AE
#1,056,357,000 7T ) Ay £ 3 &
RAERKRGRTIYHA S EE
BT RRRHEERRSERBE
FKAR#1,220,000,0007T (=
E-ME+_A=+—8: A
R #1,220,000,0007T) (M3
(28)(d)) °
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=TELENEAME REREAN  2BEMRARETT)

5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(6). Inventories (Continued)

As at 30 June 2015, certain land use right in
properties under development with a carrying
amount of RMB237,378,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB583,427,000) and corresponding income
rights have been pledged as security for long-term
borrowings of RMB160,000,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB540,000,000) and guaranteed by the Company
(note 5(28)(f)).

As at 30 June 2015, certain land use right in
properties under development with a carrying amount
of RMB900,000,000 (31 December 2014: Nil) and
equity of the Group have been pledged as security
for long-term borrowings of RMB600,000,000 (31
December 2014: Nil) and guaranteed by the Company
(note 5(28)(f)).
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F. SOt SRR IE B M #)

(6). #E (&)

RZE—HFNA=+H &
SERBERNATERMERS
A R # 237,378,000 ¢ (= &
—mE+_A=+—8: AR
# 583,427,000 7T ) Ky + #b {F
RAEER  BEKk=#EEH
HKIRTT  YHARABTA
AIIREHERIMERBERAR
¥ 160,000,000 T (=& — M
F+-_A=1+—8: AR
540,000,000 7t ) ( Bff 5 F (28)
(f)) °

R-ZE—RFNA=Z+H &
SEREXRNATERMERS
A K # 900,000,000 ¢ ( = &
—ME+—A=+—8 : &)&
T b fE R NEERE
ERER  YHARRABTA
AIIREHERIMERBERAR
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(6). Inventories (Continued)

As at 30 June 2015, certain land use rights and
buildings in properties under development with a
carrying amount of RMB1,417,627,000 (31 December
2014: RMB1,254,328,000) and equity of the
Group have been pledged as security for long-term
payables of RMB650,000,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB650,000,000) and guaranteed by the Company
(note 5(30)(a)).

Analysis of land use rights of inventories by region

F. SOt SRR IE B MR #)

(6). #E (&)

R-E—HFNA=+H K&
SERBERNATERMERS
A R #1,417,627,000 7T ( =
Z—NmNE+=-_HA=+—8":
1,254,328,000) #y £ b {F 5 #
MEEEEWER  AEER
BEBEH  YHARAE A
FRAIREERIEGREEN
;A R ¥ 650,000,000 7T ( =
Z—WNE+=-_HA=+—8":
650,000,000)(FI5EFL(30)(a)) °

TP ot i A R AR AE

and age are as follows: BRERIFAT :

30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—2-H5F —T-mF
ANA=+H +=ZA=+—8H

Mainland LA B A
10-50 years 10—50%F 8,848,429 9,291,336
Above 50 years S50 A b 26,310,942 18,359,858
Total SEr 35,159,371 27,651,194
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% AR B o

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RFNA=TBELENEAMSE (BRI -

ERBEL/ARETIT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

F. SOt SRR IE B M #)

(7). Assets classified as held for sale (7). B ABEEFTENEE
30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—E-HF —Z-lEF
ANB=+H +=-—A=+—8H
Cash at bank and on BEEE(a)
hand (a) - 61,051
Advances to suppliers (a) TEfTRR K (a) - 5,330
Other receivables (a) H h FE R (a) - 3,566
Inventories (a) & a) - 44,725
Fixed assets (a) & 7E & 7 (a) - 43,937
Intangible assets (a) L E(a) = 9,242
Accounts receivable (a) & U BR FX(a) = 4,975
Long-term equity REAREIRE (b)
investments (b) 9,921 9,921
Long-term deferred REBAGFEZER )
expenses (a) - 18,500
Other non-current assets (a) HAIERBNE E(a) - 1,417
Total Xl 9,921 202,664
(a) In December 2014, the Group entered into an (@) M—ZZE—WF+=—F &
agreement to dispose 100% equity interests of EEglE AEEES
NWCI held by the Group to a third party. The =HRRIRFEE R
transaction hasn’t been completed by the end BRERNEERANEEL
of 31 December 2014. The assets above met the Iz HprRE BE-T
definition of held for sale and were listed on the —NE+=ZA=+—8 "
balance sheet separately. The transaction was RSHMARTTHK - Ll i1
completed in January 2015 (note 4(3)). HENTRARIRNEER
ERAEFERY  BEE
BEXRPEFIR K=
T—HFE—H #ZXHE
SR (MIFEE(=)) o
(b) The Group entered into an equity transfer by X"EERFAENEEK

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. INTERIM REPORT 2015

agreement on 10% share of Hainan
Dalecheng Real Estate Development Holding
Ltd. (hereinafter “Hainan Dalecheng”) with
consideration of RMB20,000,000 (note 5(25)).
As such transaction has not been completed by
the end of 30 June 2015, the Group classified
the book value of RMB9,921,000 as held for sale
assets.
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#20,000,0007T (it 3
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RIEEE  HEEER
BEARK¥9,921,0007T
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-RFAA=TRIENEASE CRERIFERS - SRBLA/ARBETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(8). Other current assets

F. SOt SRR IE B MR #)

(8). v RBEE

30 June 31 December

2015 2014

—E-hHF —T—MF

~NA=+H +=-A=+—H

Prepaid taxes TEEME 2,148,273 1,819,354
Others Hih 8,573 4,395
Total BE 2,156,846 1,823,749

(9). Available-for-sale financial assets

(9). IRHEESHEE

30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—E-RF —T—F
~NA=+H +=-A=+—H
Available-for-sale equity nHEHERSFTA
instruments
— At fair value (a) —URARBEREQ) 21,828 13,420
Available-for-sale equity AEHEERTA
instruments
— At cost (b) — AR AET £ (b) 70,000 50,000
Less: Impairment provision & : J5i{E %S - -
Less: Available-for-sale & PR EM R EEER
financial assets AEHESmEE
included in other
current assets = -
Total &&f 91,828 63,420
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% AR B o

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-—RFAA=TRIEANEASE RERIFERS - RBLAARBETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(9). Available-for-sale financial assets

(Continued)

(a) Available-for-sale financial assets measured

at fair value

f. SOtEB®wKRIAR M)

(9).

AHHESREE#E

(a)

—2-4f

30 June

UAREFENATAHEE
TREE

31 December
2014
—E-HFE

2015

ANA=tR +Z-HA=1+—H

Listed equity instruments AR T A
—in Mainland China —HE R

21,828 13,420

As at 30 June 2015, the carrying amount of the
investment in Yangguang Xinye Real Estate Co.,
Ltd. (hereinafter “Yangguang Xinye”), a listed
company in mainland China, is RMB21,828,000
(31 December 2014: RMB13,420,000).
Yangguang Xinye was registered in Nanning, the
PRC and engaged in real estate development,
leasing of private owned merchandise housing
and related advisory services. The ordinary
share of Yangguang Xinye held by the Group is
amounted to 2,652,210, accounting for 0.36%

of the total ordinary shares issued.
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R—_E—RFXNA=Z+
B AEEBEFAEEF
B A E TR RS
XMW ERMGAERAA
(AT IEsHzE]) &
ENEFEEAEEAARK
21,828,000 0 ( =& — Y
F+-A=+—08: A
R #13,420,0007T) * 55
KFEFMAFEARSE
MEERmMEM  TEF
BEEBHMERE  BADW
mEMHE A LB E
ARBE  AEBRHEB
T ¥ E @R 2,652,210
B (R E BT B
D H#EER0.36% °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE-T-HEAASTAILABABE REAEHN - BB AARETL)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(9). Available-for-sale financial assets

(Continued)

(b) Available-for-sale financial asset measured in
cost is mainly the non-listed equity investment
held by the Group without active quoted market
price and the reasonable estimate for its fair
value fluctuated largely while possibility of the
estimation cannot be ensured reasonably, hence
its fair value cannot be measured reliably. The

Group has no dispose plans.

As at 30 June 2015, the Group holds 0.99%
equity interests of the total shares of CDB Siyuan
(hereinafter
“CDB Siyuan”). Therefore the Group doesn’t
have significant influence on CDB Siyuan. The
largest exposure equals the book value of the
shares the Group holds on 30 June 2015, i.e.,

(Beijing) Investment Fund Ltd.

RMB50,000,000.

As at 30 June 2015, the Group holds 10% equity
interests of the total shares of Beijing Capital
Financial Assets Transaction Information Service

0., Ltd. (hereinafter “BCFATIS"). Therefore
the Group doesn’t have significant influence on
BCFATIS. The largest exposure equals the book
value of the shares the Group holds on 30 June

2015, i.e., RMB20,000,000.

The Group does not have a significant
influence on above investees which as a result
are recorded as available-for-sale financial

instruments.
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h. ORI IRRIA B Mist )
(9). THEHESHEE (&)

(b) UKAFENAHEES

BEETERAKERE
MIE EMRERE - &
BRBABRMSHRE  H
AR EESEBMGENE
PRERK  BEBRAR
FEE A A BEGF BB
R EMERE - Fitt
HRARnEENER EA
B - AREHEREZK
R

S’i

—RFEXNA=ZT
ShE Kﬁlhﬁlﬁ'ﬂ%a_
(R BREESERA
AIATHEIERIRER])
0.99% & 1n » A& A EE
ARETGEEEATE -
AEBEZESHNRANR
RO AANEE TR
EEEBBERANEERE
{&50,000,0007T °

R-_ZE—RFESA=+
H  A&EEHFFILREE
TREEXZEERBER
DAERAR(ATHEEA
ERID10%ED » AER
HEeleRIMNFEERY
2. AREBEZESHK
KNEBW O AANEE TS
NBEEEEBERANIE
E{&{&E20,000,0007T °

AEEY FAKITRE R A
TEBERTE - Fibi
HERAI i ERaETA
mE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % SRk MY 5E
For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE-Z-AFAASHALAEANN (B3R - SEERBARETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED I. &0tB B ERRIE B Mt )
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(10). Long-term equity investments (10). REIRERE
30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—ZE-EHF —T-NF
AA=+H +ZA=+—H
Joint ventures BEDE
— Unlisted companies (a) —JE T AFI() 2,367,982 1,464,960
Associates B3
— Unlisted companies (b) —FEETREN() 985,773 986,275
Subtotal /Net 3,353,755 2,451,235
Less: Provision for impairment 5 : & HIPR#EIRE
of long-term equity VEREER
investments - -
Net TR EE 3,353,755 2,451,235
There is no significant restriction on sale of the long- AEET T FERBRERES
term equity investments of the Group and collection IR N Moz Wz [l 69 B2 KPR ) o

of the investment income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-RFAA=TRIENEASE CRERIFERS - SRBLA/ARBETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED h. B0t BEHRKRIER M@
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(10). Long-term equity investments (Continued) (10). REIRERE (&
(a) Joint ventures (a) EELE
Investments in joint ventures are as follows: HadrbEnRARER
&

Changes in this period

AEENED
Share of
31 Increaseor  Shareof other com- Cash Other Equity Voting ~ Provision  Impairment
Accounting  Investment  December decreasein  netprofit/ prehensive  dividend equity  30June interest rights for  provided in
Method costs 01 investment  (losses)  Income  declared  movement 015 held%  held% impaiment  current year
iy
2% BREE a2 Z8-1%

th 0 Bmd EBN RS Bf A A ER AR B AmER
VLYY RERE  Zt-B WORK R W& ARAE  RER® =t 1l ttf B HEER

% %
Shenyang liian Real Estate Equity UDET 128501 - (1,01) - - - 11486 50 50
(o, Lid. (‘Shengyang Jitian”) ~ method 20,000,000
ERERERARLA gt
(PRI RREX])
Befing Capital Chaoyang Equity RMBARHE 4,090 - (56) - - - 4034 50 50
Ivestment Co,, Ltd. method 50,000,000
(“Chaoyang Investment”)
IRERBRRERROA R
(WTRI9RRE])
Befing Wanzhu Real Estate Co,, ~ Equity RMBARHE 53,149 - 55,519 - - - 108,668 0 30
Ltd. ("Befing Wanzhu') ()~ method 25,500,000
it?%i%%iﬁm‘ﬁﬁﬁi BRE
EERANTRIER
LEA))
Caplte Jaming NewTown~~~ Equiy RMBARE 167,742 = (307) = = - 16743 3% 3
Investment Co,, Ltd. method 175,000,000
("Capital Jiaming” il
EHEABREIRARLT  fEE
(TR i) )
Tianjin Halleybury International ~ Equity RMBARHE = = = = = = = 5 4 = =
School (*Intemational method 4,500,000
School”) i)
RERHERERSR st
(WFRIERER]) Gi)
Tianjn Tonghua Qiangyu Fquiy RMBARE 8,742 - 5 - - - 8,798 0 L]
nvestment and Management  method 4,000,000
(o, Ltd "Tonghua
Qiangyu”) ()
RERERTRECHARNG &k
(APRIAZET]) (v
Thuhai Hengqin Fund Equity RMBARE 3932 - - - - - 3932 0 L]
Management Company (1) method 4,000,000
TTEREEEERAA () st
Thuhai Henggin Fund (1) (v Equity RMBARE PLAREYE - 9209 - - (819) 249537 824 L]
method 240,000,000
TEREES () ) E&t
Thuhai Hengain Zizhufang Equity RMBARE 80,864 - (600) - - 11 78,091 10 L]
Fund (v) (i) method 81,000,000
GEREREREG (M) B
Thuhai Henggin Ruiyuan Jialing ~ Equity RMBARE 455970 - 1410 - - (25) 463155 2178 4

Fund (v) (vii) method 456,000,000
TRERERTRRAS () (i)  B&HE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B35 3R AR BY

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-—RFAA=TRIEANEASE RERIFERS - RBLAARBETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED h. B0t BHRKRIE R KT @)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(10). Long-term equity investments (Continued) (10). REIRERE (&
(a) Joint ventures (Continued) (a) EELHE(E)

Changes in this period

AHERRE
Share of
31 Increaseor  Shareof other com- Cash Other Equity Voting ~ Provision  Impairment
Accounting ~ Investment  December decreasein netprofit/ prehensive  dividend equity  30June interest rights for  provided in
Method costs 014 investment  (losses)  Income  declared  movement 015 held%  held% impaiment  current year
g
2§ BEEE RN i3

th Ehd ERN RS B% Al A BB RAR BE AR
VLYY RERE  Zt-B WORK R W& ARAE  RE#® =t 1 ttf o HERR

% %
UuunRea\ state Co, Ltd. Equity RMBARE 320813 o (655) o o - 30168 L] L]
("Liujin Real Estate") ix method 320,000,000
FRECERAREADE &
(WPRIEEEZ]) (0
Zhuhai Henggin Chengdu Equity RMBARHE - 20000 B - - - 0003 44 L)
Weihua Fund (1) (1) method 270,000,000
TERENHREAL ()N ERE
Thongguancun Integrated Equity RMBARE - 9 - - - - s 50 L]
Circuit Design garden () method 10,436,000
FrbEREREART S
BYRARARLA
(AR [ hERER
EREHED 0)
Shanghai Capital Znengheng  Equity RMBARE - 60,635 - - - - 60,635 60 60
Real Estate Co, Ltd. (note 4(3) ~ method 60,000,000
LEEEERARAR Eat
(TR HEezl)
(Ham(=)
Shanghai henggu Redl estate ~~ Equity RMBARE - 50 (10) - - - %1% 3 5
Development Co,, Ltd. method 95,200,000
(*Shanghai Henggu") (i)
HERERHERE Rt
FRATAUITE
[ L8R ) (i)
Shanghai Songming Real estate  Equity RMBARHE -6 - - - - 60 i) 5
Development Co,, Ltd. method 67,20,0000
("Shanghai Songming”") i)
ESERERE S
ERAR(NTR
[ L8] i)
Beiing Tongchuang Gold Equity RMBARE - 68 (363) - - - b8 5 5714
Dragon Real estate method 26,845,000
Development Co,, Ltd
(" Tongchuang Gold Dragon’)
IRRECEERARAT  E&E
(AP Ra2])
Capital Qinglv note 43) Equity ROMARH - B - - - - B1% 51 57.14

method 182,677,000
EHER(NER(Z) i

Total
aif 1464960 87018 692 - - 37 2367982
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(10). Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(a)

Joint ventures (Continued)

(i)

(i)

In June 2012, the Group acquired 30%
equity interests in Beijing Wanzhu by
capital injection. However, according
to the Articles of Association of Beijing
Wanzhu, the Group and other shareholders
jointly control Beijing Wanzhu, therefore it
is recognized as a joint venture.

In May 2013, The Group entered a
capital increase agreement with Capital
Jiaming to increase capital by an amount
of RMB75,000,000. After the capital
injection, the registered capital of Capital
Jiaming increased to RMB500,000,000 and
the Group acquired 35% equity interest
in Capital Jiaming. However, according to
the Articles of Association, the Group and
other shareholders jointly control Capital
Jiaming, therefore it is recognized as a joint
venture.
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F. SOt SRR IE B MR #)

(10). REIRERE (&

(a)

/¥

(i)

(i)

2 (E)

—E-_FXA K
S ERBIZEMSIE
REHE30%/AE
BRBEILREBERT]
B2 AEEEEM
PRER HRIE H L &
EHEEMBER
B/ Rt EIERE
BEZE o

—E—=%FA -
AEEEER 5=
HEMREBEEKIZE
W& ASEHBE
Bl EARK
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AMERENEAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% AR B o

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=TELENEAME REREAN  2BEMRARETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED B. Aot Rk E B MiaE @)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(10). Long-term equity investments (Continued) (10). REIRERE (&
(a) Joint ventures (Continued) (a) BELHE(E)

(iii) The net assets of International School are (i) BHERBREEEEE
negative due to continuous losses in the BYFEERB A
past years. As the Group does not have EEHETEFAE
the obligation to bear the additional losses RRIMBEREVETS
beyond the share, the Group recognizes R B B A A
the carrying value of the long-term equity EBHBERRNER X
investment at zero other than negative. ERMmEER - 28R
For 6 months ended 30 June 2015, the HR R E R REE
unrecognized investment losses amounted BRLAE HE—ZE
to RMB983,000 (6 months ended 30 —HRFESNA=1THIE
June 2014: RMB1,225,000). As at 30 78 A AR R iR B
June 2015, the accumulated investment KEBELXBARK
losses that are not recognized amounted 983,000 L (H = —
to RMB5,316,000 (31 December 2014: E—NESNHA=1
RMB4,333,000). BIE/R@E AR -

1,225,000 £ ) * R
“TE-RAFRA=T
B 2 AERL
KREBRBERARK
5,316,000 T ( = &
—mE+=-A=+—
H :4,333,0007T) °

(iv) The Company holds 40% equity interests (iv) ZRRRIFABIERT
in Tonghua Qiangyu. According to 40% P #E - BB I&
the Articles of Association of Tonghua NAER » ANEEHE
Qiangyu, the Company and other H A AR ER 2 [R)4%2 il 3
shareholders share the control over ERFIHEENMLE
Tonghua Qiangyu, therefore it is R A EER
recognized as a joint venture. SELERE -

(v) The Company holds 40% equity interests V) ARARBFEHKEEE
in Zhuhai Henggin Fund Management E2EBAA40%
Company. According to the Articles of iR - BREARE
Association of Zhuhai Henggin Fund 2 AEEEEMRR
Management Company, the Company RARZEHIKEEE
and other shareholders share the control HeBTBERNAINEE
over Zhuhai Hengqgin Fund Management MeeERE - Bk
Company, therefore it is recognized as a HEEARGELE®
joint venture. -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B AR R

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(10). Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(a) Joint ventures (Continued)

v)

(Continued)

As of 30 June 2015, the Group totally has
possessed four real estate Funds, all of
which are limited partnerships established
by Zhuhai Henggin Fund Management
Company as general partner. These Funds
are structured entities not in combination;
they are mainly engaged in property
investment and have an estimated duration
of five years. The Funds derive its revenue
from the interest income, the profits of the
real estate development projects and the
proceeds from disposal of equity interests.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥R R B 5

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=TELENEAME REREAN  2BEMRARETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(10). Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(a) Joint ventures (Continued)

(v)  (Continued)

According to the partnership agreement,
at the clearing date and the settlement
date of the fund, the distribution order
is as follows: senior limited partners and
intermediate limited partners can have
10% expected fixed earnings; senior
limited partners enjoy distributing initial
investment and expected earnings firstly,
after which distribute initial investment
and expected earnings to intermediate
limited partners and subordinated limited
partners; then distribute initial investment
to general partners; finally, if there is
excess distributable earnings after the
above distributions, the fund should
distribute the income to the partners based
on the agreed portion of the partnership

agreement.

According to the partnership agreement,
the Group jointly controls the investment
and operational strategy of these funds
with other shareholders; therefore they
are classified as joint ventures. The Group
has no duty or purpose to offer financial

support to the funds.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RFANA=TBEENEAMSE BRERIFEHAD -

5.

ERBEN/ARETIT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(10). Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(a)

Joint ventures (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

The Group holds 28.24% of the
intermediate units in Zhuhai Henggqgin
Fund, who holds 100% equity interests
in Chongging Shouyong Real Estate
Co., Ltd. (hereinafter “Shouyong Real
Estate”). The Fund has raised a total
scale of 850,000,000 shares amounting
to RMB850,000,000. The Group's most
significant risk exposure in the Fund is the
book value of investment at balance sheet
date amounting to RMB 240,000,000.

The Group holds 10% of the intermediate
units in Zhuhai Henggin Fund, who
holds 100% equity interests in Beijing
Taihao Shengyuan Real Estate Co.,
Ltd. (hereinafter “Taihao Shengyuan”).
The Fund has raised a total scale of
810,000,000 shares amounting to
RMB810,000,000. The Group’s most
significant risk exposure in the Fund is the
book value of investment at balance sheet
date amounting to RMB 81,000,000.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
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5.

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. INTERIM REPORT 2015

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(10). Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(a)

Joint ventures (Continued)

(viii) The Group holds 20.73% of the

(ix)

intermediate units in Zhuhai Henggqgin
Ruiyuan Jialing Fund, who holds 100%
equity interests in Chongqgin Shouhui Real
Estate Co., Ltd.(hereinafter “Shouhui Real
Estate”). The Fund has raised a total scale
of 2,200,000,000 shares amounting to
RMB2,200,000,000. The Group's most
significant risk exposure in the Fund is the
book value of investment at balance sheet
date amounting to RMB456,000,000.

As at 30 June 2015, as senior partners have
not completed their capital contribution,
the Group holds 27.78% of the actual
contribution.

The Group holds 40% equity interests in
Liujin Real Estate. According to the Articles
of Association, the Company and other
shareholders share the control over Liujin
Real Estate; therefore it is recognized as a
joint venture.
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5.

ERBEN/ARETIT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(10). Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(a)

Joint ventures (Continued)

(x)

The Group subscribes 22.5% of the
intermediate units in Zhuhai Henggqin
Chengdu Huawei Fund that is still in
recruitment period. A total scale of
1,200,000,000 shares amounting to
RMB1,200,000,000 are expected to raise.
The Group’s most significant risk exposure
in the Fund is the book value of investment
at balance sheet date amounting to
RMB270,000,000.

As of 30 June 2015, as senior partners have
not completed their capital contribution,
the Group holds 27.44% of the actual
contribution.
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ERBEL/ARETIT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(10). Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(a)

Joint ventures (Continued)

(xi)

In this period, the Group signed a capital
increase agreement with a third party
company to subscribe registered capital of
Zhongguancun Integrated Circuit Design
garden amounted to RMB500,000,000,
accounting for 50% of the total registered
capital. As of 30 June 2015, the Group
actually invested RMB10,436,000,
accounting for 50% of paid-in capital
of Zhongguancun Integrated circuit
Design garden. In addition, according
to the agreement, the Group repaid
original shareholder loan amounted to
RMB913,500,000 of Zhongguancun
Integrated circuit Design garden in this
period. Based on the revised articles, the
Group together with other shareholders
controls the operation of Zhongguancun
Integrated circuit Design garden, therefore
it is recognized as a joint venture.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
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5.

ERBEN/ARETIT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(10). Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(a)

Joint ventures (Continued)

(xi)

(Continued)

At the time of investment, the difference
between the fair value of the net assets of
Zhongguancun Integrated circuit Design
garden shared by the Group and the
initial investment cost is recognized in
non-operating income (note 5(41)) and
increased the cost of long-term equity
investment simultaneously. The group and
other equity holders of Zhongguancun
Integrated circuit Design garden reach
an agreement on the strategy to make
Yongfeng Integrated circuit Design garden
the top science zone. Both sides of the
transaction come to an agreement on the
price of the transaction based on the fair
value basis and resulted in the above non-
operating income.

(xii) The Group holds 28% equity interests

in Shanghai Henggu. According to the
Articles of Association of Shanghai
Henggu, the Company and other
shareholders share the control over
Shanghai Henggu; therefore it is
recognized as a joint venture.

(xiii) The Group holds 28% equity interests

in Shanghai Songming. According to
the Articles of Association of Shanghai
Songming, the Company and other
shareholders share the control over
Shanghai Songming; therefore it is
recognized as a joint venture.
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5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED It B 35 R 2R 7E B MR ()
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(10). Long-term equity investments (Continued) (10). REIRERE (&
(b) Associates (b) HEEdx
Long-term investments in associates are as HEE XN RIARER
follows: & -

Changes in this Period

KEERE
Share of
31 Increaseor  Share of other Cash Other Equity Voting ~ Provision  Impairment
Accounting Investment ~ December  decreasein et profit/ comprehensie  dividend equity  30June interest rights for  provided in
Method costs 2014 investment (losses) Income  declared  movement 2015 held % held %  impairment  current year
gL
Z8-p% BREE FiLd Z8-1%
t2R &g ELE-t T Bf -0 ~A R RAE RE  AEHR
BER% REAA - HORE B W& ARER  BERE =1A 4] itH B REER
% %
Beijing GoldenNet Property  Equity method RMBARE 6,904 - (10) - - - 6,84 14 14 - -
Investment Adviser 700,000
(“Goldentiet”) ()
IrERREXRARR  #&:
(AFRI284) ()
Befing Sunshine ciy Equity method IMBARE 159577 - 2185 - - - 1676 3 3 - -
Commercil Investment 15,267,000
Co,, Ltd. (“Sunshine City")
YREREZRARRAT Bai
(AFRIBRRE
Shenyang Capita Real state ~ Equity method UDETL 260181 = 3082 = = (205) 263,038 30 0 = =
(o, Ltd.(*Shenyang Xinz") 27,750,000
BREHFAERARAT  BAR
(AP 2ERE])
Tianjn Xinging Real Estate~ Equity method UDET 264730 = 656 = = () 26534 4 4 = =
Co, Ltd.‘Tianjin qumg) 38,000,000
RREUNEERAROT  EEE
(APRIRERE])
Tinjin Xinming Equity method UDET 218363 - b5 = S (252)  1mig08 0 L = -
38,000,000
REHH B8k
Financial Street i) Equity method USDETE = 2 5 - - - - 595 ! - -
3,384,000
SREEE (i) &k
Befing outlets Chuangin ~ Equity method RMBARHE 601 - - - - - 601 3 38 - -
business management Co, 3,800,000
L1d. (“Outlets Chuangxin”)
FrEREERER B8k
BRAA(ATE
[RElH])
Capital Qinglv Cultre Equity method RMBARE 15919 = (43 = - - 1549 49 I - -
Tourism (Kunshan|Co, Lid. 4900,000
(Capita Qinglv Culture”)
BREALERRL)  EEE
BRAA(ATE
[EgEHR(])
Speed Plus Investments Equity method USDETE = = = = o = - 3 3 - -
Limited (“Speed Plus”) i) 3
Speed Plus Investments Limited &%
(B8 Speed Pls ) i)
986,275 - 13) - - (489) 985773
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
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5.

ERBEN/ARETIT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(10). Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(b) Associates (Continued)

(i)

(i)

GoldenNet has significant influence on the
board of the directors, which is responsible
for determining the financial policies in the
ordinary course of business; therefore this
company is classified as an associate.

According to the Articles, the Company
holds 59.5% equity interests in Financial
Street both directly and indirectly and
enjoys 34% profit of Financial Street. The
Company has minority seats in the board
of directors of Financial Street, which is
responsible for the financial decisions
in the ordinary course of business, and
therefore this company is classified as an
associate.

The net assets of Financial Street are
negative due to continuous losses in the
past years. As the Group does not have
the obligation to bear the additional losses
beyond the share, the Group recognizes
the carrying value of the long-term equity
investment at zero other than negative.
For the 6 months ended 30 June 2015, the
un-recognized investment loss amounted
to RMB8,694,000 (6 months ended 30
June 2014: RMB8,966,000). As at 30
June 2015, the accumulated investment
losses that are not recognized amounted
to RMB60,497,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB51,803,000).
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
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5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(10). Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(b) Associates (Continued)

(iii) The net assets of Speed Plus are negative
due to continuous losses in the past years.
As the Group does not have the obligation
to bear the additional losses beyond the
share that the Group should have assumed,
the Group recognizes the carrying value
of the long-term equity investment at
zero other than negative. For 6 months
ended 30 June 2015, the un-recognized
investment loss amounted to RMB3,000 (6
months ended 30 June 2014: RMB39,000).
As at 30 June 2015, the accumulated
investment losses that are not recognized
amounted to RMB36,000 (31 December

2014: RMB39,000).

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. INTERIM REPORT 2015
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3 = = -
5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED h. B0t BEHRKRIER M@
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(11).Investment in joint ventures and M).HEEbENMBEELE
associates BE
(a) Basic information of significant Joint (a) EESELEMBESE
ventures and Associates HWEREE
Business type Place Place of Legal Nature of business Strategic to Registered capital Shared Voting
of main registration  representative the Group s Interest right
operation operation
558
\ EDRE £ie
i i IERRM A EARR RHEE ARERHE AftER  HRiLh ]
Joint ventures -
A80%-
Shenyang Jitian Limited Company ~ Shenyang ~ Shenyang ~ HuWeimin  Real Estate Development ~ Ves USDZ7.20,000,000 50% 50%
and Sales
PN ERAEAT B BEm BER  BHERIRHE =
Capital Jiaming Limited Company ~ Befjing Beijing HuWeimin  Land Primary Development ~ Yes RMBAK 175,000,000 35% 35%
and Sales
] ERAEAT 5970} LR BER  Ih-ARERE =
Zhuhai Henggin Fund Limited Partnership  Zhuhai Zhuhai N/A Investment Holding Yes RMBAKH850,000,000  28.24% 40%
HiEEEES BRABLE i wEm  AER REEE &
Zhuhai Henggin Zizhufang ~ Limited Partnership ~ Zhuhai Zhuhai N/A Investment Holding Yes RMBA 810,000,000 10% 40%
Fun
HEREEERES BRABLE i wEm  AER REER &
Ruiyuan Jialing Fund Limited Partnership ~ Zhuhai Zhuhai N/A Investment Holding Yes RMBAK1,641,330,000 21.78% 40%
Highiakae BRaBhE i i 0l REER I3
Zhuhai Henggin Chengdu  Limited Partnership ~ Zhuhai Zhuhai N/A Investment Holding Yes RMBARH984,093,000  27.44% 40%
Weihua Fund
KERENAREEE  ARABLE i i 0l REER =
Liujin Real Estate Limited Company  Beijing Beijing SunBaojie  Land Primary Development ~ Yes RMBAK%800,000,000 40% 40%
and Sales
LoER BREEAR b7} LR FE2 T RREREE 3
Zhongguancun Integrated  Limited Company  Beijing Beijing Miaojun Property Development Yes RMB A %1,000,000,000 50% 40%
Circuit Design garden and Sales
TENERERRGE  BRRALA 5774} LR EE FHERERHE 3
Shanghai Shoujia Limited Company  Shanghai Shanghai  HuWeimin  Property Development Yes RMBAK 100,000,000 60% 60%
and Sales
SRS BREEAR LT o3 BER  BHEREREE =
Capital Qinglv Limited Company ~ Kunshan Kunshan ~ Hu Weimin  Property Development Yes RMB A& 300,000,000 51% 57.14%
and Sales
BEIEHR BRELAR Bl Blm  #ER  BHERIRHE =
Associates -
BEtg-
Yangguangyuan Limited Company  Bejing Be@ng Yang Ning  Investment Holding No RMBAK 472,190,000 35% 35%
oy ERARAT R R hE REER A
Shenyang Xinzi Limited Company ~ Shenyang ~ Shenyang ~ CaoYue  Property Development Yes USDZ7.92,500,000 30% 30%
and Sales
BEE BREEAR E5m BET Bil FHERYRHE =
Tianjin Xinging Limited Company ~ Tianjin Tianjin QinYi Property Development Yes USDZ7.95,000,000 40% 40%
and Sales
N2 BRARAT RET XEm o &k FHERYRHE =
Tianjin Xinming Limited Company ~ Tianjin Tianjin Wang Wei  Property Development Yes USDZ7.95,000,000 40% 40%
and Sales
X2 ERAEAT RET RET I# FHERSRHE =
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5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F. OB ERIRIE B ek (#)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

a w . PAr 0N PE 0N
(11). Investment in joint ventures and (M).HEERRNBELRSE
associates (Continued) RE (&)
. . . . . age . . PaY P A=

(b) Key financial information of significant joint (b) ERGEERNERME

ventures =8

Zhuhai Henggin Zhuhai Hengqin Zhuhai Henggin Zhongguancun Integrated
Shenyang Jitian Capital Jiaming Zhuhai Henggin Fund Zizhufang Fund Ruiyuan Jialing Fund Chengdu Weihua Fund Liujin Real Estate Shanghai Shoujia Circuit Design Garden Capital Qinglv
FREX HiEH KER5EE HEREEARES KERTARES ik el li 08 LR HEHERRRRIE EL

30June 31 December ~ 30June 31 December 30June 31December  30June 31December  30June 31 December 30June 31December  30June 31 December 30June 31 December 30June 31December  30June 31 December

015 015 014 015 0 015 015 014 015 e 015 014 015 04 015 04 015
= it Z$-EF -3-0F C$-EF “F-0F CR-EF Z$-EF -3-0F C$-EF R0 CR-EF _FBF CR-EF RMF R-EF CFOF CR-3f
A #A 128 #A et} A AA 128 A it i} 1= #A 128 A 128 b
B StA =t-A | ZtA =+-A | ZtA StA =t =t =t-A | Z=tA =t-B =tA =t ZtB =Zt-B | =tA
Cash atbank and on hand E2 &4 6387 TR6 00N 12663 128233 29760 20559 484380 7503 B M NATEE  sms KT 15700 NATEE 19453 NATER 10525 NATEE
Other curentassets & ftiRHEE 1593637 1564374 1580314 1542900 25TON6 225403 2387385 2014638 4099141 951780 965000 NATEE 14,152 1300 1493610 NATER 2085962 NATER 9557 NATER
Curent assets RYREA 1600024 1572000 1670385 1669600 2705309 2551643 2600844 2499218 ASTM6A 92034 9BAM2 NATEE 8989 89097 1509317 NAKER 205415 NATEF 100078 NATEE
Non-current assets FREEEAT 10374 9752 53% 5350 " 13 2406 408 391 20,000 - NATER 1298 5% 8 NATER - NATER 9 NATER
Totel Asels BEA: 1610398 1581972 175720 1614950 2705420 1550776 2610350 2499626 4875 92034 922 NATER 84287 89691 1509360 NATER 2105415 NATER 1100861 NATER
Accounts payable BHiER S U5 - S BB B 5309 8619 53099 - - NATER - - - NATER - NATER 8T NATER
Other liabilties AhER 130430 1297006 194590 192941 146254 1276112 1274606 1182305 26355 - - NATER a8 36649 1408300 NATER - NATER 60537 NATER
Curtent bl REARAT 135200 10551 194590 192941 169633 1469303 13705 1200984 2688628 - - NATER  S881 36649 1408300 NATER - NATEE G414 NATER
Non-curtent liabilies S8 EasH = - 9000 98000 139000 25000 480000 480000 500,000 - - NATER - - - NATER 19300 NATER - NAZRER
Totel b afEAT 1352007 130550 1092590 119094 1835333 1714303 1800705 160984 3188628 - - NATEE  Sa8B1 36609 140830 NATER 1900 NATEE 6104 NATER
Netasets HE BEIN 204 A1 MA0N G008 B3 065 0BGA  1gGBSY Y213 9422 NATRER 791406 793042 100088 NATEE 168385 NATER 4675 NATER
Non-controling interests SRR - - - - - - - - - - - NATER - - - NARER - NATER - NATER
Fquity atributableto  BERSATRRES
parent company BEIN 040 A3 MA0N G008 B3 8065 0BGA  1gGBSY Y213 9422 NATRER 791406 793042 101088 NATER 168385 NATER 4675 NATER

Sharcholding ratioof &M F

the Group 50% 50% 35% 35% 28.4% 284% 10% 10% 21.78% 46.90% NM%  NATER 40% 40% 60% NATER 50%  NATER 51%  NATER
fquity atibutableto  AEEFEAEH

the Group {i ERHE) 129,19 130211 169,097 169,404 5113 236,500 80,265 80,864 463,667 455,970 0033 NATER 316,562 a7 60635 NATER 8192 NATER B NATER
Reconciiaton tems (i)~ EEHE(i) (1,710) (1.7110) (1,662) (1,662) 384 4645 (2174 = (512) = - NATER 3,606 3,606 - NARER - NATER - NATER
Provison for impaiment  HEEE - - - - - - - - - - - NATER - - - NARER - NATER - NARER

Long-term equity RERERE
investments 121,486 128501 167,435 167,742 49,531 w47 78,091 80,864 463,155 455,970 0033 NATER 320,168 3083 60635 NATER 84192 NATER 826 NATER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(11).Investment in joint ventures and
associates (Continued)

(b) Key financial information of significant joint
ventures (Continued)

Thuhai Henggin

f.

Thuhai Henggin

SOtE IS ERERIE R st ()

(M).BEELXNBELER
&(#&)
(b) EEAECENEIEHRH
Ea

Thongguancun Integrated

Shenyang Jitian Capital Jiaming Thuhai Henggin Fund  Zhuhai Henggin Zizhufang Fund  Ruiyuan Jialing Fund Chengdu Weihua Fund Livjin Real Estate Shanghai Shoujia Circuit Design Garden Capital Qinglv
FWER EER il - it e KRETEREE it et 6 22E3 L§EE FRHERRARIE ELL
Sixmonths  Sixmorths ~ Sikmonths  Sikmonths ~ Sixmonths  Sikmonths ~ Sixmonths  Sikmonths  Sixmonths  Simonths Sixmonths  Sikmonths Sxmonths  Sicmonths ~Sixmonths  Skmonths ~ Simonths  Simonths ~ Sikmonths  Simonths
ended ended ended ended ended ended ended ended ended ended ended ended ended ended ended ended ended ended ended ended
30 June. 30 une 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June. 30 une 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30June 30 une 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 une
015 0m4 015 04 2015 014 015 0m4 015 04 2015 014 015 04 015 04 2015 014 015 04
82 B2 4] 82 82 B2 8 B2 4] 82 82 B2 82 ECEES 82 82 BE  RigeE B2
= L S R S L - e S D - L - i L S S S e
AESTRE 7 b RESTBE ARSTEE  ARSHRE  AASTRE  ABSHRE  ARSTEE  RESTRE  AASTEE  AASHRE  AASHRE  ARSTHALE AA=TR AASTRL AASHAE  AASTAL  ARSTE ARSTAL
#ERER ~EARE AEASE  ARARE  AEASD  AEARR ~EARE AEASE  ARARE  AEAYY  AEARA B8 EREE  AEREE  SEREE BEEAEE
Revenue LN 5038 5,284 NiA R NATER NA TR NATER
Depreciaton and FEERERUER
amortization (53) 105) (13) (2 @) (¢ @ = @ - NATER NA R - NATER NATER
Interest income gk 1 8 84 48 45839 54 1 54 31410 1 NATER - NATER 6 NATER NATER
Interest expense 6 3 - - - = (54 4 6 - NATER () NARER - NATER NARER
Total (losses|iprofit (2.705) 615) (679 (1.672) 3485 384 (1.99) (632) 234 " NATER (218) NATER (963) NATER NATER
Income taxes 675 15 - = (10871) (988) 1999 160 (5,614) NiA R 506 NATER - NATER NATER
Net (losses)profit H(gE)/R (2030) 483) (819) (161 2614 280 (5.997) ) %513 1 NATER (1631) NAFER (963) WATER NATER
Other comprehensive ~ E5A%E
income NA TR NATER A TR NATER
Total omprehensiie ~ 5A(EE)/WE4E
(loss)fincome (2.030) 463) (619) (161 061 2860 (5.897) ) 6613 1 NATER (1.631) NA TR (963)  NATER NATER
Dividends from joint
ventures A FER NATER WA FER NATER

(i)  The accounting policies of joint ventures
are the same with the Group. The Group,
based on the amount assigned to the
Company in the consolidated financial
statements of joint ventures, calculates
asset share in proportion to the number
of shares owned. The amount in the
consolidated financial statements of
joint ventures has taken the fair value
of identifiable asset and liability of the
investee joint venture into consideration.

(i) Adjustments include the eliminations of
unrealized profit between the Group and

the associates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% AR B o

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-—RFAA=TRIENEARE RERIFERSN -

ERBEL/ARETIT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(11).Investment in joint ventures and

(c)

associates (Continued) B
- = - = - Arer LU AN "
Key financial information of significant () BERHELRNERUE
associates =8
The key financial information of the significant SECERHEMRNE
associates of the Group are as follows: RHBELSWT
Yangguangyuan Shenyang Xinzi Tianjin Xinging Tianjin Xinming
B EEE REHE REHH
30June 31 December 30 June 31 December 30June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
%2-1f "T-mF Z-%-Rf _T-WF Z%-1F _T-O0F Z-%-RF _“R-OF
~A +25 AR 24 ~A +25 AR 1A
=tHE =t-A =tB  =t-H =tH =t-A =tB  =t-A
Cashatbank and on hand ~ E%&4 26,293 1,332 34,829 54,049 1,763 4,461 19,812 26,788
Other current assets EthREEE 354,138 383539 1294973 1,396,959 664,893 688,146 767,531 900,161
Current assets TEAER 380,431 384871 1329802 1,451,008 672,656 692,607 787,343 926,949
Non-current assets FRBEEAT 819276 819,36 4 114 1 1 1 1
Accounts payable FEfTERS 15,047 15,554 15,047 221,504 1971 19,185 19,620 41,702
Other liabilities EfigfE 28,522 30,390 187,202 73,295 30 10,412 79,642 183,407
Current liabilities FHAEA 43,569 45,944 202,249 294,799 8,007 29,597 99,262 225,109
Non-current iabiltes FRBEEAH 692375 700769 240,000 279,000 - - - -
Net assets FEE 463,763 457,520 887,597 871,323 664,650 663,011 688,082 701,841
Shareholding ratio of REERRL
the Group 35% 35% 30% 30% 40% 40% 40% 40%
Equity attributable tothe ~ AEEHZAH
Group i) ERNE() 162,317 160,132 266,279 263,197 265,860 265,204 275,233 280,736
Reconciliation items (ii) HESH(i) (555) (555) (3,221) (3,016) (506) (474) (2,625) (2373)
Provision for impairment /B - - - - - - - -
Long-term equity REORERE
investments 161,762 159,577 263,058 260,181 265,354 264,730 272,608 278,363
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

F. SOt SRR IE B MR #)

.. OB A st A
(11). Investment in joint ventures and (M. BESEERABERRR
associates (Continued) &(E)
(c) Key financial information of significant () ERBMERRNEIBRHE
associates (Continued) =8 (4
Yangguangyuan Shenyang Xinzi Tianjin Xinging Tianjin Xinming
Ba% EBiE K2iE REHH
Sixmonths ~ Sixmonths  Sixmonths ~ Sixmonths  Six months  Sixmonths  Six months  Six months
ended ended ended ended ended ended ended ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
8E Bz BE HE 82 Bz BE BE
Z%-3f C-T-UF Z%-3% 3B C%-3f CE-IF Z%-1fF -T-|f
~B=tR  ~A=TE ABStR ~A=TE ABEtR ~A=THE ABEtE ~A=1H
tABA  LE~ER kAR EER xR BAER ExBR AR
HE il il il B8 il il 3
Revenue WA 362,941 25,808 66,552 536,523 21,318 29,327 82,983 118,607
Depreciation and TEEREEHER
amortization (6,694) (7,935) - (108) - (2) - -
Interest income LN - 1,919 59 13 55 47 141
Interest expenses ez (18,109) (19,390 (1,405) ) (@ (1) (16) (34)
Total profit/losses) B/ (BR)EE 1418 20237 13,700 78317 2,185 303 (18,345 7,166
Income taxes FifEH - (5,638) (3,425) (19,579) (546) (759) 4,586 (1,791)
Net profit/(loss) BB/ (5B 1,418 14,599 10,275 58,738 1,639 2271 (13,759) 5,375
Other comprehensive Efrisala
income = = = = = = = =
Total comprehensive GAlG/ (BR)ES
income/(loss) 1,418 14,599 10,275 58,738 1,639 2,271 (13,759) 5375
Dividends from REEAHRE
associates REBELENRA = = > = = = > =
(i) The accounting policies of associates are (iy HEOEHANS
the same with the Group. The Group, R EAREEAEE o
based on the amount assigned to the REBENBERE
Company in the consolidated financial BT BHRETER
statements of associates, calculates RERFINEEAE
asset share in proportion to the number B msREOIEE
of shares owned. The amount in the BEMRE - BeEh
consolidated financial statements of B HmERTHE
associates has taken the fair value of LR TSR ER
identifiable net asset and liability of the Bt AR E
investee associates into consideration. EMBENAREE
RS E o
(i) Adjustments include the eliminations (iy WEEEBEAEE
of unrealized profit between the Group HRER 2 2 AR
and the associates, impairment and HAEHRERFIHK
unrecognized excess losses. 8 - REEE KRR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥R R B 5

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE

“E-RFANA=TAENEABE FRERIERSN

ERBEL/ARETIT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED h. & BHR&RIEE M @)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(11).Investment in joint ventures and (M).BEELXNBELER
associates (Continued) &
(d) Summary information of insignificant joint (d) TERGEERNBER
ventures and associates RHNERRES
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2015 30 June 2014
/\H—+ H /\Hfﬂ»El
1E 7518 A H# RS 1E751E A
Joint ventures: BERE:
Total amount of investment ;N A=+ HiX&E®R
book value as at 30 June  BESET 314,304 69,913
Total amount of accounts TEIJ&\IETQT—;HXJ:H?IJ
below in proportion to TEREETE
equity held 3
Net income (i) e N[O 55,056 162,053
Other comprehensive HAth 4R & Uz (i)
income (i) - =
Total amount of RA W BT
comprehensive income 55,056 162,053
Associates: B 1 2
Total amount of investment ;X A=+ A& &ER
book value as at 30 June  (BEAET 22,991 23,424
Total amount of accounts T’iIJRIEHzHHxH:WJ
below in proportion to STEMAETH
equity held 3
Net loss (i) FEE() (433) (38,976)
Other comprehensive HAth 4R & ULz (i)
income (i) - =
Total amount of A EEERE
comprehensive loss (433) (38,976)
(i)  The accounting policies (i) BENBEDERMA

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. INTERIM REPORT 2015

of joint ventures and
associates are the
same with the Group.
Net income and
other comprehensive
income have taken into
consideration the fair
value of identifiable
assets and liabilities when
investment is obtained and
the influence of uniform
accounting policy.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B AR R

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-RFAA=TRIENEASE CRERIFERS - SRBLA/ARBETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED f.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(12).Investment properties

&Pt E S Rk 18 B MY s ()

(12). REMHEHE
30 June 31 December
2015 2014
=i —FF

AA=tE +-A=+-~

Investment properties

RARANETRETEN

measured at cost (a) REMEEHE ) 686,308 3,574,184
Investment properties FRAARBEETRESZEN

subsequently measured TE M FEHE D)

at fair value model (b) 8,026,374 3,651,074
Less: Provision for B WEMEEREER

impairment of

investment properties - -
Total &t 8,712,682 7,225,258

181

HRABXKROERAR T -AFHHRE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥R R B 5

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-—RFAA=TRIENEARE RERIFERSN -

ERBEL/ARETIT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(12).Investment Properties (Continued)

(@) Investment properties measured at cost

f. SOtEB®wKRIAR M)

(12). REMEME (&)
(a) FAREREFTHRESEN

REMEBE
Land use
Buildings Rights Total
FEREEY IiHEHA%E G

Cost

31 December 2014

Additions

Transferred from self-used
properties or inventories

Measured at fair value

—T-mEt=A=t-

AHBE
BREHEIFEBA

THBEALABEFE

H 588,207 3,029,786 3,617,993
415,178 = 415,178

115,581 8,485 124,066

(745,992) (2,678,695)  (3,424,687)

30 June 2015 —E-FRFB=1H 372,974 359,576 732,550
Accumulated depreciation ~ Z&HFTE

and amortization B

31 December 2014 “E-N&+=-A=1+—H - (43,809) (43,809)

Accruement REREHR - (6,291) (6,291)

Measured at fair value REFE A AR

EBEFE - 3,858 3,858

30 June 2015 —E-FRFB=1H = (46,242) (46,242)
Provision for impairment AR

31 December 2014 —“T-mE+=ZA=+—H - - -

Increase EATE N - _ _

Decrease REF D - - -
30 June 2015 “E-RFR A=TH - - -
Net book value FE

30 June 2015 —E-FRFB=1H 372,974 313,334 686,308

31 December 2014

—E-NFE+=-_A=1+—H 588,207 2,985,977 3,574,184
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(12).Investment Properties (Continued)

(a)

Investment properties measured at cost
(Continued)

As at 30 June 2015, investment properties listed
above are still under construction, of which the
fair value cannot be reliably determined, but
is expected that will be measured reliably after
the completion. Therefore the Group measured
such investment properties at cost, and the
amortization of the land use rights amount to
RMB6,291,000 has been capitalized for the six
months ended 30 June 2015 (six months ended
30 June 2014: RMB7,562,000).

The Group does not hold properties under short-
term, mid-term or long-term lease contracts.

Land use right in the investment properties is
analyzed by location and age as belows:

F. SOt SRR IE B MR #)

(12).REMHEHE (&

(a)

RARAETRETEN
REMEME (&)
R-_ZE—HFNA=ZT
A A&EELREEES
MEMERESZRS BERQ
AREEEELSET B
TEHZEHET TEMNA
A EEEBFE ST
E - ASEERAKA
FFERERKREME
E-BE—Z—HE~A
=+ HIEANERBREASE
BT AEEES
% AR®6,291,000 T F
NEXRE(BE=_F—HX
FRXRAZ+THLENEA
HiRS © AR # 7,562,000
JL) °

AEBEEBBREE - B H
N RPAEEZORFEH
SIE S

HECEHES + T
PR FTEME R FR 5
o

30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—E-HF —T-lEF
AA=+tHB +Z-A=t—H
Mainland China iz A H B A 3
10-50 years 105504 313,334 2,985,977
Above 50 years S50F M E - -
Hong Kong UREEHE
10-50 years 10EI504F = -
Above 50 years S50F LA - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-—RFAA=TRIEANEASE RERIFERS - RBLAARBETT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(12).Investment Properties (Continued)

(b) Investment properties subsequently

f. SOtEB®wKRIAR M)

(12). REM 0 E (&)
(b) RADABERET R

measured at fair value model ENREMHEME
Buildings and
Land use right
EEREEY
F £ {55 A RE
Cost BN
31 December 2014 —E-mE+=-—B=+—H 2,414,073
Transferred from cost model MAREAEARAREBEERN 3,420,829
Transferred from inventories FE®EA =
30 June 2015 —T-RAFARA=TH 5,834,902
Changes in fair value NABEE
31 December 2014 —E—NFE+_A=1+—H 1,237,001
Transferred from inventories FEE A =
Gains on changes in fair value AR BEEEHKE
(note 5(43)) (F3EF(43)) 954,471
30 June 2015 —E-RFA~A=+H 2,191,472
Carrying amount BEEEE
30 June 2015 —T-RFAA=1H 8,026,374
31 December 2014 —E-mE+=—B=+—H 3,651,074
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(12).Investment Properties (Continued)

(b)

Investment properties subsequently
measured at fair value model (Continued)

As at 30 June 2015, certain investment
properties amounted to RMB2,493,129,000
(31 December 2014: RMB1,657,193,000)
have been pledged for long-term borrowings
of RMB840,000,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB570,000,000) (note 5(28)(c)).

As at 30 June 2015, certain investment
properties amounted to RMB561,322,000
(31 December 2014: RMB984,402,000) have
been pledged for long-term borrowings of
RMB485,000,000, which is also guaranteed
by the Company (31 December 2014:
RMB460,000,000) (note 5(28)(d)).

For the six months ended 30 June 2015, rental
income from certain investment properties
amounted to RMB66,567,000 (for six months
ended 30 June 2014: RMB38,547,000).
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F. SOt SRR IE B MR #)

12).REHEMEF)

(b)

RAQAEEETRER
ENREMEHE(HF)

RZE—FRAFANA=T
B AEEREEFHE
PEEREEBEAARE
2,493,129,000 ¢ ( = &
—NE+=-_A=+—8:
AE#1,657,193,0007T)
IR E M E it EE IR AE R
TEHSRHERARE
840,000,0007C( =Z —Y
F+-A=+—H: AR
# 570,000,000 7T ) (KI5
F(28)(c)) °

R—ZE—RFXA=Z+
H X&EEREEEBEAR
AR#561,322,0007T(=
Z-—NE+_-_A=4+—
H : AR#%¥984,402,000
7T ) B IR B 1 B it E 1K 3
WIRTT  WHRARA AT
NEREER - BERE
f& Z A R # 485,000,000
T(ZZ —WF + =
B=4+—8: AR¥
460,000,0007T) (I sE R
(28)(d)) °

HE_ZT—HF~A=1+
BIENEASRE - A&EE
HEMEHERGHNES
WA B AR#66,567,000
T(HE-_Z—MENA
=+RHIEAEARE: A
R#:38,547,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥R R B 5

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-—RFAA=TRIEANEASE RERIFERS - RBLAARBETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

f. SOtEB®wKRIAR M)

(13).Fixed Assets (13).BEEEE
Motor Office
Buildings Vehicles  Equipment Total
EEREZEN BHIE WARE At
Cost RE
31 December 2014 —E-WE+-A=1—H 690,426 61,573 55,109 807,108
Increase AREREM 33,340 1,304 9,560 44,204
- Purchase -BE 33,340 1,304 9,560 44,204
Decrease KR (36) (2,036) (609) (2,681)
- Dispose and retirement A (36) (1,766) (579) (2,381)
- Disposal of subsidiaries ~-REFRARMD = (270) (30) (300)
30 June 2015 —T-AFESA=1H 723,730 60,841 64,060 848,631
Accumulated depreciation REE
31 December 2014 “E-ME+-A=t-H  (281,674) (44,445) (41,524)  (367,643)
Increase AL (9,255) (2,493) (4,718) (16,466)
- Accruement —iHz (9,255) (2,493) (4,718) (16,466)
Decrease KD - 1,416 575 1,991
- Dispose and retirement ~RERBE - 1,224 575 1,799
- Disposal of subsidiaries ~-BREFLAERD - 192 - 192
30 June 2015 —E-RFAA=1H (290,929) (45,522) (45,667) (382,118)
Provision for impairment REER
31 December 2014 “Z-MmE+-fA=1+-H = = = =
Increase AREEM - = = =
Classified as held for sale BN RRERE - = = =
30 June 2015 “F-1%~A=1AH - - - -
Net book value FEEE
30 June 2015 —E-RFAA=1H 432,801 15,319 18,393 466,513
31 December 2014 “F-Nm¥+-A=1+-H 408,752 17,128 13,585 439,465
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(13).Fixed Assets (Continued)

As at 30 June 2015, certain buildings with net value
of RMB328,237,000 (cost of RMB601,431,000)
(31 December 2014: RMB335,774,000, cost of
RMB601,431,000) have been pledged for long-term
borrowings of RMB619,000,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB635,000,000) (note 5(28)(d)), which are also
guaranteed by the Company.

For the six months ended 30 June 2015, depreciation
expense charged in cost of sales amounted to
RMB6,929,000 and in administrative expenses
amounted to RMB9,537,000 (for the six months
ended 30 June 2014: RMB10,225,000 and
RMB10,564,000).

F. SOt SRR IE B MR #)

(13).

BEEE#E)
RZE—FAFNA=1+H " F
B4 A AR #328,237,000 7T

(REAARM®G601,431,000
TINEEREEYN(ZZE—H
F+-_A=+—08: FELHAE
AR #335,774,0007T (R{E A
AR #601,431,0007T) ) fE A
AR #619,000,000 7T #) & HA
ER(ZE—NFE+=_A=+—
B : A K ¥ 635,000,000 7T )
(MIRER(28)(d)) WKy - W
AR EREER -

BHe—_Z—hF~A=+HI1t
NERBEFAZEEKREAR
ERERAMNWEERAS A
A R #6,929,000 7T 1 A K ¥
9,537,000 (Bl E2=ZF — U4
ANAZTHIENEARRE A
K # 10,225,000 7T 1 A R #&
10,564,0007T) °

(14).Intangible Assets (14).EBFEE

31 December 30 June Accumulated
Original cost 2014 Additions Amortization 2015  amortization

“§-IF ~§-if

+=8 ~A
Rme¥E  =t-B  AEE KHEs ZtR  EEEE
Land use rights HibfERE 5,283 39,561 - (523) 39038 (13,45
Less: Provision for impairment i - B AEREER - - - - - -
Total il 52,283 39,561 - (523) 39,038 (13,245)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=TELENEAME REREAN  2BEMRARETT)

5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(14).Intangible Assets (Continued)

For the six months ended 30 June 2015, the
amortization of intangible assets amounted to
RMB523,000 (for the six months ended 30 June 2014:
RMB761,000); in which, RMB523,000 (for the six
months ended 30 June 2014: RMB761,000) has been
recognized in the income statement.

As at 30 June 2015, certain land use rights and
buildings in properties under development of
the Group with net value of RMB39,038,000
(cost of RMB52,283,000) (31 December 2014:
RMB39,561,000, cost of RMB52,283,000)
have been mortgaged as security for long-term
borrowings of RMB619,000,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB635,000,000) (note 5(28)(d)), which are also
guaranteed by the Company.

The land use rights analyzed by location and terms are
as follows:

f. SOtEB®wKRIAR M)

(14). B EE (&)

HEe-_Z—hRFE~~A=1tHB1t
NEABE EREENBE
4+ A ARES23,000T(EE
“E—NEAA=THIEAE
AHIE - AR®761,0000T) °
HAst AEHEZNEEAA
R#523,000(HE=-_ZF—I
FXRNAZTHIE/NEABRE
AR#761,0007T) °

R-ZEBE—RFA=1+H "%
B A AR % 39,038,000t (R
B4 AR #52,283,0007T) HY
T FERAE( T —mFE+=
A=Z+—8B: FEAARKE
39,561,000 c(REAARE
52,283,0007T) ) tE A AR ¥
619,000,000 7t & B f& X &9 1K
WY (—E—NF+_A=+—
H : A K ¥ 635,000,000 T )
(M EEF(28)(d)) * WH AR F]
REER -

T AR E R R TR
DITEAT ¢

30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—E-RfF —E—UF

ANA=tR +Z-HA=1+—H

Mainland China AL B A s
10-50 years 10—50%F

39,038 39,561
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(15).Long-term receivables

h. SOtEB®mKRIAR M)

(15). R A B WK

30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—E-IF —FT-mF
~NA=+H +=-A=+—H
Receivables due from joint  FEULA & A FIERRK
ventures (note 8(5)(b)) (P FE(5)(b)) 913,500 -
Receivables due from A SNGIRE
associates (note 8(5)(b)) (F33E\(5)(b)) 316,085 308,227
Debt investments (a) U ERETR & (a) 546,056 238,745
Others Hith 1,392 15,052
Subtotal INet 1,777,033 562,024
Less: Current portion of B - —F R R HIR K HR
long-term receivables JE WK - -
Total = 1,777,033 562,024
(@) The balance is the principle and interest of () FZFRIEEASEE ¥R KT

the AUD debt investment in Australia real
estate project. Of which principle amounted to
AUD15,100,000 (equivalent to RMB71,977,000)
and the interest will be matured on 31 August
2016 with an expected annual interest rate of
19%, principle amounted to AUD44,579,000
(equivalent to RMB212,494,000) and the
interest will be matured on 31 January 2018
with an expected annual interest rate of
20%, principle amounted to AUD20,000,000
(equivalent to RMB95,333,000) and the interest
will be matured on 30 December 2016 with an
expected annual interest rate of 20%, principle
amounted to AUD25,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB119,167,000) and the interest is expected
to be matured on 21 October 2016 with an
expected annual interest rate of 20%.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% AR B o

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE-Z-AFAASHALAEANN (B3R - SEERBARETT)

5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

f. SOtEB®wKRIAR M)

(16). Goodwiill (16). &
31 December 30 June
2014  Additions  Disposals 2015
ZE-ME —%-1f
+=A ~H
=+-H R H 58 0 PNt} R =tH
Goodwill HE-
Beijing Capital Juda HElEX 172,137 = = 172,137
Less: provision for impairment & - BB = = - S
Net R 172,137 - - 172,137

Goodwill listed above was generated from the
acquisition of Beijing Capital Juda in 2013, as a
result of expected economic effect of integrating
and expanding the domestic and foreign financial
platform of the Group and Beijing Capital Juda. The
goodwill is mainly attributing to listing platform of
Beijing Capital Juda and its business.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-RFAA=TRIENEASE CRERIFERS - SRBLA/ARBETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(17). Derivative financial assets

F. SOt SRR IE B MR #)

(17).$T£€®MI A

30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—E-hHF —T—MF
ARA=+H +=ZA=+—H
Financial derivative PTEERMEE/
assets/(liabilities) (B8E)
Forward foreign exchange & EISNES 49
contracts — cash flow - REeEnEEH
hedges 29,185 (3,452)
Total 4B =t 29,185 (3,452)

The Group has purchased foreign exchange contracts
which effectively match with maturity dates of cash
flow for all AUD debt investments, so as to avoid
exchange risk of AUD debt investments(note(15)(a)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% AR B o

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=TELENEAME REREAN  2BEMRARETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED h. & BHR&RIEE M @)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(18).Provisions for impairment of assets (18). EEREEE
Reductions
KEED
31 December Through Through 30 June
2014  Additions reversal realization 2015
—E-F —E-hF
+=RA ~A
=1+-H AEE M B[ e =1H
Provisions for doubtful debts 12EREH 48,791 - = = 48,791
including: Hep e
accounts receivable JEMER R
BRERE 7,000 - - - 7,000
other receivables Hp IR
BRERE 41,791 - - - 41,791
Inventories falling price FERELE
reserves 308,394 93,443 - (168,868) 232,969
Provisions for held for BEREEE
sale assets AL 14,899 - - (14,899) -
Total ST 372,084 93,443 - (183,767) 281,760

(19). Short-term borrowings (19). EHIE R

30 June 31 December

Currency 2015 2014
“B-HE —T-MmOF
~A +=A
i =tH =+—H
Unsecured loans (a) ERER@Q) RMBA R 402,600 200,000
HKD& & 4,004 12,070

Secured loans: ERER - Hh
~ Guaranteed (b) —1RE(b) RMBAR® 150,000 179,000
USDZETT 76,420 -
- Mortgaged (c) — () RMBAR & 400,000 497,900
— Pledged (d) —EH(d) RMBAR & 2,670,000 2,100,000
USD%TT 210,919 211,105
- Guaranteed, mortgaged —{REE /K4 RMBA R - 760,000
- Guaranteed, pledged (e) —R&E B H(e) RMBA R & 1,400,000 400,000
- Mortgaged, pledged () —H| B RMBA R 800,000 400,000
- Guaranteed, mortgaged, —RE/ER RMBA R & 900,000 900,000

pledged (g) B 1(g)

Total Gl 7,013,943 5,660,075
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

HEZ

5.

T-RFANA=THIENEADRE CRERERI  SREM/ARETIT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(19).Short-term borrowings (Continued)

(a) Unsecured loans

As at 30 June 2015, short-term borrowings
of RMB402,600,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB200,000,000) are unsecured loans gained

by the Company.

As at 30 June 2015, short-term borrowings
denominated in HKD equivalent to RMB4,004,000
(31 December 2014: RMB12,070,000) are

unsecured loans gained by the Group.

(b) Guaranteed loans

As at 30 June 2015, short-term borrowings
of RMB150,000,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB179,000,000) are guaranteed by the

Company.

As at 30 June 2015, short-term borrowings of
USD76,420,000 (31 December 2014: Nil) are

guaranteed by the Company.

(c) Mortgaged loans

As at 30 June 2015, short-term borrowings
RMB400,000,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB497,900,000) are secured by certain
land use rights in properties and buildings in
properties under development of the Group

(note 5(6)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
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—RFENAZTELENEAMSE RERIEAN  SREMASARKETT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(19).Short-term borrowings (Continued)
(d) Pledged loans

As at 30 June 2015, short-term borrowings
of RMB470,000,000 (31 December 2014:
Nil) are secured by the pledge of a deposit of

RMB500,000,000.

As at 30 June 2015, short-term borrowings of
RMB1,000,000,000 (31 December 2014: Nil) are
pledged by 20% of the equity interest of the

Group.

As at 30 June 2015, short-term borrowings
of RMB1,200,000,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB2,100,000,000) are secured by the pledge

of certain bank deposit of the Group.

As at 30 June 2015, short-term borrowings
denominated in USD equivalent to RMB210,919,000
(31 December 2014: RMB211,105,000) are secured
by the pledge of certain bank deposit of the Group.

(e) Guaranteed and pledged loans

As at 30 June 2015, short-term borrowings
of RMB1,400,000,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB400,000,000) are secured by the pledge of
100% equity of the Group and guaranteed by

the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

HEZ

5.

T-RFNA=THIENEADRRE GRERIERN

C ERBUAARKTIT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(19).Short-term borrowings (Continued)

(f)

(9)

Mortgaged and pledged loans

As at 30 June 2015, short-term borrowings
RMB400,000,000 (31 December 2014: Nil) are
secured by certain land use rights and buildings
in properties under development of the Group
and pledged by the Group’s usufruct of property
development (note 5(6)).

As at 30 June 2015, short-term borrowings
of RMB400,000,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB400,000,000) are secured by the mortgage
of certain land use rights and buildings in
properties under development of the Group and
by the pledge of security deposits (note 5(6)).

Guaranteed, mortgaged and pledged loans

As at 30 June 2015, short-term borrowings
of RMB900,000,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB900,000,000) are secured by the mortgage
of certain land use rights in properties under
development of the Group and by the pledge
of 100% equity of the Group with guarantees
provided by the Company (note 5(6)).

For the six months ended 30 June 2015,
the weighted-average interest of short-term
borrowings is 8.8% (for the six months ended 30
June 2014: 10.5%).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE-Z-AFAASHALAEANN (B3R - SEERBARETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(20). Accounts payable

The aging analysis of accounts payable is as follows:

f. SOtEB®wKRIAR M)

(20). P&+ BR X

FEAT BR FUIR EL A BR B B AR ik
DR -

30 June 31 December

2015 2014

—ZE—HE —E—E

ANA=+H +=-A=+—H

Within 1 year —FER 3,288,481 2,154,123
Over 1 year —F A F 1,121,190 1,895,395
Total EF 4,409,671 4,049,518

(21). Advances from customers

(21). AWK IE

30 June 31 December
2015 2014
=i —TmF

AA=+R +Z-A=+—H

Advances from sales of properties §i%¢18 B 78 & (i)

under development (i) 13,800,197 11,606,650
Hotel advances B IS FE YR 14,621 13,321
Total A&t 13,814,818 11,619,971

(i) Advances from sales of properties under
development are amounts proceed from
customers. As such properties are not
available for use at the end of 30 June 2015,
corresponding revenue was not recognized.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B AR R

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

HEZ

5.

Z-RFARA=TRIEANEASE RERIFERS -

ERBEN/ARETIT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(22). Employee benefits payable

F. SOt SRR IE B MR #)

(22). FE 1< B8 T 57 P

30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—E—FHF —E-HF
ARA=+H +=ZA=+—H
Short-term employee JE AT 58 ER 7 Bl (a)
benefits payable (a) 63,038 207,097
Defined contribution plans &I &% E IR FaT21(b)
payable (b) 1,279 2,698
Total ST 64,317 209,795
(a) Short-term employee benefits payable (a) EHAEEA
31 December 30 June
2014 Increase Decrease 2015
-] —2-1%
+=A ~A
=+-H RE M RERE D =+H
Wages and salaries, bonuses, T#& « #4 « 2B
allowances and subsidies fa Bk 77,203 149,057 (210,197) 16,063
Staff welfare BIRNE 477 1,041 (734) 784
Social security contributions  #&RBE 1,263 8,033 (8,762) 534
Including: Medical insurance E& : BB RHRE
premiums 1,020 7,056 (7,624) 452
Work injury IBRRE
insurance 99 599 (633) 65
Maternity insurance ERRE 144 378 (505) 17
Housing funds FERES 877 9,610 (10,406) 81
Labour union funds and TeRENHT
employee education funds ~ HEKE 7,342 1,741 (1,280) 7,803
Profit-sharing plan MESZE 95,963 = (86,000) 9,963
Director’s emoluments BEETHS 22,616 5,575 (405) 27,786
Other Hit 1,356 231 (1,563) 24
Total CEl 207,097 175,288 (319,347 63,038
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% AR B o

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE-Z-AFAASHALAEANN (B3R - SEERBARETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED h. & BHR&RIEE M @)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(22). Employee benefits payable (Continued) (22). BB T 5N (&)
(b) Defined contribution plans payable (b) REREE
31 December 30 June
2014 Increase Decrease 2015
—E-& —E-hfF
+=H ~A
=t+-H AREE A FHEL =8
Basic social pension security EABZRR 2,357 14,106 (15,327) 1,136
Annuity FEHE 225 924 (1,085) 64
Unemployment security KERBE 116 849 (886) 79
Total At 2,698 15879 (17,298) 1,279
(23). Taxes payable (23).EXHE
30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—E—HEF —ZF—F
AA=tH +Z-HA=+—H
Enterprise income tax payable  JEX{>¥FSH 660,729 769,103
Land appreciation tax payable  fEX + b IB(EF 978,617 1,484,184
Business tax payable JERR GRS 128,857 205,854
Others Hh 13,192 23,450
Total At 1,781,395 2,482,591
(24). Dividends payable (24). FE {3 B F
30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—E-hHF —T—MMF
~NA=tH +=-A=+—8H
Reco Ziyang s K F5 39,462 802,124
Dividend of senior perpetual = AK BB 7B AR
securities 66,249 98,422
Dividend of Minsheng Jiayin REMBREREE
Asset Management Plan sTEIAEF 107,796 155,125
Dividend of Tiandi Fangzhong Kt HE&EE
Asset Management Plan ST EI A% F 69,520 =
Total BEr 283,027 1,055,671
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(25). Other payables

h. SOtEB®mKRIAR M)

(25). H A+ X

30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—Z-hF —ET—-F
~NA=+H +=-A=+—H
Payables to associates JEATESE 2 R B 2R R
(note 8(5)(e)) (Bt EN(B)E)) 281,457 409,958
Payables to joint ventures ERE & AR ERR
(note 8(5)(e)) (KT EN(G)E)) 156,360 933,347
Collection of deeds tax and RUWHF R EEE S
maintenance funds on
behalf of government 229,096 224,246
Tender bond KERER 69,944 45,570
Loans due to Non- FREDEPERE )
controlling shareholders of  (Fff;%\(5)(e))
subsidiaries(i)(note 8(5)(e)) 56,714 56,714
Interest payable to related  JE{RAEE 5 7 &8
parties(note8(5)(h)) (B ENA(B)h)) 68,220 13,273
Deposits from customers EEI2 110,182 54,038
Payables for operations BB B&EERR 145,548 263,933
Advances from equity TE Lt A e 6 R )
disposal(ii) 20,000 163,574
Others H 372,637 389,454
Total = 1,510,158 2,554,107

(i)

(i)

(iii)

As at 30 June 2015, loans borrowed from non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries are loan
provided by Reco Ziyang to Chengdu Xinzi.
Of which, loan provided by Reco Ziyang to
Chengdu Xinzi amounted to RMB56,714,000,
which is interest free, unsecured, and with no
maturity date, for that reason the loan has aged
over one year but not closed off yet.

RMB 20,000,000 is generated from disposal of
10% equity interests of Hainan Dalecheng (Note
5(7)), since procedure of share transfer is still
incomplete, it has not been closed off yet.

As at 30 June 2015, other accounts
payable aging over one year amounted to
RMB105,805,000, which is mainly for business
activities, since it has no maturity date, it has not
been closed off yet.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % SRk MY 5E
For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-—RFAA=TRIEANEASE RERIFERS - RBLAARBETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED h. SOt IRERIBEE M (#)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(26). Current portion of non-current liabilities (26). —FAZHMFERBERE

30 June 31 December

Currency 2015 2014
—E-HE —TUE

& RNA=+H +tZA=1—H

Long-term borrowings ~ —ERZIHNRHIE R RMB
due within one year (X F(28)) AR
(note5(28)) 5,384,300 3,930,900
Equity instrument TRRTAR IERRERS AT () RMB
terminated in advance (i) AR® 2,010,000 -
Debentures payable —F AR N ENES RMB
due within one year (FFsEF(29)) AR
(note5(29)) 1,994,027 1,988,703
Total A&t 9,388,327 5,919,603
(i) The balance is Minsheng Jiayin Specific Assets (i) ZFREREARENRES
Management Plan terminated in advance, it is MIRFEBEEE - AR
secured by the pledge of equity of the Group ANAERHEER - AR
and guaranteed by the Company. The principal SEREERBEMR K
will be due for repayment in 20 December 2015 CER_ZTE—RHF+=
(Note4(2)2(b)). AZt+BAEZE(KEM
(2)2(b)) °
(27). Liabilities classified as held for sale (27). Blo AEFEHFENEE
(note 5(7)) (MtsEF(7))
30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—E-HF —T-lEF
ARA=+H +ZA=+—H
Short-term borrowings 5REER - 40,000
Accounts payable P BR K - 176
Taxes payable BB = 3,116
Deferred taxes liabilities EIEFTERBE = 3,081
Other payables H Ath FE A 3K - 2,796
Total = - 49,169
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED f. OB ERERIE B ek (#)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(28).Long-term borrowings (28). RAAMERK

31 December

Currency 30 June 2015 2014
“E-1% —T-mF

% AA=tR t-A=t—H

Unsecured loans (a) =FfE () RMBA R 2,397,000 597,000
Secured loans: ERMER - 2 -
- Guaranteed (b) A () RMBAR® 4,497,550 3,558,000
- Mortgaged (c) —EH () RMBAR® 5,523,400 3,642,302
- Guaranteed, mortgaged (d) —REB/H A (d) RMBA R# 10,162,810 8,529,960
- Guaranteed, pledged (e) — R, EH(e) RMBA R 1,506,000 795,000
- Guaranteed, mortgaged, — (R A G (f) RMBA R#& 760,000 540,000
pledged (f)
— Debt investment plan (g) — &R &R E(g) RMBA R ¥ 4,000,000 4,000,000
Subtotal INEt 28,846,760 21,662,262

Less: Long-term borrowings due J& - —F R E|H&) K H

within one year including: fE5k - Hep
Unsecured loans (a) =RERQ) RMBA R - =
Secured loans: BRIER - B -
- Guaranteed (b) —R#&(b) RMBAK® (1,465,000) (850,000)
- Mortgaged (c) — () RMBAR® (625,700) (1,134,800
- Guaranteed, mortgaged (d) — R/ HE () RMBAK® (2,803,600)  (1,326,100)
- Guaranteed, pledged (e) — R/ B (e) RMBA R (330,000) (180,000)
- Guaranteed, mortgaged, —(RE /A EH() RMBA K& (160,000) (440,000)
pledged (f)
Subtotal N5 (5,384,300) (3,930,900)
Net long-term borrowings ekt 23,462,460 17,731,362
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(28).Long-term borrowings (Continued)

As at 30 June 2015, long-term borrowings include:

(a)

(b)

Unsecured loans

As at 30 June 2015, bank borrowings of
RMB2,397,000,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB597,000,000) are unsecured loans gained
by the Company.

Guaranteed loans

As at 30 June 2015, the guaranteed loans
of RMB4,497,550,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB3,558,000,000) guaranteed by the Group.
Of which, RMB2,027,550,000 (31 December
2014: RMB1,778,000,000) are guaranteed by
the Company; RMB700,000,000 (31 December
2014: RMB Nil) are guaranteed by the Group for
the Company; RMB770,000,000 (31 December
2014: RMB780,000,000) are guaranteed
by Capital Group and the Company for its
subsidiaries; RMB1,000,000,000 (31 December
2014: RMB1,000,000,000) are guaranteed by
Capital Group for the Company. Among the
loans above, as RMB1,465,000,000 should be
repaid on or before 30 June 2016, such amount
was classified as long-term borrowings due
within one year in financial statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(28).Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(c) Mortgaged loans

As at 30 June 2015, bank borrowing of
RMB3,148,200,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB968,300,000) were secured by the mortgage
of certain land use rights in properties under
development of the Group (note 5(6)). Of which,
the interests of RMB1,974,260,000 are payable
quarterly, interests of RMB1,173,940,000 are
payable monthly, and the principal is due for
repayment by installments before October 2021.
Among the loans above, RMB195,700,000
should be repaid on or before 30 May 2016, such
amount was classified as long-term borrowings
due within one year in financial statement.

As at 30 June 2015, bank borrowing of
RMB840,000,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB570,000,000) were secured by the
mortgage of certain buildings and land use
rights in investment properties of the Group
(note 5(12)). Interests are payable quarterly,
and the principal is due for repayment by
installments on or before 15 December 2020.
Among the loans above, as RMB60,000,000
should be repaid on or before 30 June 2016,
such amount was classified as long-term
borrowings due within one year in financial

statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(28).Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(c)

Mortgaged loans (Continued)

As at 30 June 2015, bank borrowing of
RMB385,000,000(31 December 2014:
RMB521,900,000) were secured by the
mortgage of certain buildings of the Group
(note 5(6)). Of which, interests of principal
of RMB240,000,000 are payable quarterly,
interests of principal of RMB145,000,000
are payable monthly. The principal is due
for repayment by installment on or before
October 2021. Among the loans above, as
RMB240,000,000 should be repaid on or before
30 June 2016, such amount was classified as
long-term borrowings due within one year in
financial statement.

As at 30 June 2015, bank borrowing of
RMB1,150,200,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB1,463,502,000) were secured by
certain buildings and land use rights under
development of the Group (note 5(6)). Of
which, interests of principal of RMB881,500,000
are payable quarterly, interests of principal of
RMB268,700,000 are payable monthly. The
principal is due for repayment by installment
before October 2021. Among the loans above,
as RMB 130,000,000 should be repaid before 30
June 2016, such amount was classified as long-
term borrowings due within one year in financial
statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(28).Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(d) Guaranteed and mortgaged loans

As at 30 June 2015, the guaranteed and
mortgaged loans of the Group amounted
to RMB10,162,810,000 (31 December
2014: RMB8,529,960,000).0f which,
RMB4,130,500,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB3,182,100,000) is guaranteed by the
Company for its subsidiaries and secured by
residential properties and land use rights in
properties under development (note 5(6)) of
the Group; RMB2,923,310,000 (31 December
2014: RMB2,167,860,000) is guaranteed
by the Company for its subsidiaries and
secured by land use rights in properties
under development (note 5(6)) of the Group;
RMB437,000,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB457,000,000) is guaranteed by the
Company and secured by certain residential
properties in properties under development
(note 5(6)) of the Group. RMB485,000,000
(31 December 2014: RMB460,000,000) is
guaranteed by the Company and secured by
residential properties and land use rights in
certain investment properties (note 5(12)) of
the Group; RMB619,000,000 (31 December
2014: RMB635,000,000) is guaranteed by the
Company and secured by residential properties
and land use rights (note 5(13)) in intangible
assets (note 5(14)); RMB88,000,000 (31
December 2014: RMB98,000,000) is guaranteed
by the Group and secured by certain land
use rights in properties under development
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(28).Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(d) Guaranteed and mortgaged loans

(Continued)

(note 5(6)) of the Group; RMB260,000,000
(31 December 2014: RMB310,000,000) is
guaranteed by the Group for the Company and
secured by residential properties and certain
land use rights in properties under development
(note 5(6)) of the Group, RMB1,220,000,000
(31 December 2014: RMB1,220,000,000) is
guaranteed by Capital Group for its subsidiaries
and secured by certain land use rights in
properties under development (note 5(6)) of
the Group, and the principle should be repaid
by installment on or before 30 May 2017.
Among the loans above, as RMB2,803,600,000
is due for repayment on or before 30 June
2016, such amount was classified as long-
term borrowings due within one year.
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(28).Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(e) Guaranteed and pledged loans

As at 30 June 2015, the guaranteed and
pledged loans of the Group amounted
to RMB1,506,000,000 (31 December
2014: RMB795,000,000). Of which,
RMB1,376,000,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB650,000,000) is guaranteed by the
Company and secured by the pledge of equity
of the Group. RMB65,000,000 (31 December
2014: RMB72,500,000) is guaranteed by the
Company, RMB65,000,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB72,500,000) is guaranteed by the rights
and gains of primary land development projects.
Among loans above, as RMB330,000,000 is due
for repayment on or before 30 June 2016, such
amount was classified as long-term borrowings
due within one year. Other principal is due for
repayment by installment before 30 June 2025.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(28).Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(f)

Guaranteed, mortgaged and pledged loans

As at 30 June 2015, the guaranteed, mortgaged
and pledged loans of the Group amounted
to RMB760,000,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB540,000,000). Of which, RMB600,000,000
(31 December 2014: RMB: Nil) is guaranteed
by the Company and secured by the mortgage
of certain land use rights in properties under
development (note 5(6)) of the Group, and
secured by the pledge of equity interest of
the Group; RMB160,000,000(31 December
2015: RMB540,000,000) is guaranteed by the
Company and secured by the mortgage of land
use rights in properties under development
of the Group (note 5(6)), and secured by the
pledge of gains from development project and
project insurance. Among the loans above, as
RMB160,000,000 is due for repayment before
30 June 2016, such amount was classified
as long-term borrowings due within one
year. Other principal is due for repayment by
installment before February 2017.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(28). Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(g) Debt investment plan

As at 30 June 2015, the Group received
RMB4,000,000,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB4,000,000,000) through a debt investment
plan. The loan was guaranteed by Capital
Group. Interests are payable quarterly and
the principal will be due for repayment by
installment before October 2019.

For the six months ended 30 June 2015, the
weighted average interest rate of long-term
borrowings is 7.6% (for the six months ended 30
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(29) Debentures payable (29). EH &S
Amortization
31 December Issue in of premium/ 30June Interestat
2014 current period  Reductions discount 2015 book value
“E-ME LU
1+-A “E-1f BEf
=t-A TR RFEEE  AHEE  ~AZtH FTHRHE
Corporate Bonds (a,b) NalEH(ab) 1,988,703 2,972,100 5,782 - 4,966,585 88,423
Medium term notes (c) HEZE() 3217112 - 6,198 - 3,223,310 94,741
Among which: Debentures ~ E R - —ERE|HH
payable within one year (a)  FEfTE4(a) (1,988,703) = (5,324) - (1,994,027) 76,000
Total Ser 3217112 2,972,100 6,656 - 6,195,868 259,164
Information about bonds is as follow: BHFEBEEESNT :
Release
Book value Date of issue Duration amount
HE ¥7RH E5ER ¥1eE
2 billion RMB bonds WEAREES 2,000,000 2911112012 3 years 1,966,049
201245115298 3
2 billon medium term note 202 2,000,000 17/0212014 3 years 1,965,029
201428178 3
250 million medium )SEMREEE 250,000 17/02/2014 5 years 245,627
term note 2014524178 5
1 billion medium termnote ~ 10[EREZ 1,000,000 04/04/2014 Matured at 1,002,261
2014E4 A48 1610212017
2017827168 515
3 billion corporate bonds 30BN EES 3,000,000 27/05/2015 5 years 2,972,100
2015%55/27H 5
209 HAIBXRMGARAE T —AFHHHRE
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5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(29). Debentures payable (Continued)

(@) On 29 November 2012, Central Plaza, a
subsidiary of the Company issued corporate
bonds amounted to RMB2,000,000,000. The
Company received proceeds amounted to
RMB1,966,049,000 net of issuance costs,
and RMB152,000,000 among the proceeds
are security deposits for bond interests. The
bond carries a fixed annual interest rate of
7.6% with a maturity period of 3 years, and
the interest will be paid every six months. The
principal and the interests for the last period
will be fully repayable on the maturity date. IFC
and some subsidiaries provided unconditional
and irrevocable joint guarantees and the
Company entered into a Keepwell Deed for
the bonds. Pursuant to the Keepwell Deed, the
Company commits to assist Central Plaza to
remain solvent and going concern at all times,
to assist both Central Plaza and IFC to have
sufficient liquidity to ensure timely payment of
any amounts payable in respect of the Bonds
and the Guarantee in accordance with the
Terms and Conditions of the Bonds and other
obligations under the Keepwell Deed. Principal
shall be repaid in 28 November 2015 therefore
it is reclassed as current portions of non-current

liabilities.
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(29). Debentures payable (Continued)

(b) On 20 May 2015, China Securities Regulatory
Commission approved the Company’s request
to issue domestic corporate bonds no more
than RMB3,000,000,000. On 29 May 2015,
The Company issued domestic corporate
bonds amounted to RMB3,000,000,000. The
Company received proceeds amounted to
RMB2,972,100,000 net of issuance costs. The
bond carries a fixed annual interest rate of
4.58% with a maturity period of 5 years, and
the interest will be paid every year. The principal
and the interests for the last period will be fully

repayable on the maturity date.

() On 10 February, 2014, the Board of Directors
of the Company announced the establishment
of medium-term notes and perpetual securities
program. Under the plan, Central Plaza may
issue and offer to professional and institutional
investors and issuers of securities, the principal
limit up to USD1,000,000,000 (or the equivalent
in other currencies currency units). Securities will
be issued in different batches release date and
different terms. IFC and part of its subsidiaries
provided guarantees and the Company entered
into a Keepwell Deed for the medium-term
notes. Pursuant to the Keepwell Deed, the
Company will undertake to cause Central Plaza
to remain solvent and going concern at all times,
and guarantee both Central Plaza and IFC have
sufficient liquidity to ensure timely repayment
in respect of the bonds and the guarantee in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the
bonds and other obligations under the Keepwell

Deed.
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HBITERE ARAE
BRI EFFEABARK
2,972,100,000 7T ° #% &
FHIRABRF  HKAER
BFFE - BEFFEAR
458% * BFENE—IX
BH—RMEELrAST S
& —HFIE o

R-ZZF—WMF = A+
H' ARAIBEEEEE
RIHPHHER R KEFE
FHar gl o BRFZETE
Central Plazam] [A] & % &
BEBREEREZHER
BITHSHF A& ERB
1,000,000,000 3 7t ( 3 JA
HEKABUNEER
Be) o BHEBRATRIETT
B H KR R G FR 0 #t 3
T RFHEERAIFCRHE
B F A AR AR
O R ESETER
NIz NI R - )
%o BEBHTHZE  AQ
B & 1 Bh Central Plaza
TEAEfA] B = 75 (1 B 0 F0
SFE & Z 0 17 B Central
PlazafMIFCEBE TR E &
B - ERERBP
T AR A R R S A
PRI R ERAEMR
ERNRESHETHRET
MEME -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=TELENEAME REREAN  2BEMRARETT)

5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(29). Debentures payable (Continued)

On 17 February 2014, Central Plaza issued
corporate bonds amounted to RMB2,000,000,000.
The Company received proceeds amounted to
RMB1,965,029,000 net of issuance costs. The bond
carries a fixed annual interest rate of 5.75% with a
maturity period of 3 years, and the interest will be
paid every six months. The principal will be repaid
together with interest of the last period.

On 17 February 2014, Central Plaza issued corporate
bonds amounted to RMB250,000,000. The Company
received proceeds amounted to RMB245,627,000
net of issuance costs. The bond carries a fixed annual
interest rate of 6.875% with a maturity period of 5
years, and the interest will be paid every six months.
The principle will be repaid together with the interest
of the last period.

On 4 April 2014, Central Plaza issued medium term
notes amounted to RMB1,000,000,000. The company
received proceeds amounted to RMB1,002,261,000
net of issuance costs. The bond carries a fixed annual
interest rate of 5.75% and the maturity date is 16
February 2017. The interest will be paid every six
months. The principle will be repaid together with the
interest of the last period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(30). Long-term payables

F. SOt SRR IE B MR #)

(30). R BT FK

30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—E-HF —T-mF
ANB=+H +=-A=+—8H
CITIC Prudential Asset REEREEER
Management Co., Ltd. BR AT (A TEE
("CITIC Prudential”) (a) [ {EEH]) @) 650,000 650,000
Donghai Securities Co., Ltd. REBBEHFBRMDBRAT]
(“Donghai Securities”) (AT 818 [RgEH]) = 880,000
Chengdu Capital Changli K EEI RN PEER
Enterprise management AL
consulting Consulting Center 10,250 =
Total =) 660,250 1,530,000
(@) As at 30 June 2015, the amount is the principal @ R-ZZE—REFA~NA=T

of borrowings due to the CITIC Prudential,
which is a three-year borrowing expired on 29
May 2017 with an annual interest rate of 10%,
guaranteed by the Company, pledged by equity
interests of the Group and secured by certain
buildings and land use rights under development

of the Group (note 5(6)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% AR B o

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE-Z-AFAASHALAEANN (B3R - SEERBARETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 5. SOtErEERERIE B MR (@)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(31). Deferred tax assets and deferred tax BN EEFEHEEMERE
liabilities
(a) Deferred tax assets before offsetting (a) RLILEHWIELFRSE
BE
As 30 June 2015 As at 31 December 2014
“E-FEXNA=tH —E-ME+-A=+-H
Deductible Deductible
Deferred  temporary Deferred  temporary
tax assets  differences tax assets  differences
B AN BT aEm

FIEREE ERHMER MGEHEE ERUEER

Provision for asset BERNEERE

impairment 22,411 89,644 10,078 40,312
Accrued salariesand  TBIRTE R EMKAEF

other cost and

expenses 37,081 148,324 65,420 261,680
Accumulated losses ESda 311,286 1,245,144 166,931 667,724
Internal unrealized HERNBRERFE

profits elimination 160,772 643,088 150,207 600,828
Total G 531,550 2,126,200 392,636 1,570,544
Including: Hep

Amount of expected B IMER(E1F)

reversal within EO e
1 year (including
1 year) 87,206 348,824 130,799 523,196

Amount of expected  TBFIMERBEEINEE
reversal beyond
1 year 444,344 1,777,376 261,837 1,047,348
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(31). Deferred tax assets and deferred tax GBNIEEFEHEEMERE
liabilities (Continued) (#&)

(a) REEHNELEREHE

F. SOt SRR IE B MR #)

(a) Deferred tax assets before offsetting

(Continued)

As at 30 June 2015, the Group has
not recognized deferred tax assets in
respect of deductible losses amounting to
RMB1,815,937,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB1,291,109,000), which will be expired as
follows:

E(E)

RZE—RAFENA= ‘f‘
B AEBEXRSEAENES
B AR #1,815,937,000
T (=2 — M F + =
A=+—H: AR#¥
1,291,109,0007T ) HE R 4H

FRNELEHRSHEE - £
AR MERZ M A S

mar -
30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—E-HF —T-mEF
ANB=+H +=ZRA=+—8H
2015 2015 55,147 55,147
2016 2016 239,400 239,400
2017 2017 257,604 257,604
2018 2018 257,898 257,898
2019 2019 481,060 481,060
2020 2020 524,828 =
Total a5t 1,815,937 1,291,109
As at 30 June 2015, the Group has not recognized RZE-—REXA=T
deferred tax assets in respect of deductible asset B AEEREEERE
impairment losses amounting to RMB 183,635,000 Bk AR ¥ 183,635,000
(31 December 2014: RMB331,769,000). T (ZF — m F+ =
A=+—8: AR¥
331,769 OOOE)EEE%UFH 3
HEEFTSTAE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=TELENEAME REREAN  2BEMRARETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 5. SOtErEERERIE B MR (@)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(31). Deferred tax assets and deferred tax BN EEFEHEEMERE
liabilities (Continued) (#&)
(b) Deferred tax liabilities before offsetting (b) KL HWIELRE
=L
As 30 June 2015 As at 31 December 2014
“E-FEXNA=tH —E-ME+-A=+-H
Deferred Taxable Deferred Taxable
tax temporary tax  temporary
liabilities differences liabilities  differences
B EHH R JE At

FEsaR TRHMER MGHEE ERUEER

Withholding income tax X3 &FSH 8,220 88,530 8,220 88,530
Change in fairvalue  AIftHES R
of available-for-sale ~ BEAAR

financial assets EBEE 4,107 16,431 2,005 8,023
Business combination  JER—12%IT

not under common TEAH

control 182,990 731,960 249,400 997,600

Changes in fair value of 3 ABRAIREEEHE

investment properties AR EES

recognized in profit

or loss 513,676 2,054,703 275,058 1,100,232
Capitalized interest BARLFIE 472,339 1,889,356 335,921 1,343,681
Changes in fair value of 3t AEZEHIREEEHE

investment properties AR EEZE

recognized in other (FzEF(45))

comprehensive

income (note 5(45)) 188,896 755,584 188,896 755,584

Total &t 1,370,228 5,536,564 1,059,500 4,293,650

Including: Hep e
Amount of expected  TEFHTMER(E14E)
reversal within BOMEH
1 year (including
1 year) 135,905 543,620 317,352 1,269,408
Amount of expected B MFLELONEE
reversal beyond
1 year 1,234,323 4,992,944 742,148 3,024,242
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-RFAA=TRIENEASE CRERIFERS - SRBLA/ARBETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED B. GOt R IEE M EE )
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(31). Deferred tax assets and deferred tax GN.EELEFEHEEMERE
liabilities (Continued) (#&)
(c) The net balances of deferred tax assets and () KEHEBNELEFMSHEE
liabilities after offsetting are as follows: FIELEFRBHEEFEES
AT
30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—EB-RE —E—UF
ANA=+H +-A=+—H
Deferred tax assets-net TSR EE S5 404,775 302,854
Deferred tax liabilities-net RIEFSH B E 8 1,243,453 969,718
(32).Share capital (32). B &
Number of Share
shares capital
B & (&N
(in thousand) (RMB’'000)
(TR (F7)
Registered, issued and BEETK
fully paid: R
as at 30 June 2015 R_ZE-—hFA=1H 2,027,960 2,027,960
Registered, issued and BEEITR
fully paid: BRI
as at 31 December 2014 R-ZE—NE+—A=+—H 2,027,960 2,027,960
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-—RFAA=TRIEANEASE RERIFERS - RBLAARBETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED B. &0t R IE B M )
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(33). Capital surplus (33).EXANTE
31 December 30 June
2014 Additions  Reductions 2015
—T-MmEF “E-EF
+=A ~H
=+—H AHIE N AERL =+H
Share premium BRAEE
(note 4(4)) (FfEm(m)) 670,135 - (125351) 544,784
Compensation on BRAEH
LAT granted by BELTH
promoters EEH 35,974 - - 35,974
Total Bar 706,109 - (125,351) 580,758
31 December 30 June
2013 Additions  Reductions 2014
- —E—NF
+=A ~NA
=+—H AHHE N AERL =1H
Share premium BARE 796,476 54,776 - 851,252
Compensation on FERAEGH
LAT granted by WELTH
promoters BER 35,974 = = 35,974
Total &= 832,450 54,776 - 887,226
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(34).Surplus reserve

F. SOt SRR IE B MR #)

(34). B 1ATE

31 December 30 June
2014 Additions  Reductions 2015
—TE “E-nf
+=A ~A
=t+-H AREE M AERL =tH
Statutory surplus EERBRES
reserve 360,628 - - 360,628
31 December 30 June
2013 Additions  Reductions 2014
“Z-=F —E-F
+=A ~A
=+—H AEE N KER D =+H
Statutory surplus EERBRES
reserve 341,768 - - 341,768

In accordance with the Company Law and the
Company’s Articles of Association, the Company
should appropriate 10% of net profit for the year
to the statutory surplus reserve, and the Company
can cease appropriation when the statutory surplus
reserve accumulated to more than 50% of the
registered capital. The statutory surplus reserve can
be used to make up for the loss or increase the
paid in capital after approval from the appropriate
authorities. The Company didn’t appropriate surplus
reserve (for the six months ended 30 June 2014: nil)
for the six months ended 30 June 2015.

The Company appropriates for the discretionary
surplus reserve after the shareholders’ meeting
approves the proposal from the Board of Directors.
The discretionary surplus reserve can be used to
make up for the loss or increase the paid in capital
after approval from the appropriate authorities. The
Company did not appropriate discretionary surplus
reserve for the six months ended 30 June 2015 (for
the six months ended 30 June 2014: nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—

5.

—RFENAZTELENEAMSE RERIEAN  SREMASARKETT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(35). Undistributed profits

As at 30 June 2015, among the undistributed profits,
subsidiaries’ surplus reserve attributable to the
parent company amounted to RMB1,013,783,000(31
December 2014: RMB1,013,783,000). For the six
months ended 30 June 2015, surplus reserve accrued
by the subsidiaries attributable to the parent company
is nil (for the six months ended 30 June 2014: nil).

In accordance with the resolution at the General
Meeting of Shareholders held on 14 March 2014,
the Company declared a cash dividend of RMB0.22
per share to the shareholder for the year of 2013,
which amounted to RMB446,151,000 based on
the Company’s total number of issued shares of
2,027,960,000.

In accordance with the resolution at the General
Meeting of Shareholders held on 31 March 2015,
the Company declared a cash dividend of RMB0.25
per share to the shareholders for the year 2014,
which amounted to RMB506,990,000 based on
the Company’s total number of issued shares of
2,027,960,000.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RFANA=TBEENEAMSE BRERIFEHAD -

ERBEN/ARETIT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(36). Revenue and cost of sales

f.

&Pt E S Rk 18 B MY s ()

(36). E R AME KA

Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2015 30 June 2014
BEZE-Z— 1 HE_ZT—NF
NA=1H ~NA=1+H
1E751E A B 1E751E A HA
Revenue from main operations (a) 3 & % /U A (a) 5,429,482 4,418,566
Revenue from other operations (b)  E th 2 #E U A (b) 17,762 100,767
Total BET 5,447,244 4,519,333
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2015 30 June 2014
BE-Z—1F #Hz—_ZT—NNF
NA=+HLE SNA=Z+THIE
7~ 1B B Hi 7~ E A HA
Cost of sales from main ES—EV 1% NE)
operations (a) 4,387,726 3,134,476
Cost of sales from other H 4t Z A 7N (b)
operations (b) 1,647 90,209
Total art 4,389,373 3,224,685

(a) EEXBWANMEERHK

(a) Revenue and cost of sales from main

operations KA
Six months ended Six months
30 June 2015 ended 30 June 2014
BE-_E-1f BE-T—E
AAZTHLEAERGE S~A=THLEANEABH
Main Main Main Main
operating  operating operating  operating
revenue costs revenue costs

EY ] T8 T T

*= t=
£ TN EBEA  EBRA EBAAR

Sales of properties and  EitiEE

related consulting KB L ARG

services 5,320,690 4,349,697 4,337,215 3,092,808
Rental revenue of BEFHAERA

outlets 66,567 - 38,547 -
Hotel services EEE 42,225 38,029 42,804 41,668
Total B 5,429,482 4,387,726 4,418,566 3,134,476
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE-Z-AFAASHALAEANN (B3R - SEERBARETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(36). Revenue and cost of sales (Continued)

(b) Revenue and cost of sales from other

f. SOtEB®wKRIAR M)

(36). ERWMAME R KA (#)
(b) HtEBWAMH bR

operations B A
Six months ended Six months
30 June 2015 ended 30 June 2014
BE-_E-1% BE-T—MF
AAZTRHIEAEASNE ASA=ZTHLEAEASHE
Other Other Other Other
operating  operating operating operating
revenue costs revenue costs
Hitr Hitr Hith At
EBBA ERRA 3TN EBRA
Sales of investment REMFEWEHE
properties - - 4,788 3,443
Sales of chemical It IERBE
products = = 89,576 86,627
Other businesses Hip ¥ 17,762 1,647 6,403 139
Total a5t 17,762 1,647 100,767 90,209
(37). Tax and surcharges (37). 2 £H S KM in
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2015 30 June 2014
BE-Z—8F HE_T—DUF
NE=1+HL SNA=+HIE
ANMERHIE 7~ {E H HA A
Business tax EED 279,505 220,333
LAT T HIIEE R 84,098 58,613
Others HEmiie 39,201 25,130
Total At 402,804 304,076
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED h. B0t BEHRKRIER M@
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(38).Expenses by nature (38).EREZEMESE
Operating costs, sales expenses and management FMERPHEEKRK  HEE
expenses in the income statement classified by nature RAEEERERBREE S
are as follows: BRAE :
Six months Six months
ended ended

30 June 2015 30 June 2014
BE-Z—1F BE_ZTNF
~NA=THILE NA=1+HIE
<& A B 76 A EBA

Wages, social security and ITE& - R EEF)
welfare (i) 131,943 157,002
Administrative office expenses {TE I A & 37,190 39,415
Tax expenses e 14,220 15,299
Depreciation and amortization — #7& B2 ¢4 32,293 23,277
Travel and entertainment ERBEE
expenses 11,325 13,317
Intermediary service fee R RS E 42,361 47,970
Audit service and related ZERIEBE
expenses 2,100 1,600
Marketing and commission fee %45 % A4 E A 234,393 175,312
Costs of properties sold THE B HETR B ;A 4,302,734 2,995,852
Cost of sales in hotel services — E2)f 5 275 FERIH)
SHEK A 17,087 41,668
Cost of sales of chemical (b TERIEERKAK
products — 86,627
Others Hitb 35,533 21,803
Total &t 4,861,179 3,619,142
(i) Including the basic social pension security for (i) HesgssEz—_ZT—7
the six months ended 30 June 2015 amounting FRNA=Z+HIENEA
to RMB11,284,000 (for the six months ended 30 HEEAEZREBAA
June 2014: RMB12,001,000). ¥ 11,284,000t (=

A ey ol =
EREAHREARE
12,001,0007C) °
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=TELENEAME REREAN  2BEMRARETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED f.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(39).Financial expense - net

&Pt E TS Rk 18 B MY EE ()

(39). MAT5 8 A EE

Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2015 30 June 2014
BEZ-ZT—HF HE_Z—NF
NAE=1+HL SNA=Z+HIE
7~ B A Hi 7518 A Ei
Interest expenses FMEXTH 1,631,147 862,854
Including: Bank loans Ha o SRITER 1,044,103 537,334
Debentures payable FEfHES 196,598 192,781
Other loans HEiaE 390,446 132,739
Less: Amount capitalized B B ENE Y H (1,536,945) (821,493)
Interest expense-net MBS HFHE 94,202 41,361
Interest income T 2 A (132,522) (174,331)
Exchange gains or R - JFEE
losses — net (28,475) (700)
Others Hi 9,214 1,801
Net VR A (57,581) (131,869)

Interest expenses analyzed by the maturity of bank
borrowings and other borrowings are as follows:

MEXHRBITERREME
FEERSFAT

Six months Six months
ended 30 June 2015 ended 30 June 2014
Hz-2-1F BHE_Z-IF
AASTRLEAEAME SA=ZTHEAEASR
Bank Other Bank Other
borrowings borrowings  borrowings  borrowings
RTEY  HER  ROER HeEX
Wholly repayable within RE—HENA
five years ERFZAMER 972,106 587,044 523,484 325,520
Not wholly repayable within & — i H
five years EREZBNER 71,997 - 13,850 -
Total Bt 1,044,103 587,044 537,334 325,520
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

HEZ

T-RFANA=THIENEADRE CRERERI  SREM/ARETIT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(40). Asset impairment

F. SOt SRR IE B MR #)

@0). EERERX

Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2015 30 June 2014
BE-Z—81F #Hz=_ZT—OF
NA=1THL NA=1THIE
7~E A B 7~1E A Ei
Provision accrual for FHEF EREEE

inventory impairment (MFzxEF(6))

(note 5(6)) 93,443 48,004
Total S=h 93,443 48,004

(41). Non-operating income @1). EEHWA
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2015 30 June 2014
BEZE-Z— 1 HE_Z—NF
NA=THL NA=tTHIE
758 B Hi 7~ 1E A HA

Excess of the fair value of EENRIRE KA DR

the identifiable net assets BEMHEEREAR

acquired over the total EBEMNENERE

consideration of joint ventures  (MTsEF(10)(a)(xi))

(note 5(10)(a)(xi)) 73,756 -
Tax refunds TR 8 2,594 =
Gains on disposal of fixed assets g & [EE & & M5 176 -
Others Hi 2,198 2,883
Total A 78,724 2,883
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5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED h. B0t BHRKRIE R KT @)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(42). Non-operating expense (42). E#hH
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2015 30 June 2014
BE-_ZT—8F HE-_T—NOF
ANA=tHIE ANA=+THL
& B B E 7~ E A HAfE
Default fine (i) E X)) 14,614 17,461
Delaying payment fine e 13,037 =
Others Hith 1,448 15,225
Total =50 29,099 32,686
(i)  For the six months ended 30 June 2015, the iy MREBE-_ZE—FTEA
default fine is the provision of a subsidiary of =+ HIEAREAERE &
the Group since the ownership certificates of EFEzFARIEABEEER
the sold properties cannot be applied in time WEEJIREKBEES
according to the pre-sale contracts. [B 49 7€ K B #% 22 T TR 12 &9
BN o
(43). Gains/(losses) on changes in fair value @3). ARrEEEBkE (BX)
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2015 30 June 2014
BE-Z—1F BHE_T—NF
ANA=t+HIE ANAZ+AL
& A B E 7 E A HAfE
Financial assets at fair value NAREEFEER
through profit or loss BEFTAEHERDN
TREE 129,064 (58,440)
Financial derivative instruments () £74 4 & T (i) (2,214) =
Investment properties NARBEETEERTS
subsequently measured at fair VIR & EHE
value model (note 5(12)(b)) (FFEEF(12)(b)) 954,471 22,913
Realized fair value gains/(losses) EIR$HEE O HE D
in properties sold BEZE K= (1BX) - (39,969)
Total A&l 1,081,321 (75,496)
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5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED f.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(43). Gains/(losses) on changes in fair value 43). A REEEB WS (BX)
(Continued) (&

SOt AR R E B M5 @)

ZOTETERERBEER
EEHTEMEREINES
H(MERAOT)) - BRI
HE—_fT—hF A=+
HIEANEASE E2R
BEZHELPAREK
434,000t (HE=—ZF—H
FXRA=ZTHIENERE
M E)BREHERN

B o

(44). RE W

(i)  The derivative instrument is the forward contract (i)
accounted by cash flow hedging (note 5(17)),
the losses on changes in fair value amounted
to RMB434,000 for the six months ended 30
June 2015 (2014: Nil) represent the ineffective
portion of such cash flow hedging.

(44). Investment income

Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2015 30 June 2014
BE—Z—85F #HE_ZT—OF
NA=tHILE SNAZ=ZTHLE
7~E A B 7~ {E A HAfE
Share of net profit or loss of BIETEZBHDER
investees under equity method — ##&& B AFEEEHHD
(note 5(10)) B(MER00)) 69,208 89,691
Gains from disposal of RETFARKREKZ
subsidiaries (note 4(3)) (MfzEm(=)) 72,909 622,763
Dividend income from financial RIEHESRMEE
assets available-for-sale R 1) U 25 2,390 -
Losses of termination of mIFIREBK
investment - (9,364)
Others Hip 3,726 253
Total BEr 148,233 703,343
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5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

ERBEL/ARETIT)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

f. SOtEB®wKRIAR M)

(45). Income tax expenses

PRC income tax is computed according to the relevant
laws and regulations in the PRC. The applicable PRC
income tax rate is 25% (for the six months ended 30
June 2014: 25%).

According to the current tax law in Hong Kong,
profit tax in Hong Kong is calculated by 16.5% of
taxable profit. Except for several subsidiaries in Hong
Kong are subject to Hong Kong profits tax, other
subsidiaries in Hong Kong have no Hong Kong taxable
profits.

Withholding income tax should be charged against
income from taxable dividends of non-resident
enterprises in mainland China and investments
disposal in mainland China with the tax rate of 5%-
10% according to the relevant laws and regulations in
the PRC.

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated

@5). FrisHiE A

REEEAEHERETEE
BERNOERFE ERPHE
BT ER25% (B E T~
FARNA=ZTHLEANEAHH :
25%) °

RIEEBRITHEMRE - BB
b2 ) R 12 5816.5%
HBE HAISR - BERIE
T 1 R 7 B R 0 R
EFISN  H AT DAL E S
BT ©

TEABANIEERERFTRIE
FEMERARKEAR  BR
5% — 10% % = ¥ J& B A 1
ARBEEZEHERATIN
BAEH -

TRESFAGHINBERZH

income statement represents: BHERSE -
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2015 30 June 2014
BEZE-Z— 1 HE_ZT—NF
ANA=THLE NA=1+HIE
BB HIE 7~ E A A
Current income tax = BAFT 1S F 179,390 209,840
Deferred income tax IEAEFTS R 236,122 60,395
Total &t 415,512 270,235
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5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED B, &t BHRRIEE M @)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(45). Income tax expenses (Continued) (45). FR8HER (&
Reconciliations from income tax calculated based on BEREHAEROR E &R
the applicable tax rates and total profit presented in RKABAMERAENEHA
the consolidated financial statements to the income SAEMESHER :

tax expenses are listed below:

Six months Six months
ended ended

30 June 2015 30 June 2014
BE-ZT-—H1F HE_ZT—NNF
~NAZ=1H NA=1H
1E7< {8 B #i LE7SME A 2R

Total profit MBERR 1,426,578 1,278,024

Income tax expenses calculated %@ AR R25% T EHY

at applicable tax rates (25%) PSR 356,645 319,506
Share of net profit or loss of BEDAZ AN ERE

joint ventures and associates KE RN FERNOEE

under equity method (17,302) (22,423)
Expenses, costs and losses not  NEBHIBRAIKA « B R

deductible for tax purposes LS 1,587 566
Profit not subject to tax JEJE 4 Fi A (53,788) (175)
Deductible temporary VARTEE B R FERR A ] 40

differences not recognized TR ER

in previous year (42,217) (80,700)
Distribution eligible for tax A LATERL AT 1 2 MR

deduction (i) T ES%(3) (10,643) (31,780)

Deductible losses for which no & BARFERIEE AT 1S54

deferred income tax asset was  EERA[KIEE

recognized 131,207 77,943
Impairment provision for which & HAR#ERIELE AT 1557

no deferred income tax asset BEMNREEE

was recognized 11,028 -
Withholding income tax at EEHRRIRBES

different tax rate MENTE - 3,563
The influence of lower BIERREAAEN

withholding income tax rate MEATE — =
The influence of lower corporate B{E /> 2 Fr1S 51 5 R #Y

income tax rate -4 (10,970) -
Tax payment of previous years @& A BT E 75X 49,965 =
Others HAft = BVED
Income tax expenses Fristi & F 415,512 270,235
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5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED I. &0tB B ERRIE B Mt )
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(45). Income tax expenses (Continued) @5). FR8HER (&)

(i)  Such amount represents tax deductible interest () %EeHEREZTAEDA -
expenses on equity instruments issued by RFARBEREEERE
subsidiaries. RZIZ - AJfERBRTHE -

(46). Earnings per share (46). F IR W =

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the ERFRKFZUNEBRET A A

consolidated net profit attributable to equity holders AR AR R & OFF FE Br BA

of the parent company by the weighted average RN B EEITIEINE B AR &9 DN
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the FEHEEE

period:

Six months Six months
ended ended

30 June 2015 30 June 2014
BE—F-1f BE_TOF
AA=Z+BHLE  SA=+HIE
A~ME A HE 7~ E A 2

Consolidated net profit BERE AR T @R
attributable to equity holders  EY& 4H % FH
of the parent company 503,293 661,130

Weighted average number of AR FZEITEINE BIA
ordinary shares outstanding EEFHE(FR)

(thousands) 2,027,960 2,027,960
Basic earnings per share EARGgRKR
(RMB cents per share) (AREDS ) 25 s
Including: Hr
— Basic earnings per share —BEKEERK
relating to continuing B Y=
operations 25 33
Diluted earnings per share are equal to the basic AANBN T EERBEEL L ®
earnings per share since the Company has no dilutive % - HREERKSEEARER
potential ordinary shares during the period. W% o
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5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED h. B0t BEHRKRIER M@
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(47). Other comprehensive income 47). EftimE s
The comprehensive income Other comprehensive income in income statement
in balance sheet for the six months ended 30 June 2015
B2-3-RERR=TALAERER
EERERDAMGANE HERRARGRAYE
Less: Transfer
in profit
or loss
previously Attribute
recognized Attribute tothe
Attribute to Amount in other tothe  non-controlling
31 December  the Company 30 June before  comprehensive Less: Company interests
014 after tares 2015 taxes income  Incometaxes aftertaxes aftertaxes
iR
ImE t8-1f LV I U T

TR HkER A KERE dERE g H4GE RN
St-B REAR ZtH BHE E\RE FRBER RS WMEER

Other comprehensive income WETHEARERRNE
cannot be redssfied nfo fFeka
profit orloss thereafter

Share ofother comprehiensiveincome. 1% MERRAE( T8
intheinvestees camnot be reclassfed ~ ERERERNEREA
into profit or loss at equity method YanzanhE = - - - - - - -
Other comprefiensie income maybe LM EAEEERH
redlassified nto profitorloss thereafter. ~ EftiEANE
Share o other comprehensive income -~ 4% FERFAEMN S
the investees will b recassfed nfo ENBERANENSA

profit o loss at equity method Gy Tl - - - - - - - -

~Changes n fair value of - ESRERD RS

avalable-for-sale financial asets B/ (%) 5819 6,306 12,125 8,408 - 2102 6,306 -
~Transferout hanges nfarvalueof — ~EFSEAREURNE

investment properties previously DAEEED

recognized in other comprehensive

income (3) 566,688 - 566,688 - - - - -
- Changes in fair value of derivative - HAENEERD

financial liabilies (567) 1228 11,675 16,323 - 4,081 1228 -
- Difference on tranlaton of foreign -NERRTEE

currency financial statements 9,194 (9.877) (683) (9877) - - (9877) -

581,134 8671 589,805 14,854 = 6,183 8,671 =
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5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED B. Aot Rk E B MiaE @)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(47). Other comprehensive income (Continued) 47). Htt 4R 5 W3 (&)
Other comprehensive income Other comprehensive income in income statement
in balance sheet for the six months ended 30 June 2014
BEBERM AN KA HE-T-MEAA=TAILARRSEAER At NE
Less:
Transferin
profit or loss
previously Attribute
Attribute recognized Attribute to the
tothe Amount in other Less: tothe  non-controling
31 December ~ Company 30 June before comprehensive Income  Company interests
2013 after taxes 2014 taxes income taves  aftertaxes  after taxes
—F-ck —Z-mE S
TZR  HKEE AR RERGHE Hegekm F HE REBER  RKEE
=t-B  REAA =1A EEE AHEAER HER BAR  WMOERR
Other comprehensive income WA R& B A ERBRNEM
cannot be reclassified into profit ~ &AME
or loss thereafter:
Share of other comprehensive B35 TERA AT 4
income in the investees ENEEERNEE
cannot be reclassified into BhEPZENHE
profit or loss at equity
method - - - - - = = =
Other comprehensive income may  JA&% BN BERRM £k
be reclassified into profit or loss A&
thereafter:
Share of other comprehensive  E&E FERITE BN LA
income in the investees will be H BOBEBERNLL
reclassified into profitorloss  GANGERZEHAE
at equity method = = = = = = = =
- Changes in fair value of -AHHESHEEAAE
available-for-sale financia [E2HE/(BX)
assets 43,530 (19,210) 24,320 (25,613) - 6,403 (19,210) -
- Transfer out changes in -RREBAREEEE
fair value of investment MEBEZHE)
properties previously
recognized in other
comprehensive income (a) 1236408  (657,714) 578,694 - (87695) 219238 (657,714) -
- Difference on translation of ~ —J\ERRITEZE
foreign currency financial
statements 6,053 137 6,790 1737 - - 1737 -
1,285,991 (676,187) 609,804 (24876)  (876,92) 225,641 (676,187) -
(@) For the six months ended 30 June 2015, some of () BE-_Z—HhEA=+
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the inventories have been disposed or sold, and
the fair value gains initially recognized in other
comprehensive income amounted to nil (2014:
RMB657,714,000) was accordingly transferred
into income statement fair value gains.

232

BLIEANEAHE - A&E
HREEXHER DY
X ZA0MERFBAEY
F'ﬁﬂ’]ﬁ‘rﬁifﬁﬁr)\ﬂ’]”’r&
REKENED  REE
BREREBAEHEEAFTA
REZT(BE2_F—@O
FRA=THIEREARHR
M AR #657,714,000
JT) °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(48). Notes to consolidated cash flow statements

(a) Reconciliation from net profit to cash flows

f.

BOE TS ERRIA B L @)

@8). R REBRMEE
(a) BEFNBALREELED

from operating activities RERE
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2015 30 June 2014
BEZ-Z-1F #HE-T—NF
NA=tHILE NA=ZFTHIE
AERHE 7~1E A B8
Net profit beo e 1,011,066 1,007,789
Add: Provisions for asset o BEREERX
impairment (note 5(40)) (MtEE F1(40)) 93,443 48,004
Depreciation of fixed BEEENE
assets (note 5(13)) (P EEF(13)) 16,466 20,789
Amortization of intangible EEEEE
assets (note 5(14)) (FEEF(14)) 523 761
Amortization of long-term REFEER
prepaid expenses B 5 15,304 1,727
Gains on disposal of fixed REBRTEE,/
assets, intangible assets B EEM
and other long-term Hih REEE
assets g (176) (1,345)
Interest expenses/(income) MBER, (WA) 10,232 (95,156)
Investment income wE W=
(note 5(44)) (PfftEEF(44)) (148,233) (703,343)
Difference between BB KA NAER
combination costs and SHEaEbER
fair value of identifiable WRFEEAR
net assets acquired BEMNENERE
(note 5(41)) (BtsEF(41)) (73,756) =
Increase in deferred tax BIEFTST B E
assets Y358 0 (101,921) (2,231)
Decrease in deferred tax BIEFTSHBE
liabilities EOpE AR 271,633 16,061
Increase in inventories FE/EM (9.452,402) (8,264,577)
(Gains)/losses on changes NAEEE
in fair value (Yazs) 18K (1,081,321) 35,527
Decrease in restricted cash X BR §II3R & 8 m 45,312 43,405
Increase in operating It EYIR R
receivables Y38 0 (932,364) (1,426,418)
Increase in operating Rt RE IR B
payables bl 1,700,738 1,321,891
Net cash flows from operating K& FEHEANRS
activities MEFEE (8,625,456) (7,997,116)
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5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED h. 6O IRERIE B MEE @)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(48). Notes to consolidated cash flow statements (48). BE&RERMET(E)
(Continued)
(b) Net increase in cash (b) BEFEBHBER
Six months Six months
ended ended

30 June 2015 30 June 2014
BE-Z—1F HE_T—NNF
~NA=1+HL NA=1+HLE
& B B E 7~ {6 A A

Cash at end of the period I8& A HIREREE 10,496,755 9,493,940
Less: Cash at beginning of & : IR & HEIYI4ER
the period (10,759,150) (10,487,655)
Net decrease in cash B e AR | (262,395) (993,715)
(c) Cash () Be

30 June 2015 30 June 2014
—®-IF —F-OF
AA=+H +ZHA=+—H

Cash at bank and on hand &¥&& (MR (1))

(note 5(1)) 12,659,422 13,897,026
Non-current assets and WEID EEEFEN

assets of disposal group EMBEEREE S

classified as held for sale  AFEFENINEHLT

(note 5(7)) MEE(MIERT)) = 61,051
Less: Restricted cash at I8 EIBR H B TE K
bank (2,162,667) (3,198,927)
Cash at end of the period IR & HIR8:%8 10,496,755 10,759,150
(d) Disposal of subsidiaries (d) BEEFAH

For the six months ended 30 June 2015, cash HE2_Z—RFA=1
flow information of disposal of subsidiaries is BiE/NE A BE - AEE
disclosed in note 4(3). BREFRAAIEBENIERESR

EBER2AMER(=Z) -
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EQUITY OF STRUCTURED ENTITY NOT IN
FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Refer to note 5(10).

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The reportable segments of the Group are the business
units that provide different products or service, or operate
in different areas. Different businesses or areas require
different marketing strategies, the Group, therefore,
separately manages the production and operation of each
reportable segment and valuates their operating results
respectively, in order to make decisions about resources
to be allocated to these segments and to assess their
performance.

The Group identified six reportable segments as follows:

AERPAS PR IRR A

B AR ERTHER
RAMER(10) -

7 EE R

REBERHRE DGR TR E @
FARTE - AT R R &S ET
B - ARNBREBHMES
R T 58 - Bt - A&EE D 5
ﬁi%’rﬁxfl#ﬁ%%a‘ﬁﬂ’ﬂifﬁﬁ%
EE  DRIFFEEKLERR - POR
ﬁﬁ@ﬂaéﬁﬁl%f‘iﬁ%%ﬁ °

AEBENEREDEE - DRI

- Beijing segment, which is mainly engaged in the - RHE - AEEILRMEE
property development and sales in Beijing region. TR EREHEER

- Tianjin segment, which is mainly engaged in the - REHIH BEEXREHEE
property development and sales in Tianjin region. ITEHEREHEE XK

- Chengdu and Chongging (hereinafter “Chengyu”) - BOmoES - BEEAONM R E
segment, which is mainly engaged in the property TEMERZEHEEER
development and sales in Chengdu and Chongging
region.

—  Other segment, which is mainly engaged in the = Hih oI - B 5 EMMHEE

property development and sales in other regions,
including Wuxi, Shenyang, Xi‘an, Shanghai, Jiangsu,
Zhejiang, Hainan and so on.

— Investment property segment, which is mainly
engaged in the investment property operations.

TEMERBEHERY 2
BRERAEEMNED  &ES
AR B8 I& I8
HEMRANEHEREHEESR
%

- ?xéli)%ﬁﬁ?“* BEEH
EITRENEHEELRD

—  Hotel segment, which is mainly engaged in hotel - BESE - BREBEEBFIR
business and providing corresponding services. A8 e Al 1%

Inter-segment transfer prices are measured by reference HEMEERERL2BEE = HiE

to sales to third parties. Expenses indirectly attributable to TR ERETE HBEEBENS

each segment are allocated to the segments based on the
proportion of each segment’s revenue.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(1). Segment information for the six months
ended 30 June 2015 and as at 30 June 2015
are as follows

Property development and sales

EHEMBHERY
Beijing Tianjin Chengyu Others
R p3: 23 Hith

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARMTRE AREBTR ARMTR ARWTR

Investment
properties
REMELE
RMB'000
ARBT T

BE=-ZE—HEXA=1+
HiEABEAHER=-Z
—HEFEXXA=1+H2EE

B
Hotel  Unallocated  Elimination Total
BEEER FIENEE  ATMER At

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000
ABMTR  ARETR ARMTR  ARETR

Revenue from external HHZZUMA

customers 1,408,650 1,564,051 487,302 1,878,449 66,567 42,225 - - 5,447,244
Inter-segment revenue AHERBRA - - - - - - - - -
Main operating cost FREBRA (1,112,563)  (1,321,182) (429,779)  (1,486,173) - (38,029) - - (4,387,726
Interest income FBIMA 185,280 4,545 1737 59,669 27,250 103 53,342 (199,404) 132,522
Interest expenses FlExH (73,947) (8,402) (292) (28,498) (43,770) (21,546) (117,151) 199,404 (94,202)
Share of profit/(loss) of Hg A’EQ%E’J

associates and joint ventures & /(1% 64,064 (4,848) - 7,807 2,185 - - - 69,208
Asset impairment loss BERERR - (8.631) - (84,812) - - - - (93,443)
Depreciation and amortization HEEMHEE (3,035) (549) (167) 2,142) (8,541) (11,486) (6,373) - (32,293)
Total profit/(loss) B/ (Fi8) g 120,074 233,667 55,977 172,086 879,482 (18,970) (15,738) - 1,426,578
Income tax expenses FEHER (8,666) (62,406) (13,614) (58,299) (235,304) - (37,223) - (415,512)
Net profit/(loss) FHE/(BE) 111,408 171,261 42,363 113,787 644,178 (18,970) (52,961) - 1,011,066
Total of non-current assets ~ FERBEE(TRE

(except defered tax assets £ REEMEL

and financial assets) fEHAE)EE 1765428 304,697 1,155 666,701 8,712,682 385,608 720543 (1,263509) 11,293,305
Total assets BEES 96,427,443 23,744,751 7,866,331 33,038,095 9,362,733 1,390,449 30,696,811 (110,904,990) 91,621,623
Total liabilities B (84,066,023)  (20,395,292)  (5,295,074) (27,769,290)  (3,237,073)  (1,344,781)  (28,288,176) 100,280,222  (70,115,487)
Long-term equity investments  HIEEPENAE R

in associates and joint ENRARERS

ventures 809,294 537,966 982,724 862,009 161,762 - - - 3,353,755
Increase of non-current assets & HAIRIER EIASMY

other than long-term equity ~ EftiFEREEE

investments EmE 914,221 33,574 1,190 725 1,520,309 97 15,741 - 2485857

For the six months ended 30 June 2015, no revenue is HZE —RHFANA=+tHL

generated from overseas transaction or from a single
significant customer.

As at 30 June 2015, the Group’'s non-current
assets located in other countries amounted to
RMB6,974,000.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(2).

+. DEEE (&)

2. BZ2=2—NFEXA=1
HEANBEAEAHBEE=-S
—mE+=-HA=+—HB%
1z B
(a) BZE=ZE—WNEANA=T

HitXERHEABER

Segment information for the six months
ended 30 June 2014 and as at 31 December
2014 are as follows

(@) Segment information for the six months
ended 30 June 2014

Property development and sales

EHERRHELE
Investment
Beijing Tianjin Chengyu Others properties Hotel  Unallocated  Elimination Total
bl RE B Aty REURME BEER APRMEE  HPHEN At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETE ARMTR ARETT ARETR AREBTT ARETR ARBTT ARETR
Revenue from extermal ¥ 2 BUA
customers 1,079,148 948,235 1,343,608 977,415 38,547 42,804 89,576 = 4,519,333
Inter-segment revenue A EFER FUA - - - 1,321 - - = (11,321) -
Main operating cost Ed-£/ 7 (521,447) (622,407)  (1,069,222) (879,732) = (41,668) = - (3,134,476)
Interest income FIBMA 40,531 3422 961 4,789 11,321 49 403,679 (290,421) 174,331
Interest expenses Flaxt (185,346) - (861) (1,507) (575) (3,668) (139,825) 290,421 (41,361)
Share of profit/(loss) HEenaet
of assodiates and FNRE
joint ventures I/ (BX) (5,65) 1,281 - 88,957 5,109 - - - 89,691
Assetimpaiment loss  AEFEEX = = = (48,004) = - - = (48,004)
Depreciation and REENEHE
amortization (7,683) (569) (202) (1,577) (2,409) (10,837) = = (23.277)
Total profit/{loss) 78/ (58)
et 690,938 381,585 166,531 (71,319 25,397 (5.171) 112,51 (22,448) 1,278,024
Income tax expenses  Fif3H &R (711,623) (95,721) (41,633) 532 (6,349) - (63,152) 7,71 (270,235)
Net profit/(loss) EHE/(BR) 619,315 285,864 124,898 (70,787) 19,048 (5.171) 49,359 (14,737) 1,007,789
(b) Segment information as at 31 December (b) —ZE—HWE+ZA=1+—
2014 Ao EMER
Property development and sales
FHEREHEEE
Investment
Beijing Tianjin Chengyu Others properties Hotel  Unallocated  Elimination Total
bl PN A At REAMEME BEXS AOENMEE  HHEEH At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT  ARBTR ARETT ARBTR ARETT  ARBTr ARETRT AREBTT ARET:
Total of non-current ~ JEREBE(T
assets (except BESRAE
deferred tax assets RERMER
and financial assets) BE)8E 843,900 147,607 673 519,808 7,225,258 329,410 269,162 (818,137) 8,517,681
Long-term equity HBELEANS
investments in ERERER
associates and joint BRE
ventures 646,845 543,096 697,117 404,600 159,577 - - - 2,451,235
Increase of non-current & HRHERE LA
assets other than S E IR
long-term equity HEELNE
investments 3,294 2,232 148 - 3,756,019 162 4919 - 3,766,774
Total assets AELE 69,457,322 21,083,362 6,819,859 33,970,021 7,552,278 1,195,221 31,564,554  (92,963,061) 78,679,556
Total abilities BELE (56,548,796)  (17,668,980)  (4,257,887) (28,329,872)  (2,460,522)  (1,130,583) (29,378,018) 82,508,628 (57,266,030
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BEZ-—RFAA=TRIEANEASE RERIFERS - RBLAARBETT)

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) +. 2EEE @)

(2). Segment information for the six months 2. BZ=-—ZE—NFEXA=1
ended 30 June 2014 and as at 31 December HiEABEAHER=-Z
2014 are as follows (Continued) —E+-_HA=+—H8%

HEE (&)

(b) Segment information as at 31 December (b) = E—UE+=—A=+—
2014 (Continued) HoREE (&
For the six months ended 30 June 2014, no HE_ZT—NF~A=+
revenue is generated from overseas transaction HIEAREASE  ~&E
or a single significant customer. As at 31 EREEMERHZ S
December 2014, the Group’s non-current assets A UARKEE—BEX
(excluding financial assets and deferred tax FHXZXSWA—E—ME
assets) located in other countries amounted to +=-A=+—H K&EH
RMB7,568,000. P E B R ) 3E B E

A ANER#7,568,0007T °

8. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY N\. EEFBEERERS
TRANSACTIONS

(1). The parent company and subsidiaries (1). BTN FAE
The general information and other related FRAMNERFRLRBBEES
information of the subsidiaries are set out in note 4. BHFEY o
(a) General information of the parent company: (a) BAFRERER :

Place of registration Nature of business

=i it EBME
Capital Group Beijing, The PRC Infrastructure, financial securities, industrial
technology, commercial trade, tourist hotel,
etc.
BEIEE L R B RS TERE - BEBSM
IR B S &
The Company’s ultimate controlling party is RABINRBREGTRE
Capital Group. S
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BEZ-RFAA=TRIENEARE RERIFERN -

ERBEN/ARETIT)

8. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY J\. BESBEERERS &)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(1). The parent company and subsidiaries

(Continued)

(b) Registered capital and changes in registered
capital of the parent company:

(1). FARMF AR (&)

(b) BRAFREMEARAELIL

31 December 30 June
2014 Increase  Decreases 2015
—F-mF ZE-1F
+=A NA
=t—8  AEEm  AHRD =+H
Capital Group BEI&E 3,300,000 - - 3,300,000
(c) The proportions of equity interests and () BARHAATNSRE
voting rights in the Company held by the BRI T RFEL B :
parent company:
30 June 2015 31 December 2014
Z®-1ERAZtH “E-PEt-A=t-H
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
interest interest Voting interest interest Voting
held held rights held held rights
EREE  ERER RAEMR 0 EREE BREE RRERD
% % % % % %
Capital Group EEEE 3201 - 3201 3201 - 3201

On 8 May 2014, 8.48%, 5.85% and 2.34%
shares of the Company respectively held by
Capital Technology, Capital Development and
Capital Sunshine, which are the promoters
of the Company transferred the shares of the
Company, were transferred to Capital Group.
After the transfer, Capital Group holds 32.01%
shares of the Company directly.
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8. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY J\. BB SBEERERS &)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(2). Information of Joint ventures and

Associates

Refer to note 5(11).

(3). Information of other related parties

Name of

related entities

Relationship
with the Company

Reco Ziyang

Reco Yanshan

Shouhui Real Estate
Taihao Shengyuan

Shouyong Real Estate

Non-controlling interests
of subsidiaries
Non-controlling interests
of subsidiaries

Subsidiary of joint venture
of the Company
Subsidiary of joint venture
of the Company
Subsidiary of joint venture
of the Company

(4). Related party transactions

The Board considers all transactions with related
parties are on normal commercial terms, and prices of
related party transactions were agreed by the Group
and its related parties.

(a) Providing services

(2). EEEEMBELEENR

X ES Sl B

EAO1) e

(3). HtEAm S HR

BELE
£ HAEE R
FIEEE ARRZEEZTAH
K DB R
Reco Yanshan AQBlZ EEFAHE
M ERR
BEEX ARRZAEDEN
E-C- BN
TEBIE ARAZAENEN
E-C SN
BKE¥ ARRZAEDEN
E-C: SN

(4). BHX 5
AREESR

© 7
B

AP B R R

THRSAFELEERERK
R BRI EERHAEE
AR T W — BUMERE ©

(a) R

Six months Six months

ended ended

30 June 2015 30 June 2014

BE-_ZT—1F #HE-T—WOF

NA=THILE NA=+tHIE

7~ 1B B Hi 7~ E A HAE]

Taihao Shengyuan ey B 48 7,699 =

Shouyong Real Estate BXKEBE 2,900 -

Shouhui Real Estate HEBE 800 -

Xi'an Xinkai Pidkeailes - 10,034

Tianjin Xinming RIAEFEA - 3,424

Total BEr 11,399 13,458
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8. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY J\. BB SBEERERS (&)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(4). Related party transactions (Continued) (4). BB Z (&)

(b) (Receive)/Provide funding (b) X/ (WENES

Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2015 30 June 2014
BE-Z—1F #HZE_ZTNF
NA=1+HIL NA=1+HLE
8 B B E 7 A HA R
Capital Jiaming BEIEH 62,565 51,039
Tianjin Xinming PANE il 105,410 31,260
Tianjin Xinging REFT (66,410) 53,360
Xi'an Xinkai [kl - (616,425)
Shenyang Xinzi BISFE 15,332 58,356
Shenyang Jitian BEE X 17,781 480,280
Shuzi Qixing HrE = 1,091
Xingtai Jifeng i - (1,248,001)
Golden Net S A4 68 (148)
Huzhou Rongcheng SN 28 3 - 115,433
Speed Plus Speed Plus 16,711 8,058
International School BBR 21 - 5,000
Capital Qinglv Culture HEITRXE 10,000 20,000
Shouyong Real Estate BXKEZHE 2,900 120,473
King Future King Future - B5
Taihao Shengyuan FERRIB 297,699 -
Shouhui Real Estate BEEX 540,892 -
Capital Qinglv EEIEis (83,891) -
Zhongguancun Integrated AN EKEKERTE
circuit Design garden 913,776 -
Tongchuang Gold Dragon [F&I& & 144,650 =
Shanghai Shouijia EBERE 322,452 -
Chaoyang Investment HAGIRE 256 -
Reco Yanshan Reco Yanshan - (39,725)
Total At 2,300,191 (959,914)
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8. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY J\. BEFBEZERRER S (&)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(4). Related party transactions (Continued) (4). BB Z (&)

() Commission fee () HEREER
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2015 30 June 2014
BE-Z—85F #HE_ZT—OF
NA=+HILE NA=tTHIE
7~ E A Hi N ERE R
GoldenNet SR 50,244 30,028
The Group entrust GoldenNet as sales agent of NEBZ ISR BNE

B —LLIE B A E R
1285 & B BR ) — RE EL

certain projects. The commission fee payable
was charged by certain percentage based on

property sales price. XTHERS o
(d) Interest income/(expense) (d) AEEHEBBEIRENSE
SHEABRA(ZH)
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2015 30 June 2014
BEZE-_Z—H1F #H=—_ZT—OF
NE=1+HL SNA=Z+HIE
7~ B A Hi 7~ {E A HAfE
Financial Street S RAEEE 7,858 7,859
Reco Yanshan Reco Yanshan - 39,725
Taihao Shengyuan E AP piE] (14,500) -
Shouhui Real Estate HIEB (40,447) -
Total A&t (47,089) 47,584
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8. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY J\. BB SBEERERS (&)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(4). Related party transactions (Continued)

(e) Guarantees

(4). AR5 ()

(e) ER
30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—E—HE —E—E

AA=tHR +-HA=+—H

Capital Group for the BEIEBRARAT
Company
Capital Group for BREIRERFAA

subsidiaries

5,000,000 5,000,000

1,220,000 1,220,000

In 2014, Capital Group provided irrevocable
guarantee for the long-term borrowings from
China Life Insurance Company Limited, Beijing
Branch amounted to RMB2,000,000,000. The
guarantee maturity date is October 2019.

In 2013, Capital Group provided irrevocable
guarantee for the long-term borrowing from
Xiamen International Trust Co., Ltd, amounted
to RMB1,000,000,000. The guarantee maturity
date is March 2018.

In 2013, Capital Group provided irrevocable
guarantee for the long-term borrowing from
PICC Investment Holding Co., Ltd, amounted
to RMB2,000,000,000. The guarantee maturity
date is December 2018.

In 2014, Capital Group, provided irrevocable
guarantee for the long-term borrowings for
Capital Chaoyang, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, from Shenzhen Ping An
Bank Co., Ltd, Shenzhen Branch, amounted to
RMB1,220,000,000. The guarantee maturity
date is August 2022.
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8. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY J\. BESBEERERS &)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(4). Related party transactions (Continued) (4). BB % (&)
(e) Guarantees (Continued) (e) R

30 June 31 December

2015 2014

—E-0F —T—mF

ANA=+H +=-A=+—H

The Company for subsidiaries  ZNA &) &+ & 23,209,780 18,100,600

Subsidiaries for subsidiaries FRBIETRA] 10,534,560 10,753,115
Subsidiaries for the Company F R &]AARA A 960,000 =
As at 30 June 2015 and 31 December 2014, the RZZE—RFNA=T
guarantees above are provided by the Company BEk-—_ZEZ—MmME+=-A4
or certain subsidiaries for short-term borrowings =+—H E#ERFE
(note 5(19)), long-term borrowings (note 5(28)), NN I SE/NE=T =1 N
debentures payable (note 5(29)), long-term EECEHRES(HER
payables (note 5(30)) and equity instruments (19)) - REBEZR(WER
(note 4(2)). (28)) « B EHF (MR
(29)) - REAEN R (HIEE

F(30)) Rtz T A (M5
Pa(2)) SRR FELR

(f) Key management compensation (f) BREEASHMH
Six months Six months
ended ended

30 June 2015 30 June 2014
BE-Z—1F HE-_T—NF
NA=1+HL NA=1+HLE
& B B E 7~ {6 A A8

Remuneration of key A EIE A B EHM
management personnel 13,481 13,141
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8. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY J\. BB SBEERERS (&)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(5). Related party balances

(a) Advances to suppliers

(5).

AR S FEUR - FE Y RUIRER

H

(a) FEMNAKE

30 June 31 December

2015 2014

—E-hHF —T—MMF

~NA=+H +-A=+—H

GoldenNet SRS 51,612 35,378

(b) Long-term receivables (note 5 (15))

(b) REIEWR(MER(15))

30 June 31 December

2015 2014

—E-HF —T-lEF

AA=+tHB +Z-A=t—H

Financial Street (i) & BAEDEIE) 316,085 308,227
Zhongguancun Integrated BT 525K B 1S s &1 (i)

circuit Design garden (ii) 913,500 =

(i)

(i)

As at 30 June 2015, the receivable includes
principal and interests from Financial
Street, an associate of the Group. From
1 January 2013, the receivable began to
charge interest at the interest rate of bank
borrowings with the same period. Since
the receivable has no fixed maturity date
and the Group expected that the receivable
will not be collected within one year,
the receivable is classified as long-term
receivable.

As at 30 June 2015, the receivable is
principal of shareholder loans from
Zhongguancun Integrated circuit Design
garden, a joint venture of the Group.
From 30 June 2015, the receivable began
to charge interest at the interest rate of
8.5%. Since the receivable will expire on
9 February 2018, so it is classified as long-
term receivable.
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BE_Z-RFNA=TBELENEAMSE (BRI -

ERBEL/ARETIT)

8. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY J\. BB SBEERERS &)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(5). Related party balances (Continued) (5). BT B - PRI RRIRER
B(E
Dividends receivable (note 5(5)) (c) PEWRRFI(PIEEE(S))
Dividends receivable of the Group is disclosed in AR E R FES R
note 5(5). st A(5) °
Other receivables (note 5(3)(b)) (d) HivEuwR(KMzERE)(b))
30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—E-hHF —T—MmF
AA=tH +ZHA=+—H
Taihao Shengyuan FERRIE 8,147 448
Speed Plus Speed Plus 35,024 18,313
GoldenNet &M% 82 104
Chaoyang Investment BIGIEE 8,276 8,020
ShouhuiReal Estate BHIEBX 800 -
Capital Qinglv BEIFIR 49,559 -
Shanghai Shouijia(i) Bapisa=() 322,452 -
Zhongguancun Integrated AN K EKRTE
circuit Design garden 276 =
Tongchuang Gold Dragon  [F &l &€ 144,650 -
International School B R B2 T 4,967 4,967
Tianjin Xinging REHE - 66,410
Capital Jiaming HEIZ 8,164 8,164
Shouyong Real Estate BHKEHE 5,300 2,400
Shenyang Xinzi BIGHE 2,332 -
Total S 590,029 108,826

Above payables due to related parties are
interest free, unpledged and unguaranteed, and
have no fixed maturity dates.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-RFAA=TRIENEASE RERIFERS - SRBLA/ARBETT)

8. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(5). Related party balances (Continued)

(e) Other payables (note 5(25))

\.BEBRTBRERERS #)

(5). BARETS R - PR FRIEER

¥ (48)

(e) EHfbFEMNR(HER(25))

30 June 31 December

2015 2014

—ZE-1F —T—MMF

A~A=+H +=-A=+—8H

Tianjin Xinming R 281,080 386,490

Capital Qinglv BEIFIR 133,450 -

Reco Ziyang I e 56,714 56,714

Shouhui Real Estate BEEX - 540,092

Shenyang Jitian BB E R 22,910 40,691

Financial Street Hotel © BEDEE 377 377

Beijing Taihao IR e - 290,000

Capital Qinglv Culture HEIF R = 10,000

Shenyang xinzi EEEE - 13,000

Capital Jiaming E S - 62,565

Golden Net &ML - 90

Total &5t 494,531 1,400,019
(f) Accounts payable (f) FE(IIRFR

30 June 31 December

2015 2014

—ZB-HF —T—MF

ANB=+H +=ZRA=+—H

GoldenNet ok 18,366 20,616

(g) Dividends payable

Dividends payable of the Group is disclosed in

n

ote 5(24).
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BEZ-—RFAA=TRIENEARE RERIFERSN -

ERBEL/ARETIT)

8. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY J\. BESBEERERS &)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(5). Related party balances (Continued)

(h)

()

Interest payable to related parties

(5).

BRI 5 FRUR - BRI ER

H(E)
(h) ENEBLAE

30 June 31 December

2015 2014

—Z2-1F —T-MF

ANA=+H +=-—H=+—H

Reco Ziyang S Nb S 13,273 13,273
Taihao Shengyuan (i) AR () 14,500 =
Shouhui Real Estate (ii) B E (i) 40,447 =

(i)

(i)

As at 29 December 2014, borrowings from
Taihao Shengyuan to the Group amounted
to RMB290,000,000 with annual
interest rate of 12%, unpledged and
unguaranteed, and with no fixed maturity
dates. The principal has been repaid in this
period.

As at 29 September 2014, borrowings
from Shouhui Real Estate to the Group
amounted to RMB526,000,000 with
annual interest rate of 12%, unpledged
and unguaranteed, and with no fixed
maturity dates. The principal has been
repaid in this period.

Remuneration payable to the Board (note

() RZE—WF+=A
Z+hB - REEER
BHRERIBFIREES
WERK A AR
290,000,000 7T * 4

R 12%

C EEE

EFHR - EERYE
o AHEESEA

S
i e

iy RZZE—WFNA
—t+hB  KAEER
SEESXRENE
SIRER A2 AR
526,000,000 7T

FMEI12%

- fE [E]

EERHR - EIER

B AHIE

Rg -

EEH

() ENESEHFM(M=ER

5(22)) (22))
30 June 31 December
2015 2014
=F-1f —F-NF
NBAB=+H +=ZA=+—H
Remuneration Ef<® 27,786 22,616
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME RERERN  2BEMRARETT)

9. COMMITMENTS

(1). Capital commitments

(a) Capital expenditures contracted for but not yet
necessary to be recognized in the balance sheet
by the Group at the balance sheet date are as

follows:

N. EEEE
(1). EAREE
@ UTAREAEaERA
B 25 4 77 1% 78 475 B 75 3R

Authorized but not contracted B #t/&EREL
BRI

Contracted but not paid

= EERA T MAGE
30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—E-HE —E-HFE
~B=+H +=-—HA=+—H
27,087,105 27,047,391
11,023,542 11,666,102

(b) The Group's shares of capital commitment in

relation to joint ventures are as follows:

(b) UTAAEREERZLDRE

Authorized but not contracted B #t/&ERZEL
BRNRTA

Contracted but not paid

B & ME A HAET
FriG 8058 -
30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—E-HF —E-HF
~NA=+H +=-A=+—H
2,182,974 1,046,753
131,179 677,322

(2). Operating lease commitments

The future minimum lease payments due under the
signed irrevocable operating leases contracts are

summarized as follows:

(2). REREERHESE
RIBEFT O AT RO EE
HHEAR - AEERRKE
EXESERNT :

30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—E-1F —F-OF

~NA=tH +=-A=+—H

Within 1 year —FE AR 4,876 9,675
Between 1 and 2 years —Zm =% 3,146 9,764
Between 2 and 3 years —E=4F 1,164 4,547
Total &&F 9,186 23,986
249 HAIBXRMGARAE T —AFHHHRE
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9. COMMITMENTS (Continued) N, RFESBIE(F)

(3). Investment commitments

(3). BINREAKEE

30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—E-REF —E—mF

ANA=+H +=-A=+—H

Zhongguancun Integrated circuit 1B+ 5k B 3% X1 E

Design garden

490,000 =

Total &5t

490,000 =

10. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain
customers and has provided guarantees to secure
obligations of these customers for repayments.

The Group provided guarantees in respect of mortgage
facilities granted by certain banks relating to the mortgage
loans arranged for certain purchasers of the Group’s
properties. These guarantees will be expired when
relevant property ownership certificates are lodged with
the various banks by the purchasers. As at 30 June 2015,
outstanding guarantees amounted to RMB7,028,149,000
(31 December 2014: RMB6,528,320,000).

As at 30 June 2015, expect for the guarantees (note 8(4)
(e)) provided by the Company or certain subsidiaries for
short-term borrowings, long-term borrowings, debentures
payable Long-term payables and equity instruments, the
Group has no other material external guarantee. The
Group believes that the guarantees above will not have a
significant impact on its financial position.
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RERMER ZBEERECEHEE
EENBEZEEEMAREL Y
FEEEBELFERRER - RNZZ
—HEANA=1H " RBFEERS
A ANR®7,028,149,000 T ( =
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6,528,320,0007T) °
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11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks, including market risk (primarily currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group’s overall risk management program focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimize potential adverse effects on the Group's financial

performance.

(1). Market risk

(@) Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s major operational activities are
carried out in Mainland China and a majority
of the transactions are dominated in RMB.
However, the Group is still subject to foreign
exchange risk arising from future commercial
transactions, recognized assets and liabilities
(most of the Group's foreign currency
transactions and balances are dominated in
United States dollars (“USD") and Hong Kong
dollars (“HKD")) and net investment overseas.
The Group’s headquarter is responsible for
monitoring the amount of assets and liabilities,
and transactions denominated in foreign
currencies. The management of the Group
may consider entering into forward exchange
contracts or currency swap contracts to mitigate

the foreign exchange risk.

The group has certain investments in overseas,
whose net assets are exposed to foreign
exchange risk. The Group’s headquarter
monitors the overseas investment scale to
mitigate its exposure to foreign exchange risk at

the extreme extend.
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BREOBETNZE -

(1). mZERE
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AEENEBEEMNF
BEA - EBEXBUAAR
KEE - EXREEDER
HSMNE B EM B B R R
BN 2 5 (SN & E M
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BETBERETMER)
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MEAEEEREIERS
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HSMERR ¢ B - AE
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11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK
(Continued)
(1). Market risk (Continued)
(a) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As at 30 June 2015 and 31 December 2014,
the carrying amounts in RMB equivalent of the
Group's assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are summarized below:

- T EREREE)

(1). mEEER &)

(a) SERBEE)
R-_ZTE—HFANA=T
Ak—_ZF—mFEF+_-H
=t+—8 AEEEEH
HNEE > B E TN INE 2 Bl

BEWEXNARBNEEE
PRI -
30 June 2015
—E-AFXA=TH
UsD HKD AUD EUR Total
Ey = BEIER ErER BtER it
Cash atbank and E¥E4%
on hand 473,603 287,214 6,087 31,720 798,624
Financial assets at ~ JAAZ BEFER
fair value through ~ E &2t A& 4
profit or loss BRNeEE = 291,927 = = 291,927
Long-term accounts & EifEL L
receivables - - 547,448 - 547,448
Financial derivative #7442 BEE
assets - - 29,185 - 29,185
Short-term RHEER
borrowings 287,340 4,004 - - 291,344
Interest payable FE7I& 2,863 110 = = 2,973
31 December 2014
—E-MEFZA=1—H
N HKD EUR Total
1= BHIEE BITIEE BUTIEE =
Cash atbankand E#¥E%
on hand 773,842 320,831 3,303 35,902 1,133,878
Financial assets at AR (BEF2A
fair value through ~ E& &t A & H
profit or loss BRNeEE = 162,863 = = 162,863
Long-term accounts & EfEI L
receivables - - 253,797 - 253,797
Short-term RHER
borrowings 211,106 12,070 - - 223,176
Interest payable ERFI & 3,860 37 - - 3,897
Financial derivative fT£4@EE
liabilities - - 3,452 - 3,452
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11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK

(Continued)
(1). Market risk (Continued)

(a) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As at 30 June 2015, for all USD dominated
financial assets and liabilities, if RMB had
increased/decreased by 5% against USD with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit for
the year would have been decreased/increased
by approximately RMB6,878,000 (31 December
2014: increase/decrease by approximately

RMB20,958,000).

As at 30 June 2015, for all HKD dominated
financial assets and liabilities, if RMB had
increased/decreased by 5% against HKD with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit for
the year would have been decreased/increased
by approximately RMB21,564,000 (31 December
2014: decrease/increase by approximately

RMB17,685,000).

As at 30 June 2015, for all AUD dominated
financial assets and liabilities, if RMB had
increased/decreased by 5% against AUD with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit for
the year would have been increased/decreased
by approximately RMB331,000 (31 December

2014: RMB223,000).

253

- T EREREE)

(1). mEER (&)

(a)

SMNERLER ()

R—_E—RFEXA=+
B HRAEESEET
cRMEENETESRE
B MRAREHETH

R ES%  H A
RETE - AIAEE

DG INFEFE A R
6,878,000t ( —Z — PO
TZA=+—H: BdK
#An#) A R #20,958,000
JC) °

R-_ZETE—HFNA=T
H:HRAEESEESH
EEMEESMARE
MRAREEBEEAE
KB ES% 0 HittEE
RETE - BAEEE
B D B I N FE R A4 A
R # 21,564,000 7T ( —
Z—NME+_-_A=4+—
B RAZE ML AR
17,685,0007T) ©

R-_ZTE—HFNA=T
H: SRAREESERT
CREENRTSHE
& MREAREERT
FESHEES% @+ HiH
ERFLE  AAXEE
#5083 3 0 R F B 49
AR #331,000L (=&
—NE+=-_A=+—8":
223,0007T) °
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11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK
(Continued)

(1). Market risk (Continued)

(b)

Interest rate risk

The Group has exposed to interest rate
risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate on borrowings which
carry at prevailing market interest rates.
Borrowings issued at floating interest rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest-risk,
and borrowings issued at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest-rate risk. The
Group determines the contracts proportions of
fixed rate and floating rate depending on the
market conditions. As at 30 June 2015, the
Group’s long-term interest bearing borrowings
were mainly RMB-denominated with floating

rates, amounting to RMB14,039,210,000 (31

December 2014: RMB10,263,162,000).

Increases in interest rates will increase the cost
of new borrowing and the interest expenses
of to the Group's outstanding floating rate
borrowings, and therefore could have a material
adverse impact on the Group’s financial
position. The Group's finance department of its
headquarters continuously monitors the interest
rate position of the Group and makes decisions
with reference to the latest market conditions.
The management of the Group may enter into
interest rate swap agreements to mitigate its

exposure to interest rate risk.

As at 30 June 2015, if interest rates on the
floating rate borrowings increased/decreased
5 basis points with all other variables held
constant, the financial expenses of the Group
would increase/decrease by approximately
RMB70,196,000 (31 December 2014:

approximately RMB51,316,000).
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11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK

(Continued)
(1). Market risk (Continued)

(c) Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price
risk because parts of investments held by the
Group and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are classified as available-for-
sale financial assets. The management of the
Group monitors market conditions and price
fluctuations of securities investments. Since the
cost of available-for-sale financial assets is low,
the price risk of the Group is low.

(2). Credit risk

The Group manages its credit risk on a classified
basis. Credit risk mainly arises from cash at bank (note
5(1)), accounts receivable (note 5(3)(a)), and other
receivables (note 5(3)(b)).

The Group expects that there is no significant credit
risk associated with cash at bank since they are
deposited at state-owned banks and other medium or
large size listed banks and does not expect that there
will be any significant losses from non-performance
by these counterparties.

In addition, the Group has policies to limit the credit
risk exposure on accounts receivable, and other
receivables. The Group assesses the credit quality
and sets credit limits on its customers by taking into
account their financial position, the availability of
guarantee from third parties, their credit history and
other factors such as current market conditions. The
credit history of the customers is regularly monitored
by the Group. In respect of customers with a poor
credit history, the Group will use written payment
reminders, reduce or cancel credit periods, to ensure
the overall credit risk of the Group is limited to a
controllable range.
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11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK
(Continued)

(2).

(3).

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. INTERIM REPORT 2015

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has arranged bank financing for
certain purchasers of property units and provided
guarantees to secure obligations of such purchasers
for repayments (note 10). If a purchaser fails on
the payment of its mortgage during the term of
the guarantee, the bank holding the mortgage may
demand the Group to repay the outstanding amount
under the loan and any accrued interest thereon.
Under such circumstances, the Group is able to sell
the property to recover any amounts paid by the
Group to the bank. In this regard, the management
considers that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed by each subsidiary
of the Group and aggregated by the Group’s finance
department in its headquarters. The Group's finance
department at its headquarters monitors rolling
forecasts of the Group’s short-term and long-term
liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash
and securities that are readily convertible to cash to
meet operational needs, while maintaining sufficient
headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing
facilities from major financial institution so that the
Group does not breach borrowing limits or covenants
on any of its borrowing facilities to meet the short-
term and long-term liquidity requirements.
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11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK +-
(Continued)

(3). Liquidity risk (Continued)

The financial liabilities of the Group at the balance

CERMTA

L7 [P ()

(3). uluEJHFAi(ﬂa)

BEABRAE AEEXE

sheet date are analyzed by their maturity date below /i\% BEIUNRFTRNERAIRS
at their undiscounted contractual cash flows: TERIEAYRAET
30 June 2015
“Z-RFXA=tH
Within 1to 2to Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
—FHUR —H=f% ZHEF  EFENUL Ch
Financial liabilities AR
Short-term SHIfER
borrowings 7,366,134 - - - 17,366,134
Accounts payable [ERTRE 6,490,656 - - - 6,490,656
Debentures payables  FEf} (&% 188,114 126,215 6,223,644 - 6,537,973
Long-term borrowings &HfER 1,775,722 10,176,855 14,206,786 2,655,735 28,815,098
Current portion —FRIBERBAR
of non-current
liabilities 9,863,812 - - - 9,863,812
Long-term payables  RHAfE(T 3k 65,000 75,250 655,417 - 795,667
Total CE 25,749,438 10,378,320 21,085,847 2,655,735 59,869,340

As at the balance sheet date, the financial derivative
liabilities classified by undiscounted contract cash
flow:

(@) On 7 September 2016, sell AUD21,700,000 and
buy RMB111,260,000.

(b) On 21 October 2016, sell AUD33,570,000 and
buy RMB168,521,000.

(c) On 30 December 2016, sell AUD26,297,000 and
buy RMB126,740,000.
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RZE—A"FLALHX
138 5521,700,0007T © I
g B A R # 111,260,000
=

RZE—RF+A=-+—
H X {4 )8 Jt 33,570,000
T KB AR
168,521,0007T °
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11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK - 2T BN EkE)
(Continued)
(3). Liquidity risk (Continued) (3). KRB (&
(d) On 31 January 2018, sell AUD77,090,000 and d RZZBE-—N\F-—HA=t+—
buy RMB387,664,000. H % 8 Jt 77,090,000

T A HEBARE
387,664,0007T

31 December 2014

—ET-MEF=A=1—H
Within 1to 2 to QOver
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
—EPR —E=F “HRF AFEUE A%
Financial liabilities £ Ft & &
Short-term AR
borrowings 5,868,652 - - - 5,868,652
Accounts payable  FEfSFIAE 7,873,182 - - - 7,873,182
Debentures I &%
payables 187,755 187,755 3,276,181 - 3,651,691
Long-term REER
borrowings 1,063,097 8,302,615 9,735,450 2,454,457 21,555,619
Current portion —FREHERD
of non-current afE
liabilities 6,230,330 - - - 6,230,330
Long-term payables &N % 146,840  1,025722 676,712 - 1,849,274
Total aaf 21,369,856 9,516,092 13,688,343 2,454,457 47,028,748
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11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK - eI EKE#)
(Continued)
(3). Liquidity risk (Continued) (). RB R (#)
Bank and other borrowings are analyzed by fEREFEERH SO -

repayment terms as follows:

30 June 2015 31 December 2014
“E-HAERA=+tH —EZ-ME+-A=t+-H

borrowings Debentures borrowings  Debentures

BN &% EE &%
Wholly repayable within & — BB BERE 2 KK
five years ER N ER 36,279,453 8,189,895 26,769,838 5,205,814
Not wholly repayable BE-HENATERF2HEN
within five years ERRES 2,251,500 - 2,082,500 -
Total CE 38,530,953 8,189,895 28,852,338 5,205,814
The Group makes temporary guarantee to the banks AREERZ D E P XIEITIR
which provide mortgage loans to the customers of BEHRER) A XN BEEAEE
the Group. The warranty liability could be lifted after HENERER @ BIEIEREITH
the customers obtain owners certification or other HEAEBEEEHBEETRHNE K
related documents, and complete the registration NREEBDRAETRNERERE
of mortgage on houses. As at 30 June 2015 and 31 BRI E IR R R R
December 2014, the balance of such guarantee refers ReoxZBEREITEEERE
to note 10. METEFEMAEENEAM

BE UMZFEEAMELT
Bl  -R-_T—HEXH
=tEER-_T-—WmFE+_A
=+t—B AEER/RTABE
B 3 P 3 R e 4 B SRR S B
LRGBS REMET -
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12. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES

The level of fair value measurement result is determined
by the lowest level of the input value, which is of great

significance to the overall fair value measurement:

Level 1:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets

for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2:

Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or

indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

Level 3:

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs)

(1). Assets measured at fair value on an

1=

N

N

N UEEMGE
AAEEFEERFBOER -

HArREEFEREM

=R

A =<

FEZE

EENBAEMBNREEHRE

B[R
LR
BB

HRAEBEEXBELR
Bis EREHER

WE -

B 5 — B s A E SN
HHEEEXBEER
S HEE A BRAEA

(=

HEEEXBEMNTD
ABREAE-

(1). FENUARAAREBETEN

ongoing basis BE
As at 30 June 2015, the financial assets and liabilities R-ZE—RFA=1+H #
measured at fair value on an ongoing basis by three BHUARBEFENEER
levels are analyzed below: BEEEMR=FERRIITHOT :
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-B& E-ER EZE#R CHS
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at fair value WAREBEFEAEE
through profit or loss - Bt AEHERN
SREE-
Trading financial assets RoMEREE 291,927 - - 291,927
Available-for-sale financial assets— A ESRIEE —
Available-for-sale equity At ERRTA
instruments 21,828 - - 21,828
Total financial assets SRHEEAF 313,755 - = 313,755
Non-financial assets FeREE
Investment properties - REMEHE—
North region Zb i = - 5951,374 5,951,374
Central region ZhiR = - 1,481,000 1,481,000
South region EpiE - - 594,000 594,000
Total non-financial assets FeRMEERH - - 8,026,374 8,026,374
Financial derivative assets TEEHEE - 29,185 - 29,185
Total A&t 313,755 29,185 8,026,374 8,369,314
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BE_Z-RFANA=TBEENEAMSE BRERIFEHAD -

12. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued)

ERBEN/ARETIT)

(1). Assets measured at fair value on an

ongoing basis (Continued)

_|_

Z.AREEME )

1). HENUAAREETEW
BE(E)

As at 30 June 2014, the financial assets measured E’\ —E—NOE+=_/F=+—
at fair value on an ongoing basis by three levels are ?iZIE’JJ//{/D\ﬁ BETEN
analyzed below: é?ﬁzi L= EERIITT :
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EF-ER —ER EZER =
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at fair value NRRBEAZEEHES
through profit or loss - STAEHEEN
TREE-
Trading financial assets ROMEREE 162,863 - - 162,863
Available-for-sale financial assets -~ A ESRIEE —
Available-for-sale equity At ERGETA
instruments 13,420 = = 13,420
Total financial assets SREERR 176,283 - — 176,283
Non-financial assets FeREE
Investment properties - REMEHE-
North region Ei iR = - 2147374 2,147,374
Central region Edanfif ) - - 923,000 923,000
South region ERE - = 580,700 580,700
Total non-financial assets FeMEERT - - 3,651,074 3,651,074
Financial derivative liabilities TTESREE = (3,452) = (3.452)
Total assets EEAH 176283 (3452) 3,651,074 3823905

The Group recognizes transfers into and transfers
out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of
the event that caused the transfer. There were no
transfers between level 1, 2 and 3 during the period.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices in active
markets. The fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market is determined by
valuation techniques. Specific valuation techniques
mainly include discounted cash flow analysis and so
on. The inputs in those valuation techniques mainly
include risk-free rate, benchmark interest rate and
exchange rate.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_F

—RFENAZTHBENEAMSE RERIFEHAN -

ERBEL/ARETIT)

12. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued)

(1). Assets measured at fair value on an
ongoing basis (Continued)

t=. A

The Group obtains independent valuations for
its investment properties from an independent
professional valuer as a third party. The valuations
were based on income capitalization which largely
used unobservable inputs such as market rent,

DN RAEEME

(1). FENLULAREETEW

EE#E)

HNREUFHE  AEBEER

FESNERRT BN S E A

N BEE

Tt - IRAMITETER
RHESWEER - FERNH
AEXZEEMBSESMITR

discount rate and so on. RE o
The change of level 3 assets is below: TRBE=EREELBHNOT :
Investment properties
REMEHE
North Central South
region region region Total
ELHE ERBE W EEHE &t
As at 1 January 2015 —h%F—H—H 2,147,374 923,000 580,700 3,651,074
Additions BE = - = -
Disposals HE - - - -
Transfer from investment KA ENRERE
properties at cost HE®E A 3,018,440 402,389 - 3,420,829
Self-use Real Estate/Transfer BRARMESFTEEA
from inventories = = = -
Gains or losses recognized FABEMFIEIEX
in profit or losses 785,560 155,611 13,300 954,471
As at 30 June 2015 “E-RFRAZ=TH 5,951,374 1,481,000 594,000 8,026,374
Realized gains or losses STAE BERH
recognized in current profit BERAGIEX
or losses
— Investment Income — &&= - - - =
- Other operating income —HEBHRA - - - -
Unrealized gains or losses AR HERN
recognized in current profit RERFIGHBL
or losses
— Profit/(loss) from change AhEAEZSYNE
in fair value (Tégi) 785,560 155,611 13,300 954,471
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BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

12. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued) = AR EBE M &)
(1). Assets measured at fair value on an (1). BENWUAAREBETEN
ongoing basis (Continued) BEGE)

Investment properties

BREGRME
North Central South
region region region Total
EHige  EhE  ERmE Ch
As at 1 January 2014 “2-N&E—-HF—H 1,943,042 516,000 504,876 2,963,918
Additions BE - - 9,211 9,211
Disposals & (4,105) = = (4,105)
Transfer from investment KA ENRERHEEA
properties at cost = = - -
Gains or losses recognized FABENFEHEX
in profit or losses 4,000 12,000 6,913 22,913
As at 31 December 2014 “Z-MFEXA=1H 1,942,937 528,000 521,000 2,991,937
Realized gains or losses TARHBEENEERMNG
recognized in current profit EREES
or losses
- Investment Income — KBk - _ _ _
- Other operating income —HMEBIA (4,788) = = (4,788)
Unrealized gains or losses FAEHBENRERTE
recognized in current profit EREES
or losses
- Profit/(loss) from change - MR BEEIHNE
in fair value (BX) 4,000 12,000 6,913 22,913
Profit or loss in the income statement is recognized FFABEAFIS B LD B
in profit or loss arising from fair value changes, AFMBRANAIARBEZSIE
investment revenue, asset impairment loss, etc. m RERE EERERX
FIAA -
As at 30 June 2015, the gains recognized in profit or RZE—RFAAA=+H XK
losses of assets in level 3 held by the Group amounted SENBEENE=EREEF
to RMB954,471,000. HABE-_ZE-—REANA=1

BibNE A BEERNFE A
AR #954,471,0007T °
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BE_Z-RAFAA=TELENEAME REREAN  2BEMRARETT)

12. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued)

(1). Assets measured at fair value on an

ongoing basis (Continued)

The Group's finance department is in charge of
assets’ valuation and employs the independent valuer
to evaluate the fair value of investment properties.
The finance department verifies all valuation results,
take charge of relative accounting treatment and
prepare disclosure information of fair value according
to verified valuation results.

Information about fair value measurements using

significant unobservable inputs:

TZ AnEEMG &
(1). BEOALREE R

EE#E)

AEBHBBHFIBEEEN

mEIE

- B R EINEBBL

AHEEI S AN EEIRE M E
AR BEETHE - b
BEERAAEEM B EBPIET
BB RRBRE - WER
KERENHESRENEAA
BEAENEKEREE

FEREENAHEGAEBBNR
ABEFENHBESLT

Unobservable inputs

FTTBEERAE
Relationship of
Investment Fair value as  Valuation Range/ unobservable inputs of
Properties at 30 June 2015 techniques  Title weighted average fair value
~E-1f
~AB=tH
REMELE DAEE HERE £ 0E/METHE EAEEZBNBE
North region 5,951,374
e
2,172,374 Income Discount rate 6% to 8% The higher discount rate s,
approach the lower fair value
W% R 6%Z8% FREMS  DAEEEE
Market rents RMB41 to RMB406 per  The higher market rent is,
square meter per month  the higher fair value
M BYAABAANRRNT BEHR AABEES
EARB4067
3,779,000  Cost approach Interest rate 4.85% t0 5.4% The higher interest rate is,
the higher fair value
KA MEX 4.85%%5.4% MEXHR  MAEESR
Profit rate 10% to 25% The higher profit rate is, the
higher fair value
MEx 10%Z£25% MEXES  2AEEES
Central region 1,481,000  Income Discount rate 7% t0 8% The higher discount rate is,
approach the lower fair value
EhipR Wk HRx 7%Z%8% RREES  RAEESE
Market rents RMB61 to RMB70 The higher market rent is,
per square meter the higher fair value
per month
[iEoriikq sEIABANRN6IT BEHE AAEBEES
EARKIOT
South region 594,000  Income Discount rate 7% 10 9% The higher discount rate s,
approach the lower fair value
E@itE &) HRx 7%Z9% RRXER AL BELE
Market rents RMB46 to RMB57 per The higher market rent is,
square meter per month  the higher fair value
[oriikq FEIABANRKLeT BEBE AAEBEES
EARKSTL
BEUJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. INTERIM REPORT 2015 264



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% R 2 Bt o
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BE_Z-RAFAA=ZTELENEAME BREREAN  2BEMRARETT)

12. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued)

(2).

(3).

TZ. A AEBEMFT @)

Assets measured at fair value not on an (2). FEBEBEHWUAABEEE
ongoing basis NEE
The non-current assets held for sale are stated at the BEFERNIERDEE - UK
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to HEEEARBEREREE
sell. AR SEETE -
Assets and liabilities not measured at fair (3). FTUAAREBEEERE
value but disclosed on fair value HAARBENEENERE
Financial assets and liabilities measured at AEBUERNATENS R
amortized cost mainly include receivables, short- EENCRMBEXTrZERE B
term borrowings, payables, long-term borrowings, WHIE - SHER - BEX
debentures payables and long-term payables. B RHER EMNEENE
HARET R EE o
Except for the financial assets and liabilities listed RThemEEMSRE G MU
below, the carrying amount of financial assets and Gy EtAA AR BEFTZER
liabilities not measured at fair value is a reasonable SHEEMBEMNREEEH
approximation of their fair value: ARBEMEAERN -
30 June 2015 31 December 2014
“E-RfXA=+tR Z—E-WmF+-RAR=+—H
Carrying Carrying
amount  Fair value amount Fair value
REEE AREE EEEE AREE
Long-term borrowings REER 19,170,150 20,637,606 11,949,100 12,697,885
Debentures payable ERES 6,195,868 6,210,338 3,217,112 3,235,935
Long-term payables REERT 650,000 707,337 1,530,000 1,646,050
Total aaf 26,016,018 27,555,281 16,696,212 17,579,870

The fair value of long-term borrowings and
debentures payables that are not traded in an active
market is determined by using valuation techniques,
such as discounted contracted cash flow analysis, by
using discount rate which is comparable credit rate
and almost the same cash flows in the same situation
in the market. The fair value belongs to Level 3.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-AFANA=TREANEAYE CRERIERS - SREMSARETIT)

13. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT Tz BEAREE
The Group's objectives of managing capital are to AEEEARERBBRKRNEEZRAT
safeguard the group’s ability to continue as a going REAEEEBFELL  EMA
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and AR R IRt =R - W {F H b F 25 /E 8
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal TR FRNERTENERGH
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. VAR B AR o
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, BTHESAEERERE  ~EE
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to AlEeFAEINERENORIE
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new %Ei FREREREERN « BEITHREK
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. & & ENREKER -
Same with others in the industry, the group monitors HETERNEMA » REE

capital on the basis of the net gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by net capital. Net debt
is calculated as total borrowings (including “Short-term
borrowings (including current portion of non-current
liabilities)”, “Long-term borrowings” and “Debentures
payable” as shown in the consolidated balance sheet)
less Cash at bank and on hand. Net capital is same as

MAREXRERE I:TW Eﬁélei g
Z L R REBF R R E ARG
B -EBFRRLER(BIEREE
H(E—FRINHANERBER) -
Eﬁﬂﬁf‘”ﬂfﬁﬁ%#)ﬂifﬁgé

cFEARAREHEERBRPA
EIJ%E@%%FE °

shareholder’s equity shown in the consolidated balance

sheet.
30 June 31 December
2015 2014
~NA=+H +=-A=+—H
Total borrowings, including sk - Erp 46,060,598 32,528,152
Short-term borrowings K EAfE 16,402,270 11,579,678
Long-term borrowings REIER 23,462,460 17,731,362
Debentures payable FERHES 6,195,868 3,217,112
Total aEr 46,060,598 32,528,152
Less: Cash at bank and on hand W BEEES (12,659,422) (13,897,026)
Net borrowings [EVGPEE] 33,401,176 18,631,126
Shareholders’ equity A& ER S 21,506,136 21,413,526
Net gearing ratio FEERELE 155% 87 %
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HEZ

T-RFNA=THIENEADRRE (REHIERN

ERBEN/ARETIT)

14. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

In July 2015, Rosy Capital Global Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group through its holding in
Beijing Capital Juda, issued guaranteed notes amounted
to RMB1,300,000,000, the notes carries a fixed annual
interest rate of 5.25% with a maturity period of 3 years,
Beijing Capital Juda provided unconditional and irrevocable
joint guarantees and Capital Group entered into a

Keepwell Deed for the notes.

15.
STATEMENTS

(1). Other receivables

NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL

T,

Ti

EEEERARERE
R_Z-—HF+tA AEEAEB

B AlSE XA M2 E T 2 A Rosy
Capital Global LimitedZ7T42%8 4 A
FR#1,300,000,000 T AU ER ZE % -
ZEBER AT - E@ETEFF

R 5525% o

Pl EEHEEER

REEMSRNS - TAIMHETEEHE
& - W BB RBEIR A I 175

NEPHHRREREAHE

B =

(1). EAbFEUR

30 June 31 December
2015 2014
~NA=+H +-A=+—H
Amounts due from JE UL T2 B 7 2R ()
subsidiaries (i) 32,384,307 24,879,221
Amounts due from joint EUE Z DR ERK
ventures 2,332 10,868
Amounts due from JE U Bt 2 X B 1 PR X
associates 346,810 -
Guarantee funds RES 17,000 10,000
Others HAth 18,519 18,228
Total A 32,768,968 24,918,317
Less: provisions for doubtful Jg : ZEARZEME
debts (24,000) (24,000)
Other receivables — net k-t 32,744,968 24,894,317

(i) As at 30 June 2015, RMB202,000,000 (31
December 2014: RMB177,000,000) with the
interest rate at 20% up the interest rate of bank
borrowings for 1-3 years with the same period,
unsecured and unguaranteed. Other receivables
due from subsidiaries except for the loans above
are interest free, unsecured and unguaranteed
and have no fixed maturity date.

The Company has not recognized or written off
doubtful debt provision for other receivables for the
six months ended 30 June 2015.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE-Z-AFAASHALAEANN (B3R - SEERBARETT)

15. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(1). Other receivables (Continued)

T AEUBHRREEIEE
B &)

The analysis of other receivables and the related

provisions are as follows:

(1).

H At WK (48

H A 18 K e A R O 3 PR
BEANRRRERRESTOT -

30 June 2015 31 December 2014
“E2-REXR=1A ZZ-ME+ZA=1-A
% of total % of the % of total % of the
Amount  balance  Provision  provision Amount balance  Provision provision
S8 (GHAENA  BREE  HERA 8 [BABLH  BREE  HRUH
% % % %
Within 1 year —EHA 32,744,220 100 - - 24,893,569 100 - -
110 2 years —3=F - - - - 748 = = =
2t03 years ZH=E 748 - - - - - - -
QOver 3 years =ENE 24,000 - (24,000) 100 24,000 - (24,000) 100
Tota 4% 32,768,968 100 (24000 - 24918317 100 (24000 -
(2). Long-term equity investments (2). RERERE
30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—ZE-1F —ET-HF
ANA=+H +=-—A=+—H
Subsidiaries (a) Ea/NCIE))
— unlisted companies —3EEHAR 3,403,044 3,403,044
Joint ventures (b) BB (b)
— unlisted companies —JLEmAA 370,935 306,970
Associates (c) B 2E(0)
— unlisted companies —JELETAF 168,656 166,481
Total At 3,942,635 3,876,495

There is no restriction on sale of the long-term equity
investment of the Company and collection of the

investment income.
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BEZ-RFAA=TRIENEASE CRERIFERS - SRBLA/ARBETT)

15. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL th AR HRKREEIEH

STATEMENTS (Continued) MTJLEE (#&)
(2). Long-term equity investments (Continued) (2). REPRERE (&
(a) Subsidiaries (a) F2F

Attributable Attributable 31 December

interest held vote held 2014 Additions Disposals 30 June 2015
it Sy —3-1f
FRRSLA FAELS TZA=T-8 AEEm KRS AAZTH
Capital Chaoyeng e 100% 100% 734,095 - - 734,095
Rongjin Company eI 10% 10% 21,968 = = 21,968
Central Company N 75% 75% 79433 - - 79,433
Central Plaza Xinrong HRER 75% 75% 90,437 - - 90437
IFC IFC 100% 100% 20,480 - - 20,480
Central Plaza Central Plaza 100% 100% 39,466 - - 39,466
Jindu Company Bres 100% 100% 369,970 - - 369,970
Beijing Xinzi b5 100% 100% 642,625 - - 642,625
Anhua Shij REHE 55% 60% 136,303 = - 136,303
Shangboya 5]t 100% 100% 30,000 = - 30,000
Shangbodi s 51% 51% 15,300 - - 15,300
Jiangsu Capital NET 60% 60% 60,375 = = 60,375
Capital Chengdu EL 100% 100% 150,000 - - 150,000
Sunshine City Bt 50% 60% 82,766 - - 82,766
Wuxi Xindong EEHE 100% 100% 100,000 - - 100,000
Capital (Chengdu) Investment BE(H)REER
Co., ltd. BRARA 100% 100% 5,000 - - 5,000
Capital (Tianjin) Real Estate BEI(RE)E$ER
Management Co., Ltd. BRAF 100% 100% 5,000 - - 5,000
Beijing Ruiyuan Fengxiang Real IREnEEES
Estate Development Co., Ltd. BRAT 100% 100% 10,000 - - 10,000
Ruiyuan Fengj Bret 100% 100% 10,000 - - 10,000
Chuangxin Jianye EiEE 100% 100% 50,000 - - 50,000
Beijing Xinyuan Chengye Consultant t REZHERH
Co., ltd. ARAR 100% 100% 1,000 = - 1,000
Capital Nanjing Investment Co., Ltd.  &&ERREER
BRAR 100% 100% 5,000 = - 5,000
Capital Guoxin EEEH 100% 100% 100,000 = - 100,000
Haikou Capital Xinye Investment OB EHERE
Co., Ltd. BRAT 100% 100% 10,000 = - 10,000
BECL BERE 100% 100% 67,296 = - 67,296
Shanghai Zhengheng &L 100% 100% 10,000 - - 10,000
Beijing Chuangyuan Botao S REIREERER
Architectural Design & Consulting BRI AR A
Co., ltd. 100% 100% 5,000 - - 5,000
Beijing Xinyuan Huafu Investment ~ tR¥TTEEREER
Co., ltd. ARAR 100% 100% 5,000 = - 5,000
Bejjing Hengyuan Yinxing Investment Jt RETTREREER
Co., Ltd. BRAT 100% 100% 5,000 = - 5,000
Beijing Donggi Jin Zhao Infrastructure R & BERR
Investment Co., Ltd. RERRAA 100% 100% 30,000 = = 30,000
Beijing Zhongzhi Dingfu kRRESE 100% 100% 100,000 - - 100,000
Specific Assets Management Plan ~~ RAEEHE 9% TEh 190,000 - - 190,000
Yongyuan Jintai XTER 100% 100% 216,530 - - 216,530
Lehui Shenghuo AELE 100% 100% 5,000 = - 5,000
Total Gl 3,403,044 = - 3,403,044
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HE-Z—RAFAA=TRHIENEASE (BREFRIFERAN -

ERBEL/ARETIT)

15. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(2). Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(b) Joint ventures

Long-term equity investment in joint

i

DA KRR EEEE
B AT ()

(2). RERERE (F
(b) &L
HEETXNRBRER

ventures: g :
Change in the period
AHEREY
Share of Impairment
31 Increaseor  Share of other com- Cash Other Equity Provision  provided
Accounting  Investment December decreasein  net profit/ prehensive  dividend equity  30June interest  Voting for in current
method €osts 2014 investment  (losses)  income  declared  movement 2015 held rights held impairment period
RERE
“T-mE RERE  BEY ZB-1% AL
toh Bmg #BY Abss EE ~A HRAE
vENE RERA =T-B  HORE 5 B&  AEAE 2 StE  BRA RAELD REERE £
% %
Beijing Wanzhu Equity method AR 53,149 - 55519 - - - 108,668 30% 30% - -
IREE Bt 25,500,000
Tonghua Qiangyu  Equity method AR 8,742 - 5 - - - 8,798 40% 40% - -
BERT Bt 4,000,000
Zhuhai Henggin Fund  Equity method AR 3,932 - - - - -39 40% 40% - -
Management &% 4,000,000
Company
KEREECERAT
Zhuhai Henggin Fund  Equity method ~ AR 241,147 - 83% = - - 49531 2824% 40% = =
HiEEEES BRE 240,000,000
306,970 - 63965 - - - 370935 - -

The key financial Information of joint ventures is
disclosed in note 5(10)(a).
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BEZ-RFAA=TRIENEARRE (RERIFERN -

ERBEN/ARETIT)

15. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(2). Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(c) Associates

Long-term equity investment in associates:

15 ARIBBREEEEE
By = (4
() ez

HgEbXNWRPRER

g :

Change in the period
AHHEY

Share of Impairment
31 Increaseor  Share of other com- Cash Other Equity Provision  provided

December decrease in et (losses)/ prehensive
2014 investment profit ~ income
RERE

“5-RE RERE  BEY
TZA BN BEH  Hbse
=t-B RORE & W

dividend equity  30June interest

for in current

declared  movement 2015 held rights held impairment period
It k3 AL

% Ait#s ~A itRAE
gl 28 =R RRuS RRER REER £

Golden net

ik

Yuangguangyuan

()

6,904 - (10) -
159,577 - 2,185 -
166,481 - 2175 -

= = 6,894 14
- - 161762 3%
= - 168,65

The key financial Information of associates is

disclosed in note 5(10)(b).
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-—RFAA=TRIEANEASE RERIFERS - RBLAARBETT)

15. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(3). Taxes payable

T AEUBHRREEIEE
B &)
(3). EXHE

30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—E-hHF —T—MF
ANA=+H +=-—H=+—H

Land appreciation JER T I ER
tax payable 20 20
Business tax payable e 325 1,990
Others HAith 923 -
Total i 1,268 2,010

(4). Revenue and cost of sales

(4). EXRWAME KA

Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2015 2014

BE-Z—1F #H=—_ZT—NF
NA=THILE NA=1THIE
7~E B Hi 7~ E A HA ]

Revenue from main FEEBWA)
operations (a)

12,927 48,423

Cost of sales from main F & EEK AN a)
operations (a)

(a) Revenue and cost of sales from main

(a) FEXBWAMEERK

operations FX 2N
Six months ended Six months ended
30 June 2015 30 June 2014
BZE BZE
“E-RFXA=TH ZE-MFEAR=+H

EAERHME LE7SE A A
Main Main Main Main
operating  operating operating operating
revenue costs revenue costs
& £ B By
ES TN EBRAR  EBBA EBEA
Consulting services WA 12,927 = 48,423 =
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B AR R

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z-RFNA=ZTBEENEAMSE (BRERIFEHAD -

ERBEN/ARETIT)

15. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL T AEBHRREEIEE
STATEMENTS (Continued) MIEE (47)
(5). Investment income (5). REWEH
Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2015 2014
BE-Z2-—HF #HZE-_ZTWF
NA=1THL /\)E]f+E|Jt
B A B 7~1E A Ei
Share of profit/(loss) of BRI EZERDENRIEE
investees under equity BN FEmMDEE
method 66,140 850
Gains from disposal of BEFRAREEMNKE
subsidiaries Wz = 240,000
Dividend income from A HESREERT
available-for-sale financial Wz
assets 2,390 =
Dividend distribution from  F2 & & F| 5 A2
subsidiaries 12,007 -
Others Hi = 11,908
Total B&F 80,537 252,758
16. NET CURRENT ASSETS ™. FRBEE
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-Ff —mE —BE-#& —mE
~A +=A ~A +-H
=+H =+—H =tH =+—H
Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
aft &bt NG yNS]
Current assets RBEE 76477,960 67344366 35385088 27,479,522
Less: Current liabilities B REBARE (38,553,456)  (33,814,386)  (25,459,757)  (21,205,528)
Net current assets FnEEE 37,924,504 33,529,980 9,925,331 6,273,994
273 HAIBXRMGARAE T —AFHHHRE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7% AR B o

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEZ-—RFAA=TRIEANEASE RERIFERS - RBLAARBETT)

17. TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT Tt BEERADERE

LIABILITIES

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December

2015 2014 2015 2014

“2-1% —T-@mfE ZB-Ef C—T—@OmF

~A +=A ~A +-A

=+A ==E =+H =Er=E

Consolidated  Consolidated Company Company

&bt A B AH NG

Total assets BEMEG 91,621,623 78,679,556 39,872,714 31,832,328

Less: Current liabilities A mBAE (38,553,456)  (33,814,386)  (25,459,757)  (21,205,528)

Total assets less current liabilities BEER B A E 53,068,167 44,865,170 14,412,957 10,626,800
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COMPANY INFORMATION
AAEH

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Hao (Chairman)

(Re-designated as Executive Director and
appointed as Chairman on 10 August 2015)

Mr. Tang Jun (President)

Mr. Zhang Shengli

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Xiaoguang

(Re-designated as Non-executive Directors and
resigned as Chairman on 10 August 2015)

Mr. Song Fengjing

Mr. Shen Jianping

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Ng Yuk Keung
Mr. Wang Hong
Mr. Li Wang

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Ng Yuk Keung (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Hong
Mr. Li Wang

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Wang Hong (Chairman)
Mr. Song Fengjing
Mr. Ng Yuk Keung

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Wang Hao (Chairman)
Mr. Ng Yuk Keung
Mr. Wang Hong

STRATEGIC COMMITTEE

Mr. Wang Hao (Chairman)
Mr. Tang Jun
Mr. Wang Hong

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Liu Yongzheng
Mr. Fan Shubin
Mr. Jiang Hebin

SECRETARY OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Hu Weimin

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Lee Sze Wai
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COMPANY INFORMATION

NEIE- &2

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES RERE

Mr. Tang Jun BELA

Mr. Lee Sze Wai THT M L

REGISTERED OFFICE M ERE

Room 6008, Block 1, R EdE R

No. 26 Qingchun Road, s

Huairou District, HEK 2658

Beijing, PRC 11#6008 =

BEIJING HEADQUARTERS b RAE

F17, Red Goldage, R BdE R

No. 2, Guang Ning Bo Street, Fip A

Xicheng District, Beijing, PRC BEEEG2REEZRNE1TE

HONG KONG OFFICE EBPER

Suites 2906-08, AIA Central, BERRIRTHER R

1 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong RIBE BA0,2906-08F

WEBSITE 4k

http://www.bjcapitalland.com http://www.bjcapitalland.com

AUDITORS 2

PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP K ER KGRI ETEFT
(FHEBER)

LEGAL ADVISERS LR

As to Hong Kong law: BELE -

Norton Rose Fulbright Hong Kong BB REER S MR

As to PRC law: HEEE -

JunZelun Law Office EEEEMEBAHT

PRINCIPAL BANKERS FEAFREIT

China Development Bank B FEEER1T

China Construction Bank PRI IRTT

Agricultural Bank of China A R SR ERTT

China Merchants Bank HriRT

Bank of Communications RBIRTT

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China T IRTT

Bank of China FEERTT

The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation BB LS EZIRTT

H SHARE REGISTRAR HERMDEBEFETLE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited BAEFRFBAHZLERAT

Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, BB EFKNBR183E

183 Queen’ s Road East, Wanchai BB L7

Hong Kong 1712-1716=

Note:  The financial statements section in this Report has been prepared in both  Afi# : ZARIFEFHHRRITHO AP X R EXHE o a2
Chinese and English. For any discrepancies, the Chinese version shall prevail. FIRFEAEE - R XXRE -
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